
 

Page 1 of 521 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JUNE 17, 2019 
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of June 3, 2019. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on proposed rezoning from R-3, Multiple Residence District, to C-2, Commercial 
District, of property located at 2600 Grove Street. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published June 7, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

3. Pass an ordinance amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located at 2600 Grove Street from the R-3, Multiple Residence District, and placing the same in the 
C-2, Commercial District, upon its first consideration. 

Old Business 

4. Pass Ordinance #2944, amending Chapter 2, Administration, and Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances relative to updating terminology, in conjunction with the 
implementation of recommendations from the Downtown Parking Study, upon its third & final 
consideration. 

5. Pass Ordinance #2945, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to establishing parking regulations, in conjunction with the implementation of 
recommendations from the Downtown Parking Study, upon its third & final consideration. 

6. Pass Ordinance #2946, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances to be consistent with parking regulations being established, in conjunction with the 
implementation of recommendations from the Downtown Parking Study, upon its second 
consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

7. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Brian Hayes, Historic Preservation Commission, term ending 03/31/2022.  
b) Michael Mahncke, Historic Preservation Commission, term ending 03/31/2022.  

1



 

Page 2 of 521 

c) Debra Iehl, Utilities Board of Trustees, term ending 08/31/2025.  
d) Brooke Croshier-Sidebotham, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2022.  
e) Amy Dutton, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2022.  
f) Doug Johnson, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2022. 

8. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of June 3, 2019 relative to the following items: 
a) Utilities Board of Trustees Interview - Debra Iehl.  
b) Grow Cedar Valley Update. 
c) Monument Mailboxes. 
d) Bills & Payroll. 

9. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a certified list for the 
position of Equipment Mechanic. 

10. Receive and file two Reports of Compensation Commissioners and Notices of Appraisement of 
Damages and Time for Appeal, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 

11. Approve a request for street closures for the Sturgis Falls Half Marathon and 5K Run on June 30, 
2019. 

12. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road. 
b) Buzz Smoke & Vapor, 2125 College Street. 
c) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street. 
d) Hill Street News and Tobacco, 2217 College Street. 
e) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street. 
f) The Smoking Dragon (f/k/a The Dragon's Cave), 2225 College Street. 

13. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street, Class C beer & Class B native wine - renewal. 
b) Hong Kong Chinese Restaurant, 6306 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
d) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
e) Holiday Inn Express & Suites, 1614 Technology Parkway, Class C beer - new. 
f) Famous Dave's, 6222 University Avenue, Class C liquor - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

14. Resolution approving and adopting the City's FY20 Appropriations Resolution. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Engagement Letter with Eide Bailly, LLP to 
perform the audit of the City's FY19 financial statements and compliance with federal award 
programs. 

16. Resolution naming official depositories for the City of Cedar Falls. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Textile Services with City 
Laundering Company relative to providing linen services. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Administrative Services Agreement with 
Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield relative to the City's FY20 Employee Health Plan. 

19. Resolution approving a Stop Loss Policy with Wellmark, Inc. relative to the City's FY20 Employee 
Health Plan. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Client Agreement with Express Scripts, Inc. 
relative to pharmacy benefit management services. 

2



 

Page 3 of 521 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Client Authorization to Bind Coverage with 
Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. relative to FY20 insurance brokerage and risk 
management services. 

22. Resolution approving and adopting the City's FY20 Fee Schedule. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Agreement with Waterloo 
Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. relative to the preparation of a Visitor Guide. 

24. Resolution approving and accepting a Quit Claim Deed, in conjunction with the Ridgeway Avenue 
Reconstruction Project. 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 8 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 2019 Engineering Services 
relative to the Greenhill Road Extension Lighting Project. 

26. Resolution approving and adopting revised Bylaws for the Historic Preservation Commission. 

27. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located 
at 1600 West 3rd Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 

28. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located 
at 620 Tremont Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 

29. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Project Escrow Agreement with Greenhill 
Estates, Inc. relative to completion of public improvements at the Greenhill Road and Coneflower 
Parkway intersection. 

30. Resolution setting July 1, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public 
improvement project for the Cyber Lane-2018 Street Construction Project and to authorize 
acquisition of private property for said project. 

31. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting July 1, 2019 as the date of public hearing on, the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the South Main Street Parking 
Lot Project. 

32. Resolution setting July 1, 2019 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into a proposed 
Agreement for Private Development and to consider conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to 
Tjaden Properties, L.L.C. 

33. Resolution setting July 2, 2019 as the date of consultation and directing mailing of notice of 
consultation, and setting August 19, 2019 as the date of public hearing, directing publication of 
notice of hearing, directing the mailing of notice of hearing, and approving pre-annexation 
agreements for application for voluntary annexation of real estate to the City of Cedar Falls. 

34. Resolution appointing City Councilmember Susan deBuhr as a representative of the City of Cedar 
Falls for a Consultation with representatives of the Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors and the 
Cedar Falls Township Trustees relative to applications for voluntary annexation of certain real estate 
to the City of Cedar Falls. 

Ordinances 

35. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking on portions of Panther Lane, upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

36. Allow Bills and Payroll of June 17, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

3



 

Page 4 of 521 

City Council Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JUNE 3, 2019 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Absent: None. 

 
52342 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by deBuhr that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of May 20, 2019 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mayor Brown read a proclamation declaring June 2019 as Family Health and 
Fitness Month, and Luann Alemao and Rich Congdon commented. 

 
52343 - City Clerk Danielsen announced that Item 36 was being removed from the 

Resolution Calendar. 
 
52344 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of May 24, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed 
Agreement for Private Development and conveyance of certain city-owned real 
estate to Owen 5, L.L.C. It was then moved by Green and seconded by Blanford 
that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52345 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed agreement and conveyance. Upon being advised that there were no 
written communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. 
Economic Development Coordinator Graham provided a brief explanation of the 
proposal. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the proposed 
agreement and conveyance, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed 
to the next order of business. 

 
52346 -  It was moved by Miller and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,553, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development 
and Minimum Assessment Agreement with Owen 5, L.L.C., and approving and 
authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to certain city-owned 
real estate to Owen 5, L.L.C., be adopted. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,553 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52347 -     It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2940, 

amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
reorganization of City operations, be passed upon its third and final 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 

5



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2940 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52348 -     It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Green that Ordinance #2941, 

amending certain sections of the Code of Ordinances relative to the renaming of 
the Department of Municipal Operations and Programs to the Department of 
Public Works, in conjunction with the reorganization of City operations, be 
passed upon its third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Ordinance #2941 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52349 -     It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Blanford that Ordinance #2942, 

amending Chapter 15, Nuisances and Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the 
Code of Ordinances relative to the renaming of the Public Works and Parks 
Division Manager to the Operations and Maintenance Division Manager, in 
conjunction with the reorganization of City operations, be passed upon its third 
and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2942 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52350 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that Ordinance #2943, amending 

certain sections of the Code of Ordinances to be in conformance with the Code 
of Iowa and consistent with current City operations, be passed upon its third and 
final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2943 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52351 -     It was moved by Blanford and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2944, 

amending Chapter 2, Administration, and Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, 
of the Code of Ordinances relative to updating terminology, in conjunction with 
the implementation of recommendations from the Downtown Parking Study, be 
passed upon its second consideration. Following comments by Councilmembers 
Green, Miller, Kruse and Wieland, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52352 -     It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford that Ordinance #2945, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to establishing parking regulations, in conjunction with the 
implementation of recommendations from the Downtown Parking Study, be 
passed upon its second consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 

6



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52353 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Blanford that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions:  
a) Kate Brennan Hall, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2023.  
b) Matthew Wilson, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2023.  
c) Lauren Finke, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2021. 

 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of May 20, 2019 relative to 
the following items:  
a) Downtown Parkade and Streetscape.  
b) Bills & Payroll. 

 
Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of April 2019. 
 
Approve the following special event related requests:  
a) Parking variances, College Hill Arts Festival, June 21-22, 2019.  
b) Street closures, Sturgis Falls Celebration, June 26-30, 2019.  
c) Parking variance, Teacher Festival, July 25, 2019. 
 
Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) Bani's, 2128 College Street.  
b) Fareway Stores, 4900 South Main Street.  
c) Fareway Stores, 214 North Magnolia Drive.  
d) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard. 

 
 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
 a) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.  
 b) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.  
 c) Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Class B beer - renewal.  

d) Los Cabos Mexican Restaurant, 112-114 Main Street, Class C liquor & 
outdoor service - renewal.  

e) Montage, 222-224 Main Street, Class C liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service 
- renewal.  

f) The Other Place, 2214 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal.  
 g) Target, 214 Viking Plaza Drive, Class E liquor - renewal.  

h) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary 
expansion of outdoor service area. (June 15-16, 2019 & June 28-30, 2019) 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52354 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Wieland that the following resolutions 

be introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,554, approving and authorizing execution of a Service Agreement 
with Praetorian Digital relative to Fire and EMS training. 

7



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 
Resolution #21,555, approving and authorizing designation of certain streets for 
operation of all-terrain vehicles. 
 
Resolution #21,556, designating the dates and locations for the annual Sturgis 
Falls Celebration and Cedar Basin Jazz Festival Inc. 
 
Resolution #21,557, approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Black Hawk County Pheasants Forever & Quail Forever 
Chapter relative to the Youth Pollinator Habitat Project for the North Cedar 
Natural Reserve Project. 
 
Resolution #21,558, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of pavement sealing equipment. 
 
Resolution #21,559, approving and accepting a Temporary Construction 
Easement, in conjunction with the Walnut Street Box Culvert Replacement - 
University Branch of Dry Run Creek Project. 
 
Resolution #21,560, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. for the Walnut Street Box Culvert Replacement - University 
Branch of Dry Run Creek Project. 
 
Resolution #21,561, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 6 to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for 2019 Engineering Services relative to the Clay Street Park 
Water Quality Improvements Project. 
 
Resolution #21,562, approving and authorizing Change Order No. 1 to the 
contract with Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the 2019 Street Construction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,563, approving a Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay 
Zoning District site plan for construction of a restaurant and convenience 
store/gas station/automobile service station to be located on Lot 2 of Gateway 
Business Park at Cedar Falls I. 
 
Resolution #21,564, approving the preliminary plat of Replat of Lot 16 and Tract 
"B," West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV. 
 
Resolution #21,565, approving the final plat of Replat of Lot 16 and Tract "B," 
West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV. 

 
  Resolution #21,566, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 

Agreement No.7 to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. relative to extension of 2019 Engineering Services. 
 
Resolution #21,567, setting June 17, 2019 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning from R-3, Multiple Unit Residential, to C-2, Commercial 
District, of property located at 2600 Grove Street. 

 

8



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,554 through #21,567 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52355 -  It was moved by Miller and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,568, 

approving and adopting the City's FY20 Payroll Resolution, be adopted. 
Following a comment by Scott Dix, 7821 North Union Road, Janesville, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#21,568 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52356 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,569, 

approving and adopting amendments to the City's Accounting Policies and 
Procedures and Purchasing Manual, be adopted.  

 
    It was then moved by Green and seconded by Blanford to amend the resolution 

to provide that Cedar Falls-owned businesses receive a contract if within 1% of 
lowest bid. Following questions by Councilmembers Miller and deBuhr, and 
responses by City Attorney Rogers and City Administrator Gaines, 
Councilmember Green withdrew his motion. 

 
    The Mayor then put the question on the original motion and upon call of the roll, 

the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,569 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52357 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,570, 

approving and authorizing final acceptance of the Partial Demolition & Exterior 
Wall Rebuild of 4418 University Avenue, in conjunction with the University 
Avenue Reconstruction Project, Phase II, be adopted. Following a question by 
Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street, and response by Community Development 
Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,570 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52358 -  It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,571, 

approving and accepting the contract and bond of Lodge Construction, Inc. for 
the 100 Block Alley Reconstruction Project, be adopted. Following a question by 
Councilmember Wieland and response by City Attorney Rogers, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,571 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52359 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,572, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Transportation Services Agreement 

9



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

with Metropolitan Transit Authority (MET) for downtown shuttle services from 
June 6, 2019 thru August 31, 2019, be adopted. Following questions by 
Councilmembers Miller and Blanford, responses by City Administrator Gaines 
and appreciative comments by Community Main Street Director Carol Lilly, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#21,572 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52360 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,573, 

approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District site plan for a 
mixed-use development at 2119 College Street, be adopted. Following 
comments and questions by Councilmembers Kruse and deBuhr, response by 
Community Services Manager Howard, and supportive comments by College Hill 
Partnership Executive Director Kathryn Sogard, and Jim Kearns, 3123 
Cottonwood Lane, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,573 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52361 -  It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Green that Resolution #21,574, 

approving a Mixed Use Zoning District site plan for a residential development on 
Lot 2, Pinnacle Ridge First Addition, be adopted. Following comments by 
Councilmember Green, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,574 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52362 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2946, amending 

Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances to be 
consistent with parking regulations being established, in conjunction with the 
implementation of recommendations from the Downtown Parking Study, be 
passed upon its first consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52363 -     It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Kruse that the bills and payroll of June 

3, 2019 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. 
Motion carried.  

 
52364 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Residential Parking Permits 

in all residential zoned districts in the College Hill Overlay District be referred to 
the Committee of the Whole. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers deBuhr, Blanford, Kruse and Green, and response by Finance 
& Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, Councilmember Kruse withdrew his 
motion. 

10



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

 
 It was moved by Green and seconded by Kruse that permitting monument 

mailboxes with a provision for limited City liability be referred to the Committee of 
the Whole. Following a question by Councilmember deBuhr and response by 
Councilmember Green, the motion passed 5-2 with deBuhr and Wieland voting 
nay. 

 
52365 - Councilmember Blanford spoke about the first Downtown Visioning meeting, 

expressed appreciation to Public Works staff, Americore group, Rotary Club and 
volunteers for a recent tree planting project, and wished the Mayor a Happy 
Birthday on behalf of City Council. 

 
 City Attorney Rogers responded to questions and comments by Councilmembers 

Miller, Wieland, Darrah and Green regarding the appearance of conflicts of 
interest due to business relationships between Planning & Zoning Commission 
members and developers. 

 
 Community Services Manager Howard announced on-going Downtown Visioning 

activities this week at the Cedar Falls Woman’s Club. 
 
52366 - Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, commented on Ordinance #2824 regarding the 

2014 reorganization of city operations. 
 
 Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street, commented on sustainability and 

announced “A Practical Backyard Tour” on June 15th. 
 
 Community Development Director Sheetz responded to concerns expressed by 

Mary Jane McCollum, 807 West 2nd Street, and Councilmember Blanford 
regarding detours and traffic calming measures during the West 1st Street 
reconstruction.  

 
 College Hill Partnership Executive Director Kathryn Sogard, 330 Columbia Circle, 

Waterloo, announced the College Hill Farmers Market on June 6th. 
 
 Cedar Falls Firefighters Local 1366 President Scott Dix, 7821 North Union Road, 

Janesville, read a statement expressing safety concerns with recent Public 
Safety Supervisor promotions. Fire Chief Bostwick, Public Safety Services 
Director Olson and Assistant Police Chief Berte provided clarification and 
responded to questions by Mayor Brown and Councilmembers Blanford, Kruse, 
Green and Miller.  

 
52367 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that the meeting be adjourned at 

8:32 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
  ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

11



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner II 

 DATE: June 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request – 2600 Grove Street 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from R-3, Multiple Residence District to C-2, Commercial 
District. (Case #RZ19-004) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

City of Cedar Falls 

LOCATION: 
 

2600 Grove Street 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
Through the review of a mobile merchant application, it was brought to City Staff’s attention that 
the property at 2600 Grove Street was incorrectly zoned R-3, Multiple Residence District in 
1970. To correct this mapping error staff is requesting to rezone this property to C-2, 
Commercial District. 
 
BACKGROUND 
2600 Grove Street has been zoned R-3, 
Multiple Residence District since the 
adoption of the Zoning Ordinance in 1970. 
2600 Grove Street is a pole frame metal 
warehouse built in 1969 that services the 
businesses at 6912 University Avenue 
located directly to the south. The C-2, 
Commercial district boundary follows this 
property’s western and southern property 
lines.  See map to the right, the purple lines 
indicate the zoning district boundaries and 
the property in question is shaded in yellow. 
The building is a non-conforming use under 
the R-3 zoning standards but would be a 
conforming use in C-2 zoning. As the use 

12



was in place before the zoning boundaries were drawn in 1970, staff can only assume that an 
error was made when the boundaries of the districts were determined. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The R-3, Multiple Residence District is a zoning district meant for medium density residential 
development. This district also allows for religious, educational, or philanthropic institutions, 
hospitals, and private clubs. A pole frame metal warehouse servicing commercial uses does not 
fall into the intended uses of this district.  
 
This 0.39 acre property has commercial development to the south and west. Peet Junior High 
School is directly north and east of this property. No portion of this parcel is located in the 
floodplain. There are no sensitive areas within this rezoning request. 
 
Rezoning considerations normally involve evaluation of three main criteria: 
 

1) Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 
Yes. The Future Land Use Map 
designates this property, outlined in yellow 
in the map to the right, as a “Commercial 
Corridor”, area shaded in red. This 
designation is consistent with a 
commercial zoning designation and the 
rezoning request to C-2.  

 
2) Is the property readily accessible to 

sanitary sewer service?  
Yes, all utilities are readily available to the 
site.  
 

3) Does the property have adequate roadway 
access?  
Yes, the property currently has access to Grove Street which can be accessed from either 
University Avenue or E Seerley Boulevard.    

 
As part of the technical review of this proposal, Cedar Falls Utilities personnel, have no 
concerns with the proposed rezoning request.  
 
A notice was mailed to property owners within 300 feet of the parcel under consideration on 
April 30, 2019 regarding this rezoning request. A notice for the May 22nd public hearing was 
published in the Courier on Wednesday, May 15th, 2019. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission and Staff recommend that City Council approve the 
request to rezone 2600 Grove Street from R-3, Multiple Residence District to C-2, Commercial 
District. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
5/8/19 

Planner Lehmann noted that staff is only introducing the item at this time and 
asks that comments are gathered and a date for public hearing be set for the next 

13



meeting on May 22, 2019.  There were no public comments. 
 

Public 
Hearing 
and Vote 
5/22/19 

Karen Howard presented the proposed zoning change at 2600 Grove Street. 
There were no public comments. The Planning and Zoning Commission felt that 
this request was a straight forward case. The rezoning request for 2600 Grove 
Street was approved unanimously.  

 

14



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Iris Lehmann, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO._____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 26-118,  

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I GENERALLY  

OF ARTICLE III DISTRICT AND DISTRICT  

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-SIX (26) 

ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND RE-ENACTING 

SAID SECTION 26-118 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 

AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE THE  

CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF  

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS 

ORDINANCE 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

finds that the rezoning is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan of the City of Cedar 

Falls and therefore has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that 

2600 Grove Street as described as follows shall be removed from R-3, Multiple Residence 

District and added to the C-2, Commercial District, 

 

FAIRVALLEY ADDITION LOT 30 

 

And 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to the best 

interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 

Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA: 

 

15



 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 

 

FAIRVALLEY ADDITION LOT 30 

 

Be and the same is hereby removed from the R-3, Multiple Residence District and added to the 

C-2, Commercial District. 

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is 

hereby amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the C-2, 

Commercial District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 

 

 Section 3. That said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 

Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby re-

enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and 

include the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

 

INTRODUCED: __________________________________________ 

 

PASSED 1
ST

 CONSIDERATION: ____________________________ 

 

PASSED 2
ND

 CONSIDERATION: ____________________________ 

 

PASSED 3
RD

 CONSIDERATON: ____________________________ 

 

ADOPTED: ______________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

                                                                          James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

16



Prepared by Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319-273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2944 
 

       AN ORDINANCE (1) REPEALING SECTION 2-574, PARKING ENFORCEMENT AND 
ADMINISTRATION SECTION, OF DIVISION 4, PUBLIC RECORDS DIVISION, OF 
ARTICLE V, DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS, OF 
CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW SECTION 2-574, 
PARKING ENFORCEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION SECTION; AND (2) REPEALING 
SECTION 23-23, PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ARTICLE, OF DIVISION 1, 
GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, ADMINISTRATION AND OBEDIENCE, OF CHAPTER 23, 
TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW SECTION 23-23, 
PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ARTICLE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
       1.     Section 1.  Section 2-574, Parking Enforcement and Administration Section, of 

Division 4, Public Records Division, of Article V, Administration, of Chapter 2, 
Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 
repealed in its entirety and a new Section 2-574, Parking Enforcement and Administration 
Section is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 
Sec. 2-574. - Parking enforcement and administration section. 
  
(a)  The parking enforcement and administration section of the public records division of the 

department of finance and business operations for the city is hereby created.  

(b)  It shall be the duty of the parking enforcement and administration section of the public 
records division to provide a full range of parking enforcement and administration services 
dealing with parking enforcement equipment and other parking facilities, and related 
parking enforcement provisions.  

(c)  The duties of the parking enforcement and administration section shall be as follows:  

(1)  To provide for enforcement and collection of all parking enforcement equipment 
locations and other parking facilities, and repair of equipment.  

(2)  Subject to the approval of the council, the city clerk shall appoint parking enforcement 
personnel on a full-time or part-time basis, to be compensated from parking 
enforcement and administration section funds.  

(3)  To maintain all parking enforcement equipment and other parking facilities and related 
administration records, and handle all parking receipts and disbursements.  

(4)  To enforce and administer all of the provisions of division 2, parking enforcement 
districts, equipment, operations and facilities, of article IV, stopping, standing and 
parking, of chapter 23, traffic and motor vehicles, and any other duties and 
responsibilities assigned to said section by the director of finance and business 
operations or the city council.  

(Code 2017, § 2-375; Ord. No. 2825, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

17



2.      Section 2.  Section 23-23, Penalty for Violation of Article, of Division 1, Generally, of 

Article II, Administration and Obedience, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a 

new Section 23-23, Penalty for Violation of Article, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 Sec. 23-23.   Penalty for violation of article. 

(a)  It is a simple misdemeanor for any person to do any act forbidden or to fail to perform any 
act required by any of the provisions of this chapter.  

(b)  Every person convicted of a simple misdemeanor for a violation of any of the provisions of 
this chapter for which another penalty is not provided shall be punished as provided in 
section 1-8.  

(c)  The department of public works shall post signs informing motorists that the scheduled 
fine for committing a moving traffic violation on a road construction zone is doubled or is 
$100.00, whichever is less. Notwithstanding subsections (a) and (b) of this section, the 
scheduled fine for any moving traffic violation provided in this chapter shall be doubled or 
shall be set at $100.00, whichever is less, if the violation occurs within a road construction 
zone as defined in section 23-2.  

(Code 2017, § 26-31; Ord. No. 1943, § 23, 5-13-1991; Ord. No. 2036, § 2, 11-22-1993)  

 

INTRODUCED:     May 20, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   May 20, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   June 3, 2019   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

18



1 
 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2945 

 AN ORDINANCE (1) REPEALING ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 23, 

TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF NEW ARTICLE I, IN 

GENERAL; AND     (2) REPEALING ARTICLE IV, STANDING, STOPPING AND 

PARKING, INCLUDING DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, AND DIVISION 2, PARKING 

METERS AND OTHER PARKING FACILITIES, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 

MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF NEW ARTICLE IV STANDING, 

STOPPING AND PARKING, INCLUDING NEW DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, AND NEW 

DIVISION 2, PARKING ENFORCEMENT DISTRICTS, EQUIPMENT, OPERATIONS AND 

FACILITIES; AND (3) CONFORMING TITLES TO SUBSECTIONS, SECTIONS, 

DIVISIONS, AND ARTICLES ACCORDINGLY.           . 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

Section 1.     Article I, In General, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new 

Article 1, In General, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 23-1.   Purpose of chapter. 

The purpose of this chapter is to regulate traffic and the use of the streets of the city, and to provide 
for the enforcement of the traffic regulations.  

(Code 2017, § 26-2)  

Sec. 23-2.   Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Alley means a thoroughfare laid out, established and platted as such by the council.  

All-terrain vehicle means a motor vehicle designed to travel on three or more wheels and designed 
primarily for off-road recreational use but not including farm tractors or equipment, construction 
equipment, forestry vehicles, or lawn and grounds maintenance vehicles.  

19



2 
 

Authorized emergency vehicle means vehicles of the fire operations division, police vehicles, 
ambulances and emergency vehicles owned by the United States, this state or any subdivision of this 
state or any municipality therein, and such privately owned ambulances, rescue or disaster vehicles as 
are designated or authorized by the director of transportation under Iowa Code § 321.451.  

Bicycle means either of the following:  

(1)  A device having two wheels and having at least one saddle or seat for the use of a rider which 
is propelled by human power; or  

(2)  A device having two or three wheels with fully-operable pedals and an electric motor of less 
than 750 watts (one horsepower), whose maximum speed on a paved level surface, when 
powered solely by such a motor while ridden, is less than 20 miles per hour.  

Business district means the territory contiguous to and including a street or highway when 50 percent 
or more of the frontage thereon for a distance of 300 feet or more is occupied by buildings in use for 
business.  

Crosswalk means that portion of a roadway ordinarily included within the prolongation or connection 
of the lateral lines of sidewalks at intersections, or any portion of a roadway distinctly indicated for 
pedestrian crossing by lines or other markings on the surface.  

Curb loading zone means a space adjacent to a curb or reserved for the exclusive use of vehicles 
during the loading or unloading of passengers or materials.  

Driver's license means any license or permit issued to a person to operate a motor vehicle on the 
streets of this city or on the highways of this state, including, but not limited to, a temporary restricted or 
temporary license or intermediate license and an instruction, chauffer's instruction, commercial driver's 
instruction, or temporary permit.  

Electric personal assistive mobility device means a self-balancing, non-tandem two-wheeled device 
powered by an electric propulsion system that averages 750 watts and is designed to transport one 
person, with a maximum speed on a paved level surface of less than 20 miles per hour. The maximum 
speed shall be calculated based on operation of the device by a person who weighs 170 pounds when 
the device is powered solely by the electric propulsion system. The term "electric personal assistive 
mobility device" does not include an assistive device as defined in Iowa Code § 216E.1.  

Farm tractor means every motor vehicle designed and used primarily as a farm implement for 
drawing plows, mowing machines and other implements of husbandry.  

Frontage occupied by the building means the linear measure of the plot of ground upon which the 
building is located abutting upon the street or highway.  

Frontage on a highway for a distance of 300 feet or more means the total frontage on both sides of 
the highway for such distance.  

Intersection means the area embraced within the prolongation or connection of the lateral curb lines, 
or, if none, then the lateral boundary lines of the roadways of two streets or highways which join one 
another at, or approximately at, right angles, or the area within which vehicles traveling upon different 
streets or highways joining at any other angle may come in conflict.  

Laned highway means a highway, the roadway of which is divided into three or more clearly marked 
lanes for vehicular traffic.  

Light delivery truck, panel delivery truck or pickup means any motor vehicle designed to carry 
merchandise or freight of any kind not to exceed 2,000 pounds.  

Motor truck means every motor vehicle designed primarily for carrying livestock, merchandise, freight 
of any kind or over nine persons as passengers.  

Motor vehicle means every vehicle which is self-propelled and not operated upon rails.  

20



3 
 

Motorcycle means every motor vehicle having a saddle or seat for the use of the rider and designed 
to travel on not more than three wheels in contact with the ground, including a motor scooter, but 
excluding a tractor, an autocycle and a motorized bicycle.  

Motorized bicycle means a motor vehicle having a saddle or a seat for the use of a rider designed to 
travel on not more than three wheels in contact with the ground and not capable of operating at a speed 
in excess of 39 miles per hour on level ground unassisted by human power.  

New car means a car which has not been sold at retail, as the term "at retail" is defined in Iowa Code 
ch. 322.  

Nonresident means every person who is not a resident of the state.  

Official traffic control devices means all signs, signals, markings and devices not inconsistent with 
this chapter placed or erected by authority of a public body or official having jurisdiction, for the purpose 
of regulating, warning or guiding traffic.  

Official traffic control signal means any device, whether manually, electrically or mechanically 
operated, by which traffic is alternately directed to stop and to proceed.  

Operator or driver means every person who is in actual physical control of a motor vehicle upon a 
street or highway.  

Owner means a person who holds the legal title of a vehicle, or, if a vehicle is the subject of a 
security agreement with an immediate right of possession vested in the debtor, then such debtor shall be 
deemed the owner. Park means the standing of a vehicle, whether occupied or not, otherwise than 
temporarily for the purpose of and while actually engaged in loading or unloading.  

Parking enforcement personnel means a parking attendant, police officer, public safety officer, code 
enforcement personnel or any other person designated by the city council. 

Pedestrian means any person afoot.  

Period of a periodic quantity means the smallest increment of time for the function to repeat itself.  

Person means every natural person, firm, copartnership, association or corporation. Where the term 
"person" is used in connection with the registration of a motor vehicle, it shall include any corporation, 
association, copartnership, company, firm or other aggregation of individuals which owns or controls such 
motor vehicle as actual owner or for the purpose of sale or for renting, whether as agent, salesman or 
otherwise.  

Police officer means every officer of the city police operations division or any officer authorized to 
direct or regulate traffic or make arrests for violations of traffic regulations.  

Private road or driveway means every way or place in private ownership and used for vehicular 
travel by the owner and those having expressed or implied permission from the owner but not by other 
persons.  

Railroad means a carrier of persons or property upon cars operated upon stationary rails.  

Railroad sign or signal means any sign, signal or device erected by authority of a public body or 
official or by a railroad and intended to give notice of the presence of railroad tracks or the approach of a 
railroad train.  

Railroad train means an engine or locomotive with or without cars coupled thereto, operated upon 
rails.  

Residence district means the territory within the city contiguous to and including a street or highway, 
not comprising a business, suburban or school district, where 40 percent or more of the frontage on such 
street or highway for a distance of 300 feet or more is occupied by dwellings, or by dwellings and 
buildings in use for business.  

Right-of-way means the privilege of the immediate use of the street or highway.  

21



4 
 

Road construction zone means the portion of a street or highway which is identified by posted or 
moving signs as the site of construction, maintenance, survey, or utility work. The zone starts upon 
meeting the first sign identifying the zone and continues until a posted or moving sign indicates that the 
construction zone has ended.  

Road tractor means every motor vehicle designed and used for drawing other vehicles and not so 
constructed as to carry any load thereon, either independently or any part of the weight of a vehicle or 
load so drawn.  

Roadway means that portion of a highway or street improved, designed or ordinarily used for 
vehicular travel.  

Safety zone means the area or space officially set apart within a roadway for the exclusive use of 
pedestrians and which is protected or so marked or indicated by adequate signs as to be plainly visible at 
all times while set apart as a safety zone.  

School bus means every vehicle operated for the transportation of children to or from school, except 
vehicles which are:  

(1)  Privately owned and not operated for compensation;  

(2)  Used exclusively in the transportation of the children in the immediate family of the driver;  

(3)  Operated by a municipally or privately owned urban transit company for the transportation of 
children as part of or in addition to its regularly scheduled service; or  

(4)  Designed to carry not more than nine persons as passengers, are either school-owned or 
privately owned, and are used to transport pupils to activity events in which the pupils are 
participants or used to transport pupils to their homes in case of illness or other emergency 
situations. The vehicles operated under the provisions of this subsection (4) shall be operated 
by employees of the school district who are specifically approved by the local superintendent of 
schools for the assignment.  

School district means the territory contiguous to and including a street or highway for a distance of 
200 feet in all directions from a schoolhouse in the city.  

Semitrailer means every vehicle without motive power designed for carrying persons or property and 
for being drawn by a motor vehicle, and so constructed that some part of its weight and that of its load 
rests upon or is carried by another vehicle. Whenever the term "trailer" is used, it shall be construed to 
also include the term "semitrailer." A semitrailer shall be considered in this chapter separately from its 
power unit.  

Sidewalk means that portion of a street between the curb lines, or the lateral lines of a roadway, and 
the adjacent property lines, intended for the use of pedestrians.  

Special mobile equipment means every vehicle not designed or used primarily for the transportation 
of persons or property and incidentally operated or moved over the highways, including trailers and bulk 
spreaders which are not self-propelled having a gross weight of not more than six tons used for the 
transportation of fertilizers and chemicals used for farm crop production, and other equipment used 
primarily for the application of fertilizers and chemicals in farm fields or for farm storage, but not including 
trucks mounted with applicators of such products, road construction or maintenance machinery and ditch 
digging apparatus. The enumeration in this subsection shall be deemed partial and shall not operate to 
exclude other such vehicles which are within the general terms of the subsection; provided that nothing 
contained in this subsection shall be construed to include portable mills or corn shellers mounted upon a 
motor vehicle or semitrailer.  

Stop means a complete cessation of movement.  

Stop, stopping or standing means any stopping or standing of a vehicle whether occupied or not 
except when necessary to avoid conflict with other traffic or in compliance with the directions of a police 
officer or a traffic control sign or signal.  

22



5 
 

Street or highway means the entire width between the property lines of every way or place, of 
whatever nature, when any part thereof is open to the use of the public, as a matter of right, for purposes 
of vehicular traffic.  

Suburban district means all parts of the city not included in the business, school or residence district.  

Through street or through highway means every street or highway or portion thereof at the entrances 
to which vehicular traffic from intersecting streets and highways is required by law to stop before entering 
or crossing the street or highway, and when stop signs are erected as provided in this chapter or such 
entrances are controlled by a police officer or traffic control signal. The term "arterial" shall be 
synonymous with the term "through" or "thru" when applied to streets and highways.  

Traffic means pedestrians, ridden or herded animals, vehicles and other conveyances, either singly 
or together, while using any street or highway for purposes of travel.  

Trailer means every vehicle without motive power designed for carrying persons or property and for 
being drawn by motor vehicles, and so constructed that no part of its weight rests upon the towing 
vehicle.  

Trailer coach means either a trailer or semitrailer designed for carrying persons.  

Truck tractor means every motor vehicle designed and used primarily for drawing other vehicles and 
not so constructed as to carry a load other than a part of the weight of the vehicle and load so drawn. 
However, a truck tractor may have a box, deck, or plate for carrying freight, mounted on the frame behind 
the cab, and forward of the fifth-wheel connection point.  

Used motor vehicle or secondhand motor vehicle means any motor vehicle of a type subject to 
registration under the laws of this state which has been sold at retail, as the term "at retail" is defined in 
Iowa Code ch. 322, and previously registered in this or any other state.  

Vehicle.  

(1)  The term "vehicle" means every device in, upon or by which any person or property is or may 
be transported or drawn upon a highway.  

(2)  The term "vehicle" does not include:  

a.  Any device moved by human power.  

b.  Any device used exclusively upon stationary rails or tracks.  

c.  Any steering axle, dolly, auxiliary axle, or other integral part of another vehicle which in and 
of itself is incapable of commercially transporting any person or property but is used 
primarily to support another vehicle.  

d.  Any integral part of a truck tractor or road tractor which is mounted on the frame of the 
truck tractor or road tractor immediately behind the cab and which may be used to 
transport persons and property but which cannot be drawn upon the highway by the truck 
tractor or another motor vehicle.  

(Code 2017, § 26-3; Ord. No. 1943, § 1, 5-13-1991; Ord. No. 2036, § 1, 11-22-1993; Ord. No. 

2618, §§ 1, 2, 2-26-2007)  

 

Section 2.     Article IV, Standing, Stopping and Parking, including Division 1, Generally, 

and Division 2, Parking Meters and Other Parking Facilities, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 

Motor Vehicles, of The Code of Ordinances of The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

repealed in its entirety, and a new Article IV, Standing, Stopping And Parking, including 

new Division 1, Generally, and New Division 2, Parking Enforcement Districts, Equipment, 

23



6 
 

Operations and Facilities of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows:   

ARTICLE IV.   STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING 

DIVISION 1.   GENERALLY 

 

 

Sec. 23-356.   Fines for parking violations. 

Except as otherwise provided in this article or by state law, the fine for a violation of this article shall 
be $10.00, payable to the city. If said fine is not paid within 30 days from the date of the notice of the 
violation, the fine shall be increased to $15.00.  

(Code 2017, § 26-251; Ord. No. 1922, § 5, 11-26-1990; Ord. No. 2035, § 1, 11-22-1993; Ord. 

No. 2057, § 1, 5-23-1994; Ord. No. 2445, § 1, 8-25-2003)  

Sec. 23-357.   Notice of parking violation. 

The parking enforcement personnel of the city shall attach to the vehicles in violation of this article a 
notice to the owner or operator thereof stating that such vehicle has been parked in violation of this article 
and informing the owner or operator of the amount of the fine, how the fine may be paid, and the penalty 
for failure to pay the fine within the time required in section 23-356.  

(Code 2017, § 26-252; Ord. No. 2705, § 1, 2-22-2010)  

Sec. 23-358.   Presumption regarding responsibility for illegal parking. 

In any proceeding charging any violation of any law or regulation governing the standing or parking 
of a vehicle, proof that a particular vehicle described in the information was parked in violation of any 
such law or regulation, together with proof that the defendant named in the information was at the time of 
such parking the registered owner of such vehicle, shall constitute in evidence a prima facie presumption 
that the registered owner of such vehicle was the person who parked or placed such vehicle at the point 
where, and for the time during which, such violation occurred.  

(Code 2017, § 26-253)  

Sec. 23-359.   Impoundment or immobilization of vehicles. 

(a)  Impoundment of vehicles. Parking enforcement personnel are hereby authorized to impound, that 
is, to remove, or have removed, a vehicle from a street, public alley, bridge, highway, municipally 
owned or controlled parking lot, facility or parking space, in the event of a violation of section 23-389, 
from private property, to a place of safety designated by the city whenever any such vehicle is 
parked in violation of this article.  

(b)  Immobilization of vehicles. As an alternative to impoundment under subsection (a) of this section, 
parking enforcement personnel are hereby authorized to immobilize a vehicle on a street, public 
alley, bridge, highway, municipally owned or controlled parking lot, facility or parking space, in the 
event of a violation of section 23-389, on private property, whenever any such vehicle is parked in 
violation of this article.  

24



7 
 

(c)  Payment. In addition to the penalty provided in this chapter, the owner or operator of any vehicle 
impounded or immobilized for violation of any of the provisions of this article shall be required to pay 
for all outstanding penalties, fines and fees owed for all parking citations, plus either all towing, 
storage and impoundment fees, or all immobilization fees, together with all administrative fees.  

(d)  Impoundment or immobilization for accumulated parking violations.  

(1)  Whenever it is determined that any vehicle has accumulated unpaid parking violations with 
fines totaling $30.00 or more, as defined in this Code, then, until such time as all fines for such 
accumulated parking violations have been paid, such vehicle may be either impounded, or, in 
the alternative, immobilized by installing a device which clamps and locks onto the wheel and 
impedes vehicle movement, subject to the following conditions:  

a.  Impoundment or immobilization shall occur only after notice and opportunity for an 
administrative hearing is sent to the last known registered owner of such motor vehicle.  

b.  Notice shall consist of the following: Written notification by first class mail to the last known 
address of the registered owner, stating the license number of the vehicle; the owner's 
name; and a brief description of the parking tickets issued to such vehicle. Said notice shall 
also state that the registered owner has the right to request an administrative hearing 
before impoundment or immobilization, if such request is made within ten days of the date 
of mailing of the notice; that the hearing shall determine the merits of whether to impound 
or immobilize such motor vehicle for unpaid parking violations; that failure to request a 
hearing in a timely manner, or failure to appear at such hearing, shall constitute a waiver of 
the right to a hearing; and that the owner shall be responsible for all charges and costs 
incurred in impounding or immobilizing such vehicle.  

c.  A request for an administrative hearing must be made in writing to the city clerk or the city 
clerk's designee. The request shall be reviewed to determine whether to impound or 
immobilize, as the case may be, the motor vehicle for unpaid parking violations.  

d.  The hearing shall be conducted before the police chief of the city or the police chief's 
designee, and shall be limited to a determination of whether such vehicle should be 
impounded or immobilized, as the case may be, for unpaid parking tickets. The owner may 
at that time pay for all outstanding fines for parking tickets.  

e.  Should the police chief or the police chief's designee determine that the vehicle shall be 
impounded or immobilized, as the case may be, said police chief or designee shall notify 
the owner, either orally at the conclusion of the hearing or by letter; however, no such 
notice need be given should the owner or a designated representative of the owner fail to 
appear at such hearing.  

f.  After the vehicle has been impounded or immobilized, the city shall notify the last known 
registered owner of such vehicle thereof, by certified mail if the name and address of such 
owner can be ascertained with reasonable diligence, unless the owner or operator has 
appeared and has made claim to the seized vehicle.  

(2)  Any vehicle that remains immobilized for a consecutive period of 48 hours or more, shall be 
subject to towing and impoundment as provided in this section.  

(3)  Any vehicle that is immobilized pursuant to this section shall not be issued any parking citations 
for the period during which the vehicle remains immobilized.  

(4)  It shall be unlawful for any person to remove or attempt to remove an immobilization device 
which has been attached to any vehicle as provided in this section, to damage the device, or to 
move the vehicle with the device attached. No person other than a member of the police 
operations division, a parking meter attendant, or their designees, shall remove the 
immobilization device.  

(5)  No vehicle shall be impounded by towing or immobilized, unless such vehicle is on a public 
street or other publicly owned or leased property, or, in the event of a violation of section 23-
389, is on private property.  

25



8 
 

a.  Entrance into impounded or immobilized vehicles. If it is necessary to enter a locked or 
unlocked vehicle in order to impound or immobilize such vehicle, such entrance must be 
made in the presence of a police officer. The police officer shall conduct such search of 
such vehicle as said officer deems necessary to protect the contents thereof. However, 
such search need not be a complete inventory of the contents of the vehicle.  

b.  Release of impounded or immobilized vehicles.  

1.  The registered owner or operator may reclaim any vehicle impounded or immobilized 
pursuant to the provisions herein by appearing before the police chief or the police 
chief's designee. At such time, the owner or the operator shall sign a certificate that he 
is the registered owner or operator of the impounded or immobilized vehicle, and at 
that time shall pay for all outstanding parking tickets, together with all costs of towing, 
storage and impoundment, or of immobilization, as the case may be. All charges and 
costs incurred in impounding the vehicle will be paid by the registered owner or 
operator to the towing service.  

2.  It shall be unlawful for any person to reclaim any vehicle impounded or immobilized 
pursuant to the provisions herein, contrary to the procedure set forth in this section.  

(e)  Charges. The charges for impoundment and immobilization shall be established by resolution 
adopted by the city council from time to time.  

(f)  Penalty for violations. Any violation of the provisions of this section shall constitute a municipal 
infraction, and shall be punished as provided in section 1-9.  

(Code 2017, § 26-254; Ord. No. 2705, § 2, 2-22-2010; Ord. No. 2813, § 1, 5-27-2014)  

Sec. 23-360.   Driver's responsibility when leaving motor vehicle unattended. 

A person driving or in charge of a motor vehicle shall not permit the vehicle to stand unattended 
upon any perceptible grade without effectively setting the brake and turning the front wheels to the curb or 
side of the street or highway  

(Code 2017, § 26-255)  

Sec. 23-361.   Lights on parked vehicles. 

(a)  Whenever a vehicle is lawfully parked at nighttime upon any street within a business or residence 
district, no light need be displayed upon such parked vehicle.  

(b)  Whenever a vehicle is parked upon a street outside of a business or residence district during the 
hours between one-half hour after sunset and one-half hour before sunrise, such vehicle shall be 
equipped with one or more lamps, which shall exhibit a white light on the roadway side which shall 
be visible from a distance of 500 feet to the front of the vehicle and a red light visible from a distance 
of 500 feet to the rear.  

(c)  Any lighted headlamps upon a parked vehicle shall be depressed or dimmed.  

(d)  The provisions of this section requiring the exhibition of a light shall not apply when an accident 
extinguishes the light and renders a vehicle incapable of use, and when the person in control of the 
vehicle erects, at the earliest opportunity after the accident, such proper light at or near the vehicle 
as will give warning of the presence of the vehicle.  

(Code 2017, § 26-256)  

26



9 
 

Sec. 23-362.   Parking not to obstruct traffic. 

No person shall park any vehicle upon a street, other than an alley, in such a manner or under such 
conditions as to leave available less than ten feet of the width of the roadway for free movement of 
vehicular traffic.  

(Code 2017, § 26-257)  

Sec. 23-363.   Manner of parallel parking. 

No person shall stand or park a vehicle in a street in any manner other than in the direction of the 
lawful traffic movement and with both wheels on one side of such vehicle parallel to and within 18 inches 
of the curb or edge of the street. Where individual stalls are designated by sign or line or marker, it shall 
be unlawful to park any vehicle across any line or marker of a particular parking space or in such position 
that the vehicle is not entirely within the area designated by such lines or markers.  

(Code 2017, § 26-258)  

Sec. 23-364.   Designation of streets for angle parking. 

(a)  The council shall determine upon which streets angle parking shall be permitted and shall mark or 
sign such streets, but such angle parking shall not be indicated upon a federal aid or state highway 
within the city unless the state department of transportation has determined, by resolution or order 
entered in its minutes, that the roadway is of sufficient width to permit angle parking without 
interfering with the free movement of traffic.  

(b)  Angle parking shall not be indicated or permitted at any place where passing traffic would thereby 
be caused or required to drive upon the left side of the street.  

(Code 2017, § 26-259)  

Sec. 23-365.   Obedience to angle parking signs or markers. 

Upon those streets which have been designated for angle parking, no person shall park or stand a 
vehicle other than at the angle to the curb or edge of the roadway indicated by such signs or markings.  

(Code 2017, § 26-260)  

Sec. 23-366.   Parking prohibited in specified places. 

(a)  No person shall stop, stand or park a vehicle, except when necessary to avoid conflict with other 
traffic or in compliance with the law or the directions of a police officer or traffic control device, in any 
of the following places:  

(1)  On a sidewalk.  

(2)  In front of a public or private driveway.  

(3)  Within an intersection.  

(4)  Within five feet of a fire hydrant.  

(5)  On a crosswalk.  

27



10 
 

(6)  Within ten feet upon the approach to any flashing beacon, stop sign or traffic control signal 
located at the side of a roadway.  

(7)  Between a safety zone and the adjacent curb or within ten feet of points on the curb 
immediately opposite the ends of a safety zone, unless the traffic division has indicated a 
different length by signs or markings.  

(8)  Within 50 feet of the nearest rail or a railroad crossing, except when parked parallel with such 
rail and not exhibiting a red light.  

(9)  Within 20 feet of the driveway entrance of any fire station, and on the side of a street opposite 
the entrance to any fire station, within 75 feet of such entrance, only when properly signposted.  

(10)  Alongside or opposite any street excavation or obstruction when stopping, standing or parking 
would obstruct traffic.  

(11)  On the roadway side of any vehicle stopped or parked at the edge or curb of a street.  

(12)  Upon any bridge or other elevated structure upon a highway or within a highway tunnel.  

(13)  At any place where official signs prohibit stopping or parking.  

(14)  Upon any street within the corporate limits of the city when parking is prohibited by a general 
ordinance of uniform application relating to the removal of snow and ice from the streets.  

(15)  In front of a curb cut or ramp which is located on public or private property, in a manner which 
blocks access to the curb cut or ramp.  

(16)  On that part of any street in the city between the curb line, if there be a curb, and the sidewalk 
line of the abutting property, nor shall any vehicle be parked on that part of any street not having 
a curb between the edge of the traveled portion of such street and the sidewalk line of the 
abutting property.  

(17)  On any street, municipally owned or controlled parking lot, facility or space in the city for a 
continuous period of more than 48 hours. A vehicle in violation of this subsection shall constitute 
a nuisance to be abated as provided by law, or parking enforcement personnel may impound 
such vehicle as provided in this article.  

(b)  Signs shall not be required to give notice to the public of the prohibited areas in this section.  

(c)  No person shall move a vehicle not lawfully under his control into any such prohibited area or away 
from a curb such distance as is unlawful.  

(Code 2017, § 26-261)  

Sec. 23-367.   Parking for purpose of selling, washing, greasing or repairing vehicle. 

No person shall park a vehicle upon a roadway for the principal purpose of displaying such vehicle 
for sale or washing, greasing or repairing such vehicle, except such repairs as are necessitated by an 
emergency.  

(Code 2017, § 26-262)  

Sec. 23-368.   Parking in alleys. 

No person shall stop, stand or park a vehicle within an alley except only for the period of 15 minutes 
to load or unload said vehicle, and no person shall stop, stand or park a vehicle within an alley in such a 
position as to block the driveway entrance to any abutting property.  

28



11 
 

(Code 2017, § 26-263; Ord. No. 2036, § 3, 11-22-1993)  

Sec. 23-369.   Parking near intersection. 

It shall be unlawful to park a vehicle within and up to a distance of 60 feet of any intersection where 
the curb is painted yellow or signs are posted prohibiting parking.  

(Code 2017, § 26-264)  

Sec. 23-370.   Persons with disabilities parking sign; persons with disabilities parking. 

(a)  Persons with disabilities parking sign. A persons with disabilities parking sign shall be displayed 
designating each person with disabilities parking space required by Iowa Code § 321L.5. The 
persons with disabilities parking sign shall have a blue background and bear the international symbol 
of accessibility in white. If an entity who owns or leases real property in the city is required to provide 
persons with disabilities parking spaces, the city shall provide, upon request, the signs for the entity 
at cost. The persons with disabilities parking sign shall be affixed vertically on another object so that 
it is readily visible to a driver of a motor vehicle approaching the persons with disabilities parking 
space. A persons with disabilities parking space designated only by the international symbol of 
accessibility being painted or otherwise placed horizontally on the parking space does not meet the 
requirements of this subsection.  

(b)  Persons with disabilities parking.  

(1)  A persons with disabilities parking permit shall be displayed in a motor vehicle as a removable 
windshield placard or on a motor vehicle as a plate or sticker as provided in Iowa Code § 
321L.2 when being used by a person with a disability, either as an operator or passenger. Each 
removable windshield placard shall be of uniform design and fabricated of durable material, 
suitable for display from within the passenger compartment of a motor vehicle, and readily 
transferable from one vehicle to another. The placard shall only be displayed when the motor 
vehicle is parked in a persons with disabilities parking space.  

(2)  The use of a persons with disabilities parking space, located on either public or private property 
within the city as provided in Iowa Code § 321L.5 by an operator of a motor vehicle not 
displaying a persons with disabilities parking permit; by an operator of a motor vehicle 
displaying a persons with disabilities parking permit but not being used by a person issued a 
permit or being transported in accordance with Iowa Code § 321L.2(1)b; or by a motor vehicle in 
violation of the rules adopted by the state department of transportation under Iowa Code § 
321L.8 constitutes improper use of a persons with disabilities parking permit, which is a 
misdemeanor for which a fine of $200.00 shall be imposed upon the owner, operator, or lessee 
of the motor vehicle or the person to whom the persons with disabilities parking permit is issued. 
Proof of conviction of two or more violations involving improper use of a persons with disabilities 
parking permit is grounds for revocation by the court or the state department of transportation of 
the holder's privilege to possess or use the persons with disabilities parking permit.  

(3)   Parking enforcement personnel shall have the authority to and shall enforce the provisions of 
this section on public and private property within the city.  

(Code 2017, § 26-265; Ord. No. 2006, § 9, 3-1-1993; Ord. No. 2263, § 1, 4-26-1999; Ord. No. 

2705, § 3, 2-22-2010; Ord. No. 2716, § 1, 9-13-2010)  

29



12 
 

 Sec. 23-371.   Loading and unloading on Main Street and College Street. 

From 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., on Main Street between First Street and Fifth Street and College Street 
from 22nd Street to 23rd Street on the east side, trucks and drays are prohibited from loading and 
unloading freight, goods and merchandise at all places, stores and buildings where it is feasible or 
possible to perform such work in the adjacent alley.  

(Code 2017, § 26-268)  

Sec. 23-372.   Parking of large trucks in streets and municipal parking lots. 

Except as otherwise provided, trucks of a gross capacity of one ton or more shall not park upon the 
streets or municipal parking lots of the city.  

(Code 2017, § 26-269)  

Sec. 23-373.   Parking prohibited on city property located adjacent to city hall and city 

hall annex. 

No person shall stand or park a vehicle, except a vehicle authorized by the city, in the municipally 
owned area lying adjacent to the city hall and city hall annex, such area being legally described as 
follows: Lots 3 and 4 and the east half of lot 8, all in block 9 in the original town plat of the city.  

(Code 2017, § 26-270)  

Sec. 23-374.   Parking prohibited on specific streets. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle at any time upon any of 
the streets or portions of streets enumerated in this section.  

Street  
Portion Where  

Parking Prohibited  

First Street (West)  On both sides between Main Street and the west city limits.  

Second Street (West)  On both sides between Walnut Street and Francis Street.  

 
On the north side between Francis Street and Hudson Road.  

Third Street (East)  
 

Third Street (West)  
 

 
On both sides of said street between Clay Street and Franklin Street on Saturday 

30



13 
 

mornings only commencing with the first Saturday of May of each year and 

continuing through the last Saturday of October each year during the hours of 

6:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon.  

 

On the north side of said street from the most westerly point of the flare-out of 

the driveway approach to the north-south alley located in the 200 block 

between Washington Street and Clay Street, west a distance of 143 feet to the 

east curb line of Clay Street, extended northerly, as such east curb line is located 

in the 300 block of Clay Street, on Saturday mornings only commencing with the 

first Saturday of May of each year and continuing through the last Saturday of 

October of each year during the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon.  

 

On the south side of said street from the most westerly point of the flare-out of 

the driveway approach to the north-south alley located in the 300 block 

between Washington Street and Clay Street, west a distance of 143 feet to the 

east curb line of Clay Street, extended northerly, as such east curb line is located 

in the 300 block of Clay Street, on Saturday mornings only commencing with the 

first Saturday of May of each year and continuing through the last Saturday of 

October of each year during the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon.  

 

On the south side of said street from the west curb line of Ellen Street west to 

the east curb line of Hudson Road.  

 

On the north side from the west curb line of Tremont Street west to the east 

curb line of Ellen Street.  

 
On the north side of said street from Cedar Crest Drive to Magnolia Drive.  

Fourth Street  On both sides from College Street to Hudson Road.  

 
On the south side between Franklin Street and College Street.  

Fourth Street (East)  
 

Fourth Street (West)  

On both sides from College Street to Hudson Road; on the north side from the 

west line of Main Street to a point 20 feet west thereof; on the north side from 

the west line of Cedar Crest Drive a distance of 30 feet west, and from the east 

line of Cedar Crest Drive a distance of 30 feet east; on the north side from the 

east line of Angie Drive to the west line of Hudson Road; on both sides of said 

street from the west line of Chateau Court to Hudson Road; on the south side 

31



14 
 

from the west line of Main Street to a point ten feet west thereof; on the south 

side between Washington Street and College Street.  

 

On the north side from the west line, extended north, of Jessica Lane to a point 

200 feet west thereof.  

Fifth Street (West)  On the north side from the west line of Main Street west a distance of 150 feet.  

 

On the south side from a point 48 feet east of the east line of Clay Street west to 

the alley between Clay Street and Franklin Street.  

 

On the north side from the west curb line of Franklin Street west to the east 

curb line of College Street.  

Sixth Street (East)  
On the north side from the east curb line of Main Street east a distance of 200 

feet.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Main Street east to the west curb 

line of State Street.  

Sixth Street (West)  

On both sides between Main Street and Franklin Street, except that on the 

north side of West Sixth Street, from a point 40 feet west of the west curb line 

of Washington Street to a point 144 feet west of the west curb line of 

Washington Street.  

 

On the north side from the east curb line of College Street east a distance of 150 

feet.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of College Street east a distance of 75 

feet.  

Seventh Street (East)  On the south side from State Street to the west line of Bluff Street.  

Seventh Street (West)  
On the north side from Washington Street to Clay Street, except Saturdays and 

Sundays.  

 

On the north side from the west curb line of Division Street west a distance of 

40 feet.  

 
On the north side from the east curb line of Division Street east a distance of 40 

32



15 
 

feet.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Division Street west a distance of 

40 feet.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Division Street east a distance of 40 

feet.  

Eighth Street (East)  On the north side from Main Street to State Street.  

Eighth Street (West)  On the north side between Franklin Street and College Street.  

 
On the north side between Division Street and Ellen Street.  

 
On the south side between College Street and Pearl Street.  

 

On the south side from the centerline of Barrington Drive east a distance of 500 

feet.  

 

On the north side from the centerline of Barrington Drive east a distance of 110 

feet.  

 

On the north side from the centerline of Barrington Drive west a distance of 50 

feet.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Catherine Street west a distance of 

40 feet.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Catherine Street east a distance of 

40 feet.  

Ninth Street (East)  On the north side from Bluff Street east to Grove Street, except Sundays.  

Ninth Street (West)  On the north side from Clay Street east 100 feet.  

 

On the north side from the west line of Tremont Street west to the east line of 

Catherine Street.  

 

On the north side from the west curb line of Catherine Street west a distance of 

40 feet.  

33



16 
 

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Catherine Street west a distance of 

40 feet.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Catherine Street east a distance of 

40 feet.  

Tenth Street (East)  
On both sides from a point 180 feet east of the east curb line of Grove Street to 

a point 250 feet east of the east line of Grove Street.  

 
On the north side from Main Street to Grove Street.  

Tenth Street (West)  
On the north side from the west curb line of Tremont Street west to the east 

curb line of Division Street.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Iowa Street west a distance of 40 

feet.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Catherine Street west a distance of 

40 feet.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Catherine Street east a distance of 

40 feet.  

11th Street (East)  On the north side from State Street to Grove Street.  

 
On the north side from Main Street to State Street.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of State Street east a distance of 40 

feet.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Grove Street west a distance of 40 

feet.  

11th Street (West)  On the north side between Franklin Street and Walnut Street.  

 

On the north side from the west curb line of College Street west to the east curb 

line of Division Street.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Catherine Street west a distance of 

40 feet.  

34



17 
 

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Catherine Street east a distance of 

40 feet.  

12th Street (West)  On both sides from Main Street to College Street.  

 
On the south side from the east line of Clark Drive east a distance of 40 feet.  

 
On the south side from the west line of Clark Drive west a distance of 40 feet.  

 
On both sides from Hudson Road to Union Road.  

13th Street (West)  On both sides from the east curb line of Walnut Street east a distance of 20 feet.  

 

On both sides from the west curb line of Walnut Street west a distance of 20 

feet.  

 

On the north side from the west curb line of Clay Street west to the east curb 

line of Franklin Street.  

14th Street (East)  On the south side between State Street and Waterloo Road.  

14th Street Court 

(East)  

On the north side from the east curb line of Bluff Street east to the end of the 

street.  

14th Street (West)  On the north side of said street from Main Street to Franklin Street.  

15th Street (West)  
On the north side of said street from the west curb line of Clay Street west to 

the east curb line of Franklin Street.  

16th Street (West)  
On the south side from the west curb line of Main Street to the east curb line of 

Franklin Street.  

18th Street (East)  On both sides from Main Street to Waterloo Road.  

18th Street (West)  
On both sides of the street from the west curb line of Main Street west to the 

east curb line of College Street.  

 

On the north side from the west curb line of College Street west to the east curb 

line of Hudson Road.  

35



18 
 

 

On the north side from the west line of Hudson Road west a distance of 200 

feet.  

 

On the north side from a point 455 feet west of the west line of Hudson Road 

west a distance of 101 feet.  

 

On the north side from a point 922 feet west of the west line of Hudson Road 

west a distance of 101 feet.  

 

On the south side from the west line of Hudson Road west a distance of 1,116 

feet.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Summit Drive west a distance of 

100 feet.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Summit Drive east a distance of 100 

feet.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Campus Street west a distance of 

20 feet.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Campus Street east a distance of 20 

feet.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Merner Avenue west a distance of 

40 feet.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue east a distance of 

40 feet.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of College Street west a distance of 40 

feet.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Hudson Road east a distance of 40 

feet.  

19th Street (West)  
On the north side between College Street and Hudson Road, between 8:00 a.m. 

and 3:30 p.m., Mondays through Fridays.  

 
On the south side from the west curb line of College Street west to the east curb 

36



19 
 

line of Campus Street.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Campus Street west a distance of 

30 feet.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Hudson Road east a distance of 30 

feet.  

 

On the north side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue east a distance of 

30 feet.  

 

On the north side from the west curb line of Merner Avenue west a distance of 

30 feet.  

20th Street (West)  
On the south side from the east curb line of Campus Street east to the west curb 

line of Main Street.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue east a distance of 

45 feet.  

 

On the north side from the east line of Merner Avenue east a distance of 45 

feet.  

 

On the north side from the west curb line of Campus Street east to the west 

curb line of Merner Avenue, between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. daily.  

21st Street (West)  
On the south side from the west line of Franklin Street west to the east line of 

College Street.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of College Street west a distance of 40 

feet.  

 

On the north side from the west curb line of College Street west a distance of 40 

feet.  

 

On the north side from the east curb line of College Street east a distance of 40 

feet.  

22nd Street (West)  
On the north side from College Street to Campus Street from 1:00 a.m. to 5:30 

p.m., Monday through Saturday and from 1:00 a.m. to 8:00 a.m. on Sunday.  

37



20 
 

 
On the south side from College Street to Campus Street.  

 
On the south side between Main Street and Tremont Street.  

 

On the north side from the west curb line of Tremont Street west to the east 

curb line of College Street.  

23rd Street (West)  
On the north side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue east a distance of 

40 feet.  

 
On the north side between Campus Street and Hudson Road.  

 

On the south side from the west line of Minnesota Street, which belongs to the 

state, to the east line of Hudson Road.  

 

On both sides from the east curb line of Merner Avenue west to the west curb 

line of Campus Street.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Campus Street west to the east 

curb line of Minnesota Street, one-hour parking is allowed between the hours of 

7:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., except on weekends and holidays.  

29th Street  

On the south side from 225 feet west of the centerline of College Street to 290 

feet west of the centerline of College Street, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 

5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.  

29th Street (West)  
On the north side from the east curb line of College Street east to the west curb 

line of Walnut Street.  

31st Street (West)  On both sides from Hudson Road to the west end of the street.  

Adams Street  
On the east side of said street from the north curb line of East 18th Street north 

to the end of the street.  

 
On both sides of said street from East 18th Street south.  

Alexis Boulevard  
On the south and west sides from the north line of West 12th Street northerly 

and westerly to the east edge of the cul-de-sac.  

 
On the east side from the north line of West 12th Street north a distance of 120 

38



21 
 

feet.  

Algonquin Drive  
On the north and east sides of the street from the east curb line of Ashworth 

Drive east and south to the north curb line of Amelia Drive, extended east.  

Balboa Street  
On the north side from the west line of South Main Street to a point 403 feet 

west of the west line of South Main Street.  

 

On the south side from the west line of South Main Street to a point 119 feet 

west of the west line of South Main Street.  

Barkwood Drive  
On the north side from the west curb line of Ironwood Drive west to the east 

curb line of Applewood Lane.  

Barnett Drive  
On the west side from the south curb line of Crescent Drive south to the north 

curb line of West Twelfth Street.  

 

On the east side from a point 150 feet north of the north curb line of West 

Fourth Street north to a point 50 feet north thereof.  

 

On the east side from the north curb line of West Twelfth Street north a 

distance of 60 feet.  

Barrington Drive  
On the west, south and east sides of Barrington Drive from the south line of 

West Eighth Street south, east and north to the south edge of the cul-de-sac.  

Bicentennial Drive  
On both sides of said street from Cedar Heights Drive west a distance of 500 

feet.  

Big Woods Road  On both sides from Independence Avenue to the north city limits.  

Birch Street  On the east side from Grand Boulevard to Rainbow Drive.  

Birdsall Drive (East)  On the north side from Birdsall Drive east to the end of the street.  

Blair Ridge Road  On the west side from Wild Horse Drive north to the end of the street.  

Bluegrass Circle  

Along the outside edge from the east curb line of the north intersection with 

Prairie Parkway to the east curb line of the south intersection with Prairie 

Parkway.  

39



22 
 

Bluff Street  
On the east side from the south curb line of East Ninth Street south to a point 70 

feet south of the south curb line of East 12th Street.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of East 13th Street to the north curb 

line of East 15th Street.  

 

On the west side from the north curb line of East 15th Street north a distance of 

40 feet.  

 

On both sides from the south curb line of East 15th Street south a distance of 40 

feet.  

Bonita Boulevard  
On the south side from the west line of South Lawn Road west a distance of 60 

feet.  

Boulder Drive  On both sides from University Avenue to Orchard Drive.  

Boxwood Drive  
On the north side from the west curb line of Ironwood Drive west to the east 

curb line of Applewood Lane.  

Brookside Drive  
On the north side from the east curb line of Hudson Road east to the west curb 

line of Starview Drive.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Hudson Road east to the southerly 

extension of the east curb line of Starview Drive.  

California Drive  
On the east side from the south curb line of Rainbow Drive south to the north 

curb line of Hawthorne Drive.  

Campus Street  
On the east side from the north curb line of West 18th Street north to the south 

curb line of West 16th Street.  

 

On the west side from the north curb line of West 18th Street north a distance 

of 40 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West 19th Street south a distance 

of 40 feet.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West 19th Street south a distance of 

40 feet.  

40



23 
 

 

On the east side from the north curb line of West 20th Street north a distance of 

40 feet.  

 

On the west side from the north line of the parking lot situated on the west side 

of the 2000 block of Campus Street, south a distance of 188 feet.  

 

On both sides from the south curb line of West 22nd Street south to the north 

curb line of West 23rd Street.  

Catherine Street  
On the west side from the south curb line of West First Street south a distance 

of 40 feet.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West First Street south to the north 

curb line of West Fourth Street.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West Eighth Street to the north curb 

line of West 12th Street.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West Eighth Street south a distance 

of 40 feet.  

 

On the west side from the north curb line of West Ninth Street north a distance 

of 40 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West Ninth Street south a distance 

of 40 feet.  

 

On the west side from the north curb line of West Tenth Street north a distance 

of 40 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West Tenth Street south a distance 

of 40 feet.  

 

On the west side from the north curb line of West 11th Street north a distance 

of 40 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West 11th Street south a distance 

of 40 feet.  

 
On the west side from the north curb line of West 12th Street north a distance 

41



24 
 

of 40 feet.  

Cedar Heights Drive  On both sides from Rainbow Drive to University Avenue.  

Cedar Hills Road  
On both sides from the east curb line of Chadwick Road east to the west curb 

line of Cedar Heights Drive.  

Cedar Street  On the south side from Center Street to Vine Street.  

Center Street  On both sides from First Street to the north city limits.  

Chadwick Road  

On the west side from a point 10 feet north of the northwest edge of the cul-de-

sac at the south end of Chadwick Road, south to the northwest edge of said cul-

de-sac.  

 

From the northwest edge of the cul-de-sac at the south end of Chadwick Road, 

south, east and north to the northeast edge of said cul-de-sac.  

 

From the southwest edge of the cul-de-sac at the north end of Chadwick Road, 

north, east and south to the southeast edge of said cul-de-sac.  

 

On the east side from the southeast edge of the cul-de-sac at the north end of 

Chadwick Road, south to the northeast edge of the cul-de-sac at the south end 

of Chadwick Road.  

Clark Drive  
On the west side from the south line of West 12th Street south a distance of 40 

feet.  

 

On the east side from the south line of West 12th Street south a distance of 40 

feet.  

Clay Street  
On both sides between First Street and a point 35 feet south of the south line of 

First Street.  

 

On both sides of said street from the south curb line of West Third Street north 

a distance of 245 feet to the north line of the driveway entrance to the city 

police station parking lot, extended westerly, on Saturday mornings only 

commencing with the first Saturday of May of each year and continuing through 

the last Saturday of October of each year during the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 

noon.  

42



25 
 

 

On both sides of said street from the south curb line of West Third Street south 

a distance of 134 feet to the north line of the northerly driveway entrance to the 

Cedar Falls Women's Club parking lot, on Saturday mornings only, commencing 

with the first Saturday of May of each year and continuing through the last 

Saturday of October of each year during the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West Third Street south a distance 

of 35 feet.  

 

On both sides from the south curb line of West Fourth Street south a distance of 

48 feet.  

 

On the east side from the north curb line of West Fifth Street north a distance of 

32 feet.  

 

On the west side from the north curb line of West Sixth Street north a distance 

of 41 feet.  

 

On the east side from the north curb line of West Sixth Street north a distance 

of 41 feet.  

 
On the east side from 15th Street to 18th Street.  

 
On the west side between 15th Street and 18th Street.  

 
On both sides between 18th Street and Seerley Boulevard.  

College Street (North)  
On the west side from the north curb line of Higby Drive north to the end of the 

street.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of Higby Drive south a distance of 75 

feet.  

 

On the west side from the north curb line of West First Street north a distance 

of 120 feet.  

 

On the east side from the north curb line of West First Street north to the north 

end of the street.  

43



26 
 

College Street (South)  
On the east side from the south curb line of West Fifth Street south to the north 

curb line of West Sixth Street.  

 

On both sides from the south curb line of West Sixth Street south a distance of 

100 feet.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West Eighth Street south to the 

north curb line of West 12th Street.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West 12th Street south to the north 

curb line of West 18th Street.  

 

On the east side from a point 50 feet north of the north curb line of West 18th 

Street south to the north curb line of West 20th Street.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West 18th Street south a distance 

of 80 feet.  

 

On the west side from the north curb line of West 19th Street north a distance 

of 50 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West 19th Street south a distance 

of 50 feet.  

 

On the west side from the north curb line of West 20th Street north a distance 

of 50 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West 20th Street south to the north 

curb line of West 22nd Street.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West 21st Street south to the north 

curb line of West 22nd Street.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West 23rd Street south a distance 

of 60 feet.  

 

On the west side from a point 75 feet north of the westerly extension of the 

north curb line of West Seerley Boulevard south to a point 95 feet north of the 

north curb line of West 26th Street.  

 
On the east side from the south curb line of West 23rd Street south to the north 

44



27 
 

curb line of University Avenue.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West 26th Street south to the north 

curb line of University Avenue.  

 

On both sides from the south curb line of University Avenue south a distance of 

65 feet.  

Colorado Road  
On the south side from the west curb line of Tucson Drive west to the west end 

of the cul-de-sac situated about 250 feet west of Dallas Drive.  

Columbia Drive  
On the north and east sides of Columbia Drive from West 16th Street south and 

east to College Street.  

Cottage Lane  
On the west side from the south curb line of Columbia Drive to the north curb 

line of West 18th Street.  

Cottonwood Lane  On both sides from Garden Avenue east to the end of the street.  

Covey Court  On the north side from Quail Ridge Road west to the end of the street.  

 
On the north side from Quail Ridge Road east to the end of the street.  

Crescent Drive  
On the south side from the east curb line of Lakeview Drive east to the west 

curb line of Brentwood Drive  

Dallas Drive  
On the west side from the north curb line of Idaho Street north to the south 

curb line of University Avenue.  

 

On the east side from the north curb line of Idaho Street north a distance of 50 

feet.  

 

On the east side from a point 125 feet north of the north curb line of Idaho 

Street north to the south curb line of University Avenue.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of Idaho Street south a distance of 25 

feet.  

Division Street  On the west side from the driveway south of Tenth Street to 11 th Street.  

45



28 
 

 

On the east side of said street from the north line of West Eighth Street a 

distance of 120 feet north.  

 

On the west side from the north curb line of West Seventh Street north a 

distance of 40 feet.  

 

On the east side from the north curb line of West Seventh Street north a 

distance of 40 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West Seventh Street south a 

distance of 40 feet.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West Seventh Street south a 

distance of 40 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West Eighth Street south a distance 

of 50 feet.  

Drury Lane  
On the west side from the south curb line of Columbia Drive to the north curb 

line of West 18th Street.  

Dunkerton Road  On both sides from Center Street to the east city limits.  

Eagle Ridge Road  

On the west and south sides of Eagle Ridge Road from the intersection of the 

west curb line of Eagle Ridge Road with the north curb line of Falcon Lane, in a 

northerly and westerly direction to the southeast edge of the cul-de-sac.  

 

Around the perimeter of the curb adjacent to the center island of the cul-de-sac 

located at the west end of Eagle Ridge Road.  

East Street  
On the west side of East Street from the south curb line of 19th Street a distance 

of 100 feet south  

Ellen Street  
On both sides between First Street and a point 35 feet south of the south line of 

First Street.  

 

On the east side from the south line of Parkway Avenue south to the north line 

of First Street.  

Erik Road  On the north side between the east curb line of Hudson Road east to the west 

46



29 
 

curb line of Norse Drive.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Hudson Road east a distance of 70 

feet.  

 

On the south side from the west curb line of Norse Drive west a distance of 25 

feet.  

Feather Ridge Drive  On the north side from Quail Run Lane to Feather Run Trail.  

Floral Court  On both sides of the radius of the cul-de-sac.  

 
On the north side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue to the cul-de-sac.  

 

On the south side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue to the cul-de-sac, 

from 1:00 a.m. to 6:00 a.m. each day.  

Forrest Road  
On the west side from the north curb line of South Park Road north to River 

Bluff Drive.  

Fox View Drive  
On the east side from the north curb line of Hunter Drive north to the end of the 

street.  

Francis Street  
On both sides between First Street and a point 35 feet south of the south line of 

First Street.  

Franklin Street  On both sides from First Street to Sixth Street.  

 
On both sides from First Street north to the north city limits.  

 
On the east side between 12th Street and Seerley Boulevard.  

 

On the west side from the north curb line of 18th Street north a distance of 100 

feet.  

Frontage roads along 

the south side of 

University Avenue  

On both sides of the frontage road from the east curb line of Boulder Drive east 

to the end of said frontage road near the east line of Black Hawk Village, near 

McClain Drive.  

 
On both sides of the frontage road from the east curb line of Cedar Heights 

47



30 
 

Drive east to the west curb line of Midway Drive.  

Frontage roads along 

the north side of 

University Avenue  

On both sides of said frontage road from the east curb line of Valley Park Drive 

east to the end of said frontage road at the entrance to the Holiday Inn Motel.  

 

On both sides of said frontage road from the west curb line of Ohio Street (UNI 

Institutional Road) west to the east curb line of Hudson Road.  

 

On both sides of the frontage road along the north side of University Avenue 

between Main Street and Tremont Street, from the most westerly curb cut on 

said frontage road, west to the end of said frontage road.  

Frontage road on the 

west side of Hudson 

Road  

On both sides from West 31st Street south to the end of the street.  

Galloway Avenue  On the east side from Grand Boulevard to Rainbow Drive.  

 

On the west side from Grand Boulevard a distance of 50 feet south, and from 

Rainbow Drive a distance of 50 feet north.  

Genevieve Street  
On both sides between First Street and a point 35 feet south of the south line of 

First Street.  

 

On both sides from the north right-of-way line of First Street north a distance of 

132 feet.  

 
On the northwest side from First Street north to the end of the street.  

Gibson Street  On the west side from Rainbow Drive to Grand Boulevard.  

Grand Boulevard  
On the south side from the east line of East Street east to the west line of Park 

Drive.  

 

On the north side from the west line of East Street east to the east line of 

Scoggin Street.  

 

On the north side from the west line, extended, of Schreiber Street east to a 

point 75 feet east of the east line, extended, of Schreiber Street.  

48



31 
 

 

On the north side from the west line, extended, of Birch Street east to a point 65 

feet east of the east line, extended, of Birch Street.  

 

On the north side from the east line of Belle Avenue east to the west line of Park 

Drive.  

 

On the north side from the east line of Edwards Street east a distance of 170 

feet.  

Green Creek Road  
On the north and west sides from the east line of Rownd Street east and north 

to the south line of Greenhill Road.  

Greenhill Drive  
On the south side from the east curb line of Rownd Street east to the west curb 

line of Veralta Drive.  

Grove Street  
On the east side from the south curb line of East Ninth Street to the north curb 

line of East 12th Street.  

Harvest Lane  

On the west, north and east sides of the street proceeding west from the 

eastern intersection of Harvest Lane with Autumn Ridge Road to the western 

intersection of Harvest Lane with Autumn Ridge Road.  

Hawthorne Drive  
On the north side from the east curb line of Waterloo Road to the west curb line 

of Victory Drive.  

 

On both sides of said street from the centerline of Willow Lane, west a distance 

of 50 feet.  

Hedgewood Circle  
On the east side from the north curb line of Boxwood Drive north to the 

southeast edge of the cul-de-sac.  

Heritage Road  
On the east and north sides from Bergstrom Boulevard in a southerly and 

easterly direction to the east end of Heritage Road.  

 

On the west side from the north line of West Gate Avenue north a distance of 

40 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south line of West Gate Avenue south a distance of 

40 feet.  

49



32 
 

Hickory Lane  
On the east side from the south curb line of Rainbow Drive south to the north 

curb line of Hawthorne Drive.  

Highland Drive  
On the east side from the south curb line of West First Street south a distance of 

89 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West First Street south a distance 

of 54 feet.  

Highview Court  
On the east side from the south curb line of Rainbow Drive south to the north 

curb line of Parker Street.  

Holmes Drive  
On the east side between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through 

Friday, from Fourth Street to the south end.  

Hudson Road  On both sides between First Street and the south city limits.  

Hunter Drive  
On the south side from the east line of Center Street east to the east end of the 

street.  

Ida Street  
On both sides of the street from the east curb line of North College Street east 

to the end of the street.  

Idaho Street  On the north side from Dallas Drive to Boulder Drive.  

 

On the south side of Idaho Street a distance of 25 feet west from the west curb 

line of Boulder Drive.  

Independence Avenue  On both sides from Lincoln Street to Big Woods Road.  

Iowa Highway 58/U.S. 

Highway 218  
On both sides of said Highway from Greenhill Road north to the north city limits.  

Iowa Street  
On both sides between First Street and a point 35 feet south of the south line of 

First Street.  

 
On the west side between West Third Street and West 11th Street.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West Fourth Street south a distance 

of 40 feet.  

50



33 
 

 

On the east side from the north curb line of West Fourth Street north a distance 

of 40 feet.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West 11th Street south a distance of 

40 feet.  

 

On the east side from the north curb line of West 11th Street north a distance of 

40 feet.  

 

On both sides from the south curb line of West 18th Street south a distance of 

40 feet.  

Ironwood Drive  
On the west side from the north end of Erik Road south and east to the 

northwest edge of the cul-de-sac.  

Irving Street  On the east side from 11th Street to 12th Street.  

Jaclyn Street  
On the west side from the north curb line of Lantz Avenue north to the end of 

the street.  

Kaspend Place  
On the east side from the south line of Pheasant Drive south to the north edge 

of the cul-de-sac.  

Lake Street  On both sides from Central Avenue to Leversee Road.  

Lantz (East)  On the north side from Center Street to Jackson Avenue.  

Laurie Avenue  
On the east side from the south curb line of Grand Boulevard south to the north 

curb line of Rainbow Drive.  

Leversee Road  On the west side from Lincoln Street to the north city limits.  

Lilac Lane  On the north side from Boulder Drive to Carlton Drive.  

Lincoln Street  On both sides from Main Street east to the city limits.  

Lone Tree Road  On both sides from Ford Road to Big Woods Road.  

Longview (West)  On both sides from Central Avenue to Center Street.  

51



34 
 

Madison Street  On the north side from Belle Avenue to Ashland Drive.  

 

On the south side from the intersection of Belle Avenue east for a distance of 

200 feet.  

Main Street  On both sides from First Street north to the north end of the river bridge.  

 

On both sides between Sixth Street and the south city limits, except that parking 

is allowed from Sixth to 14th Street on Sundays between 7:00 a.m. and 1:00 

p.m.  

Main Street (North)  
On the south side between the existing entrance of Calhoun Manufacturing 

Company and Second Avenue, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.  

Mandalay Drive  
On the north and west sides of the street from the north curb line of Grand 

Boulevard north and east to the west curb line of Park Drive.  

Maplewood Drive  On both sides from Carlton Drive to Boulder Drive.  

McClain Drive  
On the east side from the south curb line of University Avenue south a distance 

of 77 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of University Avenue south a distance 

of 647 feet.  

Meadow View Circle  
On the north side from the east curb line of Meadowlark Lane east to the 

northwest edge of the cul-de-sac.  

Meadowlark Lane  
On the east side from the south curb line of Erik Road south to the northeast 

edge of the cul-de-sac.  

Melrose Court  On both sides of the street for its entire length, including the entire cul-de-sac.  

Melrose Drive  On the north side from Linwood Drive west to Melrose Court.  

 

On the west side from Royal Drive to Seerley Boulevard from 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 

p.m., Monday through Friday.  

Merner Avenue  
On the east side from the south curb line of West 19th Street south to the north 

curb line of West 22nd Street.  

52



35 
 

 

On both sides from the south curb line of West 22nd Street south to the north 

curb line of West 23rd Street.  

 

On the west side from the north end of the bridge over Dry Run Creek south to 

the south end of the bridge.  

Nordic Drive  On both sides of said street from Viking Road north to the end of said street.  

 
On the east side from Viking Road south a distance of 610 feet.  

Norse Drive  
On the west side from the south curb line of Erik Road south a distance of 25 

feet.  

North College Street  On the west side from the south line of Higby Drive south 75 feet.  

Oak Avenue  
On the north side from the north curb line of Madison Street north and west to 

the east curb line of Ashland Avenue.  

Olive Street  
On the east side from the south curb line of West First Street south to the south 

curb line of West 12th Street.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West 16th Street south to the north 

curb line of West 17th Street.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West 18th Street south to a point 

75 feet south of the south curb line of West 18th Street.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West 18th Street south to the north 

curb line of West 21st Street.  

Orchard Drive  

On the south side from South Main Street Road to Rownd Street, between the 

hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., on weekdays only, excluding the following 

holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, 

Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, or the days on which such holidays are 

observed.  

 
On the south side from Veralta Drive to Chapman Court.  

Panther Lane  On the east side from University Avenue to Starview Drive.  

53



36 
 

 

On the west side from the south curb line of University Avenue to the north curb 

line of the south leg of Starbeck Circle.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of Starview Drive south a distance of 

40 feet.  

Park Drive  On both sides from Rainbow Drive to Park Circle.  

Parker Street  On the south side from Belle Avenue to Victory Drive.  

Parrish Street  On the east side from Rainbow Drive to West Winter Ridge Road.  

Pearl Street  On the east side between First Street and Third Street.  

 

On the west side between First Street and a point 35 feet south of the south line 

of First Street.  

 

On the east side between the south curb line of West Eighth Street to the north 

curb line of West 11th Street.  

Pendleton Drive  
On the east and north sides from Quail Hollow Lane north and west to Lexington 

Drive.  

Pheasant Drive  
For a distance of 120 feet east of the centerline of the jog in Pheasant Drive and 

for a distance of 120 feet west of the center of the jog in Pheasant Drive.  

Quail Hollow Lane  On the north side from Quail Run Lane west to the end of the street.  

Quail Ridge Road  On the west side from West 12th Street south to Quail Hollow Lane.  

Quail Run Lane  On the west side from Quail Ridge Road south to Quail Hollow Lane.  

Rainbow Drive  On both sides from Waterloo Road to the east city limits.  

Ravine Drive  
On both sides from the north curb line of Forrest Road north to the south curb 

line of Willow Avenue.  

Ridgeway Lane  
On the west side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue east to the west curb 

line of Columbia Drive.  

54



37 
 

River Ridge Lane  
On the north side from the west curb line of River Ridge Road north and west to 

the northeast edge of the cul-de-sac.  

River Ridge Road  

On the east, north and west sides from the easterly intersection of River Ridge 

Road with Timberledge Drive, northwest, west, and south to the westerly 

intersection with Timberledge Drive.  

Rownd Street  On both sides from Rainbow Drive to Sunnyside Drive.  

 
On the east side from Sunnyside Drive to Greenhill Road.  

 

On both sides from Rainbow Drive to Sunnyside Drive except that parking is 

allowed from a point 60 feet south of Rainbow Drive on the west side of said 

street on Sundays between 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m.  

 
On the east side from Sunnyside Drive to Greenhill Road.  

 

On the west side from the north line of Primrose Drive north a distance of 20 

feet.  

 

Anywhere within the vehicle drop-off lane located on the west side of Rownd 

Street adjacent to Orchard Hill School, from a point 141 feet north of the north 

curb line of Valley High Drive north to a point 365 feet north of the north curb 

line of Valley High Drive, except that parking is permitted in the angle parking 

area east of the raised curb which separates the vehicle drop-off lane from the 

traveled portion of Rownd Street.  

First Street (West)  On both sides between Main Street and the west city limits.  

 

On the west side from the south line of Primrose Drive south a distance of 40 

feet.  

Royal Drive  On both sides from Waterloo Road to Melrose Drive.  

Russell Drive  
On the east side from the south curb line of Sunnyside Drive south to the north 

curb line of Hawthorne Drive.  

Sandahlwood Circle  

From the intersection of the north curb line of Pheasant Drive with the west 

curb line of the east leg of Sandahlwood Circle, along such curb line of 

Sandahlwood Circle in a northerly, westerly and southerly direction to the 

intersection of the north curb line of Pheasant Drive with the east curb line of 

55



38 
 

the west leg of Sandahlwood Circle.  

Scenic Drive  On both sides from Cottonwood Lane north to the end of the street.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of Cadillac Drive south to the north 

curb line of Sunray Drive.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of Cadillac Drive south a distance of 

250 feet, from 10:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. daily.  

Schreiber Street  
On the east side from the south end of the street north to the south curb line of 

Grand Boulevard.  

 
On the west side from the south end of the street north a distance of 70 feet.  

Scoggin Street  
On the east side from the north curb line of Newman Avenue north to the south 

curb line of Grand Boulevard.  

Seerley Boulevard  On both sides between Clay Street and Valley Park Drive.  

Shady Lane  
On the east side from the north curb line of Terrace Drive north and east to the 

south curb line of Loma Street.  

South Lawn Road  
On the east side from the north line of Bonita Boulevard south a distance of 200 

feet.  

 

On the west side from the south line of Bonita Boulevard south a distance of 60 

feet.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of Stanwood Drive south a distance of 

240 feet.  

Springbrook Drive  On the north side from Starview Drive east to Panther Lane.  

Spruce Hills Drive  
On the west and south sides, from the south curb line of Westgate Avenue to 

the west curb line of Estate Drive.  

Starbeck Circle  
From the intersection of the west right-of-way line, extended, of Panther Lane 

with the north leg of Starbeck Circle, along the north curb line of Starbeck Circle 

in a southwesterly, southerly, easterly and northeasterly direction to the 

56



39 
 

intersection of the west right-of-way line, extended, of Panther Lane with the 

south leg of Starbeck Circle.  

 

From the intersection of the west right-of-way line, extended, of Panther Lane 

with the north leg of Starbeck Circle, southwest along the south curb line of 

Starbeck Circle a distance of approximately 545 feet, between 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 

p.m. Monday through Friday.  

Starview Drive  
On the east side from the north curb line of Brookside Drive north to a point 240 

feet north of the north curb line of Springbrook Drive.  

 

On the north, northwesterly and west sides of the street from the west curb line 

of Panther Lane in a westerly, southwesterly and southerly direction to a point 

140 feet north of the north curb line of Springbrook Drive.  

State Street  
On the east side from the south curb line of East Seventh Street to the north 

curb line of East 18th Street.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of East Fourth Street to the north curb 

line of Waterloo Road.  

Summit Drive  
On both sides from the north curb line of West 18th Street north a distance of 

100 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West 18th Street south to the north 

curb line of West 19th Street.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West 18th Street south a distance of 

50 feet.  

 

On the east side from the north curb line of West 1 th Street north a distance of 

50 feet.  

Terrace Drive  
On the north side from Cedar Heights Drive to a point 400 feet west of Neola 

Street.  

 
On the south side a distance of 165 feet west of the west line of Neola Street.  

Timber Drive  
On the east and north sides from the north curb line of Grand Boulevard north 

and west to the south curb line of Greenwood Avenue.  

57



40 
 

Timberledge Drive  

On the north side from the east curb line of the westerly intersection of 

Timberledge Drive and River Ridge Road east to the west curb line of Westwood 

Drive.  

Timberledge Place  

On the east side from the west curb line of the easterly intersection of 

Timberledge Drive westerly to the north curb line of the westerly intersection 

with Timberledge Drive.  

Tremont Street  On east side between Seventh Street and Eighth Street.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of West 12th Street south to the north 

curb line of West 18th Street.  

 

On the east side of said street for a distance of 60 feet north of the curb line of 

18th Street (West).  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of West 18th Street south to the north 

curb line of West 22nd Street.  

Tucson Drive  On the west side from University Avenue to Arizona Road.  

 

On the east side from University Avenue to a point 40 feet south of the south 

right-of-way line of Idaho Road.  

Utility Parkway  
On the west and north sides from the east curb line of Waterloo Road northerly 

and easterly to the entrance to Washington Park.  

University Avenue  On both sides from the east city limits to the west city limits.  

Valley Park Drive  
On the west side from the north curb line of University Avenue north a distance 

of 110 feet.  

 
On the east side from University Avenue north to Waterloo Road.  

Victory Drive  
On the west side from the south curb line of Rainbow Drive south a distance of 

40 feet.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of Rainbow Drive south a distance of 

150 feet.  

58



41 
 

Viking Road  
On both sides from the east curb line of Highway 58 east to the west curb line of 

Cedar Heights Drive.  

 

On both sides from the west curb line of Highway 58 west to the east curb line 

of Hudson Road.  

 

On both sides from the west curb line of Hudson Road west to the west city 

limits.  

Vine Street cul-de-sac  
Around the entire length of the cul-de-sac a distance of 240 feet from the north 

line of the Cedar Street right-of-way.  

Virgil Street  
On the east side from the south curb line of Rainbow Drive south to the north 

curb line of Hawthorne Drive.  

Walnut Street  
On the west side from the north curb line of 18th Street north a distance of 80 

feet.  

 
On both sides from the north curb line of 13th Street north a distance of 40 feet.  

 

On the west side from the south curb line of 13th Street south a distance of 60 

feet.  

 

On the east side from the south curb line of 13th Street south a distance of 15 

feet.  

Washington Street  
On the west side from the north curb line of West Sixth Street north a distance 

of 35 feet.  

 
On the east side from 10th Street to 18th Street.  

 

On the east side from west Sixth Street to West 10th Street, except from 3:00 

p.m. Saturday to 1:00 p.m. Sunday.  

 
On the east side from the West First Street to West Sixth Street.  

 

On the west side from the north curb line of West Seventh Street north a 

distance of 100 feet.  

Waterloo Road  On both sides from the east curb line of Main Street east to University Avenue.  

59



42 
 

West Gate Avenue  On the south side from South Main Street to Heritage Road.  

 
On the north side from the west line of Heritage Road west a distance of 40 feet.  

Westminster Drive  On both sides of said street from Nordic Drive to the end of said street.  

Whiteway Drive  On both sides for the entire length of the street.  

Willow Avenue  
On the north side from the west curb line of Ravine Drive west to the east curb 

line of Westwood Drive.  

Winters Drive  
On the south side of the east-west portion of Winters Drive from the east edge 

of the enlarged semi-circular corner east to the east end of the street.  

 

On the east side of the north-south portion of Winters Drive from the south line 

of Hunter Drive south to the north edge of the enlarged semi-circular corner.  

  

(Code 2017, § 26-271; Ord. No. 2635, § 1, 11-12-2007; Ord. No. 2659, § 1, 5-12-2008; Ord. No. 

2662, § 2, 8-25-2008; Ord. No. 2664, § 3, 9-8-2008; Ord. No. 2666, §§ 1—4, 11-24-2008; Ord. 

No. 2667, § 1, 12-8-2008; Ord. No. 2670, § 1, 1-26-2009; Ord. No. 2684, § 1, 6-22-2009; Ord. 

No. 2686, § 1, 7-13-2009; Ord. No. 2689, § 1, 8-10-2009; Ord. No. 2692, § 1, 9-14-2009; Ord. 

No. 2710, § 1, 6-14-2010; Ord. No. 2720, § 1, 10-25-2010; Ord. No. 2733, §§ 1—10, 2-28-2011; 

Ord. No. 2739, §§ 1, 2, 3-28-2011; Ord. No. 2753, § 1, 8-29-2011; Ord. No. 2756, § 1, 12-12-

2012[11]; Ord. No. 2768, § 1, 6-11-2012; Ord. No. 2769, § 1, 6-11-2012; Ord. No. 2807, § 1, 3-

24-2014; Ord. No. 2811, §§ 1, 2, 5-12-2014; Ord. No. 2829, § 1, 10-6-2014; Ord. No. 2832, §§ 

1, 2, 12-1-2014; Ord. No. 2858, § 1, 11-16-2015; Ord. No. 2890, § 1, 12-5-2016; Ord. No. 2893, 

§ 1, 1-16-2017)  

Sec. 23-375.   Parking prohibited on Tuesday, Thursday or Saturday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 

p.m., south and west sides of street. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle on the south and west 
sides of the following streets or portions of streets during the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 
or Thursday or Saturday:  

Street  
Portion Where  

Parking Prohibited  

Eighth Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Pearl Street to the east line of Division Street.  

60



43 
 

Ninth Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Catherine Street west to the east line of Division Street.  

11th Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Pearl Street to the east line of Division Street.  

19th Street 

(West)  
From the west side of Olive Street to the east line of College Street.  

22nd Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Tremont Street to the east line of College Street.  

23rd Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Tremont Street to the east line of Iowa Street.  

25th Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Olive Street to the east line of College Street.  

26th Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Tremont Street to the east line of College Street.  

28th Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Walnut Street to the east line of College Street.  

Brookside Drive  
From the southerly extension of the east curb line of Starview Drive east to the west 

curb line of Panther Lane.  

Campus Street  
From a point 248 feet south of the westerly extension of the south curb line of West 

20th Street south to the north curb line of West 22nd Street.  

College Street  
From a point 65 feet south of the south curb line of University Avenue south to the 

south curb line of West 29th Street.  

Division Street  From the north line of Eighth Street to the south line of Sixth Street.  

Ellen Street  From the south curb line of West 7th Street to the north curb line of West 12th Street.  

Floral Court  The entire length of the street except the radius of the cul-de-sac.  

Iowa Street  From the south line of West 21st Street to the north line of University Avenue.  

61



44 
 

 
From the south line of First Street to the north line of 11th Street.  

Merner Avenue  
From the south curb line of West 18th Street south to the north curb line of West 19th 

Street.  

 

From the south end of the bridge over Dry Run Creek south to the north line of West 

22nd Street.  

Olive Street  
From the south curb line of West 21st Street to the north curb line of University 

Avenue.  

 
From the south line of First Street to the north line of 12th Street.  

Pearl Street  From the south line of Eighth to the north line of 11th Street.  

Seerley 

Boulevard  
From the west line of Tremont Street to the east line of Olive Street.  

Tremont Street  From the south line of West 20th Street to the north line of University Avenue.  

Walnut Street  From the south line of West 18th Street to the north line of University Avenue.  

  

(Code 2017, § 26-272; Ord. No. 1960, § 1, 11-25-1991; Ord. No. 2078, § 2, 12-12-1994; Ord. 

No. 2101, § 1, 5-8-1995; Ord. No. 2130, § 2, 1-22-1996; Ord. No. 2240, § 1, 5-26-1998; Ord. 

No. 2252, § 1, 1-25-1999; Ord. No. 2257, § 2, 4-12-1999; Ord. No. 2277, § 1, 10-25-1999; Ord. 

No. 2288, § 1, 2-14-2000; Ord. No. 2290, § 1, 2-28-2000; Ord. No. 2328, § 1, 3-26-2001; Ord. 

No. 2401, §§ 1—3, 11-25-2002; Ord. No. 2418, § 1, 3-10-2003; Ord. No. 2466, § 1, 1-12-2004; 

Ord. No. 2489, § 1, 9-20-2004; Ord. No. 2565, § 1, 11-14-2005; Ord. No. 2592, § 1, 8-14-2006; 

Ord. No. 2636, § 1, 11-12-2007; Ord. No. 2664, § 1, 9-8-2008; Ord. No. 2670, § 2, 1-26-2009; 

Ord. No. 2757, § 1, 12-12-2012[11]; Ord. No. 2781, § 1, 10-22-2012; Ord. No. 2811, § 4, 5-12-

2014; Ord. No. 2834, § 1, 3-2-2015; Ord. No. 2866, § 1, 6-20-2016; Ord. No. 2897, § 1, 3-6-

2017)  

Sec. 23-376.   Parking prohibited on Tuesday, Thursday or Saturday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 

p.m., north and east sides of street. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle on the north and east 
sides of the following streets or portions of streets during the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 
Thursday or Saturday:  

62



45 
 

Street  
Portion Where  

Parking Prohibited  

Walnut Street  From the south line of University Avenue to the north line of West 29th Street.  

  

(Code 2017, § 26-272.1; Ord. No. 2867, § 1, 6-20-2016)  

Sec. 23-377.   Parking prohibited on Monday, Wednesday or Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 

p.m., north and east sides of street. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle on the north and east 
sides of the following streets or portions of streets during the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Monday, 
or Wednesday or Friday:  

Street  
Portion Where  

Parking Prohibited  

Eighth Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Pearl Street to the east line of Division Street.  

Ninth Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Catherine Street west to the east line of Division Street.  

11th Street 

(West)  
From the east line of Pearl Street to the west line of Division Street.  

19th Street 

(West)  
From the west side of Olive Street to the east line of College Street.  

22nd Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Tremont Street to the east line of College Street.  

23rd Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Tremont Street to the east line of Iowa Street.  

25th Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Olive Street to the east line of College Street.  

26th Street From the west line of Tremont Street to the east line of College Street.  

63



46 
 

(West)  

28th Street 

(West)  
From the west line of Walnut Street to the east line of College Street.  

Brookside Drive  From the east curb line of Starview Drive east to the west curb line of Panther Lane.  

Campus Street  
From a point 248 feet south of the south curb line of West 20th Street south to the 

north curb line of West 22nd Street.  

College Street  
From a point 65 feet south of the south curb line of University Avenue south to the 

north curb line of West 29th Street.  

Division Street  
From a point 120 feet north of the north line of Eighth Street to the south line of Sixth 

Street.  

Ellen Street  
From the south curb line of West 7th Street to the north curb line of West 12th 

Street.  

Floral Court  The entire length of the street except the radius of the cul-de-sac.  

Iowa Street  From the south line of West 21st Street to the north line of University Avenue.  

 
From the north line of First Street to the south line of 11th Street.  

Merner Avenue  
From the south curb line of West 18th Street south to the north curb line of West 

19th Street.  

 

From the south end of the bridge over Dry Run Creek south to the north line of West 

22nd Street.  

Olive Street  
From the south curb line of West 21st Street to the north curb line of University 

Avenue.  

 
From the north line of First Street to the south line of 12th Street.  

Pearl Street  From the north line of Eighth Street to the south line of 11th Street.  

Seerley 

Boulevard  
From the west line of Tremont Street to the east line of Olive Street.  

64



47 
 

Tremont Street  From the south line of West 20th Street to the north line of University Avenue.  

Walnut Street  From the south line of West 18th Street to the north line of University Avenue.  

  

(Code 2017, § 26-273; Ord. No. 1960, § 2, 11-25-1991; Ord. No. 2078, § 3, 12-12-1994; Ord. 

No. 2101, § 1, 5-8-1995; Ord. No. 2130, § 3, 1-22-1996; Ord. No. 2240, § 2, 5-26-1998; Ord. 

No. 2252, § 2, 1-25-1999; Ord. No. 2257, § 3, 4-12-1999; Ord. No. 2277, § 1, 10-25-1999; Ord. 

No. 2288, § 2, 2-14-2000; Ord. No. 2290, § 2, 2-28-2000; Ord. No. 2328, § 2, 3-26-2001; Ord. 

No. 2401, §§ 4—6, 11-25-2002; Ord. No. 2418, § 2, 3-10-2003; Ord. No. 2466, § 2, 1-12-2004; 

Ord. No. 2489, § 2, 9-20-2004; Ord. No. 2565, § 2, 11-14-2005; Ord. No. 2592, § 2, 8-14-2006; 

Ord. No. 2637, § 1, 2, 11-12-2007; Ord. No. 2664, § 2, 9-8-2008; Ord. No. 2670, § 3, 1-26-2009; 

Ord. No. 2757, § 2, 12-12-2012[11]; Ord. No. 2781, § 2, 10-22-2012; Ord. No. 2811, § 5, 5-12-

2014; Ord. No. 2834, § 2, 3-2-2015; Ord. No. 2866, § 2, 6-20-2016; Ord. No. 2897, § 2, 3-6-

2017)  

Sec. 23-378.   Parking prohibited on Monday, Wednesday or Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 

p.m., south and west sides of street. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle on the south and west 
sides of the following streets or portions of streets during the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Monday, 
Wednesday or Friday:  

Street  
Portion Where  

Parking Prohibited  

Walnut Street  From the south line of University Avenue to the north line of West 29th Street.  

  

(Code 2017, § 26-273.1; Ord. No. 2867, § 2, 6-20-2016)  

Sec. 23-379.   Limited parking on specific streets. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle on the following streets 
or portions of streets for a period longer than the time limit specified in this section.  

Street  
Portion Where  

Parking Limited  

Third Street 

(West)   

65



48 
 

 

On the south side, beginning at a point 35 feet west of the west curb line of Franklin 

Street, then west 20 feet to the west curb line of Franklin Street, parking shall be marked 

off into stalls and shall be limited to a 30-minute period.  

23rd Street 

(West)  

On the north side, between the east line of Merner Avenue and the west side of Campus 

Street, parking shall be marked off in parking stalls and limited to a one-hour period.  

Clay Street  

On the east side, from the south line of West Second Street to a point 147 feet south of 

the south line of West Second Street, parking shall be marked off into parking stalls and 

parking shall be limited to a 30-minute period.  

 

On the east side from the intersection of Clay Street and West 3rd Street a distance of 102 

feet north, parking shall be marked off into parking stalls and limited to a 30-minute 

period.  

College 

Street  

On the east side, from the south curb line of West 20th Street south to the north curb line 

of 21st Street, parking shall be limited to a two-hour period.  

College 

Street 

(South)  

On the east side, from the south curb line of West 20th Street south to the north curb line 

of West 22nd Street, parking shall be limited to a two-hour period.  

 

On the west side, from the south curb line of West 20th Street to a point 40 feet north of 

the north curb line of West 22nd Street, parking shall be limited to a two-hour period.  

  

(Code 2017, § 26-274; Ord. No. 1922, §§ 3, 4, 11-26-1990; Ord. No. 1926, § 2, 1-2-1991; Ord. 

No. 2006, § 10, 3-1-1993; Ord. No. 2011, § 2, 4-12-1993; Ord. No. 2024, § 1, 8-23-1993; Ord. 

No. 2564, § 1, 11-14-2005; Ord. No. 2577, § 2, 6-12-2006; Ord. No. 2596, § 1, 9-11-2006; Ord. 

No. 2662, § 1, 8-25-2008; Ord. No. 2807, § 2, 3-24-2014)  

Sec. 23-380.   All-night parking prohibited on specific streets. 

No person shall park a vehicle on the following streets on any day between the hours of 2:00 a.m. 
and 6:00 a.m.:  

Street  
Portion Where  

Parking Prohibited  

66



49 
 

23rd Street 

(West)  
On both sides, between College Street and Merner Avenue.  

 
On the south side between Merner Avenue and Minnesota Street.  

31st Street (West)  
On the south side between Hudson Road and a point 1,300 feet west of Hudson 

Road.  

College Street  On both sides between 20th Street and 23rd Street.  

Main Street  On both sides between First Street and Fifth Street.  

 
On the west side between Fifth Street and Sixth Street.  

  

(Code 2017, § 26-275; Ord. No. 2690, § 1, 8-24-2009)  

Sec. 23-381.   Angle parking zones. 

No person shall park a vehicle on the following streets or portions of streets, which have been signed 
or marked for angle parking, other than within the lines so marked:  

Street  Portion Zoned  

Second Street 

(West)  
On the north side from State Street to Clay Street.  

 
On both sides between Franklin Street and Clay Street.  

Third Street 
On the south side between Washington Street to the west line of the Washington Street 

and Main Street alley. 

 
On the north side between the east line of the Washington Street and Main Street alley 

to the west line of Main Street. 

 
On the south side between the east line of Main Street to the west line of the Main 

Street and State Street alley. 

Fourth Street On the south side from the east curb line of State Street east to the end of the street.  

67



50 
 

(East)  

Eighth Street 

(West)  
On the north side between College Street and Pearl Street.  

11th Street 

(West)  

On both sides from Division Street west to a point 400 feet west of the west line of 

Division Street.  

Clay Street  On both sides between Second Street and Third Street. 

Division Street  On both sides between Eighth Street and 12th Street.  

Main Street  On both sides between First Street and Sixth Street.  

Pearl Street  On both sides between Seventh Street and Eighth Street.  

Rownd Street  
On the west side from a point 185 feet north from the north curb line of Valley High 

Drive to a point 307 feet north of the north curb line of Valley High Drive.  

State Street  
On the east side from the north curb line of Fourth Street north to the south curb line of 

Second Street. 

  

Sec. 23-382.   Loading zones on specific streets. 

The streets or portions of streets enumerated in this section, when properly signposted, are hereby 
declared to be loading zones at all times if unspecified in this section, or if specified in this section, only 
during the listed times . No vehicle shall park or stand in a loading zone other than while actually engaged 
in the loading or unloading of passengers or materials.  Time limits for loading or unloading in loading 
zones may be established by proper signpost.  Exceeding such posted time limits  shall be a violation of 
this section. 

Street  
Portion Where  

Parking Limited  

Fourth Street 

(West) 

Loading zone: From a point 100 feet east of the centerline of Francis Street to a point 

east of the centerline of Francis Street.  

Seventh Loading zone: On the north side from the east curb line of Washington Street east a 

68



51 
 

Street (West)  distance of 112 feet during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.  

Eighth Street 

(West)  

Loading zone: On the south side from the east line of Tremont Street to a point 65 feet 

east of the east line of Tremont Street.  

Eighth Street 

(West) 

Loading zone: On the north side from a point 203.5 feet east of the centerline of 

Barrington Drive, thence a distance of 150 feet east, from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., 

Monday through Friday.  

Ninth Street 

(East)  

Loading zone: On the south side from a point 59 feet east of the east right-of-way line, 

thence east 40 feet.  

20th Street 

(West)  

Loading zone: On the south side, commencing at the east right-of-way line of College 

Street and extending 55 feet east.  

22nd Street 

(West)  

Loading zone: On the north side commencing 160 feet west of College Street and 

continuing west a distance of 81 feet.  

23rd Street 

(West)  

Loading zone: On the north side from the west line of College Street to a point 95 feet 

west thereof.  

Clay Street  
Loading zone: On the east side commencing at a point 63 feet south of the south curb 

line of Sixth Street and extending south 36 feet.  

Clay Street 
Loading zone: On the east side beginning at a point 77 feet north of the north line of 

Ninth Street and extending to a point 117 feet north of the north line of Ninth Street.  

Dallas Drive  
Loading zone: On the east side from a point 50 feet north of the north curb line of Idaho 

Street north a distance of 30 feet.  

Dallas Drive 
Loading zone: On the east side from a point 100 feet north of the north curb line of 

Idaho Street north a distance of 25 feet.  

Grand 

Boulevard  

Loading zone: On the south side commencing at a point 188 feet west of the centerline 

of Park Drive and extending to a point 245 feet west of the centerline of Park Drive.  

Main Street  
Loading zone: On the east side of said street from a point 145 feet south of the 

centerline on Ninth Street a distance of 50 feet south.  

69



52 
 

Rownd Street  

On the west side from a point 380 feet north of the north curb line of Valley High Drive 

to a point 520 feet north of the north curb line of Valley High Drive from 8:30 a.m. to 

9:00 a.m. Monday through Friday; from 3:15 p.m. to 3:45 p.m. on Monday, Tuesday, 

Thursday and Friday; and from 2:00 p.m. to 2:30 p.m. on Wednesday.  

Seerley 

Boulevard  

Loading Zone: On the north side from a point 133 feet west of the west line of Melrose 

Drive west a distance of 250 feet, from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.  

Walnut Street  On the west side from the north curb line of 18th Street north a distance of 80 feet.  

Walnut Street 
Loading Zone: On the east side commencing at a point 15 feet south of the south curb 

line of West 13th Street south a distance of 45 feet.  

Washington 

Street  

Loading zone: On the west side commencing at a point 99 feet north of the north curb 

line of Eighth Street at its intersection with Washington Street and continuing north a 

distance of 46 feet.  

Washington 

Street 

Loading zone: One the west side commencing at the north curb line of Eighth Street at 

its intersection with Washington Street north a distance of 99 feet during the hours of 

7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.  

  

(Code 2017, § 26-277; Ord. No. 1966, §§ 1, 3, 2-11-1992; Ord. No. 2002, § 4, 1-11-1993; Ord. 

No. 2048, § 1, 2-28-1994; Ord. No. 2069, § 1, 11-14-1994; Ord. No. 2090, § 2, 3-27-1995; Ord. 

No. 2094, § 1, 4-10-1995; Ord. No. 2124, § 1, 12-11-1995; Ord. No. 2172, § 2, 12-9-1996; Ord. 

No. 2228, § 1, 4-13-1998; Ord. No. 2247, § 1, 11-9-1998; Ord. No. 2268, §§ 3, 4, 7-12-1999; 

Ord. No. 2272, §§ 1, 2, 6-28-1999; Ord. No. 2285, § 2, 1-10-2000; Ord. No. 2471, § 1, 1-26-

2004; Ord. No. 2538, § 1, 8-8-2005; Ord. No. 2558, § 2, 11-14-2005; Ord. No. 2577, § 3, 6-12-

2006; Ord. No. 2606, § 1, 10-23-2006; Ord. No. 2610, § 2, 12-18-2006; Ord. No. 2734, § 2, 2-

28-2011; Ord. No. 2807, § 3, 3-24-2014; Ord. No. 2811, § 3, 5-12-2014)  

 (Code 2017, § 26-276; Ord. No. 2690, § 2, 8-24-2009; Ord. No. 2734, § 1, 2-28-2011)  

Sec. 23-383.   School bus loading and unloading zones. 

The streets or portions of streets enumerated in this section, when properly signposted, are hereby 
declared to be school bus loading or unloading zones. No vehicle other than a school bus shall park in 
any school bus loading or unloading zone.  

Street  
Portion Where  

Parking Prohibited  

70



53 
 

Lantz Avenue  
On the east side of said street from a point 50 feet south of the southeast corner of 

Lantz Avenue and Fern Street a distance of 61 feet south.  

Seerley 

Boulevard  

On the north side from a point 383 feet west of the west line of Melrose Drive west a 

distance of 100 feet, from 7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday.  

 

On the south side, from a point 350 feet east of Grove Street to a point 525 feet east of 

Grove Street, from 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.  

Washington 

Street  

On the west side from a point 100 feet north of the north curb line of West Seventh 

Street north to a point 25 feet south of the south curb line of West Sixth Street, from 

7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.  

  

(Code 2017, § 26-278; Ord. No. 2004, § 5, 2-8-1993; Ord. No. 2090, § 3, 3-27-1995; Ord. No. 

2215, § 1, 1-26-1998; Ord. No. 2285, § 3, 1-10-2000; Ord. No. 2510, § 1, 4-11-2005; Ord. No. 

2734, § 3, 2-28-2011)  

Sec. 23-384.   Restricting parking in a loading zone. 

The street or portions of streets or alleys or portions of alleys enumerated in this section, when 
properly sign posted, are hereby declared to be loading zones. No vehicle shall park in a loading zone 
other than while actually engaged in the loading or unloading of passengers or materials.  

Street or Alley  Loading Zone  

The east west alley between 

West 1st Street and West 

2nd Street.  

From the east line of the north south alley between West 1st Street and 

West 2nd Street, a distance of 73 feet east, during the hours of 8:00 a.m. 

to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday.  

  

(Code 2017, § 26-279; Ord. No. 1991, § 1(158.2), 9-28-1992)  

Sec. 23-385.   Lamps on parked vehicles. 

Whenever a vehicle is parked or stopped upon a roadway or shoulder adjacent to the roadway, 
outside of a business district whether attended or unattended during the times mentioned in section 23-
517, such vehicle shall be equipped with one or more lamps which shall exhibit a white or amber light on 
the roadway side visible from a distance of 500 feet to the front of such vehicle and a red light visible from 
a distance of 500 feet to the rear. Any lighted headlamps upon a parked vehicle shall be depressed or 
dimmed.  

71



54 
 

(Code 2017, § 26-280; Ord. No. 1995, § 1(243A), 9-28-1992)  

Sec. 23-386.   Prohibited parking during snow removal. 

(a)  Whenever the mayor or director of municipal operations and programs or the director's designee 
finds on the basis of excess accumulation of snow, that weather conditions have created or are likely 
to create hazardous road and driving conditions which will impede or are likely to impede movement 
of fire, health, police, emergency or other vital vehicular traffic, the mayor or director of municipal 
operations and programs or the director's designee may declare a snow emergency, and declare 
that snow removal from priority streets shall begin and shall prohibit parking or stopping of vehicles 
on designated snow removal routes. While the snow emergency is in effect, no person shall park, 
abandon or leave unattended any vehicle upon any snow removal route or portion of such route, as 
designated as such by subsection (d) of this section. Each street designated as a snow removal 
route shall be marked with signs displaying the words, "Emergency Snow Route." A snow removal 
parking ban shall continue from its declaration through the duration of the snow storm, and until the 
mayor or director of municipal operations and programs or the director's designee issues notice that 
the snow emergency is at an end. The public will be notified via local radio, television and newspaper 
when the snow emergency begins and is concluded. The parking prohibition on snow removal routes 
shall not go into effect until two hours after the snow emergency has been declared in accordance 
with this section. Termination of the parking prohibition shall be effective immediately upon the 
announcement that the snow emergency is at an end.  

(b)  When it is declared that snow removal operations are to begin, it shall be unlawful for the driver of 
any vehicle to impede or block traffic on designated snow removal routes.  

(c)  Any police officer of the city police operations division, including duly authorized volunteer officers, 
or the director of municipal operations and programs or the director's designee shall be authorized to 
cause the towing of vehicles blocking traffic or parking on designated snow removal routes during 
snow removal operations in violation of this section. The owner of the vehicle shall pay the costs of 
towing and storage occasioned by the removal of the vehicle as provided herein. In addition any 
police officer of the city police operations division, including duly authorized volunteer officers, the 
director of municipal operations and programs or the director's designee shall be authorized to issue 
parking tickets for violations of this section, parking on designated snow removal routes during snow 
removal operations.  

(d)  Priority snow removal routes are designated as follows:  

Street  
Portion Where  

Parking Prohibited  

Second Street  From State Street to Franklin Street  

Third Street  From State Street to Franklin Street  

Fourth Street  From State Street to Washington Street  

Fifth Street  From State Street to Washington Street  

Sixth Street  From State Street to Clay Street  

72



55 
 

18th Street (West)  From College Street to Hudson Road  

23rd Street  From College Street to Merner Avenue  

Clay Street  From First Street to Sixth Street  

College Street  From University Avenue to 18th Street  

Division Street  From Eighth Street to 12th Street  

Franklin Street  From Sixth Street to First Street  

Main Street  From First Street to Sixth Street  

Orchard Drive  From South Main Street to Cedar Heights Drive  

State Street  From First Street to Sixth Street  

Walnut Street  From First Street to 18th Street  

Washington Street  From First Street to Sixth Street  

  

(e)  Special penalty. Any person violating this parking ban shall be fined $25.00 for each offense, in 
addition to the costs of towing and storage.  

(f)  In any proceeding for violation of this section, the registration plates displayed on a motor vehicle 
involved in such violation shall constitute in evidence a prima facie presumption that the registered 
owner of such motor vehicle was the person who parked or placed such motor vehicle at the point 
where such violation occurred.  

(Code 2017, § 26-281; Ord. No. 2679, § 1, 3-9-2009; Ord. No. 2855, § 1, 10-19-2015)  

Sec. 23-387.   Fire lanes. 

(a)  Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning:  

Building means any structure or portion of a structure which meet the following criteria:  

(1)  Privately owned commercial property zoned commercial under the zoning chapter of 
specifically zoned in the following commercial districts: S-1, C-1, C-2, and C-3.  

(2)  Privately owned residential property under the zoning chapter specifically zoned as RP.  

73



56 
 

Commercial vehicle means a motor driven car or truck which is designated by lettering on the 
vehicle's body indicating a commercial purpose or which has a commercial license plate attached and is 
duly registered to the vehicle.  

Fire lane means an opening not less than 20 feet of unobstructed width measured from the farthest 
building projection or walkway/curb, whichever is the greatest distance from the building wall, and shall 
have no vertical obstructions. The length of a fire lane shall be properly posted as set forth below.  

(b)  Violation. No person shall park a vehicle in any place designated by the fire operations division as a 
fire lane and posted as hereinafter provided, whether such fire lane be upon publicly owned property 
or right-of-way, or upon privately owned property. Any person violating this section shall be guilty of a 
municipal infraction and subject to punishment as provided in section 1-9. In addition, members of 
the police t operations division or parking meter attendants, or their designees, may remove such 
vehicle to a storage place as provided by ordinance.  

(c)  Signs. A fire lane shall be posted with metal signs reading "No Parking—Fire Lane Violators Subject 
to Towing and Citation under code section 23-389 of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa" at least every 50 
linear feet thereof.  

(d)  Presumption. When an area is posted as a fire lane as provided in subsection (c) of this section, a 
presumption shall arise that said area was designated as a fire lane by or with the authority of the fire 
operations division.  

(e)  Maintenance and construction expense. Fire lanes shall be constructed and maintained at the 
owner's expense, which shall include the purchase of properly marked signs.  

(f)  Free and clear of all obstructions. Fire lanes shall at all times be free and clear of all obstructions, 
with the following exceptions:  

(1)  Normal movement of vehicular traffic.  

(2)  Actively loading and unloading of commercial vehicles. Commercial vehicles shall be limited to 
a period of not more than 30 minutes' obstruction of the fire lane.  

(Code 2017, § 26-282; Ord. No. 2232, § 2, 4-27-1998; Ord. No. 2705, §§ 4, 5, 2-22-2010)  

Secs. 23-388—23-406.   Reserved. 

DIVISION 2.   PARKING ENFORCEMENT DISTRICTS, EQUIPMENT, OPERATIONS  AND 

FACILITIES 

Sec. 23-407.   Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Municipal parking lot means any parking area, not including streets or highways, designated as a 
public parking lot.  

Operator means every individual who operates a vehicle as the owner thereof, or as the agent, 
employee or permittee of the owner, or who is in actual physical control of a vehicle.  

Park or parking means the standing of a vehicle, whether occupied or not, upon a street or municipal 
parking lot, other than temporarily for the purpose of and while actually engaged in receiving or 
discharging passengers or loading or unloading merchandise, or in obedience to traffic regulations, signs 
or signals, and other than an involuntary stopping of a vehicle by reason of causes beyond the control of 
the operator of such vehicle.  

74



57 
 

Parking meter/pay station means any mechanical device or meter not inconsistent with this division 
that is placed or erected for the regulation of parking by authority of this division. Parking meters/pay 
stations installed shall indicate the legal parking time and pay for parking rate established by the city, and 
at the expiration of such period shall indicate illegal or overtime parking.  

Parking space means any space within a parking enforcement district, which is duly designated for 
the parking of a single vehicle by lines painted or otherwise durably marked on the curb or on the surface 
of the street or municipal parking lot.  

Parking enforcement district means a defined district comprised of restricted street parking and 
regulated municipal parking lots and facilities where parking is enforced.  

Person means any individual, firm, copartnership, association or corporation.  

Street means any public street, avenue, road, alley, highway, lane, path or other public place located 
in the city and established for the use of vehicles.  

Vehicle means any device in, upon or by which any person or property is or may be transported 
upon a highway, except a device which is operated upon rails or tracks.  

(Code 2017, § 26-291)  

Sec. 23-408.   Rights reserved by city. 

Nothing contained in this division shall be construed as prohibiting the city from providing for bus 
stops and for other matters of a similar nature, including the loading or unloading of trucks, vans or other 
commercial vehicles.  

(Code 2017, § 26-293)  

Sec. 23-409.   Supervision of parking operations. 

The council shall be responsible for the regulation, control, operation, maintenance and use of 
parking operations in the city.  

(Code 2017, § 26-294)  

Sec. 23-410.   Use of parking enforcement district for loading and unloading. 

Commercial trucks may park on the street or in municipal parking lots in parking enforcement 
districts to load and unload merchandise where no facilities are available to load or unload in alleys or 
loading/unloading zones. Such parking shall not exceed 15 minutes, and parking beyond such time limit 
shall be considered a violation of this division.  

(Code 2017, § 26-296)  

75



58 
 

Sec. 23-411 – Parking districts described. 

The following named and described districts, lying within the corporate limits of the city, shall constitute a 

parking enforcement district. 

(a) Downtown parking enforcement district, being the boundaries described in Sec. 26-189, Central 

Business District (CBD) overlay zoning district. 

(b) College Hill parking enforcement district, being the boundaries described in Sec. 26-181, College 

Hill Neighborhood (CHN) overlay zoning district.   

Sec. 23-412.   Drop off/Pick up zones on specific streets in a parking enforcement 

district. 

The streets or portions of streets enumerated in this section, when properly signposted, are hereby 
declared to be drop off/pick up zones. No vehicle shall park or stand in a drop off/pick up zone other than 
while actually engaged in the loading or unloading of passengers or materials. In no event shall any 
vehicle be parked or stand in a drop off/pick up zone for more than 15 minutes. 

Street  
Portion Where  

Parking Limited  

Second Street 

(East)  

Drop off/ Pick up Zone: On the north side 55 feet east of the Main Street line to a point 

65 feet east of the Main Street line. 

Second Street 

(West) 

Drop off/ Pick up Zone: On the north side 30 feet west of the Main Street line to a point 

40 feet west of the Main Street line. 

Third Street 

(East) 

Drop off/ Pick up Zone: On the north side 35 feet east of the Main Street line to a point 

55 feet east of the Main Street line. 

Third Street 

(West)  

Drop off/ Pick up Zone: On the north side 65 feet west of the Main Street line to a point 

75 feet west of the Main Street line. 

Third Street 

(West) 

Drop off/ Pick up Zone: On the north side 20 feet west of the Washington Street line to 

a point 40 feet west of the Washington Street line. 

Fourth Street 

(East)  

Drop off/ Pick up Zone: On the north side 50 feet east of the Main Street line to a point 

70 feet east of the Main Street line. 

Fourth Street Drop off/ Pick up Zone: On the north side 40 feet west of the Main Street line to a point 

76



59 
 

(West)  50 feet west of the Main Street line. 

Fifth Street 

(West) 

 Drop off/Pick up Zone: On the north side 50 feet west of the Main Street line to a point 

70 feet west of the Main Street line. 

Sixth Street 
Drop of/ Pick up Zone: On the north side from the east line of Clay Street to the east 150 

feet to the west line of the Alley. 

Clay Street 
Drop off/ Pick up Zone: On the east side 30 feet north of the north line of 6th Street to a 

point 120 feet north of the north 6th Street line. 

Clay Street 
Drop off/ Pick up Zone: On the west side 30 feet north of the north line of 6th Street to 

a point 120 feet north of the north 6th Street line. 

Main Street 
Drop off/Pick up Zone: On the west side 25 feet south of the south line of First Street to 

a point 90 feet south of the south line of First Street. 

State Street 
Drop off/Pick up Zone: On the west side from a point 20’ south of the south line of 

Second Street to 40’ south of the south line of Second Street. 

 

Sec. 23-413.   Parking time limits in parking enforcement districts. 

(1)  Parking is prohibited in a municipal lot unless the operator of the vehicle is permitted to do so by 
purchasing a city issued permit or pays for parking at or by means of a parking meter/pay station. :  

 (2) When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a designated parking 
space shall be limited and enforced between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m., Monday through 
Saturday. The provisions of this section shall not apply on the following named holidays: New Year's 
Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. 

 (3) Rates for paid parking in a parking enforcement district shall be adopted by resolution by the city 
council and appropriately posted giving notice of said rates.  

 (Code 2017, § 26-298; Ord. No. 1926, §§ 3, 4, 1-2-1991; Ord. No. 2006, § 11, 3-1-1993; Ord. 

No. 2206, § 1, 10-13-1997; Ord. No. 2342, § 1, 8-13-2001; Ord. No. 2559, § 1, 10-24-2005; Ord. 

No. 2705, § 7, 2-22-2010)  

Sec. 23-414.   Use of funds collected from parking operations and enforcement. 

(a)  Funds derived from the operation and enforcement of parking shall be used for the following 
purposes and none other:  

(1)  Payment of the cost of acquisition, installation, maintenance, repair and operation of 
equipment, signs and other devices to regulate and enforce parking laws.  

77



60 
 

  (2)  Payment of the cost of acquiring, by purchase, lease or similar arrangement, parking lots, 
facilities or other off-street parking areas, including operation, enlargement or improvement 
thereof or the facilities thereof, and widening or altering the streets to provide additional parking 
facilities.  

(3)  Retirement of revenue bonds.  

(b)  All revenues derived from parking enforcement operations not required for the payment of costs 
under subsection (a) of this section shall be expended for the improvement of existing facilities or the 
acquisition and improvement of additional off-street parking areas, provided that such funds may be 
retained and accumulated for such purpose for such length of time and in such amount as may be 
reasonably necessary to effectuate such program of acquisition of parking lots or other off-street 
parking areas.  

(Code 2017, § 26-302)  

Sec. 23-415.   Parking violations. 

It shall be unlawful and a violation of the provisions of this division for any person to:  

(1)  Cause, allow, permit or suffer any vehicle registered in the name of or operated by such person 
to be parked overtime or beyond the period of legal parking time established or purchased.  

(2)  Permit any vehicle to remain or be placed in a parking space beyond the period prescribed for 
such parking space.  

 (3)  Park any vehicle across any line or marking of a parking space or in such position that the 
vehicle is not entirely within the area designated by such lines or markings. Where angle or 
straight-in parking is provided, a vehicle must be parked entirely between the lines or markings 
with one of the front wheels of the vehicle touching the bumper block or curb, if one exists.  

(4)  Deface, injure, tamper with, open or willfully break, destroy or impair the usefulness of any 
parking equipment or device installed under the provisions of this division. Violation of this 
provision shall be considered a simple misdemeanor as provided for in Section 23-23.  

  (Code 2017, § 26-303; Ord. No. 2006, § 12, 3-1-1993)  

Sec. 23-416.   Notice of parking violation. 

Parking enforcement personnel of the city shall attach to the vehicles in violation of this division a 
notice to the owner or operator thereof stating that such vehicle has been parked in violation of this 
division and informing the owner or operator of the amount of the fine, how the fine may be paid, and the 
penalty for failure to pay the fine.  

(Code 2017, § 26-304)  

Sec. 23-417.   Report of parking violations. 

It shall be the duty of the parking enforcement personnel of the city, acting in accordance with 
instructions issued by the city clerk and as approved by the council, to report the following:  

(1)  The location of the vehicle that is or has been parking in violation of any of the provisions of 
this division.  

(2)  The state license number of such vehicle.  

78



61 
 

(3)  The time during which such vehicle is parking in violation of any of the provisions of this 
division.  

(4)  Any other facts which are necessary to a thorough understanding of the circumstances 
attending such violation.  

(Code 2017, § 26-305; Ord. No. 2583, § 3, 6-12-2006)  

 (Code 2017, § 26-306)  

Sec. 23-418.   Fines for parking violations. 

(a)  Except as otherwise provided in this article or by state law, the fine for a violation of this article shall 
be $10.00, payable to the city. If said fine is not paid within 30 days from the date of the notice of 
violation, the fine shall be increased to $15.00.  

 (Code 2017, § 26-307; Ord. No. 2722, § 1, 12-13-2010)  

  Sec. 23-419.   Parking permits for municipal parking lots or parking facilities. 

(a)  Generally. The owner or operator of a motor vehicle may obtain a parking permit for use in the off-
street municipal parking lots or facilities. Parking permits may be assigned to a specific parking lot or 
facility, and may vary in price. Parking permit fees shall be established from time to time by 
resolution of the city council. The parking permit is to be displayed in the lower left-hand corner of the 
windshield of the vehicle unless the owner or operator of the vehicle has registered the license plate 
of the vehicle with the parking enforcement agency designated by the city. The purchase and proper 
display of a parking permit, as required in this subsection shall entitle the motor vehicle to be parked 
in the designated off-street municipal parking lot or facility for a period of up to 48 consecutive hours 
without penalty for overtime parking.  

 (Code 2017, § 26-311; Ord. No. 2771, § 1, 7-9-2012)  

Sec. 23-420.   Two-hour limit on parking in certain parking spaces on certain streets. 

(a)  When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a designated parking 
space shall be limited to a total of two hours of parking between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 
p.m., except on the following named holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, 
Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, on the following streets or portions of streets 
within the city:  

 (1)  Main Street from First Street to Sixth Street.  

(b) Each consecutive two-hour period during one calendar day that a vehicle remains illegally parked 
in a designated space as provided in this subsection shall constitute a separate and distinct offense. The 
first offense shall terminate two hours after the time a citation charging the offense is issued, which time 
shall be noted on the citation, and a separate and new offense shall occur during each two-hour period 
thereafter.  

 (c)  The schedule of fines for violations described in subsection (a) of this section shall be the fines as 
stated in section 23-421(a).  

(Code 2017, § 26-312; Ord. No. 2722, § 4, 12-13-2010; Ord. No. 2874, § 1, 8-1-2016)  

79



62 
 

Sec. 23-421.   Three-hour limit on parking in certain parking spaces on certain streets. 

(a)  When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a 

designated parking space shall be limited to a total of three hours of parking between the 

hours of 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m., except on the following named holidays: New Year's 

Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, 

on the following streets or portions of streets within the city:  

(1)  Second Street from State Street to Clay Street.  

(2)  Third Street from State Street to Clay Street.  

(3)  Fourth Street from State Street to Washington Street.  

(4)  Fifth Street from State Street to Washington Street.  

(6)  State Street from Second Street to Fourth Street.  

(7)  Washington Street from First Street to Sixth Street.  

(8)  Sixth Street from Washington Street west to the alley between Clay Street and 

Washington Street. 

Each consecutive three-hour period during one calendar day that a vehicle remains 

illegally parked in a designated space as provided in this subsection shall constitute a 

separate and distinct offense. The first offense shall terminate three hours after the time 

a citation charging the offense is issued, which time shall be noted on the citation, and a 

separate and new offense shall occur during each three-hour period thereafter.  

 (c)  The schedule of fines for violations described in subsection (a) of this section shall 

be the fines as stated in section 23-421(a). 

 

Sec. 23-422.   Two-hour limit on parking in municipal lots G, M and N and on certain 

portions of College Street and 23rd Street. 

(a)  When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a designated parking 
space shall be limited to a total of two hours for each vehicle on each weekday between the hours of 
9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., except on the following named holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, 
Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, in the following places:  

(1)  Anywhere within municipal lots G, M and N.  

80



63 
 

(2)  23rd Street from that portion of said street adjacent to 1019 West 23rd Street west to Merner 
Avenue.  

Each consecutive two-hour minute period during one calendar day that a vehicle remains illegally 
parked in a designated space as provided in this subsection shall constitute a separate and 
distinct offense. The first offense shall terminate two hours after a citation charging the offense 
is issued, which time shall be noted on the citation, and a separate and new offense shall occur 
during each two-hour period thereafter.  

 (b)  The schedule of fines for violations described in subsection (a) of this section shall be $10.00, 
payable to the city. If the fine is not paid within 30 days from the date of the notice of the violation, 
such fine shall be increased to $15.00.  

(Code 2017, § 26-313; Ord. No. 2691, § 2, 7-27-2009; Ord. No. 2705, §§ 5, 8, 2-22-2010)  

Sec. 23-423.   One-hour limit on parking in certain parking spaces on certain portions of 

23rd Street and College Street. 

(a)  When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a designated parking 
space shall be limited to a total of one hour of parking for each vehicle on each weekday between 
the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., except on the following named holidays: New Year's Day, 
Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, on the 
following portions of streets within the city:  

(1)  23rd Street from College Street west to and including that portion of West 23rd Street adjacent 
to 1009 West 23rd Street.  

(2)  College Street from 22nd Street to 23rd Street.  

Each consecutive one-hour period during one calendar day that a vehicle remains illegally parked in 
a designated space as provided in this subsection shall constitute a separate and distinct 
offense. The first offense shall terminate one hour after the time a citation charging the offense 
is issued, which time shall be noted on the citation, and a separate and new offense shall occur 
during each one-hour period thereafter.  

 (b)  The schedule of fines for violations described in subsection (a) of this section shall be $10.00, 
payable to the city. If the fine is not paid within 30 days from the date of the notice of the violation, 
such fine shall be increased to $15.00.  

(Code 2017, § 26-314; Ord. No. 2691, § 3, 7-27-2009)  

Sec. 23-424.   One-hour limit on parking in municipal lot O. 

(a)  When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a designated parking 
space shall be limited to a total of one hour of parking for each vehicle on each weekday between 
the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., except on the following named holidays: New Year's Day, 
Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, on the 
following portions of streets within the city:  

(1)  Anywhere within municipal lot O.  

(2)  Each consecutive one-hour period during one calendar day that a vehicle remains illegally 
parked in a designated space as provided in this subsection shall constitute a separate and 
distinct offense. The first offense shall terminate one-hour after the time a citation charging the 
offense is issued, which time shall be noted on the citation, and a separate and new offense 
shall occur during each one-hour period thereafter.  

81



64 
 

 (b)  The schedule of fines for violations described in subsection (a) of this section shall be $10.00, 
payable to the city. If the fine is not paid within 30 days from the date of the notice of the violation, 
such fine shall be increased to $15.00.  

(Code 2017, § 26-315; Ord. No. 2691, § 4, 7-27-2009)  

Sec. 23-425.   Parking prohibited in portions of municipal lot G during certain hours. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle shall be prohibited in the 
20 angled parking spaces located in the northeast leg of municipal lot G on Thursday afternoons only 
commencing with the first Thursday of June of each year and continuing through the last Thursday of 
October of each year during the hours of 2:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.  

(Code 2017, § 26-316; Ord. No. 2833, § 1, 12-1-2014; Secs. 23-425—23-458.   Reserved. 

 
INTRODUCED:     May 20, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   May 20, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   June 3, 2019   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

82



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2946 

AN ORDINANCE (1) REPEALING SECTION 23-41, COLLECTION AND DISPOSITION OF 

MONEY DEPOSITED IN PARKING METERS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF 

ARTICLE II, ADMINISTRATION AND OBEDIENCE, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 

MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA, AND ENANCTING IN LIEU THEREOF, A NEW SECTION 23-41, 

COLLECTION AND DISPOSITION OF MONEY DEPOSITED IN PAYSTATIONS/METERS,  

OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, ADMINISTRATION AND OBEDIENCE, OF 

CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA; AND  (2)  REPEALING SECTION 23-83, MARKING 

OF PARKING SPACES, OF DIVISION 2, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TRAFFIC 

STANDARDS, OF ARTICLE II, ADMINISTRATION AND OBEDIENCE, OF CHAPTER 23, 

TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENANCTING IN LIEU THEREOF, A NEW SECTION 23-83, 

MARKING OF PARKING SPACES, OF DIVISION 2, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

TRAFFIC STANDARDS, OF ARTICLE II, ADMINISTRATION AND OBEDIENCE, OF 

CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA.          

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Section 23-41, Collection and Disposition of Money Deposited in Parking 

Meters, of Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Administration and Enforcement, of Chapter 23, 

Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

repealed in its entirety and a new Section 23-41, Collection and Disposition of Money Deposited 

in Pay Stations/Meters is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 23-41. Collection and disposition of money deposited in pay stations/meters. 

     It shall be the duty of the parking enforcement and administration section of the public 

records division of the department of finance and business operations to make regular 

collections of money deposited in the parking pay stations/meters of the city.  It shall be the duty 

of such persons removing the coins to place them in the approved container and to deliver the 

83



2 
 

container to the city’s financial institution so that the funds may be counted and deposited in the 

city’s account. 

(Code 2017, § 26-49; Ord. No. 2729, § 1, 2-14-2011) 

 

     Section 2.  Section 23-83, Marking of Parking Spaces, of Division 2, Department of Public 

Works Traffic Standards, of Article II, Administration and Obedience, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 

Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is hereby repealed in 

its entirety and a new Section 23-83, Marking of Parking Spaces, is enacted in lieu thereof, as 

follows: 

Sec. 23-83.  Marking of parking spaces. 

 (a)    The department of public works is hereby directed and authorized to mark off individual 

parking spaces in parking enforcement districts designated and described in section 23-411, 

and in all other areas where parking in stalls is desired and authorized within the city.  Such 

parking spaces shall be designated by lines painted or durably marked on the curbing or surface 

of the street. 

(b)     At each space so marked, it shall be unlawful to park any vehicle in such a way that such 

vehicle shall not be entirely within the limits of the space so designated. 

(Code 2017, § 26-74)  

 

INTRODUCED:     June 3, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   June 3, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

84



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: June 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Appointments & Reappointments 

 

I am recommending the following appointments and reappointments: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
Brian Hayes Historic Preservation Commission (fills vacancy) 03/31/2022 
Michael Mahncke Historic Preservation Commission (fills vacancy) 03/31/2022 
   
Debra Iehl Utilities Board of Trustees  

(replaces Pam Taylor effective 09/01/2019) 
08/31/2025 

   
Brooke Croshier-Sidebotham Visitors & Tourism Board (reappointment) 07/01/2022 
Amy Dutton Visitors & Tourism Board (reappointment) 07/01/2022 
Doug Johnson Visitors & Tourism Board (reappointment) 07/01/2022 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
 

 
 

85



86



87



88



89



90



91



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

June 3, 2019 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:45 p.m. on June 3, 
2019, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland.   Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Tom Nelson with the 
Waterloo Courier, Cary Darrah, Will Frost, Eric Johnson, and Lisa Skubal from Grow 
Cedar Valley and Debra Iehl also attended as well as members of the community. 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
Utilities Board of Trustee Interview – Debra Iehl.  Ms. Iehl gave a brief history of herself, 
stating she has benefited from the community and wants to give back.  A brief 
discussion was held.   

The Mayor introduced the second item on the agenda Grow Cedar Valley Update.  Eric 
Johnson Chairman of the Board, stated they are happy with the partnership with the 
City of Cedar Falls and the staff is easy to work with on projects.  He introduced Lisa 
Skubal.  Ms. Skubal reviewed the external marketing campaign and recent 
development.  She stated in October they expanded the Midwest initiative and they 
currently have almost 1500 companies being called upon.  She stated Shane Graham 
Economic Development Coordinator with the City is working with her and attending the 
Select USA Investment Summit in June.  Ms. Skubal introduced Will Frost the new 
Director of Talent Development.  Mr. Frost stated they continue to work with local 
collaborations and partnerships for inclusion and diversity events.  He stated there were 
over 370 participants at the Economic Inclusion Conference in October.  Mr. Frost 
stated they continue to work on college student engagement and other partnerships in 
the area.  Cary Darrah President stated our top priorities are business 
retention/expansion and talent in the workforce.   She also thanked Eric Johnson for his 
time serving on the Board and thanked the City for their partnership. 

Mayor Brown moved to the third item on the agenda Monument Mailboxes.  Stephanie 
Sheetz Director of Community Development stated the monument mail boxes have 
been restricted since June 2008. She reviewed the different type of mail boxes, and the 
standards from the U.S. Postal System when installing them at the curb.  Ms. Sheetz 
reviewed the concerns with the monument mailboxes, including safety in the ROW, 
increased maintenance cost and additional cost to taxpayers during road reconstruction.   
She stated the City will reimburse $75 for a mail box they may damage while snow 
plowing.  She stated the road reconstruction cost might increase by 30% due to a street 
having monument mailboxes on it.  Ms. Sheetz stated the staff recommendation is to 
continue with the current ordinance that prohibits monument mailboxes and similar 
obstructions that create safety concerns in the public right of way.   She also confirmed 
that Cedar Falls Utilities agrees with this recommendation. 

Mayor Brown opened it for discussion.  Ms. Sheetz confirmed the City will 
reimbursement a maximum of $75 for a mailbox damaged by City personnel.  She 
stated current residents with monument mailboxes may make minor repairs, but if it is 
replaced in its entirety they would not be allowed to construct a monument mail box.   

92



Mark Ripplinger Director of Municipal Operations and Programs confirmed they have hit 
mail boxes during snow removal and after review at Risk Management Committee the 
reimbursement has been $75, even for monument mailboxes.  Jeff Olson Director of 
Public Safety Services/Police Chief stated if a personal vehicle damages monument 
mailboxes that would be between the insurance company and home owner, but this 
would not affect the City.  Chase Schrage Principal Engineer stated an excavation 
permit by the homeowner would be required for a monument mailbox, if it were allowed.   
Michael Dewall, Postmaster at Cedar Falls, stated they are doing more Central Box 
Units (CBU) in new developments.  He stated the U.S. Post Office prefers the 
breakaway post style of mailbox.  He also explained there are benefits to the cluster 
mailboxes; less parking problems and less snow removal in front the cluster mail boxes.    

Mayor Brown opened it for public comment. Hans Isakson 3110 Pendleton Drive stated 
he currently has a monument which needs significant repair or replacement.  He 
explained his neighborhood has monument mailboxes and would like to have it look the 
same.  He would like to see a change with limiting the liability of the City, but built to the 
U.S. Post Office standards.   Tom Blanford motioned to amend the city ordinance to 
allow repair/replacement to existing monument mailboxes. Daryl Kruse seconded the 
motion.  Mayor Brown opened it up for council discussion.  A question was raised about 
trees in the ROW, Mr. Schrage stated during road reconstruction the area by the 
monument mail boxes would have to be hand poured and this usually isn’t the case for 
a tree in the ROW since it may have a setback of 4-5 feet.  Motion failed 3-4. (Aye – 
Blanford, Kruse, and Miller; Nay – Darrah, deBuhr, Green, and Wieland) 

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda, bills and payroll. David Wieland 
moved to approve the bills as presented, Rob Green seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:35 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

93



94



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 

 DATE: June 13, 2019 

 SUBJECT: W. 1
st
 Street Reconstruction Project – Appraisement of Damages 

  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1

st
 Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 

project is in the first construction phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
wrapping up to meet the DOT and City’s funding for construction. The road construction will take 
place in 2019-2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four lane to 
a five lane facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) properties 
and partial acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Attached are the Notice of Appraisement of Damages reports for Parcel 6 and 76.  Please 
receive and file for our records. 
 
Parcel # Owner Address 

6 James Lown Properties, LLC 1311-1315 W. 1
st
 Street 

76 Realty Income Corporation, Inc. 1612 W. 1
st
 Street 

 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 David Sturch, Planner III 
  

95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  June 13, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street, Class C beer & Class B native wine - renewal. 

b) Hong Kong Chinese Restaurant, 6306 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - 
renewal. 

c) Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - 
renewal. 

d) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 

e) Holiday Inn Express & Suites, 1614 Technology Parkway, Class C beer - new. 

f) Famous Dave's, 6222 University Avenue, Class C liquor - new. 
 

242



CEDAR DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEOAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET
CEOAR FALLS, IOWA 506.13
319.273.8600
FAX 3't9.268-5i26l!Urr-{

7""r2--
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

Mayor Brown and City Council Members

Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations

June 4, 2019

FY2O20 Appropriations Resolution

lf you have any questions regarding the resolution, please feel free to contact me.

Please find attached the Appropriations Resolution for the fiscal year beginning July 1,

20l9andendingJune30,2020submittedforyourapproval. Theresolutionoutlinesin
detail the FY2020 budget that was approved by Council in February and also
incorporates the new reorganizational structure with the account numbers. For
informational purposes, the FY2020 budgeted revenues are attached. New for this
year is a detail listing of all of the transfers in the FY2020 budget. This is a new
requirement by the State of lowa and therefore we are including this as part of the
resolution to comply with that new requirement.

243



Budres20
RESOLUTION NUMBER

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY FROM SEVERAL FUNDS FOR PAYMENT OF ALL
EXPENSES IN THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE AFFAIRS OF THE CIry OF CEDAR FALLS,
IOWA FOR THE YEAR 2019.2020.

WHEREAS, Section 24.3 Code of lowa, 2019, relating to the "local Budget Law"
provides that no Municipality shall certify or levy in any year any tax on property subject
to taxation, unless and until estimates have been made, filed and considered and;

WHEREAS, these estimates of income and expenses are declared to be necessary for
the peace, health, and general welfare of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, now therefore;

BE lT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, that

SECTION 1. The estimates of income from all sources available for expenditure in
the fiscal year beginning July 1 , 2019 and ending June 30, 2020 is $85,279,960.00 as
follows, to-wit:

3-J un-19

Office Receipts
Taxes
Transfers

Total estimated income
Use of Cash Carryover

Total estimated funds available

$ 47,098,710.00
21 ,420,920.OO

8,067,320.00
$ 76,586,950.00

8,693,010.00
$ 85,279,960.00

SECTION 2. That the estimated revenues from tax levies and all other sources be and
the same are hereby appropriated, apportioned and set aside for the several funds
for the payment of payrolls, bills and claims that may be properly and legally made.

SECTION 3. That an appropriation not necessary for the use for which it was
appropriated may be used to defray expenditures for any other items in the fund to which
it belongs.

SECTION 4. That the total estimated income of $85,279,960.00 be appropriated for
expenditures according to the several funds as follows, to-wit:

244



CODE NUMBER DESCRIPTION APPROPRIATION

GENERAL FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE/LEGISLATIVE/MISCELLANEOUS:
CITY COUNCIL

101-1168-441.61-01
64-05
65-01
66-0'l

MISCELLANEOUS
101-1't99-41',t. 32-62

32-70

101-1199-421.31-10
3',1-20

3't -40

TOTAL CITY COUNCIL

City Council - Salaries & Wages
Worker' Compensation
FICA
IPERS

Grants - Fire Ext./CPR Training
Grants - Police Operations

Grants - Cultural Services
Grants - Library
Grants - Parks & Recreation

C.F. Disabled
C.F. Elderly -RTC
C.F. Elderly HVAAA
C.F. [/et
MET Capital Replacement
Lobbyist
CV Coalition

Official Printing
Contract Services
Audit
Recording Fees
Human Rights Commission
City Election
Telephone
Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodging)
Education & Training
Liability lnsurance
Vehicle Maintenance
League Dues & Travel
Contingency
Refunds

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual

43,890.00
90.00

3,360.00
2,950.00

3,000.00
35,000.00

30,000.00
25,000.00
20,000.00

33,220.00
22,150.O0

32,800.00
314.700.00

15,520.00
14.000.00

1,660.00

35,000.00
11,000.00
57,000.00

3,000.00
1,500.00

35,000.00
2,000.00
5,900.00
5,800.00

237.720.00
9,450.00

1 '1,500.00

60,000.00
2,000.00

50,290.00

101-1199-43'l

10t-1199-441

'101-'l 199-441

88-01
88-02
88-03
88-1 1

88-'t2
88-20
88-23

72-19
81-01
81-02
81-03
81-09
8'l-1'l
82-01
83-05
83-06
84-01
87-05
89-1 1

89-13
89-14

Personal Services

101-'t 158-441. 61-01
62-01
62-02

101-1199-481.43-0'l
43_04

Transfer to Debt Service

TIF Transfer

97,890.00

1,300,000.00

2

97,750.00
430.00

70.00

3,021 ,810.00

101-1199-441.92-05 Budget reduction implement, staffing, one-time cap project 600,000.00

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS:

MAYOR'S OFFICE

245



Services Charqes
't01-1 158-44',| 81-',t2

81-98
82-0',|
83-03
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-0'1

Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
t.P.E.R.S

Offlce Supplies & Postage
Operating Supplies

Computer Services
Economic Development Activilies
Telephone
Outings/Dinners/Awards
Oues & Memberships
Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodging)
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
PayrollAccrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I.P.E-R,S.

Office Supplies
Books & Magazines
Printing

Computer Services
Telephone
Memberships
Travel & Meals
Education
Operating lnsurance
Vehicle Maintenance

64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-0'1

66-01

14,750.00
210.00
310.00
390.00
210.00

7,480.00
9,230.00

800.00
3,000.00

500.00

300.460.00
1.330.00
4.900.00

41,250.00
570.00
930.00

1 ,190.00
630.00

18,940.00
28,360.00

296,140.00

Commodities
't01-1158-441.71-01

72_0.1

4.170.00
150,000.00

1,400.00
940.00
400.00

3,000.00
800.00
300.00

Capital Outlav

10'1-1158-441. 93-01 Equipment

TOTAL N/AYOR'S OFFICE:

CITY ADI\iIINISTRATOR

Personal Services

10'l-'1118-441. 61-01
62-0',|
62-02
64-01
64-O2
64_03
64-04
64_05
65-01
66-01

Commodities

101-1118-441 71-01
72-',t 1

72-19

Services and Charqes
't01-'t't 18-441. 81:t2

82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-0',|
87-05

200.00
200.00
100.00

6,980.00
1,300.00
1,500.00
4,000.00
2,000.00

500.00
0.00

Capital Outlav

10'l-1118-441. 93-01 Equipment

TOTAL CITY ADMINISTRATOR:

3

600 00

415.940.00

246



FINANCIAL SERVICES

Personal Services

101-1028-44'1. 61-01
61-02
61-03
62-0'l
62-02
64-01

-02
&-03
64-04
64-05
64-06
65-01
66-01

Commodities

10't-'to28441. 71-01
72_99
73-99

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Partlime
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worke/s Compensation lnsurance
Unemployment
F.t.c.A.
I.P.E.R.S.

Office Supplies & Printing
Postage
Disaster Supplies

Computer Services
Microfi lming/Digital lmaging
Employee Recognition Program
Contract Services
Pre-employment Physical Exams
Random Drug Testing
Job Notices
Employee Assistance Program
Employee Wellness Program
Comprehensive Pay Plan Study
Telephone
Dues & Memberships
Travel & Meals
Education
Operating lnsurance
Repair & Maintenance
Cafeteria Plan
Section 105

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Overtime
PayrollAccrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Heallh lnsurance Reimbursemenls
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance

467.740.00
80,790.00

500.00
2,070.00
7,630.00

71,510.00
1,030.00
1,420.00
1,880.00

980.00
'1,050.00

39,390.00
5'1,830.00

6,300.00
4,500.00
2,000.00

28,870.00
1,500.00
4,000.00
1,500.00

45,000.00
3,400.00

20,000.00
5,000.00

28,000.00
75,000.00

3,000.00
2,300.00
4,100.00
3,900.00
2,080.00
4,250.00
7.500.00

14.400.00

3,500.00

218,110.00
500.00
960.00

1,250.00
19,650.00

400.00
660.00
870.00
390.00

997.920.00

Capital Outlav
'101-1028-441. 93-01 Equipment

TOTAL FINANCIAL SERVICES:

LEGAL SERVICES

Personal Services

101-1048-44',| 61-01
61-03
62-01
62-02
64-O1
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05

4

Services and Charqes

101-1028-441. 81-12
8r-13
81-35
8'l -48
81-50
8't-52
81-53
8'l -55
81_56
8't_57
82_01

83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
86-01
89-81
89-82

247



65-01
66-01

Commodities

10't-1048-441. 7',t-01
72-11

Services and Charqes

101-1048-441

Office Supplies
Dues & Publications

Computer Services
Legal Fees
Post-employment Physical Exams
Civil Service Commission
Telephone
Memberships
Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodging)
Education & Training
Code Enforcement

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I.P,E,R,S.

Otflce Supplies & Printing
Postage

Computer Services
Telephone
Memberships
Travel & Meals
Education
Operating lnsurance
Repair & lvlaintenance
Rentals

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual

15,280.00
20,640.00

900.00
8,000.00

4,500.00
1,000.00

13,480.00
120.000.00
30,000.00

3,500.00
600.00
800.00
250.00
750.00

17,000.00

166,670.00
38,430.00

750.00
2,730.00

36,950.00
520.00
s10.00
670.00
350.00

15,700.00
'19,350.00

473,990.00

307,730.00

TOTAL LEGAL SERVICES

PUBLIC RECORDS DIVISION

Personal Services

101-1008-441. 61-01
61-O2
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-01

Commodities

101-'t008-441 71-0'l
72-99

Services and Charoes

'to1-1004-441. all2
82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
86-01
87 -01

81-12
81-29
81-51
81-99
82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
81-30

LIBRARY

Personal Services

8,770.00
1,700.00

500.00
2,000.00
1,500.00

630.00
2,000.00
'1,000.00

Capital Outlav

101-'1008-441. 93-01 Equipment
TOTAL PUBLIC RECORDS DIVISION

1,500.00

485,520.00
4'1 1,860.00

2,150.00
7,910.00

5

101-1060-423.61-01
61-02
62-01
62-02

F.t.c.A.
I.P.E.R.S.

248



64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-01

Commodities

10'l -1060-423

101-1060-423.81-01
al12
82-01
83_05
83-06
84-01
85-01
86-01
89-33
89-34

Transfers
'101-1060-423.50-01

Personal Services

Services and Charqes

Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I.P.E.R.S.

Office Supplies
Printing
Display
Public Relations
Postage
Building Repair

Professional Services
Computer Services
Telephone
Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodging)
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Utilities & Heating
Repair & Maintenance
Friends Supported Programs
Endowment Supported Programs

General Fund

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Workeis Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I.P, E, R,S,

Technical Processing Supplies

Computer Services
Technology services
Adult Books
Young Adult Books
Youth Books
Large Print Books
Audio
Video
Non-print Resources
Newspapers
Periodicals

71-01
72-',t9
72-7 5
72-76
72-99
73-06

10,000.00
2,000.00
2,000.00
1,000.00

17,500.00
3,000.00

90,190.00
1,660.00
'1,500.00

1,940.00
1,890.00

68,650.00
84,720.00

5,000.00
44,780.00

3,930.00
3,000.00
3,500.00

22.910.00
72,000.00
21,000.00
40,000.00
60,000.00

'150.890.00

105,340.00
14,090.00

470.00
1 ,720.00

't4,920.00
430.00
320.00
420.00
250.00

9,140.00
11,270.00

30,000.00

10,000.00
35.000.00
40.000.00
13.100.00
39.500.00

6,000.00
8,000.00

41,000.00
19,000.00

1 , 
'100.00

6,000.00

't01-1061-423

Commodities

101-1061-423

61-01
61-02
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-O4

64-05
65-01
66-01

71-11

Services and Charoes
't01-1061-423. A1-',t2

8',t-92
89-20
89-21
89-22
89-23
89-24
89-25
89-26
89-29
89-3.1

6

249



Capital

101-1061-423 93-01
92-01

Personal Services

't01-2203-423. 61-01
o t-92
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-O2
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-01

Commodities

10't-2203-423. 71-01
72-19

Services and Charqes

Youth Audio
Youth Video
Young Adult Audio
Young Adult Video

Capital Reserve
Structures: Maker Space

Salaries & Wages (Reg)

Part-time
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I.P.E.R.S,

Publications
Computer Services
Membership Dues
Travel
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Vehicle Maintenance
Tourism Oftice
Black Hawk County Health Dept.
Visitors & Convention Bureau
Cedar Falls Band
Tourism Administrative
Trail Fund Maintenance/Reserve
cedar Valley Soccer
Tourism Marketing Fund
Communily Center Support
HLS Capital

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-Time
Overtime
Payroll Accrual

89-35
89-36
89-37
89-38

8,800.00
10,500.00
2,000.00
1,000.00

133,530.00
0.00

139,490.00
470.00

1,550.00
620.00

122,820.00
4,020.00

540.00
2,000.00

15,980.00
290.00
370.00
490.00
270.00

9,700.00
11,970.00

50.00
200.00

200.00
26,860.00

500.00
400.00
400.00

1,930.00
4,1 30.00

21,880.00
'13.000.00

437,500.00
35,000.00
25,000.00
43,750.00
10,000.00
78,750.00
60,000.00
30,620.00

2,183,400.00

958.620.00

TOTAL LIBRARY:

COMIVUNITY DEVELOPMENT:

RECREATION & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS ADMINISTRATION

101-2203-423

TOTAL RECREATION & COI\iIMUNITY PROGRAMS ADMINISTRATION

CON/]MUNITY DEVELOPIVIENT ADI\iIINISTRATION

81-06
81-12
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-0'l
87-05
88-09
88-'10
88-16
88-17
88-35
88-36
88-38
88-43
88-44
88-49

7

Personal Services

't01-2205-432. 61-01
61-02
61-03
62-01

Office Supplies
Printing

250



62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-0't

Commodities

101-2205-432 71-01
71-06
72-O1
72-1'l
72-'t9
'7r_)E

72-60
72-99
73-01

Services and Charoes

101-2205-432. 8',t-12
82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
84_0.1

86-01
86_09

Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensalion lnsurance
F.r.c.A.
IPE.RS

Office Supplies
office Equipment Supplies
Operating Supplies
Books
Printing Supplies
Mileage
Safety Supplies
Postage
Repair & Maintenance

Computer Services
Telephone
Membership dues
Travel
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Repair & Maintenance
Office Machine Maintenance

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Partlime
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.l.c.A.
I,P,E,R,S,

Capital Outlav

101-2205-432. 93-01 Equipment

TOTAL CD/ADMINISTRATION:

INSPECTION SERVICES DIVISION

2,280.00
14,350.00

220.00
430.00
560.00
300.00

9,820.00
13,210.00

860.00
90.00

190.00
700.00
650.00
480.00

50.00
500.00
950.00

5,700.00
2,000.00
1,000.00
2,500.00
1,000.00

410.00
200.00
750.00

100.00

3,100.00
150.00

2,500.00
500.00

2,080.00
2,400.00
1,200.00

20'1,430.00

Personal Services

't01-2235-412. 61-0',1

6'l-02
61-03
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-01

559,210.00
52,590.00
20,000.00

2,480.00
9,'110.00

103,540.00
1,690.00
1,730.00
2,260.00
7,340.00

48,340.00
59,640.00

Commodities

71-01
72-04
72-11
72-'16
72-17
72-19
72-60

8

101-2235-412 Office Supplies
Photography
Books, Magazines & Periodicals
Tools
Uniforms
Printing & Supplies
Safety Supplies

251



72-99

Services and Charqes

Postage

Professional Services
Computer Services
Telephone
Membership Dues
Travel
Education
Operating lnsurance
Vehicle Mainlenance
Credit Card Charges

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-lime
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Heallh lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I,P.E.R,S.

Ofrice Supplies
Operating Supplies
Film & Processing
Books & Magazines
Printing
Mileage
Safety
Postage

Professional Services
Computer Services
Zoning Ordinance
INRCOG
Promotional Tapes & Adv.
Services, Business Retention & Expansion
Telephone
Memberships
Travel & Meals
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Repair & lvlaintenance
Single Family Conversion lncentive

2,300.00

1,000.00
26,780.00

7,020.00
3,100.00
5,600.00
5,200.00
1,930.00

22,420.00
20,000.00

750.00

Capital Outlav

10'l-2235-412.93-01 Equipment

TOTAL INSPECTION SERVICES DIVISION:

PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION

Personal Services

10't-2245-442

101-2235-412

Commodities

101-2245-442

81-01
8',t-'t2
82-01
83-04

83-06
84-01
87-05
89-15

61-0'1
61-02
61-03
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-0'1

66-01

975,960.00

348,620.00
2,500.00
1,000.00
1,s50.00
5,680.00

29.600.00
840.00

1,080.00
1,390.00

740.00
26,930.00
33,240.00

71-01
72-01
72-08
72-11
72-'t9
72-25
72-60
72-99

1,020.00
490.00
500.00
650.00

2,600.00
'190.00

150.00
4,200.00

Services and Charqes

101-2245-442. 81-01
81-12
81- 16

81- 18

81-25
81-31
82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
86-01
89-79

13.000.00
28,030.00
60,000.00
13,090.00
8,000.00
't,500.00
1,900.00
1,900.00
2,700.00
2,350.00
2.010.00
2,100.00

100,000.00

252



Equipment

101-2253-423

TOTAL PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES OIVISION:

RECREATION SERVICES DIVISION

Personal Services

90.00

14,000.00
2,000.00

200.00
23,000.00

9.000.00
26.000.00
13,000.00

1,000.00
2,000.00

42.000.00
3,000.00

0.00
7,000.00

12,000.00
200.00

3,500.00

699.640.00

61-01
6'l -09
61- l0
61-11
61-12
61-14
6'l -'l 5
61-16
61-17
61-24
61-25
6't-26
61-27
61-30
61-31
b I-JJ
61-36
61-37
61-39
61-40
6't-41
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-01

31 1,650.00
41,870.00

8,900.00
9,000.00

60,000.00
109,000.00

18,500.00
10,000.00
8,800.00

36,000.00
63,000.00

3,400.00
13,900.00
20,000.00
19,000.00
12,500.00
22,000.00

'138,000.00

13,400.00
39,000.00
21,000.00

'1,380.00

5,080.00
54.660.00

760.00
950.00

1,250.00
14,340.00
73,650.00
92,410.00

Office Supplies
Printing
lvlileage
Playground and Camp Supplies
Drop-ln Equipment & Supplies
Youth Sports/Active Equipment
Adult Sports Supplies
General Misc. Program Supplies
Staff Shirts
Concessions (Pool)
Swim Program
Rec Concessions
Exercise Equipment Repairs
Adult Exercise EquipmenUSupplies
Child Care Supplies
Special Event Supplies

Commodities

101 -2253-423 71-01
72-19
72-25

72-30
72-31

72-37
72-38
72-41
72-42
72-43
72-44
72-47
72-49
72-50

'10

Capital Outlav

101-2245-442. 93-01

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Wellness & Facility Supervisor
General lvlaintenance Receptionist
Youth Softball/Baseball Wages
Playground Wages
Center Wages
Youth Sports/Active Wages
Maintenance Wages
Adult Sports/Active Wages
Swim Lesson lnstructor Wages
Adult Exercise Wages
Special Event Wages
Child Care Wages
lndoor Pool Head-Lifeguard Wages
lndoor Pool Lifeguard Wages
Outdoor Pool Manager
Outdoor Pool Assistant Manager
Outdoor Pool Lifeguard Wages
Outdoor Pool Cashier
Ouldoor Pool Concession Wages
Outdoor Pool Maintenance Wages
PayrollAccrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Workeis Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I.P.E.R.S.

253



73-16
73-17

Beach House
Chemical - Pool

5,000.00
14,500.00

18,000.00
0.00

54,570.00
4,000.00

350.00
1,350.00
1,000.00
3,920.00

75,000.00
86,000.00
40,000.00
58,000.00
30,000.00
18,590.00
5,000.00

75,000.00
52,000.00

5,000.00
25,000.00

0.00

Services and Charoes

101-2253423. Al-O',l
81-04
81-12
82-O',l
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
85-01
85-05
86-30
86-31
87-04
87-05
87-06
89-04
89-06
89- 14

89-15

Professional Services
Jr. Golf Transfer
Computer Services
Telephone
Membership Dues
Travel
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Utilities (Center & Ball field)
Utilities (Pool)
Maintenance & Repair (General)
Maintenance & Repair (Pool)
C.F. Schools' Facilities Rental
Vehicle l\raintenance
Beach House Reserve
Sales Tax
Operations (lndoor Pool)
Refunds
Credit Card Charge

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Coordinators
lnstructors
Community Program Personnel
PayrollAccrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term 0isability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
Unemployment
F,I,C,A.
IPERS

Office Supplies
Dues, Books & lvlagazines
Mileage
Classroom Supplies
Gallery Supplies
Products for Resale
Grounds Supplies
Volunteer/Services Supplies
Postage
Repair & Maintenance

Capital Outlav

101-2253-423. 92-01 Structures, lmprovements&Buildings

TOTAL RECREATION SERVICES DIVISION: 1,953,580.00

CULTURAL SERVICES

Personal Services

101 -2280-423 61-01
61-50
61-54
6'l -56
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
64-06
65-01
66-01

60,420.00
21 1,360.00

35,000.00
0.00

270.OO
990.00

4.620.00
190.00
190.00
240.00
600.00

0.00
22,050.00
27,210.00

Commodities

101-2280-423 71-01
72-11
72-25
72-70
72-71
72-72
72-73
72-7 4
72-99
73-01

2,000.00
500.00
100.00

7,500.00
4,000.00
2,000.00
3,000.00
2,500.00
2,000.00
'1,000.00

11

254



Professional Service Contracts
Printing and Publications
Computer Services
Exhibition fees
Promotions
Telephone
Dues & Memberships
Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodging)
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Utalities & Heating
Repair & Maintenance
Vehicle Maintenance
Public Art
Miscellaneous
Refunds
Credit Card Charges

CaDital Outla

101-2280-423. 92-01 Structures, lmprovements&Buildings
93-01 Equipment

TOTAL CULTURAL SERVICES:

Services and Charqes

101-2280423. 81-01
81-06
81-12
81-60
8'l-61
82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
85-01
86-01
87-05
88-21
89-01
89-14
89-15

Personal Services
'10't-6613-433.61-01

6',t-02
61_03

62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
64_06
65-01
66-01

12,000.00
6,000.00

13,220.00
3,500.00
6,000.00
2,500.00

750.00
1,800.00
1,000.00

950.00
'14,000.00

3,000.00
5,440.00

17,500.00
500.00
600.00

1,500.00

0.00
4,000.00

120,730.00
77,550.00

3,500.00
530.00

1,970.00
27,330.00

380.00
370.00
480.00

3,760.00
0.00

15,440.00
19,050.00

15,000.00

482,000.00

Commodities

101-6613-433.81-12
82-01
84-01
85-01
86-01
87-05

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Overtime
PayrollAccrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensalion lnsurance
Unemployment
F.t.c.A.
I,P.E,R.S,

Operating Supplies

Computer Services
Telephone
Operating lnsurance
Utilities
Repair & Maintenance
Vehicle Maintenance

101-6613-433.72-0'l

Services and Charqes

8,730.00
1,000.00

630.00
8,000.00
1,000.00

28,760.00

Capital Outlav
101-6613-433. 92-01 Structures, lmprove. & Buildings, Road lmprove., Signs

TOTAL CEMETERY SECTION:

12

1 .000.00

335.2'10.00

PUBLIC WORKS:

CEMETERY SECTION

255



ENGINEERING SERVICES DIVISION

GOLF SECTION

Personal Services

101-6623-423.61-01
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-O2
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-01

Commodities
10't-6623-423. 72-01

Services and Charoes

101-6623-423. 81-12
82-01
84-01
85-01
86-01
87-05

TOTAL GOLF SECTION

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
PayrollAccrual
Severance Accrual
Heallh lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
t.P.E.R.S.

operating Supplies

Computer Services
Telephone
Operating lnsurance
Utilities
Repair & Maintenance
Vehicle lvlaintenance

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-Time
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Workeas Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I.P,E.R,S.

Office Supplies
Photography
Books, magazines & periodicals
Tools
Uniforms
Survey
Printing & supplies
Mileage
Testing & Lab
Safety Supplies
Postage
Operating Equipment

0.00

1,950.00
1.750.00

140.00
10,000.00
5,000.00

22,490.00

2,000.00
200.00
800.00
400.00

1,000.00
4,500.00
1,000.00

200.00
200.00

1,800.00
1,600.00
5,500.00

41,330.00

Personal Services

10'1-6625-432.61-01
61-O2
61-03
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-01

860,640.00
32,070.00
30,000.00

3,800.00
14,030.00

133,640.00
2,370.00
2,650.00
3,460.00

12,520.00
70,590.00
87.090.00

Commodities

101 -6625-432 71-01
72-08
72-11
72-16

72-'t8
72-19
72-25
72-26
72-60
72-99
73-05

13

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

256



Services and Charoes

101-6625-432. g',t-12

8144
82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
86-01
86-25
86-29
87-05

Personal Services

101-6633-423.61-01
6',t-02
61-03
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
64-06
65-01
66-01

Capital Outlav

101-6625-432.93-01 Equipment

TOTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES DIVISION

PARK SECTION

Computer Services
USGS River Gauge
Telephone
Membership Dues
Travel
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Operating Equipment
Engineering & Architecture
Lab & Testing
Vehicle Maintenance

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensalion lnsurance
Unemployment lnsurance
F.r.c.A.
I.P.E,R,S.

General Office Supplies
Operating Supplies

Contracts
Computer Services
Telephone
l\/embership Dues
Travel
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Utilities
Repair & l\raintenance
Vehicle l\ilaintenance

Struclures, lmprovements & Buildings
Equipment

4'1,760.00
12,000.00
9,000.00
1,800.00
2,950.00
4,700.00
3,000.00
2,500.00

50,000.00
1,000.00

45,470.00

5,000.00

289,500.00
350,470.00

5,000.00
1,280.00
4,720.00

68,320.00
950.00
880.00

1,160.00
7,920.00

36.050.00
44.160.00
60.880.00

500.00
1 3'l ,41 0.00

125,000.00
15.000.00

14.000.00
35,550.00

3,850.00
450.00
720.O0

1,040.00
2,560.00

33.000.00
1 1,000.00

426.100.00

1 ,451 ,240 .00

Commodities

10'1-6633-423 71-O1
72-01

Services and Charqes

101-6633-423.81-01
8'l-12
82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
85-01
86-01
87-05

Capital Outlav
'10'1-6633-423.92-01

93-01

TOTAL PARK SECTION

14

1 ,671 ,470.00

257



PUBLIC BUITDINGS:

Personal Services
'10'l-6616-446.61-01

61-02
6'l -03
62-0'l
62-02
64-0't
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-01

Services and Charoes

101-6616-446.81-08
81-12
82-01
82-04
84-01
85-01
86-02
86-14
86-30
87-05

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Parttime
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I,P.E,R,S-

Operating Supplies
Uniforms
Building
Operating Equipment
Building Repair

Pest Control
Computer Services
Telephone
Radio
Operating lnsurance
Public Utility Services
Building & Grounds
Mechanical Equipment Servicing
Maintenance & Upkeep
Vehicle Maintenance

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Overtime
Partlime - POC/PSO Program
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Heallh lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
F.r.c.A.
I,P.E,R,S.

91,820.00
0.00

780.00
410.00

1,500.00
20,500.00

380.00
280.00
370.00

1,880.00
7,080.00
8,740.00

67,000.00
1,500.00
3,430.00

15,000.00
51,000.00

2,130.00
22,600.00

1,000.00
300.00

1.660.00
127,000.00
283,020.00

15,000.00
6,000.00
6,770.00

38,000.00

1,920,570.00
17 ,710.00
25,000.00

230,710.00
9,520.00

35,070.00
322,300.00

4,690.00
5,750.00
8,600.00

33,560.00
9,090.00

775,150.00

Commodities

101-6616-446.72-01
72-17
72-54
73-05
73_06

Capital Outlav

10'l-6616-446. 93-0'l Equipment

TOTAL PUBLIC BUILOINGS SECTION

PUBLIC SAFEry SERVICES:
FIRE DIVISION

Personal Services

101-451',|-414 61-01
61-O2
6'1-03
61-78
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
54-03
64-04
65-01
66-0'1

Commodities
101-4511-414.71-01 Office Supplies

15

3,500.00

258



72-02
72-04
72-07
72-08
72-09
72-',tO
72-11
72-19

72-23
72-77
72-7I
72-99
73-02
73-06
73-10

500.00
6,000.00
7,000.00

500.00
7,500.00
7,000.00
4,500.00
1,750.00

20,000.00
13,000.00

5,000.00
500.00

3,500.00
4,000.00
5,000.00
5,500.00

9'1,590.00
52,560.00

1 1 5, 't 80.00
19,630.00
10.400.00
15,500.00
19,000.00
6,580.00

22,000.00
3,500.00
9,000.00

1 1 1 ,410.00
25,000.00

Services and Charoes

101-451',t-414. 81-12
81-46
g',t-71

81-75
82-01
83-05
83-06
84-01
85-01
86-01
86-50
87-05
89-40

Personal Services

101-5521-415.61-01
61-02
6'r -03
61-05
61-70
61-77
61-78
62-0'l
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
65-01
66-01

Capital Outlav

101-4511-414.93-01

TOTAL FIRE DIVISION

POLICE DIVISION

Laundry
SCBA Supplies
EIVIS/Rescue Supplies
Camera/Photo
Equipment Repair
Fire Prevention
Dues, Books & lvlagazines
Printing
Firefi ghler Equipment Supplies
Radio Fees & MDC fees
Volunteer Recruiting & Supplies
Fire lnvestigations
Postage
Dormitory Furnishings
Building Repair
Headquarter Supplies

Computer Services
Emergency Managemenl Agency
Consolidated Dispatch
NIRG
Telephone
Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodging)
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Utilities & Heating
Repair & Maintenance
Service Conlract
Vehicle Maintenance
Uniform Allowance

Equipment

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part{ime
Overtime - Regular
Comm. Service Officers
Overtime - Holiday
Reserve-External
Reserve - Paid On-Call Program
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Lonq Term Oisability
F.r.c.A.
I.P.E.R.S.

3,892,280.00
61,080.00
56,000.00
91,750.00
14,000.00
14.000.00
67,050.00
'17,460.00

64,300.00
s27 ,740.00

10.300.00
3.330.00

15,780.00
't35.730.00

25.510.00

15,000.00

3,233,670.00

Office Supplies

16

6.500.00
Commodities

101-5521-415.71-O1

259



71-04
71-05
71-O7
72-0'l
72-08
72-11
72-19
72-20
72-21

72-24
72-29

72-34
72-99

Tickets
Advertising & Notices
Code Enforcement
Operating Supplies
Photo & ldentification
Magazines & Subscriptions
Printing
Officers' Equipment
Community Service Projects
Radio Fees & MDC fees
Ammunition
MIRT Equipment
Police Auxiliary Program
Community Srvc. Officer Program
Postage

Humane Society
After Hours Animal Control

Professional Services
Computer Services
Witness fees/Subpoenas
Contract Services
Consolidated Dispatch
Telephone
Dues & Memberships
Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodging)
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Utilities
Equipment Repairs
Weapon Maintenance
Vehicle Maintenance
Uniform Allowance
Buy lvloney

2,000.00
400.00

6,000.00
22,000,00
1 '1,000.00

2,500.00
3,750.00

40,000.00
3,500.00

30,000.00
26,000.00

3,500.00
6,000.00
2,500.00
2.400.00

100,000.00
2,000.00

4,000.00
216,540.00

2,500.00
2,500.00

230,350.00
22i00.00

3,000.00
25,000.00
40,000.00
'11,180.00

1,000.00
10,000.00

1,500.00
302,160.00

33,000.00
1,000.00

106,750.00

Services and Charqes

101-5521-425. 81-20
81-21

101-552'1-415.8'l-01
81-12
81_58

81-70
81-71
82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
85-01
86-05
86-06
87-05
89-40
89-43

Capital Outlav

101-5521-415. 93-01 Equipment

TOTAL POLICE DIVISION:

TOTAL GENERAL FUND:

6,279,240.00

26,805,760.00

17

260



Commodities
254-1088-431

OTHER FUNDS

CABLE TELEVISION FUNO

Personal Services
254-'1088-431 Salaries & Wages (Reg)

Part-time
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I.P,E.R.S.

Advertising
Operating Supplies
Repair & Maintenance Supplies

Computer Services
Legal Services
Telephone
Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodging)
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Repair & Maintenance
Vehicle Maintenance Fund
Community Programming

Structures, lmprovements & Buildings
Equipment

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-Time
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F,I-C,A,
I, P, E, R,S,

61-0'l
61-02
61-03
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
oo-u I

71-O5

72-01
73-01

204,780.00
36,500.00

1,000.00
910.00

3,340.00
51 ,910.00

720.00
630.00
820.00
730.00

18,470.00
22,780.00

200.00
9,000.00
3,000.00

Services and Charqes
254-1088-431 81-12

8'r -37
82-01
83-05
83-06
84-01
86-01
87-05
89-18

Capital Outlav
254-1088-431

16,630.00
5,000.00
1,300.00
1.500.00
1.000.00
5.930.00
5.000.00

1 1,730.00
35,000.00

92-01
93-01

180,000.00
215,000.00

27,530.00

352,890.00
31,620.00

210.00
'1,560.00

5,740.00
59,260.00

950.00
1,090.00
1,420.00
2,080.00

29,430.00
36,320.00

860,410.00

Transfers
254-1088-481. 50-01 General Fund Transfer

TOTAL CABLE TELEVISION FUND

DATA PROCESSING FUND

Personal Services
606-1078-441 61-01

61-02
61-03
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-O4
64-05
65-01
66-01

18

261



Services and Charoes
606-1078-441. 8'r-01

81-40
81-4'l
81-42
8'l -43
81-70
82-01
82-30
83-05
83-06
84-01
86-01
86-10

Personal Services
258-5531435.6'l-01

61-02
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-01

Caoital Outlav
606-1078-441.93-01 Equipment

TOTAL DATA PROCESSING FUND

PARKING FUND

Commodities
606-1078-441 71-0'l

72-01

Commodities
258-5531-435 71-01

71-04
72-01
72-17
72-99

Services and Charoes
258-5531-435.81-12

81-22
81-48
82-01
84-01
86-01
87-05

Office Supplies
Operating Supplies

Professional Services
Public lnformation Program: Currents
EGOV
CJIS Operations & System Expansion
Library Computer Services
Contract Services
Telephone
Fiber Optics
Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodging)
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Repair Maintenance
Software Support Agreements

7,500.00
3,500.00

1,000.00
32,500.00
30,000.00
25,000.00
35,000.00
30,000.00
6,000.00

53,600.00
1,500.00
6,000.00

10,430.00
30,000.00

178,500.00

216,330.00

't 6,310.00
112,040.00

70.00
270.00

5,060.00
70.00
60.00
70.00

1,530.00
9,820.00

12,120.00

1,189,430.00

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance
Health lnsurance Reimbursement
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I.P,E.R,S.

Office Supplies
Ticket Envelopes
Operating Supplies
Uniforms
Postage

Computer Services
Consultant - Parking Study
Contract Services
Telephone
Operating lnsurance
Repair & Maintenance
Vehicle Maintenance Fund

500.00
3,000.00
3,000.00

500.00
500.00

Structures, lmprovements & Buildings

8,670.00
75.000.00
50,000.00

650.00
2.250.O0

500.00
6.860.00

Capital Outlav
258-5531-435.92-0'1

't9

100,000.00

262



Transfers
258-5531-485. 50-01 Transfers to General Fund

VEHICLE REPLACEMENT FUND

Capital Outlav
685-6698-446.93-01 Equipment

TOTAL VEHICLE REPLACEIVIENT FUND

13,660.00

304,000.00

160,000.00
855,000.00
570,000.00
260,000.00
220,000.00
308,000.00
185,000.00
240,000.00

80,000.00
31,030.00

322.840.00
111,100.00
38,500.00
7,370.00

173,750.00
92.900.00
39,500.00

122,850.00
97,890.00

2.544,280.00

188,440.00
'12,000.00

925,290.00
67,780.00

507,160.00
1 15,250.00

1 ,199,680.00
175,100.00
26,400.00

422,510.00

304,000.00

6,460,010.00

200,440.00

OEBT SERVICE FUND
311-180',t468. 41-17

41-37
41_38
41-67
41-63
41-36
41-39
41-68
4't_40
42-'17
42-37
42-38
42-67
42_63
42_36
42-39
42-40
42_68
42_69

2009A Capital Loan Notes-TlF/Princ.
2012 Sewer Financing Principal
20'16 Sewer Bonds Principal
2016 GO Bonds
2009 Capital Loan Notes/Princ-
Sewer SRF Loan/Princ.
2018 Sewer Bonds
2018 GO Bonds
2018 Stormwater Bonds Principal
20094 Capital Loan Noles-TlF/lnter.
20'12 Sewer Financing lnterest
2016 Sewer Bonds lnterest
20'16 Go Bonds/lnlerest
2009 Capital Loan Notes/lnter.
Sewer SRF Loan/lnterest
201 8 Sewer Bonds/lnterest
2018 Stormwater Bonds lnterest
2018 Go Bonds/lnterest
2020 GO Bonds lnterest

Transfers to General Fund
Transfers to S.S.M.l.D. - downtown
Transfers to S.S.M.l.D. - college hill

311-1801-48'1. 50-00 TIFTransfers

HOSPITAL FUND

Services and Charqes

215-1230-421. 88-45
215-1230-421. 89-4s

Community Health Care Program
Farm Taxes

TOTAL HOSPITAL FUND

TRUST AND AGENCY FUND
292-5521-415. 53-01 PoliceRetirement
292-5521-415. 54-01 Police Work Comp
293-451'l-414. 53-02 FireRetirement
293-451'l-414. 54-02 Fire Work Comp

Transfers
724-OOO0-487
724-0000-487
724-0000-487

50-01
50-03
50-06

20

3,016,660.00

TOTAL PARKING FUNO:

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND:

TOTAL TRUST AND AGENCY FUND:

263



GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND FUND

Capital Outlav
437 -1220-431 Hudson Rd. Recreation Trail Phase lV

lnf rastructure Oversizing
Project Seeding

Bond Fees
Capitalized lnterest
Greenhill Road Extension
Union Rd. Trail Phase ll
Bunker Gear
Peet Tennis Court Renovalions
Olive St. Box Culvert
Clay Street Park Drainage
Sidewalk lnfill
Sidewalk Reconstruction Program
Center Street lmprovements
Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction
South Main St. Parking Lot
Lake Street Trail

98-67
98-80
98-69

16,000.00
50,000.00
25,000.00

1 ,251,200.00
10.000.00
10,000.00
35,000.00
67,500.00

200,000.00
120,000.00

3,748,330.00
175,000.00
30,000.00

4,200,000.00
700,000.00
650,000.00

33,000.00
140,000.00

2,697,500.00

11,370,030.00

438-1220-431 95-01
95-02
95-12
95-27
95-48
98-1 1

98-59
98-62
98-66
98-69
98-77
98-83
98-84
98-85

TOTAL GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND FUND

TIF BOND FUNO
430-1220431. 92-54

94-29
95-76
97-53
97-54
97-55
97-56
97-69
97-79
97-80
97-81
97-82
97-87
97-99
98-21

STREET REPAIR FUND

Capital Outlay
242-1240-431 92-44

92-46
92-59
92-51
92-53
92-84
95-16
92-66
92-67
92-69

2,175,000.00
2,175,000.00

100.000.00
100,000.00

2,410,800.00
0.00

2,000.00
0.00
0.00

400,000.00

Downtown Skeetscape
College Hill Maintenance & lmprovements
Downtown Maintenance & lmprovements
W. 22nd St Realignment & Expansion
Venture Way Street Extension
Gibson Property Development
Prairie Parkway Landscaping
Hwy. 58 lnteresection & Viking Rd. LT lmprovements
Ridgeway Ave. Reconstruction
North lndustrial Park lnsurance & l\/aintenance
lndustrial Park Land Acquisition
Downtown Brick Replacement
River Place Development
lrill Race
Comprehensive Plan & Zoning Code Updates

Streel Reconstruction
Slreet Resloration
Center Street Railroad Crossing
Seal Coat
West 1st St.
Cedar Heights Drive
University Avenue
Univ. Ave. Frontage Roads
West 20th St. Box Culvert
Walnut Street Bridge Updates

21

7,362,800.00

50,000.00
150,000.00
290,000.00
375,000.00

30,000.00
15,000.00

200,000.00
96,500.00
55,000.00
40,000.00

450,000.00
400,000.00

60,000.00
395,000.00

TOTAL TIF BOND FUND:

TOTAL STREET REPAIR FUND:

264



TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS:

FLOOD RESERVE FUND

405-1220431 . 98-77 Center Street lmprovements

TOTAL FLOOD RESERVE FUNDS:

COMMUNITY CENTER AND SENIOR SERVICES FUND

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Caoital Outlav
443-1220-431 50-01

94-90
98-03
98-04
98-35
98-40

Personal Services
262-1092423. 61-02

64-05
65-01
66-01

Commodities

Design/Construction/l nspection
Downtown TIF-SSMD Reimbursemenl
Code Enforcement, Property Clean-up, Condemnation
Property Acquisitions
Northern Cedar Falls Landscaping lmprovements
Public safety Building

Part-Time
Worker's Compensation
FICA
IPERS

office Supplies
Operating Supplies
Printing
Postage
Promotionai Materials

Computer Services
Telephone
lnsurance
Utilities
Repairs & lvlaintenance
Contract Rentals
Trips Buses

400,000.00
25,030.00
40,000.00
70,000.00
25,000.00

369,630.00

375,000.00

37,020.00
540.00

2,830.00
3,500.00

700.00
2,400.00

300.00
600.00
400.00

929,660.00

375,000.00

97,880.00

Services and Cha roes
262-1092-423 81-12

82-01
84-01
85-01
86-01
87 -01
89-08

262-1092423.71-01
72-0'.|
72-19
72_99
73-54

1,630.00
750.00
470.00

15,000.00
4,000.00
1,000.00

12,000.00

Capital Outlav
262-1092-423. 93-01 Equipment

Transfers
262-1092-483. 50-01 Transfer to General Fund

TOTAL COi/MUNITY CENTER & SENIOR SERVICES FUND

BLOCK GRANT FUND

Personal Services

500.00

14,240.00

4,261.00
1,640.00

'16.00

68.00

223-2224-432. 61-01
61-O2
62-01
62-02

22

Salaries & Wages (Reg)-PPM
Part-Time
Payroll AccrualPP[/
Severance Accrual-PPM

265



54-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-0'r
66-01

Commodities
223-2224-432 71-01

72-01
72-11
72-19

72-99

Services and Charoes
223-2224-432. 81-01

81-',t2
82-01
83-05
83-06
84-01
86-01

Personal Services
223-2234-432. 61-01

62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-01

Services and Charoes
223-2234-432. 89-50

Personal Services

2't7-2214-432. 61-0'.1

61-O2
61-03
62-0'l
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
54-04
64-05
65-01
66-01

Commodities

217-2214432.7',t-01

Health lnsurance Premiums-PPM
Health lnsurance Reimbursements-PPM
Life lnsurance-PPM
Long Term Disability-PPM
Workeis Compensation lnsurance-PPM
F.I.C.A,-PPM
I-P.E.R.S..PPM

Oftice Supplies
Operating Supplies
Books, Magazines & Dues
Printing
Mileage
Postage

Contracted Services
Computer Services
Telephone
Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodging)
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Equipment Mainlenance

Salaries & Wages
Payroll Accrual - HR
Severance Accrual - HR
Health lnsurance Premiums - HR
Health lnsurance Reimbursements - HR
Life lnsurance - HR
Long Term Disability - HR
Worker's Compensation lnsurance - HR
F.I,C,A - HR
I,P.E.R.S, - HR

Housing Rehabilitation

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-Time
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disabality
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
t.P.E.R.S.

687.00
0.00

'18.00

17.00
13.00

457 .00
550.00

100.00
150.00
100.00
100.00
50.00

150.00

80,000.00
6,1 10.00

300.00
1,000.00
1,000.00

950.00
160.00

3,169.00
14.00
52.00

683.00
10.00
12.00
13.00
7.00

243.00
300.00

154,670.00

66,380.00
3,920.00
1,040.00

290.00
't,080.00

14,340.00
200.00
210.00
270.00
150.00

5,460.00
6,740.00

257 .070.00

Office Supplies

23

300.00

TOTAL BLOCK GRANT FUND:

HOUSING VOUCHERS FUND

266



72-01
72-11
72-25
72-99

555-2230-432. 72-01
72_08
72-26
73-34

Services and Charqes

217-2214-432. 81-01
81-12
82-O1

83-05
83-06
84-01
89-61
89-63
89-65

Commodities

TOTAL HOUSING VOUCHERS FUND

STORM WATER FUND

Personal Services
555-2230-432. 61-0',1

61-02
61-03
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-0'l
66-0'1

Operating Supplies
Books, Magazines & Dues
Mileage
Postage

Professional Services
Computer Services
Telephone
Travel (Food/Mileage/Lodging)
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Housing Assistance - Occupied
Housing Assistance - Damages
Administrative Fee Due Others

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-Time
Overtime
Payroil Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I,P.E.R.S.

Operating Supplies
Photography Supplies
Testing & Labs
Slorm Sewers

440.00
700.00
100.00

1,500.00

4,500.00
38,530.00

700.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
4,140.00

1,173,000.00
8,000.00
2,500.00

'170,680.00

2,000.00
3,000.00

760.00
2,780.00

33,780.00
610.00
530.00
680.00

4,670.00
13,290.00
16,390.00

2,000.00
300.00

2,000.00
22,000.00

30,030.00
7,800.00
1,500.00
4,900.00
'1,000.00

't,500.00

6,060.00
5,000.00

25,000.00
5,000.00

57,900.00

s85,000.00

1,336,490.00

Services and Charqes
555-2230-432. 81-12 ComputerServices

81-40 Publiclnformation
82-01 Telephone
83-04 Membership Dues
83-05 Travel
83-06 Education & Training
84-01 lnsurance
86-01 RepairMaintenance
86-20 Storm Sewers
86-26 ARC Map Modeling
86-34 Billing & Collecting

Caoital Outlav
555-2230-432. 92-01 Structures, lmprove. & Bldgs.

Transfers
555-2230-432. 50-01 Transfers to General Fund

TOTAL STORM WATER FUND;

24

'148,200.00

1 .154,360.00

267



VISITORS & TOURISM FUND

Personal Services
261-2291423. 61-01

61-02
62-0',|
62-02
64-01
6/,-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-0'l

Commodities
261-2291-423 71-O1

72-01
72-99
73-52
73-53
73-54
73-55
73-56

Services and Charqes
26't-2291-423 8't-12

82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
83-07
84-01
85-01
85-20
85-21
8s-50
85-5'l
85-52
88-43
88-47

Caoital Outlav
261-2291-423. 92-01

93-01

Capital Outlav
295-2253-423. 92-01
296-6623-423. 92-0',1

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premium
Health lnsurance Reimbursement
Life
Long Term Disability
Workeis Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I.P.E.R.S.

Office Supplies
Operating Supplies
Postage
Brochures and Publications
lnternet Design
Promotional ltems
Media
Research & Special Projects
Gift Shop

Computer Services
Telephone
Dues & Memberships
Travel
Education
Registration
lnsurance
Utilities
lnlernet Service
Copier Lease & Use
Community Awareness
Events, Bids, & Sponsorships
Grants
Comm. Betterment Grants
Economic Development Grants

Structures, lmprove. & Buildings
Equipment

Structures, lmprove. & Bldg-Soft ball
Structures, lmprove. & Bldg-Golf

121 ,310.00
99,650.00

540.00
1,980.00

20,500.00
290.00
370.00
490.00

3,240.00
16,900.00
20,860.00

1,000.00
1,000.00

10.000.00
20,500.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
66,800.00

2,500.00
7,000.00

23,030.00
2,700.00
3,000.00
4,000.00
2,000.00
3,000.00
7,320.00

12,000.00
3,000.00

250.00
5,000.00
5,000.00

60,330.00
28,730.00
67,030.00

48,880.00
2,200.00

4,600.00

15,000.00
176.000.00

Transfers
261-2291-483. 50-01 Transfers to General Fund

TOTAL VISITORS & TOURISM FUND

COIVIMUNITY DEVELOPIVIENT CAPITAL RESERVES FUND

25

697,000.00

268



Structures, lmprove. & Bldg-Rec. Ctr.
Structures, lmprove. & Bldg-Hearst Center

TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPI\iIENT CAPITAL RESERVES FUND

SEWER RENTAL FUND

O&MSEWERSECTION

297 -2253-423
298-2280-423

92-01
92-01

Commodities
552-6655-436.

Personal Services
552-6655-436.61-01

61-02
61-03
62-0'l
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-0'l
66-01

Office Supplies
Office Equipment Supplies
Operating Supplies
Tools
L,niforms
Printing
TV Equipment
Building
Flood Control
Safety Supplies
Postage
Operating Equipment
Building & Grounds
Sanitary Sewers
Barricades & Flashers
lowa One Call

Computer Services
Telephone
Membership Dues
Travel
Education
Operating lnsurance
Utilities
Repairs & Mainlenance
Office Equipment
Towels
Sanitary Sewers
Sanitary Sewers root control
Equipment
Vehicle Maintenance Fund

828,000.00
10,000.00

210,420.00
24,700.00

1,000.00
930.00

3,430.00
54,660.00

760.00
650.00
840.00

7,590.00
17,990.00
22,190.00

1,029,000.00

71-01
71-06
72-01
72-',t6
72-17
72-19
72-53
72-54
72-56
72-60
72-99
73-05
73-06
73-13
73-',t9
73-27

200.00
200.00

3,000.00
1,000.00

800.00
100.00

14,000.00
2,500.00
2,000.00
3,000.00

200.00
6.000.00
6,000.00

25,000.00
1,200.00
4,000.00

Services and Charoes
552-6655-436.8'l-'12

82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
85-01
86-01
86-09
86-12
86-13
86-18
87-03
87-05

27 ,970.00
2,500.00

600.00
500.00

1,500.00
8,070.00

170,000.00
3,000.00

200.00
500.00

25,000.00
25,000.00

4,000.00
21 ,460.00

26

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part{ime
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
t.P.E.R.S.

269



Capital Outlav
552-6655-436. 92-01 Structures, lmprovements & Buildings

Transfers
552-6655<86. 50-01 Transfers to General Fund

TOTAL O & IV SEWER SECTION

WATER RECLAIVIATION

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-Time
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I.P.E-R.S.

Personal Services
552-6665-436. 61-01

6't-02
61-03
62-01
62-02
64-0'1
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
65-01
66-01

642,220.00
43,880.00
15,000.00
2,830.00

10,450.00
132,690.00

2,110.00
'1,980.00

2,560.00
12,090.00
52,390.00
64,640.00

975,000.00

7,390.00

1,687,050.00

Commodities
552-6665-436.71-01

71-06
72_05
72-',t1
72-'.t6
72-'.t7
72-19
72_26

72-60
72-67
72-99
73-05
73-06
73-36

500.00
300.00

2,000.00
500.00

2,000.00
1,500.00

500.00
16,000.00
5,000.00
5,000.00

400.00
100,000.00

8,000.00
30,000.00

Office Supplies
Office Equipment Supplies
Fuel for Generator
Books, Magazines & Periodicals
Tools
Uniforms
Printing & Supplies
Testing & Lab
Safety Supplies
Odor Control
Postage
Operating Equipment
Building & Grounds
Supplies - Sanitary Lift Stations

Computer Services
Post Employment Physicals
Drug Testinq
Regionalization Study
Telephone
Radio
Membership Dues
Travel
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Public Utility Service
Repair & Maintenance
Office Equipment
Services/Towels

Services and Charqes
552-6665-436.81-12

81-51
81-52
81-59
82-0',|
82-04
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
85-0'1
86-01
86-09
86-12

57,020.00
't.100.00

1,000.00
70,000.00

2,000.00
'1,500.00

2.000.00
800.00

1.200.00
20,410.00

200,000.00
45,000.00

500.00
't 

, 100.00

27

270



Transfers
552-6665-486. 43-01 Transfers to Debt Service

50-01 Transfers to General Fund

TOTAL WATER RECLAMATION

TOTAL SEWER RENTAL FUND

SEWER REVENUE BOND FUND

Capital Outlav
545-6655-436. 96-84 PlantDigesterRehabilitation

TOTAL SEWER REVENUE BOND FUND

86-29
86-33
86-34
87-03
87-05
89-04
89-09
89-14
89-81

Caoital Outlav
552-6665-436. 92-01

93-01

Services/Lab & Testing
Services/Sludge Removal
Services/Billing & Collecting
Rental Equipment
Vehicle lvlaintenance Fund
Sales Tax
Farm Lease
Sewer Refunds
Cafeteria & Benefits Plan

Structures, lmprove. & Bldgs.
Equipment

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
F.t.c.A.
I.P.E,R,S.

Office Supplies
Office Equipment Supplies
Operating Supplies
Books
Printing & Supplies
Safety Supplies
Postaqe

12,000.00
20,000.00
57,900.00

2,000.00
107,250.00
54,000.00

121,000.00
4,000.00
4,000.00

50,000.00
530,000.00

2,618.590.00
114,s30.00

1,600,000.00

251,680.00
35,020.00

1,110.00
4,100.00

29,640.00
480.00
760.00

1 ,0'10.00
600.00

21,550.00
27,O70.00

1,000.00
500.00
500.00
500.00
500.00
100.00

1,000.00

5,253,440.00

6,940,490.00

1,600,000.00

REFUSE FUND

ADMINISTRATION

Personal Services
551-6675-436 61-01

61-02
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-O2
64-03
64-O4
64-05
65-01
66-01

71-01
71-06
72-01
72-11
72-19
72-60
72-99

Commodities
551-6675-436

28

271



Services and Charoes
55'1-6675-436.81-12

82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
86-01
86-09
87-05

TOTAL ADIUINISTRATION

O&MREFUSESECTION

Computer Services
Telephone
Membership Dues
Travel
Education
Operating lnsurance
Repair & Maintenance
Offi ce Equipment Maintenance
Vehicle Maintenance Fund

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
Unemployment
F.t.c.A.
I,P.E.R.S.

Office Supplies
Advertising
OfIlce Equipment Supplies
Operating Supplies
Books, Magazines & Periodicals
Tools
Uniforms
Printing & Supplies
Building
Flood Control
Safety Supplies
Automated Carts
Dumpster Replacements
Postage
Repair & lvlaintenance Supplies
Operating Equipment
Building & Grounds

Computer Services
Post Employment Physicals
Drug Testing
Telephone
Membership Dues
Travel
Education

1'1,110.00
2,500.00

200.00
250.00
350.00

6,190.00
500.00
750.00

7.350.00

1,190.00
1,570.00

590.00
4,500.00

250.00
570.00

2,500.00
1,670.00
7,130.00
1,900.00
4,200.00

49,850.00
6,000.00
'1,570.00

4,000.00
11,000.00

3,350.00

406,320.00

Personal Services
551-6685-436. 61-01

61-02
61-03
62-01
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
64-06
65-01
66-01

372.020.O0
257,900.00

11,330.00
2,210.00
6,060.00

95,650.00
1.330.00
1,150.00
'1,490.00

22,520.00
1,300.00

47.410.00
58,500.00

Commodities
551-6685-436 71-01

71-05
71-06
72-01
72-11
72-',t6

72-',t7
72-19
72-54
72-56
72-60
72-64
72-66
72-99
73-01
73-05
73-06

Services and Charqes
551-6685-436.81-12

81-51
81-52
82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06

29

61,580.00
600.00

2,000.00
1,600.00

400.00
760.00
500.00

272



Transfers
551-6685-486. 50-01 Transfers to General Fund

TOTAL O & M REFUSE SECTION

TOTAL REFUSE FUND

STREET CONSTRUCTION FUND

O&MSTREETSECTION

Personal Services

206-6637-436

84-01
85-01
86-01
86-09
86-12
86-34
86-3s
86-36
86-37
87-O2

87-03
87-05
89-04
89-81

551-6685{26.81-20

Capital Outlav
55t-6685-436. 92-01
551-6685-436. 93-01

61-01
61-02
61-03
62-0'l
62-02
64-01
64-02
64-03
64-04
64-05
64-06
65-01
66-01

Commodities

206-6637-436 7't-01
71-06
72-11
72-16
72-17
72-19
72-54
72-56
72-57

Operating lnsurance
Utilities & Heating
Operating Equipment
Office Equipment
Towels
Billing & Collecting
Services/Scales
Transfer Station Maintenance
Refuse Cart Tracking Sofh^rarelElect
Material Disposal/Handling
Equipment Rental
Vehicle Maintenance Fund
Sales Tax
Cafeteria & Benetits Plan
Disposal of Dead Animals

Structures, lmprov., Buildings
Equipment

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance
Unemployment
FICA
I.P-E.R.S.

Office Supplies
Office Equipment Supplies
Books, Magazines & Periodicals
Tools
Uniforms
Printing & Supplies
Building
Flood Conlrol
lce Control

18,790.00
48,000.00

1,600.00
300.00
300.00

62.900.00
7,000.00

15,000.00
3,000.00

617,000.00
2,000.00

343,880.00
3,000.00
4,000.00
5,000.00

125,000.00
420,000.00

146,710.00

978,780.00
94,180.00
20,450.00

5,570.00
15,950.00

209,800.00
3.420.00
3.020.00
3,920.00

38,930.00
1 1,600.00
82,080.00

101,280.00

2,871,630.00

3,277,950.00

s30.00
280.00
470.00

3,100.00
3,590.00

190.00
2,380.00
5,700.00

270,000.00

30

273



72-58
72-60
72-6',|
73-05
73-06
73-19
73-28
73-30
73-32
73-35

Services and Charoes

206-6637-436

Caoital Outlay

206-6637-436

206-6647-436 61-01
61-02
61-03
62-0',|
62-O2
64-0'r
64-O2
64-03
64-04
64-05

81-',t2
8'l -'l 8
81-51
81-52
81-70
82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
85-0't
86-01
86-09
86-12
87-03
87-05
89-81

92-01
93-01

50-01 Transfers to General Fund
50-02 Transfers to Refuse Fund

Dust Control
Safety Supplies
Weather Scan Program
Operating Equipment
Building & Grounds
Barricades & Flashers
Sidewalks
Bridges
Streets
Brush/lVeed Control
Crack Sealing

Computer Services
INRCOG
Post Employment Physicals
Drug Testing
Contracted Services
Telephone
Membership Dues
Travel
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Utilities
Operating Supplies
Offi ce Equipment Maintenance
Towels
Equipment Renlal
Vehicle Maintenance Fund
Cafeteria & Benefits Plan

Structures, lmprovements & Buildings
Equipment

240.00
5,580.00
2,380.00

20,250.00
4,750.00
3,800.00
1,450.00

42,750.00
107,850.00

970.00
50,000.00

'107,980.00

6,540.00
3,000.00
3,000.00

10,000.00
2,400.00

530.00
1,260.00
3,040.00

37,030.00
42,000.00

4,650.00
550.00
100.00

4,000.00
548,220.00

4,000.00

694,700.00
560.000.00

't74.470.00

203,160.00

Transfers

206-6637-486

TOTAL O & M STREET SECTION:

TRAFFIC OPERATIONS DIVISION

Personal Services

4,505,870.00

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance

140,490.00
10,000.00

1,030.00
620.00

2,290.OO
25J20.O0

570.00
440.00
560.00

4,050.00

31

274



65-01
66-01

F.t.c.A.
I,P-E,R.S,

71-O'l
72-O1

72-11
72-16
72-17
72-19
72-60
72-62
72-63
73-12
73-19
73-20
73-25
73-26
73-39
73-41

Personal Services
685-6698-446. 61-0't

61-O2
61-03
62-0',|
62-02
64-01
64-O2
64-03
64-04
64-05

Office Supplies
Operating Supplies
Books, Magazines & Periodicals
Tools
Uniforms
Printing & Supplies
Safety Supplies
Paint
Cones
Traflic Signals
Banicades
Posts
Traffic Signs
Street Marker Signs
Handicap Parking Decals
Civil Defense Sirens

Salaries & Wages (Reg)
Part-time
Overtime
Payroll Accrual
Severance Accrual
Health lnsurance Premiums
Health lnsurance Reimbursements
Life lnsurance
Long Term Disability
Worker's Compensation lnsurance

10,750.00
13,260.00

170.00
12,000.00

170.00
1,500.00

590.00
90.00

1,080.00
19,500.00

190.00
18,500.00

760.00
1 1,000.00
16,000.00
5,000.00
2,380.00
4,000.00

17,1'10.00
1,000.00

100.00
250.00

'1,180.00

2,450.00
6,080.00
3,500.00
4,200.00
3,000.00
2,000.00

57,000.00
1,400.00

21,110.00

200.000.00

Services and Charoes

206-6647-436. 8',t-12
82-01
82-04
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
86-01
86-19
86-70
86-71
86-72
87_03

87-05

Computer Services
Telephone
Radio
Membership Dues
Travel
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Repairs & Maintenance
Traflic Signal Repair
Civil Oefense Sirens Repair
Paint Traffic Signal Poles
Contract Street Painting
Equipment Rental
Vehicle Maintenance Fund

Caoital Outlav

206-6647-436. 92-01 Struclures, lmprovements&Buildings

TOTAL TRAFFIC OPERATIONS DIVISION:

TOTAL STREET CONSTRUCTION FUND

VEHICLE IVIAINTENANCE FUND

622,490.00

5,128,360.00

236,670.00
112,390.00

5,150.00
1,050.00
3,860.00

45,620.00
760.00
730.00
950.00

4,630.00

Commodities

206-6647-436.

275



65-01
66-01

F.t.c.A.
I.P, E,R,S

26,700.00
32.950.00

9'10.00
480.00

'1,480.00

513,000.00
90.00
90.00

5,850.00
'1.060.00

280.00
3,580.00
't,650.00

400,000.00

48,610.00
1,500.00

500.00
1,900.00
1,500.00

71,590.00
'1,500.00

7,500.00
900.00

4,120.00
1,600.00

16,500.00
2,000.00
2,500.00

150,000.00

25,000.00
30,000.00

Commodities
685-6698-446 71-01

71-06
72-01
72-05
72-08
72-1',|
72-16
72-17
72-19
72-54
72-60
73-04

Services and Charqes
685-6698-446 81-12

82-01
83-04
83-05
83-06
84-01
86-01
86-04
86-09
86-1 I
86-12
86-15
87 -01
87-07
87-08

Office Supplies
Office Equipment Supplies
Operating Supplies
Gas, Oil & Diesel Fuel
Photography
Books, lvlagazines & Periodicals
Tools
Uniforms
Printing & Supplies
Building
Safety Supplies
Supplies^/ehicles

Computer Services
Telephone
Membership Dues
Travel
Education & Training
Operating lnsurance
Operating Equipment
Radio & Communications
Office Equipment
Vehicle Maintenance Software Updates
Towels
Tire Repairs
Equipment Rentals
Shop Equipment
Work by outside agency

Capital Outlav
685-6698-446. 93-0'l Equipment - Vehicle Locators
685-6698-446. 93-04 Equipment - Refurbish Vehicles
TOTAL VEHICLE MAINTENANCE FUND:

GRAND TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 2O1 9.2020:

SECTION 5. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force from and
after July 1, 2019.

ADOPTED

1 ,767,150.00

85,279,960.00

ATTEST
Jacqueline Danielsen, City CIerk

33

James P. Brown, Mayor

276



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
FY2O BUDGET

REVENUES

ACCOUNT
NUMBER

REVENUE
CATEGORY

101-0000-311.01-00

101-0000-312.00-00

101-4511-311.08-00

101-0000-321 .00-00
'101-0000-322.00-00

101-0000-344.04-00

101-0000-344.07-00

1 01-0000-371 .01-00

101-0000-382.01-02

101-0000-382.01-07

101-1 008-332.00-00

101-1 008-333.00-00

10'1-1008-334.00-00

101-1008-335.00-00

101-1028-361.01-00

101-1028-371 .02-00

101-1 199-311.03-00

101-1 199-3'1 1.04-00

10'1-1 199-343 0'1-00

101-1 199-343.02-00

101-1 199-343.04-00

101-"t 199-343.06-00

1 01-1 199-343.07-00

101-1199-343.07 -O2

101-1 1 99-343.07-04

101-2245-371-07-01

1 01-6625-350.01-00

1 01-6625-382.01-06

101-6625-330.00-00

101-2235-336.00-00

101-2235-337 .00-00

101-2235-357 .01-00
101-2235-357.02-00

1 01-2235-357.03-00

101-2245-357 .45-01

15,798,660

17,910

398,090

38,340

31,000

1,835,000

15,000

40,000

604,780

1,199,680

6,000

2,000

50,000

7,000

179,110

15,000

256,690

418,390

30,000

25,000

20,000

3,000

15,000

30,000

1,000

9,000

80,000

400,000
'15,000

850,000

25,000

90,000

90,000

95,000

30,000

BUDGET
AMOUNT

Tax-Property-General
Tax - Agricultural Land

Tax-Property-EMA
Utility Tax Replacement

Tax - Mobile Home

Transfer - Utilities (General)

UNI Loan Repayment

Miscellaneous Receipts

Transfer - Leg/Admin/Mgt

Transfer - Trust & Agency

Business Licenses

Cigarette Permits

Liquor Licenses

Pet Licenses

lnterest - General

Cafeteria Plan

Tax - Property - lnsurance

Tax-Property-Transit
Grants - Cultural Services

Grants - Library

Grants - Parks & Recreation

Grants - Fire

Grants - Police Operations

Grants - Police Officer

Grants - Fire Equipment

Economic Development

Subdivision lnspections

Engineering Design

Engineering Permits

Building Permits

[\iliscellaneous Permits

Electrical lnspections

lt/echanical I nspections

Plumbing Inspections

Planning & Zoning Fees

34

277



Tax-Property-Band
Tax - Hotel/Motel - Visitor/Tourism

Tax - Hotel/Motel - CV Soccer

Tax - Hotel/Motel - Tourism Administration

Tax - Hotel/Motel - Tourism Office

Tax - Hotel/Motel - Tr. MainUReserve

Tax - Hotel/Motel - Tourism Fund

Tax-Hotel/Motel-H LS Capital

Burial Permits

Cemetery Lot Sales

Marker Permits

lnterest - Cemetery

Golf Contract

Tax - Hotel/Motel - Park lmprovement

Paw Park Permits

Park Receipts

Rec. Center - Daily Admission

Recreation - Special Pop./Events

Rec. Center - Punch Tickets

Recreation - Youth Sports & Activities

Recreation - Adult Sports & Activities

Rec. Center - Racquetball

Recreation - Brochure Ads

Recreation - Staff Shirts

Recreation - Beach House/Rent

Rec. Center - Memberships

Recreation - Adult Exercise Program

Recreation - Child Care

Recreation - Drop Concessions

Recreation - Youth Golf

Recreation - Swim Program

Recreation - lndoor Pools

Recreation - Pool Rental

Recreation - Pool Season Passes

Recreation - Aquatic Center

Recreation - Pool Concessions

Library - Copy Machine

Library - County Tax

Library-Fines&Fees

35,000

437,500

10,000

25,000

21,880

43,750

78,750

30,620

70,000

45,000

5,000

8,430

30,000

78,750

4,000

8,000

36,000

16,000

1 1,000

128,000

65,000

1,000

400

800

22,800

286,500

85,000

6,000

9,500

7,000

44,000

11,000

29,000

187,000

189,000

90,000

7,000

21,000

30,000

35

101-2203-31 1.05-00

101-2203-323.01-00

101-2203-323.02-00
"t01-2203-323.08-00

101-2203-323.09-00

101-2203-323.10-00

101-2203-323.13-00

101-2203-323.15-00

101-6613-338.00-00

101-6613-356.51-00

101-6613-356.s2-00

101-6613-361 .02-00

1 01-6623-356.26-00
'1 01-6633-323.04-00

101-6633-339-00-00

1 01-6633-356.61-00

1 0't-2253-356.31-01

10't-2253-356.31-02

1 01-2253-356.31-03

1 01-2253-356.31-04

1 01-2253-356.31-05

101-2253-356.31-06

101-2253-356.31-07

101-2253-356.31-09

101-2253-356.31-10

101-2253-356.31-13

101-2253-356.31-14

101-2253-356.31-15

101-2253-356.31-19

101-2253-356.31-21

't01-2253-356.32-01

101-2253-356.32-02
't01-2253-356.32-03

101-2253-356.32-04

101-2253-356.32-05

101-2253-356.32-06

1 01-1060-356.71-00

101-1060-356.72-00

101-1060-356.73-00
278



101-1 060-356.74-00

101-1060-356.75-00

101-1060-356.79-01

101-1060-356.79-02

101-'1061-311.06-00

101-2280-323.03-00

101-2280-356.1 1-00

101-2280-356.12-00

101-2280-356.13-00

1 01-2280-356.15-00

101-2280-356.16-00

101-2280-373.04-00

101-4511-344.01-00

101-4511-344.02-00

101-4511-358.11-00

101-4511-358.12-00

101-4511-358.'13-00

101-5521-358.2'1-00

101-5521-372.01-00

101-5521-372 03-00

101-6616-37'1 .04-00

101-6616-382.01-01

Library - Lost & Paid Book

Library - Open Access Funds

Library - Friends/Endowment Reimburse

Library - Donations & Sponsorship

Tax-Property-Library
Tax - HoteliMotel - Cultural

Cultural - Art Sho

Cultural - Fees

Cultural - Membership

Cultural - Product Fees

Cultural - New Program Sponsors

Donations - Exhibit Sponsorship

Fire Protection - Rural

Fire Protection - UNI

Fire Receipts

Fire Commercial lnspections

Housing lnspection Min. Rental

Police Receipts

Fines & Forfeitures

Code Enforcement

Public Buildings

Transfer - Public Buildinqs lMaint.

2,500

10,000

60,000

40,000

527,890

148,750

50

30,000

5,000

5,000

1,000

1,000

56,300

580,000

15,000

40,000

100,000

35,000

125,000

5,000

5,000

77,940

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE

206-0000-300.00-00

206-0000-371-01-00

206-0000-342.04-00

Cash Carryover

lVliscellaneous

Road Use Tax 4

348,270

10,000

770,090

21 5-0000-300.00-00

215-0000-382-1 1-01

215-0000-361.0'1-00

215-0000-362.01-00

2 1 5-0000-362.02-00

Cash Carryover

Transfer - Sewer

lnterest lncome

Lease lncome

Sewer Farm Lease

(1,020,960)

640,000

413,100

31,800

136,500

217-0000-34'1.03-00 HousinqVouchers 1,336,490

223-0000-341 .01-00 Block Grant 257,070

242-0000-300.00-00

242-0000-324 00-00

242-0000-361 .0'1-00

Cash Carryover

Local Sales Tax

lnterest

2,202,800

5,100,000

60,000

254-0000-300 00-00

254-0000-359 01-01

254-0000-359.01-02

Cash Carryover

Cable Television Franchise Fees

Peg Fees

36

288,910

515,000

40,000

26,805,760

279



254-0000-36'1 .01-00

254-0000-371 .01-00

lnterest lncome

lt/iscellaneous

15,000

5001

258-0000-300.00-00

258-0000-353.01-00

258-0000-353.02-00

258-0000-353.03-00

258-0000-361 .01-00

Cash Carryover

Meter Collections

Parking Violations

Parking Permits

lnterest

232,510

7,000

160,000

20,000

3,000

261-0000-300

261-0000-323

261-0000-361

261-0000-362

261-0000-371

261-0000-371

261-0000-382

261-0000-382

00-00

0'1-00

0'1-00

10-00

01-00

09-00

61-01

61-02

140,870

437,500

2,000

5,000

6,000

5,000

21,880

78,750

Cash Carryover

Transfer - Hotel/Motel - Visitor

lnterest lncome

Building Rental Fees

M iscellaneous

Gift Shop Receipts

Building Reserve Transfer

Tourism Marketing Transfer

262-0000-362.04-00

262-0000-371 .01-00

262-0000-371.10-10

262-0000-382.62-01

Rental lncome - Sr Activity Ctr

Miscellaneous

Trips/Buses

General Fund Support

25,000

1,880

11,000

60,000

296-0000-355 20-00 Golf Course Cap ital lmprovements 176,000

297-0000-355.30-00 RecCenterFees 828,000

295-0000-355.40-00 SoftballFees 15,000

298-0000-355.10-00 CulturalCapitalFees 10,000

311-0000-311.11-00

31.1-0000-313 01-00

31 't -0000-382.1 1-01

Debt Service Tax - Property

Debt Service TIF - lndustrial Park

Debt Service Transfer

888,720

2,735,310

2,835,980

405-0000-300.00-00 CashCarryover 30,000

430-0000-300.00-00

430-0000-34'1 11-'10

430-0000-371 .01-00

430-0000-382.30-01

Cash Carryover

Federal/State Funding

lVliscellaneous lncome

TIF Transfer

8,117,090

581,750

126,910

2 544,280

437-0000-381 .00-00

438-0000-341 .05-00

438-0000-381 00-00

Bond Proceeds

Federal/State Funding

Bond Proceeds

91,000

1,314,500

1,292,000

00-00

02-00

05-00

07-00

0'1-00

37

443-0000-300

443-0000-313

443-0000-313
443-0000-313

443-0000-371

Cash Carryover

TIF Revenues - Downtown

TIF Revenues - Pinnacle Prairie

TIF Revenues - College Hill

lvliscellaneous lncome

(1,839,620)

204,280

0

0

0
280



443-0000-341 .05-00

443-0000-361 .01-00

443-0000-382-43-04

443-0000-344.04-00

Federali State Funding

lnterest lncome

Transfers

CFU Transfer

0

50,000

1,300,000

560,0001

545-0000-381.00-00 BondProceeds 1 600 000

55't -0000-300.00-00

551-0000-351 .01-00

551 -0000-35"1 .02-00

551-0000-351 .03-00

551-0000-361 .01-00

551-0000-371 .21-00

551-0000-371 .22-00

55't -0000-382.51-02

Cash Carryover

Refuse Collections

Transfer Station Fees

Yard Waste Fees

lnterest - Refuse

Refuse [t/liscellaneous

Recycling

Transfer - Street Construction

72,790

2,500,000

260,000

2,000

20,000

20,000

200,000

203,160

552-0000-300.00-00

552-0000-352.0'l-00

552-0000-352.02-00

552-0000-361 .01-00

552-0000-362.03-00

552-0000-371 .1 1-00

Cash Carryover

Sewer Rental - Collections

lndustrlal User Fees

lnterest - Sewer Rental

Farm Rental

Sewer Rental - Miscellaneous

290,490

6,500,000

15,000

15,000

115,000

5,000

555-0000-300.00-00

555-0000-350.02-01

555-0000-350.02-02

555-0000-361 .01-00

Cash Carryover

Storm Water Fees

Permit & Review Fees

lnterest

222,360

905,000

25,000

2 000

606-0000-300.00-00

606-0000-354.0 1-00

Cash Carryover

Data Processing

7,500

1,181,930

685-0000-354.03-00

685-0000-361 .01-00

685-0000-371 .51-00

Vehicle lvlaintenance Fees

I nterest-Vehicle Maintenance

Vehicle Maintenance - Miscellaneous

1,732,150

5,000

30,000

685-0000-354.02-00 VehicleRentalFees 304,000

292-0000-31 1 .21-00

292-0000-361 .01-00

Tax Property - Retirement & Pension

lnterest lncome

931,430

61,640

293-0000-31 1 .21-00

293-0000-361 .01-00

Tax Property - Retirement & Pension

lnterest lncome

566,370

56,040

724-0000-300-00-00

724-0000-311.22-00
724-0000-311.32-00

724-0000-311.31-00

Cash Carryover

Trust & Agency

S.S.fM.l.D - college hill

S.S.M.l.D - downtown

(400,000)
'l,599,680

26,400

175,100

TOTAL USER FUND REVENUE 58,474,200

TOTAL FY2O BUDGET REVENUE

38

85,279,960
281



Description Transfer From Transfer To Amount

Debt Service
Admin Allocation
Building lilaintenance
Admin Allocation
Building It/aintenance
Admin Allocation
TIF Transfers
Employee Benefits
SSIUID - Downtown
SSMID - College Hill
Engineering Designs
Admin Allocation
Building [Vlaintenance
Admin Allocation
Debt Service
Building Maintenance
Admin Allocation
Building Maintenance
Building Maintenance
Admin Allocatron
Building Maintenance
Admin Allocation
PW Admin Allocation

Data
Data
Data
Data
Data
Data

General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Cable Fund
Cable Fund
Parking Fund
Debt Service Fund
Trust & Agency Fund
Trust & Agency Fund
Trust & Agency Fund
Capital Projects
Senior Services & Community Center
Senior Services & Community Center
Storm Water Fund
Storm Water Fund
Sewer Fund
Sewer Fund
V&T Fund
Refuse Fund
Refuse Fund
Street Construction Fund
Street Construction Fund
Street Construction Fund

Debt Service Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
TIF Fund
General Fund
SSMID Fund
SSMID Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Debt Service Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Refuse Fund

97,890.00
1 '12,360,00

38,530.00
25,620.00

1 ,910.00
13,660.00

2,544,280.00
1 ,'1 99,680.00

175,100.00
26,400.00

400,000.00
3,510.00

10,730.00
28,700.00

1 19,500.00
7,390.00

'1 14,530.00
4,600.00
7,390.00

139,320.00
7,390.00

167,080.00
203,160.00

Processing Transfer
Processing Transfer
Processing Transfer
Processing Transfer
Processing Transfer
Processing Transfer

Fund
Fund
Fund
Fu nd

Fu nd

Fu nd

725,930.00
'16,630.00

6,1 10.00
38,530.00
30,030.00
23,030.00

Data
Data
Data
Data
Data
Data

Processing
Processing
Processing
Processing
Processing
Processing

General
Cable Fund
Block Grant Fund
Housing Assistance Fund
Storm Water Fund
V&T Fund

282



Description Transfer From Transfer To Amou nt

Data Processing Transfer
Data Processing Transfer
Data Processing Transfer
Data Processing Transfer
Data Processing Transfer
Data Processing Transfer
Data Processing Transfer
Data Processing Transfer
Data Processing Transfer

Senior Services & Communrty Center
Parking Fund
Refuse Fund
Refuse Fund
Sewer Fund
Sewer Fund
Street Construction Fund
Street Constructron Fund
Vehicle Maintenance Fund

General Fund
Refuse Fund
Sewer Fund
Street Construction Fund

Data
Data
Data
Data
Data
Data
Data
Data
Data

Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund

1,630.00
8,670.00

11,110.00
61,580.00
27,970.OO

57,020.00
107,980.00

17,110.00
48,610.00

Processing
Processing
Processing
Processing
Processing
Processing
Processing
Processing
Processing

lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer

lnsurance
lnsu rance
lnsu ra nce
lnsu rance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
Insurance
lnsurance
lnsurance
lnsurance

Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund

301,040.00
5,930.00

'10,430.00

950.00
4,140.00
6,060.00
7,320.00

470.00
2,250.O0
6,190.00

18,790.00
8,070,00

20,410.O0
37,030.00

6,080.00
7'l ,590.00

1,003,190.00
351,230.00
128,710.O0
569,330.00

Vehicle Maintenance Transfer
Vehicle Maintenance Transfer
Vehicle Maintenance Transfer
Vehicle Maintenance Transfer

General Fund
Cable Fund
Data Processing Fund
Block Grant Fund
Housing Assistance Fund
Storm Water Fund
V&T Fund
Senior Services & Community Center
Parking Fund
Refuse Fund
Refuse Fund
Sewer Fund
Sewer Fund
Street Construction Fund
Street Construction Fund
Vehicle Maintenance Fund

Vehicle Maintenance Fund
Vehicle Maintenance Fund
Vehicle Maintenance Fund
Vehicle Maintenance Fund

283



Description Transfer From Transfer To Amou nt

Vehicle Maintenance Transfer
Vehicle Maintenance Transfer

General Fund Support
One-Time Capital Project
Debt Service
lnternal Financing
lnternal Financing
Building Loan Repayment
Equipment Reserve
Trail Maintenance Reserve
Tourism lvlarketing Fund
HLS Capital Project
Farm Lease

Cable Fund
Parking Fund

General Fund
General Fund
Sewer Fund
Sewer Fund
Sewer Fund
V&T Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Sewer Fund

Vehicle Maintenance Fund
Vehicle lvlaintenance Fund

Senior Services & Comm. Cntr. Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Debt Service Fund
Health Trust Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Capital Projects Fund
V&T Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Health Trust Fund

11,730.00
6,860.00

60,000.00
1,300,000.00
1,440,750.00

884,580.00
293,260.00

31,880.00
9,000.00

43,750.00
78,750.00
30,620.00

121 ,000.00

284



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: June 7, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Audit Engagement Letter      

 
We are just about to begin the audit process for FY19.  We are in the second year of 
our extended contract with Eide Bailly, LLP to perform our audit engagement.  
 
At the beginning of the audit engagement each year, the auditors provide an 
engagement letter that they sign and the City signs that acknowledges that both parties 
understand the work that is to be performed.  Attached is that letter for your review and 
approval.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: June 7, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Depository Resolution 

 

We have received notification changing the name of University of Iowa Community 
Credit Union to GreenState Credit Union.  Attached please find an updated Depository 
Resolution with this change.   All other financial institutions will remain unchanged. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please telephone Finance & Business 
Operations Director Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108 or myself 268-5105.  Thank you. 
 
 
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Finance & Business Operations Director 
 

297



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION NAMING OFFICIAL DEPOSITORIES  
FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has considered 

approving the following list of financial institutions to be depositories of the City of Cedar 

Falls, in conformance with all applicable provisions of the Code of Iowa Chapter 12C 

(2013), and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve said list of financial institutions, 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

that the following list of financial institutions to be depositories of the City of Cedar Falls, is 

hereby approved and designated officials of the City of Cedar Falls are hereby authorized to 

deposit funds in amounts not to exceed the maximum approved for each respective financial 

institution as set forth below. 

  MAXIMUM MAXIMUM 
 LOCATION OF UNDER THIS UNDER PRIOR 
DEPOSITORY NAME HOME OFFICE RESOLUTION RESOLUTION 

 
BankIowa Waterloo $30,000,000 $30,000,000 
Collins Community Credit Union Cedar Rapids 40,000,000 40,000,000 
Community Bank & Trust Waterloo 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Farmers State Bank Waterloo 40,000,000 40,000,000 
First National Bank Cedar Falls 30,000,000 30,000,000 
First Security State Bank Evansdale 3,000,000 3,000,000 
Dupaco Community Credit Union Dubuque 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Great Western Bank Sioux Falls, SD 40,000,000 40,000,000  
GreenState Credit Union North Liberty 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Lincoln Savings Bank Reinbeck 30,000,000 30,000,000 
MidWestOne Bank Iowa City 30,000,000 30,000,000 
NXT Bank Central City  15,000,000 15,000,000 
Regions Bank Birmingham, AL 30,000,000 30,000,000 
U.S. Bank N.A. Des Moines 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Veridian Credit Union Waterloo 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Wells Fargo Bank Des Moines 50,000,000 50,000,000 
 

ADOPTED this 17
th
 day of June, 2019. 

                                                                                                         
______________________________ 

                                                                                        James P. Brown, Mayor 
           ATTEST: 
 
 

 ____________________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

298



299



300



301



302



303



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Paul Kockler, Accountant 

 DATE:  June 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: FY20 Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield Health Plan                                            
  Administrative Services Agreement 
 

Attached for your approval is the health plan Administrative Services Agreement for 
FY20 with Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield.   If you have questions regarding the 
attached, please contact me at 268-5101 or Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108. 
 
Attachment 
 

304



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Agreement Effective Date:  July 1, 2019 
 
Form Number: IA WBCBSSD LG SF – Custom 05/22/2019 Version: 10/18 
 

 
 
 

A D M I N I S T R A T I V E  S E R V I C E S  A G R E E M E N T  
 
 
 
 
 

WELLMARK BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD 
 
 

and 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
 
 
 

305



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 1 Version: 10/18 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into effective as of the first day of July, 2019 ("Effective Date"), by and between Wellmark of 
South Dakota, Inc., doing business as Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota, an 
insurance company authorized to administer self-funded group health plans in Iowa,  (herein 
“Wellmark”), and City of Cedar Falls, an Iowa public entity with its principal business location in 
Iowa (herein “Account”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
1. Account is the plan sponsor and plan administrator of a self-funded group health plan 

within the meaning of and in accordance with applicable federal or state law for its common 
law employees and other eligible individuals and this Agreement is issued to Account as 
the "group policyholder". 

 
2. The group health plan is sponsored, funded and designed by Account. Account wishes to 

enter into a financial arrangement with Wellmark under which Account is solely 
responsible for the Claims Paid for Covered Services provided to its Members. Wellmark 
does not assume any financial risk or obligation with respect to the Claims Paid for 
Covered Services provided to Members of the Plan. 

 
3. Account desires that Wellmark provide administrative services for its self-funded group 

health plan and Wellmark agrees to provide such services subject to the terms and 
conditions set forth herein. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1 
AGREEMENT DEFINITIONS 

 
1.1 “Accountable Care Organization” or “ACO” means a group of health care providers who 

agree to deliver coordinated care and meet performance benchmarks for quality and 
affordability to manage the total cost of care for their member populations. 

 
1.2 “Administrative Fee” means the amount per Plan Member that Wellmark charges the 

Account for Administrative Services and which includes allocations for Wellmark’s cost of 
administering the Plan, general operating costs, and profit margin. The monthly 
Administrative Fee is shown on Exhibit “A”, Administrative Fees, Network Access Fees, 
Other Fees, attached to this Agreement and incorporated by this reference. 

 
1.3 “Administrative Services” means those services to be performed by Wellmark for 

Account or for the Plan under this Agreement, as specifically described in Article 3 of this 
Agreement. Administrative Services expressly exclude any services for the administration 
of continuation health coverage under the plan pursuant to COBRA or similar applicable 
law, except as may be specified in a COBRA Administrative Services Agreement or 
Addendum. 

 

306



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 2 Version: 10/18 

1.4 “Affordable Care Act” or “ACA” means the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, 
enacted March 23, 2010, and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act, as 
amended, (collectively, “ACA”), including implementing regulations. 

 
1.5 “Agreement” means this Administrative Services Agreement, including all Exhibits, 

Benefits Document(s), amendments, Plan Member enrollment form(s), and any COBRA 
Administrative Services Agreement or Addendum. This Agreement also incorporates by 
this reference the terms of the HIPAA Business Associate Agreement entered into 
between Wellmark and the Plan. 

 
1.6 “Amounts Not Covered” means the amounts that are the liability of the Member under 

the Plan. These include charges for services that are not covered by the Plan, charges for 
services that are determined to be not medically necessary, reductions in benefits for the 
Member's failure to follow the Plan's notification requirements, and charges for services 
that have reached a Plan maximum. Amounts Not Covered does not include amounts that 
are the responsibility of a health care provider in accordance with the terms of the 
provider’s services contract with Wellmark. 

 
1.7 “Benefits Document” means the written document(s) Account makes available to 

Members that describe and define the terms, benefits, and limitations of the Plan and may 
be titled Benefits Certificate, Coverage Manual, or something similar. Account may at its 
option incorporate the Benefits Document into its ERISA Summary Plan Description.  

 
1.8 “Care Coordinator Fee” means a fixed amount paid by a Host Blue to providers 

periodically for Care Coordination under a Value-Based Program. “Care Coordination” is 
organized, information-driven patient care activities intended to facilitate the appropriate 
responses to a Member’s health care needs across the continuum of care. 

 
1.9 “Claims Paid” means the dollar amount of Wellmark’s payment on behalf of the Account 

for Incurred Claims. 
 
1.10 “Condition Support” means services elected by the Account that may include 

identification of Members with specific conditions such as Asthma, Coronary Artery 
Disease, or Diabetes, and providing support to Members through coordinated 
interventions and communications to assist with Member's management of the condition. 

 
1.11 “COBRA” means the group health coverage continuation provisions of the Consolidated 

Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended, including implementing 
regulations and similar state or federal laws. 

 
1.12 “Confidential Information” means all non-public confidential or proprietary information, 

in any form, delivered or made available or otherwise accessed, collected, processed, 
stored, or transmitted (whether pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise) by one party or 
its affiliates, directors, officers, employees and agents (the “Disclosing Party”) to the 
other party, its affiliates, directors, officers, employees and agents (the “Receiving 
Party”). Confidential Information shall include, but not be limited to, employee, Plan 
Member, and Member information (including names, addresses and Social Security 
numbers), Protected Health Information, personally identifiable information, medical 
records, Plan claims data, payment data, and Wellmark Confidential Information. 
Confidential Information shall not include information which (a), at the time of disclosure, 
is available to the general public; (b) becomes at a later date available to the general public 

307



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 3 Version: 10/18 

through no fault of Receiving Party and then only after such later date; (c) Receiving Party 
can demonstrate was in its possession before receipt from Disclosing Party; (d) Receiving 
Party can demonstrate was independently developed; or (e) is disclosed to Receiving 
Party without restriction on disclosure by a third party who has the lawful right to disclose 
such information. 

 
1.13 “Covered Charges” means the dollar amount a health care provider bills a Member or 

Wellmark for Covered Services in accordance with the terms of the Benefits Document. 
 
1.14 “Covered Services” means the medically necessary health care services provided to a 

Member as described in and covered by the applicable Benefits Document. 
 
1.15 “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, 

including implementing regulations. 
 
1.16 “Global Payment/Total Cost of Care” means a payment methodology that is defined at 

the patient level and accounts for either all patient care or for a specific group of services 
delivered to the patient such as outpatient, physician, ancillary, hospital services, and 
prescription drugs. 

 
1.17 “Grandfathered Health Plan or Non-Grandfathered Health Plan” mean the same as 

such terms are used in the ACA. 
 
1.18 “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as 

amended, including implementing regulations. 
 
1.19 “Host Blue” means the local Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield plan or licensee in a 

geographic area outside of the Wellmark service area. 
 
1.20 “Incurred Claims” means claims for payment of health care services that are provided to 

Members pursuant to the Plan with a date of service during the Rating Period. 
 
1.21 “Incurred Date” means the date health care services are provided to Members. With 

regard to inpatient hospital or facility services, the date of the Member's admission to the 
facility is considered as the Incurred Date. 

 
1.22 “Maximum Allowable Fee” means a dollar amount Wellmark establishes using various 

methodologies for Covered Services and supplies. For medical services, this amount is 
developed from various sources, such as charges billed for the same service or supply by 
most health care providers within Iowa, economic indicators, or relative value indices 
developed or approved by Wellmark, and is based on the simplicity or complexity of the 
service provided. For medical services received outside of Iowa or South Dakota, the 
Maximum Allowable Fee is either determined in accordance with the section of this 
Agreement entitled Out-of-Area Services or is the amount as described in the preceding 
sentence. 

 
For all dental procedures covered under this Agreement, the fee schedule is developed 
based on Wellmark’s contracts with dentists, input from its dental consultants, and the 
charges billed for the same procedure by dentists in Iowa. 

 

308



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 4 Version: 10/18 

1.23 “Medical Management Services Enrollee” means a person, including a Plan Member’s 
spouse or eligible dependent children, eligible and enrolled to receive Medical 
Management Services under the Plan as determined by Account, but who is not otherwise 
enrolled in the Plan. 

 
1.24 “Medical Management Services” means educational and informational health and care 

management programs, or wellness services Wellmark may provide to Members designed 
to encourage Members’ good health and help them make better health care decisions. 
Medical Management Services are not clinical services. These services may include, but 
are not limited to, BeWell 24/7, pregnancy support, advanced care management, or other 
programs. 

 
1.25 “Member” means a person, including a Plan Member’s spouse or eligible dependent 

children, who is eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits under the terms of the Plan 
as determined and identified by Account. 

 
1.26 “Network Access Fee” means the amount charged to Account to gain the collective 

advantages of the network of providers with which Wellmark, a Host Blue, or any 
subcontractor of either, has contracted for the provision of Covered Services. The fee is a 
monthly amount as shown on Exhibit “A”, and may include funding for provider incentives. 
There shall be no Network Access Fee for dental benefits. A portion of the Network Access 
Fee may include an allocation for administrative expenses above the Administrative Fee. 

 
1.27 “Network Savings” means the amount saved due to payment arrangements between 

Wellmark or a Host Blue and health care providers. It is generally calculated as the 
difference between the Covered Charge and the Maximum Allowable Fee. This result is 
then added to any other reductions in the liability to a provider pursuant to a contract 
between Wellmark and the provider, including, but not limited to, reductions for failure to 
satisfy any notification requirements and medical necessity determinations. If the amount 
paid to a provider on any claim exceeds the Covered Charges, the Network Savings may 
be reflected as a negative dollar amount on Account’s bill. 

 
1.28 “Patient-Centered Medical Home” or “PCMH” means a model of care in which each 

patient has an ongoing relationship with a primary care physician who coordinates a team 
to take collective responsibility for patient care and, when appropriate, arranges for care 
with other qualified physicians. 

 
1.29 “Plan” means the group health plan or plans established, sponsored and maintained by 

Account, the terms of which are described in the applicable Benefits Document. 
 
1.30 “Plan Member” means a common law employee or other individual identified by Account 

as a person eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits under the Plan subject to the 
terms, conditions, and limitations described in the Plan documents and who is the 
applicant on a completed enrollment form that has been provided to and accepted by 
Wellmark. 

 
1.31 “Plan Year” means the year designated by the plan sponsor as the plan year in the plan 

document or as set forth on Exhibit “A”. 
 
1.32 “Protected Health Information” or “PHI” means the same as the term “protected health 

information” in 45 CFR §160.103. 

309



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 5 Version: 10/18 

 
1.33 “Provider Incentive” means an additional amount of compensation paid to a health care 

provider, based on the provider’s compliance with agreed-upon procedural and/or 
outcome measures for a particular population of covered persons. 

 
1.34 “Rating Period” means the period of time set forth on Exhibit “A” or the most recent 

revision to Exhibit “A”. 
 
1.35 “Shared Savings” means a payment mechanism in which the provider and payer share 

cost savings achieved against a target cost budget based upon agreed upon terms and 
may include downside risk. 

 
1.36 “Telehealth Services” means Covered Services provided to a Member during a telehealth 

visit, or virtual visit. A “telehealth visit” is an actual real time video interaction between a 
health care provider and a Member in the geographic area served by Wellmark when an 
evaluation and management like service is provided. 

 
1.37 “Value-Based Program” means an outcomes-based payment arrangement and/or a 

coordinated care model facilitated with one or more local providers that is evaluated 
against cost and quality metrics/factors and is reflected in provider payment. 

 
1.38 “Wellmark Confidential Information” means any information with respect to Wellmark’s 

systems, procedures, methodologies and practices used by Wellmark in connection with 
claims processing, claims payment or utilization management, together with the fees, 
terms, payment arrangements, discounts with providers, and related information, as well 
as any strategic and competitively sensitive information and trade secrets, policies, 
procedures, and processes of Wellmark, the Blue Cross Blue Shield Association and its 
licensees. 

 
1.38 “Wellness Services” means certain information and tools meant to help Members 

improve health, increase productivity and decrease absenteeism. These services may 
include an online wellness center and wellness assessment; paper wellness assessment; 
telephonic health coaching; wellness screenings (biometrics); tobacco cessation 
coaching; wellness challenges; health program referrals; or debit card redemption. 

 
1.40 “Well-Being Consulting” means consulting services generally comprised of assisting 

employers with creating well-being solutions or wellness programs at their worksites for 
their workforce. Services may include a workplace assessment; well-being communication 
strategy; well-being committee development; vending and cafeteria audit; employer 
incentive design; customized well-being dashboard and metrics; community based vendor 
selection; worksite policy and practice review; well-being certification/accreditation; or 
other services designed to enhance workforce well-being. 

 
 

ARTICLE 2 
RESPONSIBILITIES OF ACCOUNT 

 
2.1 Group Health Plan Compliance. Account is the plan administrator and plan sponsor of 

the Plan for purposes of this Agreement and applicable law, and is responsible for group 
health plan design, eligibility, and compliance. Account will exercise its responsibilities in 
the time required by law and has full responsibility for all of the following: 

310



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 6 Version: 10/18 

 
a. Maintaining the Plan, determining Plan design, and funding payment of Incurred 

Claims; 
 

b. Determining eligibility criteria for Members subject to certain Wellmark enrollment 
and underwriting guidelines, including the requirements for locations or Members 
located outside of Iowa; Account is responsible for enrolling and canceling 
individuals in the Plan in accordance with such criteria and agrees to terminate 
coverage promptly for ineligible individuals; 

 
c. Designating the Plan Year for the Plan; 

 
d. Complying with all applicable laws, reporting and disclosure requirements, 

including specifically the following: (i) preparing and furnishing Members with Plan 
documents or notices as may be required by law, including the summary of 
benefits and coverage (“SBC”), any notice of material modification, employer 
notice of the availability of coverage options under the health insurance 
marketplace, and applicable HIPAA notices relating to health coverage portability 
such as the Special Enrollment Notice. Account will also make available to 
Members on request the uniform glossary of insurance-related terms; (ii) 
complying with any applicable non-discrimination laws in the design and 
administration of the Plan; and (iii) furnishing all notices and fulfilling all 
requirements with regard to COBRA continuation coverage for the Plan, except to 
the extent any COBRA administration requirements have been expressly 
delegated to and agreed upon with Wellmark in a COBRA Administrative Services 
Agreement or Addendum;  

 
e. Reviewing and approving promptly templates or drafts of Benefits Document(s) 

reflecting the Plan design, eligibility and benefit information Account provides to 
Wellmark. Account is responsible for reviewing the draft Benefits Document(s) 
promptly, typically within thirty (30) days of receiving the draft document(s), and 
determining to Account’s satisfaction that the document(s) meet all of Account’s 
legal and business obligations and advising Wellmark of any necessary revisions 
or approval. The absence of Account’s express timely approval of any Benefits 
Document(s) provided by Wellmark will be considered Account’s approval that the 
draft documents are consistent with benefit information provided by Account, and 
Wellmark will administer the benefits in accordance with the proposed documents. 
Once in final form, Account will make the Benefits Document(s), and Provider 
directories, if applicable, available to Plan Members; 

 
f. Making final determinations regarding claims, claims internal appeals, or claims 

exceptions, except to the extent expressly delegated to, and accepted by, 
Wellmark in Sections 3.1 and 3.8 of this Agreement; 

 
g. Providing to Wellmark written notice of benefit selections, limitations, and 

exclusions, changes in the benefits at renewal, or material modifications at any 
time during the Rating Period. Account shall provide such notice(s) in the time and 
manner required by Wellmark to fulfill the issuance of SBCs, preparation of 
Benefits Document templates, or the issuance of other required notices within the 
time required by law; 

 

311



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 7 Version: 10/18 

h. If the coverage of any Plan Member or Member is terminated retroactively, Account 
represents that it either has not collected any premium contribution from the 
retroactively terminated Member, or has refunded any premium contribution to the 
retroactively terminated Member, for the period following the effective date of the 
termination; 

 
i. Payment of any state premium tax, use tax, or similar tax, or any similar benefit or 

Plan-related charge, tax, surcharge or assessment, however denominated, that 
may be assessed on the Plan or related to the administration of the Plan, including 
any penalties and interest payable with respect thereto; 

 
j. Compliance with any income and employment tax withholding, depositing, and 

reporting obligations (including state or federal income tax withholding, FICA tax 
withholding, employer, FUTA taxes, and Form W-2 wage reporting) applicable to 
rewards incentives or value-added benefits that may be provided under this 
employer-sponsored group health plan to Members covered under the Plan. 
Account is responsible for including the value of any such incentives or value-
added benefits as reported by Wellmark to Account in the applicable employees’ 
wages for federal or state income tax, employment tax, and Form W-2 reporting 
purposes; 

 
k. Account shall maintain a process for external review of final internal adverse 

benefit determinations as required by ACA, except to the extent expressly 
delegated to, and accepted by, Wellmark in this Agreement; and 

 
l. Calculating, reporting, and payment of any fees and assessments, however 

denominated, required for all group health plans under ACA. 
 
2.2 Enrollment Information; Social Security Number Reporting; Information 

Requirements. Account agrees to furnish Wellmark with reports, data, and information, 
including but not limited to, eligibility, enrollment information, physical home address, and 
Social Security number for each Member or Medical Management Services Enrollee, 
benefit selection or benefit changes for the Plan, claims history, and information necessary 
for the administration of the Plan. Account shall provide all such information in a time, 
form, format, and manner required by Wellmark and is responsible for the timeliness, 
integrity, retention, and accuracy of information and records provided to Wellmark. 
Wellmark shall be entitled to rely upon such information in determining any person’s rights 
to benefits under the Plan, in making required filings with state or federal government 
agencies, and in discharging its responsibilities under this Agreement. Account recognizes 
that its timely, accurate, and complete reporting of the information set forth in this section 
is necessary for Wellmark to perform its obligations under this Agreement and that should 
reporting be inaccurate, untimely, or incomplete, Wellmark shall be excused from the 
performance of the Administrative Services affected by such inaccuracy or delay. 

 
Account shall provide Wellmark with eligibility or enrollment information in a standard 
medium and layout using Wellmark’s proprietary format, the HIPAA ANSI 834 standard 
format, or an application such as BluesEnroll, unless the parties agree in writing to a non-
standard format or application. Account acknowledges that it may be responsible for 
additional fees if it uses a non-standard format or if Wellmark is required to perform a 
comparison study of the full eligibility file. 

 

312



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 8 Version: 10/18 

2.3 Account Representation regarding Eligibility; Notice of Persons Eligible for 
Coverage; Changes in Eligibility. Account represents to Wellmark that the terms of any 
eligibility criteria, conditions, and/or waiting period imposed under the Plan are, and shall 
be for so long as this Agreement is in effect, in compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations, including specifically, the prohibition on excessive waiting periods. Account 
shall enroll persons eligible for coverage in the Plan in advance of each person’s effective 
date of coverage and shall provide Wellmark with each person’s name, Plan selection, 
Social Security number, and other required identifying information. Account shall provide 
all initial enrollment information in advance of the Effective Date of this Agreement. As 
new persons become eligible, or as eligibility changes occur, including any special 
enrollment events that require a person to be offered coverage or changed to a different 
enrollment status such as COBRA, Account shall provide Wellmark with updated required 
information as such changes occur. Account shall provide Wellmark with enrollment 
updates no less often than weekly and in advance of the effective date of the change if 
possible. Account's delay in providing eligibility changes to Wellmark more than three (3) 
months following the effective date of the change shall delay the requested effective date 
of coverage for the person and may cause Incurred Claims not to be paid. 

 
2.4 Notice of Persons Terminated or No Longer Eligible for Coverage; Account’s 

Liability for Claims Paid. Account shall notify Wellmark of any person’s termination or 
ineligibility for coverage under the Plan in advance of the effective date of the change if 
possible, but in no event no later than three (3) months following the requested date of 
coverage termination. No requested coverage termination shall be effective any earlier 
than three (3) months prior to the date Wellmark receives the required notice from 
Account. If Incurred Claims prior to the date Wellmark is notified of the coverage 
termination have been paid and are not or cannot be recouped, Account shall be 
responsible for the Claims Paid, including all Claims Paid prior to the date Wellmark is 
notified of the coverage termination. 

 
2.5 Medicare Secondary Payer (“MSP”). Federal law mandates coordination of health care 

benefits in certain instances where a Member is covered under both a group health plan 
and Medicare. Proper coordination of benefits in this context depends on obtaining and 
maintaining accurate and timely information regarding such dual health coverage. 
Pursuant to contract and applicable law, Wellmark provides information to Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) regarding such dual health coverage for 
Members and Account’s enrollment on a quarterly or more frequent basis. 

 
Account is solely responsible for compliance with MSP laws and other requirements and 
shall gather and timely provide information to Wellmark regarding Account’s size and 
status and Employer Identification Number (“EIN”)(s), or concerning the Medicare 
enrollment of Members, Plan enrollment, and related information (including, without 
limitation, Member Social Security numbers), or such other information as requested by 
Wellmark for inclusion on the Confirmation of MSP form submissions and other 
disclosures. Wellmark shall use all such information provided by Account to properly 
coordinate benefits on behalf of Account with Medicare as required by law. In the event 
Account does not timely provide such information to Wellmark, Account shall be solely 
responsible for its non-compliance with MSP laws and other requirements, including, 
without limitation, any damages, losses, taxes, interest charges, and administrative 
penalties (including, without limitation, any civil money penalties) that may be assessed 
or otherwise result in connection therewith (including, without limitation, any claims by 

313



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 9 Version: 10/18 

Members, providers or other claimants), and mistaken payments to CMS on behalf of 
Medicare enrolled Members. 

 
2.6 Stop Loss Insurance Coverage. Account is solely responsible for the Claims Paid for 

Members of the Plan. Account may at its option separately purchase stop loss insurance 
coverage from Wellmark, Inc., which shall be reflected in a separate policy issued by 
Wellmark. If Account purchases stop loss insurance coverage from a carrier other than 
Wellmark, Account shall advise Wellmark of the terms of such coverage and Account shall 
be solely responsible for all reporting, submission of claims, payment of premiums, and 
any other obligation required by its stop loss policy with the other carrier. Upon request 
Wellmark will provide Account with standard stop loss reports necessary for Account to 
file stop loss insurance claims with its stop loss carrier. 

 
2.7 Outside Services Vendor(s) to the Plan. If Account arranges for health plan 

administration services for the Plan from vendor(s) other than Wellmark or a Wellmark-
contracted vendor, such as, for example, pharmacy benefits management services or 
telehealth management services, Account shall be responsible for compliance with laws, 
the accuracy and submission of reports, claims data reporting, payments, and for any 
other obligation required by its vendor agreements. If Account requires its vendor to submit 
claims for Covered Services to Wellmark, such vendor shall also enter into an agreement 
with Wellmark that requires vendor to comply with Wellmark’s claims procedures. If 
Account or the Plan requires coordination or health plan accumulations between its third 
party vendor's administration and the health plan administration provided by Wellmark, 
Account shall be responsible for providing Wellmark with all enrollment information and 
claims or payment data reasonably necessary for Wellmark to provide Administrative 
Services under this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 3 

WELLMARK’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
3.1 Determination of Claims; Administrative Services. During the Term of this Agreement 

and subject to Account’s payment to Wellmark, when due, of the charges for Claims Paid 
and other fees specified in this Agreement, Wellmark shall provide Administrative Services 
as specified in this section as follows: 

 
a. Wellmark shall provide Account with a written draft of Benefits Documents(s) with 

the plan design and Member eligibility criteria information determined by Account 
and communicated to Wellmark, for Account’s review and approval as required by 
Section 2.1(e), setting forth the benefits, terms and conditions of the Plan; 

 
b. Wellmark shall provide access to a network(s) of health care providers and shall 

make information about the network and network providers available to Members; 
 

c. Wellmark shall prepare, print, and deliver identification cards to Plan Members and 
to Medical Management Services Enrollees; 

 
d. Wellmark will perform its Administrative Services specified in this Agreement in 

compliance with applicable laws, including but not limited to, compliance with 
retention of records, and compliance with applicable provisions on non-
discrimination in health plan administration; 

314



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 10 Version: 10/18 

 
e. Wellmark shall make available to Account forms of ACA or HIPAA required notices, 

including the summary of benefits and coverage (“SBC”) and applicable HIPAA 
notices relating to health coverage portability such as the Special Enrollment 
Notice. Wellmark shall make available the uniform glossary of insurance-related 
terms; 

 
f. Subject to Section 6.1(c), Wellmark shall administer benefits and process Incurred 

Claims for health care services furnished Members in accordance with the terms, 
limitations and conditions set forth in the Plan, the Benefits Document(s), this 
Agreement, applicable laws and regulations, the terms of the applicable provider 
agreements, and the claims administration and medical policies of Wellmark, all of 
which may be revised from time to time. Processing of claims may include payment 
by Wellmark on behalf of Account; reporting of benefits to providers or Members, 
coordination of benefits, and may include monitoring, detection, and investigation 
of potentially wasteful, abusive or fraudulent Incurred Claims. Processing of claims 
may require, from time to time, and as Wellmark determines is necessary and 
appropriate, the adjustment of previously paid or denied claims resulting in either 
recovery of Claims Paid or additional payment of benefits. Adjustments to 
processed claims are generally not initiated by Wellmark more than eighteen (18) 
months after the Incurred Claim was first processed. If a Claim Paid adjustment 
results in a recovery of a prior payment, Wellmark shall credit Account for such 
adjustments to the extent of the amount recovered. Notwithstanding the preceding 
three sentences and except as provided in Sections 2.3 and 2.4 of this Agreement, 
Wellmark shall not be required to reprocess claims as a result of any changes 
made to information relating to a Member or the Member's benefits unless (i) in 
addition to submitting changes to Wellmark, Account expressly requests in writing 
that Wellmark reprocess specific Member claims; and (ii) such reprocessing does 
not extend beyond eighteen (18) months prior to the date Wellmark receives 
Account's request; 

 
g. Wellmark shall maintain a single-level internal appeal procedure for Members to 

appeal adverse benefit determinations in accordance with the requirements of the 
Plan and applicable law. Wellmark shall also maintain a procedure for processing 
external review requests of final internal adverse benefit determinations with 
appropriate independent review organizations (“IROs”), pursuant to the 
requirements of the Plan and applicable law. All fees and costs for external review 
billed by IROs will be billed to Account in the amounts billed by the IRO; and 

 
h. To the extent that Account has delegated discretionary authority to Wellmark, 

Wellmark shall exercise its discretion to make determinations in connection with 
the administration of this Agreement and the Plan including, without limitation, 
determinations regarding whether health care services are medically necessary in 
accordance with Plan terms or whether charges for health care services are 
reasonable. Wellmark shall make determinations that are not arbitrary or 
capricious and such determinations shall be final and conclusive to the extent 
permitted by this Agreement, the terms of the Benefits Document, any direction 
given by Account, and by law. 

 
3.2 Medical Management Services. Wellmark may, at its sole discretion, offer or arrange for 

various proprietary Medical Management Services to be available to Members or 

315



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 11 Version: 10/18 

purchased by Account for its Members. Such services that may be offered include those 
services, if any, specifically selected or purchased by Account for a fee as shown on 
Exhibit “A” attached to this Agreement. Medical Management Services and their content 
are proprietary to Wellmark or its vendors, and may not be duplicated, modified or used 
for the benefit of any third party. Account does not have any right, title or interest in or to 
the Medical Management Services or the intellectual property underlying such Medical 
Management Services. Wellmark reserves the right to change, replace, or discontinue 
Medical Management Services from time to time without notice or amendment of this 
Agreement. 

 
3.3 Condition Support, Wellness Services, and Well-Being Consulting Services. At the 

written direction of Account, Wellmark shall provide Condition Support, Wellness Services 
and/or Well-Being Consulting Services to Account and Members for the selected services 
and at the fees set forth on Exhibit “A”. Account is responsible for the design and 
implementation of its employer-sponsored wellness program and shall comply with all 
applicable laws in connection with such programs. 

 
3.4 Telehealth Services. Wellmark has offered to arrange for Telehealth Services for 

Members and Account has elected to accept the Telehealth Services as offered by 
Wellmark and as described in the Benefits Document. The Telehealth Services will be 
provided for no additional Administrative Fee, although Account shall be responsible for 
any and all Claims Paid for Telehealth Services. 

 
3.5 Value-Added Services; Identity Protection. Wellmark, at its sole discretion, may offer 

or arrange for value-added services or benefits for Account and its Members, including, 
for example, Member Identity Protection services from a third-party vendor. Identity 
Protection services are offered at no additional charge to Account or Members. Account 
may at its option accept or reject Identity Protection services for its Members. 

 
3.6 IRS Form 1095-C Reporting. At the written request of Account, Wellmark will provide 

certain coverage information for purposes of Account’s Form 1095-C reporting to the 
Internal Revenue Service. Wellmark does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of 
the information provided, and expressly disclaims any liability for any penalties or costs 
that may be incurred due to alleged or actual inaccuracy or incompleteness, including but 
not limited to information reporting or other penalties that may be imposed if such 
information is relied upon or used in conjunction with any tax or other regulatory filing. 
Wellmark does not provide federal or state legal or tax advice, and does not prepare or 
otherwise assist in preparing, in any way, any federal or state tax returns or reports on 
behalf of its customers, including but not limited to IRS Form 1095-C. Account assumes 
all liability in connection with the preparation of such documents and has the responsibility 
to consult with its own legal or tax advisors for information or assistance. 

 
3.7 Third Party Liability Recovery Services. Wellmark shall provide Account with 

subrogation and third-party liability recovery services for Claims Paid while this Agreement 
is in force, and for a period of twelve (12) months following termination of the Agreement 
for any such matter initiated prior to termination. Wellmark has no obligation to initiate 
subrogation recovery services after this Agreement is terminated. Following the twelve 
(12) month run-out period, Wellmark will forward any open recovery file information to 
Account. 

 

316



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 12 Version: 10/18 

 The nature and extent of efforts to pursue subrogation and third-party liability recovery are 
within the sole discretion of Wellmark. Such recovery services may include all steps 
necessary to recover Claims Paid that may be found to be the liability of a third party or 
other insurance carrier. The Account shall be responsible for all fees or costs, including 
the fees and costs of any third party utilized by Wellmark to perform third-party liability 
recovery services, incurred in the recovery process, with those costs and fees first paid 
from any funds recovered and the net amount only credited to Account’s Claims Paid 
amounts. Wellmark in most cases uses a third party vendor to perform third-party liability 
recovery services. Amounts recovered by the vendor will be subject to a service fee as 
set forth on Exhibit “A” to this Agreement. Account acknowledges that its stop loss carrier 
has priority of any recovery in the event the Claims Paid exceed the stop loss attachment 
or deductible level and there is insufficient recovery to reimburse the stop loss carrier and 
Account in full. Account shall accept any such recoveries as negotiated by Wellmark as 
payment in full and the determination of the recovery amount is within the sole discretion 
of Wellmark. 

 
In the event retention of counsel is necessary to pursue recovery, Account shall be 
responsible for all attorney's fees. Wellmark has sole discretion with regard to the choice 
of counsel to pursue third-party liability recovery. Wellmark may choose to allow a 
Member’s counsel to represent the Account’s recovery interest. However, if the fee 
charged for collection of the recovery interest by legal counsel retained by the Member 
exceeds the prevalent fees for such services, Wellmark shall not authorize pursuit or 
settlement of the claim by said Member’s attorney or payment of that attorney’s fee without 
Account’s written authorization. Further, if in the opinion of Wellmark, recovery of funds 
shall not offset the costs associated with such recovery, or recovery of the funds is not 
otherwise practicable, Wellmark shall inform the Account in writing of its opinion. 
Thereafter, unless the Account directs otherwise, Wellmark shall not further pursue the 
claim. In the event Account directs Wellmark to pursue Account’s interest notwithstanding 
Wellmark’s notice to Account of its opinion that the recovery shall not offset the involved 
costs, Account shall be responsible for all attorney’s fees and costs incurred by Wellmark 
to pursue recovery, including the reasonable cost of Wellmark’s staff time as determined 
by Wellmark.  

 
Wellmark does not guarantee the recovery of funds and nothing in this section or 
Agreement obligates Wellmark to participate in or initiate any third-party liability recovery 
efforts or litigation to recover Claims Paid. 

 
3.8 Discretionary Authority. Wellmark is delegated the authority to determine claims for 

benefits and to determine internal appeals of adverse benefit determinations of Members, 
provided such determinations are consistent with the terms of the Plan as provided by 
Account, this Agreement, the applicable Benefits Document, and applicable law, unless 
otherwise directed in writing by the Account. In making decisions regarding claims for 
benefits and appeals of denied claims, Wellmark shall have discretionary authority only to 
the limited extent necessary to construe and interpret the terms of the Plan and to 
determine whether a claim is properly payable under the Plan. Notwithstanding anything 
in this Agreement to the contrary, Account shall have full responsibility for Plan design, for 
making any and all determinations whether an individual has satisfied the Account's 
requirements to be an eligible Member, and for making any determination regarding an 
individual’s eligibility for continued coverage pursuant to COBRA. 

 

317



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 13 Version: 10/18 

ARTICLE 4 
BILLING AND PAYMENT 

 
4.1 Billing; Account’s Payment to Wellmark. Account authorizes Wellmark and Wellmark 

agrees to process Incurred Claims as received, subject to the limitations, conditions, and 
exclusions stated in the Benefits Document. 

 
Wellmark shall bill Account for Claims Paid, Network Access Fee, Administrative Fee, and 
other fees, based on the billing and payment method and fees set forth on Exhibit “A”, 
attached to this Agreement. Any adjustments in fees due to membership or eligibility 
changes shall be reflected on the billing for the month in which the membership or eligibility 
change is made. Adjustments to Network Access Fee, Administrative Fee, and other fees, 
billed on a per Plan Member or per Member basis, shall be limited to a period of three (3) 
months prior to the date Wellmark processes the Member eligibility change. Wellmark 
shall provide a bill to Account that shows the amounts due and, if applicable, the amounts 
of any weekly payments received by Wellmark and other credits during the preceding 
month. Account shall promptly pay Wellmark at Wellmark’s office, the total amount due, 
no later than the due date on the bill. Such payment may be made by wire transfer, 
electronic (ebilling) payment, or automatic funds withdrawal. If Account elects automatic 
funds withdrawal, it shall execute the necessary authorization. 

 
If Account elects to authorize automatic funds withdrawal from a deposit account, the 
automatic withdrawal will change to correspond with the applicable billing, including 
applicable taxes or fees. Account’s authorization for automatic funds withdrawal shall 
include authorization for automatic withdrawal of any changed amount unless Account 
calls or provides its bank with written notice not less than three (3) business days before 
a scheduled withdrawal to stop the payment. If Account calls its bank to stop payment, 
Account may be required to provide a written request within fourteen (14) days after the 
call. Account will be responsible for any fee assessed by its bank for stop-payment orders 
made by Account. 

 
4.2 Late Payments; Interest Charge. All payments from Account to Wellmark must be paid 

on time and when due in accordance with Section 4.1. If the Account fails to make 
payments in full when due, Wellmark may in its discretion do any or all of the following: 
impose interest or late fees; setoff late payments from other amounts that may be due to 
Account under the Agreement; stop the payment of all Incurred Claims for Members, 
regardless of the Incurred Date; require an alternative billing and payment method; or 
require an alternative financial arrangement. Payments not made when due shall include 
an interest charge on the outstanding amount from the due date until payment is made in 
full at the then current prime rate as published in the Midwest edition of The Wall Street 
Journal plus two percent (2%) per annum. The acceptance by Wellmark of any late 
payments or partial payments shall not constitute a waiver of any rights under this 
Agreement. If Account fails to make payments when due for two or more consecutive 
months, Wellmark may impose additional late fees of up to eighteen percent (18%) per 
annum. 

 
ARTICLE 5 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; REPORTING; EXAMINATION OF RECORDS 
 
5.1 Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information and Protected Health Information. 

The rights and responsibilities of the parties and permitted uses and disclosures with 

318



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 14 Version: 10/18 

respect to Protected Health Information shall be set forth in the separately executed 
Business Associate Agreement. If Account desires access to a Member’s mental health 
information, Account shall file an applicable statement with the Iowa Insurance Division or 
have its employees or agents sign a statement indicating awareness that Members’ 
mental health information shall not be used or disclosed, except in accordance with the 
provisions of Iowa Code Section 228.7. If Account utilizes third-party vendors to provide 
any administrative services to the Plan and directs Wellmark to provide or exchange any 
Confidential Information or PHI with such vendors, Account agrees to the following 
additional provisions: (a) Account represents it has the legally required business associate 
and data security agreements in place with such third-party vendors; and (b) Account 
agrees that third party must enter into a confidentiality and data use agreement with 
Wellmark, which identifies the purpose for which the Wellmark Confidential Information is 
disclosed, limits the use and disclosure of that data to the specific purpose stated in the 
data use agreement, and requires third party to return or remove the Wellmark 
Confidential Information from third-party’s systems or database when Account’s 
relationship with Wellmark terminates or when Account’s relationship with third-party 
vendor terminates. 

 
5.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. 

 
a. Subject to the terms of the Business Associate Agreement and Section 5.1 and as 

permitted by applicable law, the Receiving Party will: (i) not disclose Confidential 
Information to any third party that is not an agent, consultant or business associate 
to Wellmark without the written authorization of the Disclosing Party; (ii) restrict 
disclosure of Confidential Information only to those employees, agents or 
consultants who have a need to know the Confidential Information for purposes 
related to this Agreement or the administration of the Plan and who are bound by 
confidentiality terms substantially similar to those in this Agreement; (iii) use the 
same degree of care as for its own information of like importance, but at least use 
reasonable care, in safeguarding against disclosure of Confidential Information; 
and (iv) without unreasonable delay and in accordance with applicable law notify 
the Disclosing Party of any unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential 
Information and take reasonable steps to regain possession of the Confidential 
Information and prevent further unauthorized actions or other breach of this 
Agreement. 
 

b. If the Receiving Party is required to disclose Confidential Information pursuant to 
applicable law, statute, or regulation, or court order, for a purpose other than 
contemplated in this Agreement, the Receiving Party will give to the Disclosing 
Party prompt written notice of the request and a reasonable opportunity to object 
to such disclosure and seek a protective order or appropriate remedy. If, in the 
absence of a protective order, the Receiving Party determines, upon the advice of 
counsel, that it is required to disclose such information, it may disclose only 
Confidential Information specifically required and only to the extent compelled to 
do so. 
 

c. All Confidential Information remains the property of the Disclosing Party and will 
not be copied or reproduced without the express written permission of the 
Disclosing Party, except for copies that are necessary to fulfill the confidentiality 
obligations contained in this Agreement, to render the services under this 
Agreement, or as otherwise allowed under the Business Associate Agreement or 

319



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 15 Version: 10/18 

applicable law. A party may retain Confidential Information when obligated to do 
so as a matter of law, and may also retain any Protected Health Information as set 
forth in the Business Associate Agreement.  
 

d. Wellmark Confidential Information that is released by Wellmark to Account or to a 
third-party at Account’s request may only be used strictly for the purpose of claims 
administration or Account Servicing, which is defined as Account-specific reporting 
and analytics, benchmarking, development of benefit designs, Wellmark 
performance/experience, pre-sales/retention, and audits. Account, and/or third 
party, as recipients of Wellmark Confidential Information, are prohibited from 
reselling Wellmark Confidential Information. To the extent Wellmark Confidential 
Information is disclosed in an aggregated format to Account and/or its third party, 
Account and third party are prohibited from de-aggregating the data to identify 
Wellmark, the Account and/or individual Members. Wellmark Confidential 
Information disclosed to Account and/or third party shall be limited to the minimum 
necessary information to fulfill the purpose for which it is being disclosed. Wellmark 
Confidential Information shall not be comingled by Account or third party with data 
from other sources. Wellmark may audit the Account or third party to ensure 
compliance with the limitations on data use and disclosure that are set forth in this 
section. Account or third party shall return or securely destroy the Wellmark 
Confidential Information it receives upon conclusion of the purpose for which it was 
disclosed.  

 
5.3 Wellmark’s Right to Use Confidential Information. Wellmark shall have the right to de-

identify or remove direct identifiers from the Confidential Information so that it no longer 
constitutes Protected Health Information, and so that such Confidential Information is no 
longer identifiable with respect to Account, and to aggregate such de-identified 
Confidential Information for any purpose whatsoever; provided that such use is in 
accordance with all applicable laws, including but not limited to HIPAA. Such Confidential 
Information, after it is de-identified or limited pursuant to HIPAA, shall no longer be subject 
to Section 5.2 and shall thereafter be Wellmark’s property.  

 
5.4 Right to Examine Records; Audit. Wellmark or its authorized representative may at its 

own expense examine the financial, enrollment, and claims records of Account reasonably 
related to the administration of this Agreement, as reasonably often as Wellmark deems 
appropriate, to reconcile eligibility and enrollment information and records, to determine 
whether Account can make the payments required by this Agreement, or to determine 
payment of benefits under the Plan. Such examination shall be conducted during regular 
business hours, upon reasonable advance written notice. The examination period will be 
limited to information relating to the most recent twenty-four (24) months only. Upon 
completion of the examination, Wellmark shall share its examination findings with Account 
and conduct an exit conference with Account. Any third party conducting such audit on 
Wellmark's behalf must agree in writing to be bound by the terms and conditions of the 
Business Associate Agreement between Account and Wellmark. 

 
Account's third-party authorized representative or auditor may, at Account's own expense, 
examine Wellmark’s records reasonably and necessarily related to Wellmark’s discharge 
of its responsibilities under this Agreement no more frequently than once annually. 
Account shall provide Wellmark with written authorization specifying the Account or Plan 
information that Wellmark may disclose to the auditor and Account represents that it will 
have entered into a business associate agreement with its auditor prior to the date of 

320



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 16 Version: 10/18 

requesting disclosure of Confidential Information. The auditor must be acceptable to 
Wellmark, must not compete directly or indirectly with Wellmark, and must execute a non-
disclosure agreement with Wellmark prior to receiving any Protected Health Information 
or Wellmark Confidential Information. Such examination shall be conducted during regular 
business hours, upon advance written notice reasonable under the circumstances and 
shall include the following Wellmark records: claims records (but not including individually 
identifiable sensitive diagnosis information unless Account specifically authorizes such 
disclosure), third-party explanations of health care benefits, enrollment records, and 
coordination of benefits procedures. Any other audit or examination request must be 
coordinated with Wellmark. The examination period will be limited to information relating 
to the most recent twenty-four (24) months only, notwithstanding the period for claim 
adjustments as may be specified in Section 3.1. Upon completion of the examination, 
Account shall share its examination findings with Wellmark and conduct an exit conference 
with Wellmark. Audits conducted by auditors compensated on a contingency fee basis are 
not permitted by Wellmark as such compensation arrangements are not consistent with 
professional auditing standards. Such standards consider these compensation 
arrangements to impair the auditor's or consultant's independence and objectivity. Audit 
scope, methodology, and procedure under this Agreement will conform to generally 
accepted professional auditing standards, including statistically valid random sample (as 
applicable) or other acceptable audit technique as reasonably agreed to by Wellmark. 

 
5.5 Website Access and Reporting. Wellmark may provide Account while this Agreement is 

in force with secured access to Wellmark’s website, web-based applications, or other 
electronic databases with respect to the Plan and Members for the purpose of Plan 
administration and health care operations, reporting, billing, or for self-service. Web-based 
applications or databases with Member and Plan specific Confidential Information may be 
hosted or supported by third parties on Wellmark's behalf. If Account or a third party acting 
on Account's behalf accesses such websites or information, Account is subject to and 
agrees to all of the terms and conditions, including the confidentiality requirements of this 
Agreement, and security restrictions and user requirements as established by Wellmark 
with respect to such access, as such terms are set forth in a data use agreement and in 
the applicable Terms and Conditions posted at Wellmark's website (Wellmark.com). 

 
5.6 Survival. Any obligations of either party to the other under this Article of the Agreement 

survive any termination of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 6 
PROVIDER PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS; LAWSUIT RECOVERIES; REBATES; VALUE-

BASED PROGRAMS; DISCLOSURE OF COMPENSATION 
 
6.1 Provider Payment Arrangements. Wellmark will be responsible for negotiating and 

entering into separate payment arrangements with health care providers. Such provider 
payment arrangements and agreements shall apply to services by such providers for all 
Members entitled to benefits under plans insured or administered by Wellmark, including 
Members under this Plan. 

 

321



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 17 Version: 10/18 

Wellmark shall determine, in its sole discretion, the payment arrangements with health 
care providers including, without limitation, the Maximum Allowable Fees for Incurred 
Claims. Without limiting the foregoing, Wellmark may compensate providers pursuant to 
a variety of payment arrangements, including the following: 

 
a. Fee for service arrangements, including, without limitation, per diem and percent 

of charge arrangements; 
 

b. Fixed fee or other payment methodology that is based on pre-determined criteria; 
or 

 
c. Episode of care arrangements under which payment is based on a pre-established 

rate for a health care encounter, including, without limitation, a hospital stay or 
outpatient visit. In the event such an arrangement is utilized, consistent with the 
methodology established by Wellmark for such arrangement, Wellmark is not 
required to impose cost share responsibility on Members for each Covered Service 
Members receive. An episode of care arrangement payment may cover both 
Covered Services and non-Covered Services that are incidental to the Covered 
Services. 

 
6.2 Network Savings Allocations. Any Network Savings amounts allocated to the Account 

shall be reflected in the amount of Claims Paid. Based on Wellmark’s payment 
arrangements with health care providers, and in accordance with Section 6.1, the amount 
paid on an individual claim may be more or less than the Covered Charge minus any 
applicable Amounts Not Covered, deductible, copayment, and coinsurance amounts. If 
the amount paid to a provider on any claim exceeds the Covered Charge, the Network 
Savings is reflected as a negative dollar amount. Any Network Savings amounts allocated 
to Plan Members shall be reflected in the calculation of coinsurance, where applicable. 
The calculation of coinsurance depends on the type and location of the services provided 
and the contracting status of the health care provider. The calculation of coinsurance is 
further described in the applicable Benefits Document. 

 
6.3 Non-Contracting or Non-Network Providers. If the applicable Benefits Document 

provides benefits for Covered Services rendered by health care providers that have not 
contracted with Wellmark or another Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plan (“Non-Contracting 
Providers”), Members may be liable to Non-Contracting Providers for any difference 
between the Covered Charges and the Maximum Allowable Fee and Members are 
responsible for paying the provider in full. 

 
6.4 Lawsuit Recoveries. From time to time, Wellmark, Account, or Plan may receive notice 

of a pending or potential lawsuit being pursued by another entity (including, without 
limitation, a class action lawsuit) that seeks recovery of health care claims expenses on 
behalf of one or more group health plans or payers and that may include Wellmark, 
Account, or the Plan as a potential party or potential class member (a “Lawsuit”). Wellmark 
shall not participate in such a Lawsuit on behalf of Account or the Plan unless Wellmark 
and Account enter into a separate written agreement relating to participation, recovery, 
and expenses in such Lawsuit. Wellmark has no duty to notify Account or Plan of 
Wellmark’s receipt of any notices in connection with any Lawsuit and each party is free to 
make its own determination whether to initiate or participate in any Lawsuit on its own 
behalf. 

 

322



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 18 Version: 10/18 

6.5 Value-Based Programs. Wellmark or Host Blues may enter into collaborative 
arrangements with Value-Based Programs under which the health care organizations 
participating in such programs are eligible for financial incentives relating to quality and 
cost-effective care of Wellmark members. Identifiable Data regarding Account's Members 
may be included in information Wellmark or Host Blues provide to Value-Based Programs 
and used by the Value-Based Program and its providers. Regardless whether Account 
elects to participate in the Value-Based Program, known as Blue Distinction® Total Care, 
Account’s Members may access Covered Services from providers that participate in a 
Host Blue’s Value-Based Program as described in Section 9.3, Special Cases: Value-
Based Programs. If Account has elected to participate in the Value-Based Program, a 
separate Value-Based Program Exhibit is attached to this Agreement and incorporated 
by this reference. 

 
6.6 Disclosure of Compensation. Wellmark shall comply with Department of Labor 

requirements regarding the disclosure of compensation received from all sources in 
connection with this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 7 

LIABILITY OF THE PARTIES 
 
7.1 Account’s Responsibility for Claims Paid. Account is solely responsible for all Claims 

Paid for its Members, including, without limitation, an individual added or deleted as a 
result of a retroactive eligibility change, or any Claims Paid at Account’s direction to 
Wellmark to make payment regardless of Plan limitations or exclusions. Wellmark 
provides Administrative Services and network access only and does not assume any 
financial risk or obligation with respect to claims, including, without limitation, any Claims 
Paid. Wellmark has no obligation to pay Incurred Claims if Account fails to pay or 
reimburse Wellmark timely in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

 
7.2 No Duty to Defend. Wellmark shall have no duty or obligation to defend against any action 

or proceeding brought against Account or the Plan to recover a claim for benefits. 
Wellmark shall, however, make available to Account and its counsel, such evidence 
relevant to such action or proceeding as Wellmark may have as a result of its 
administration of the contested benefit determination. 

 
7.3 Account’s Liability. Except as otherwise explicitly provided in this Agreement, Account 

shall accept the tender of defense and have the liability for all Plan benefit claims and all 
expenses incident to the Plan, and agrees to release, hold harmless, and indemnify 
Wellmark and its employees, officers, and directors against any and all amounts, 
expenses, losses, liability, claims, lawsuits, injuries, damages, taxes, interest charges, 
administrative penalties, and other costs or obligations, including reasonable attorneys' 
fees and court costs, for which Wellmark may become liable: 

 
a. due to any state premium tax, use tax, or similar tax, or any similar benefit or plan-

related charge, surcharge or assessment, federal tax, excise tax, or fee imposed 
on group health plans or plan sponsors under ACA, however denominated, 
including any penalties and interest payable with respect thereto, assessed against 
Wellmark on the basis of and/or measured by the amount of Plan benefits 
administered by Wellmark pursuant to this Agreement; 

 

323



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 19 Version: 10/18 

b. due to any action or proceeding brought by a Member or a third party to recover 
benefits under the Plan; 

 
c. due to any action or proceeding brought by a Member or a third party alleging 

Wellmark provided significant assistance to Account to aid or perpetuate any 
discrimination activity; 

 
d. due to a release of Confidential Information to Account, the Plan, or a third party 

at Account’s direction or arising out of any alleged improper use of Confidential 
Information by Account or such third party; 

 
e. due to Account’s failure to timely provide requested information to Wellmark for 

inclusion on the Confirmation of MSP form submissions and other disclosures that 
relate to Account’s size and status, EIN(s), the Medicare enrollment of Members, 
Account enrollment, and related information (including, without limitation, Member 
Social Security numbers), or such other information requested by Wellmark 
resulting in processing of claims not in compliance with MSP laws and other 
requirements in accordance with Section 2.5; 

 
f. due to Account’s failure to comply with applicable law relating to issuing or failing 

to issue the required notices in accordance with Section 2.1(d); 
 

g. due to Account’s failure or delay in providing accurate reports, data, and 
information regarding eligibility, enrollment, and Social Security numbers for each 
Member, benefit selection, limitations, exclusions, or benefit changes for the Plan, 
claims history, and other information necessary for Wellmark to administer the 
terms, coordination of benefits, limitations, and exclusions contained in the Plan; 

 
h. due to the Account’s or its employees’ or agents’ negligence or material breach of 

their obligations under this Agreement, except to the extent that any such losses 
are caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Wellmark; 

 
i. arising from any other acts or omissions of Account that constitute a material 

breach of an obligation hereunder or which, in the aggregate, constitute a failure 
on the part of Account to perform its obligations under this Agreement in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement; or 

 
j. due to or arising out of Wellmark’s adherence with any direction from Account or 

decision made by Account with regard to the Plan design, benefits, or eligibility 
provisions in the Benefits Document, or the Administrative Services provided under 
this Agreement. 

 
7.4 Selection of Counsel. In the event litigation is instituted by a Member or third party 

against the Account and/or Wellmark concerning any matter under the Plan, including a 
suit for Plan benefits, each party to this Agreement shall, to the extent possible, advise 
the other of the legal action, and shall have sole authority to select legal counsel of its 
choice. 

 
7.5 Wellmark’s Liability. In performing its obligations under this Agreement, Wellmark shall 

use reasonable diligence and that degree of skill and judgment possessed by one 
experienced in furnishing claim administration services to group health plans of similar 

324



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 20 Version: 10/18 

size and characteristics as the Plan. Wellmark agrees to release, hold harmless, and 
indemnify Account and its employees, officers, and directors against any and all amounts, 
expenses, losses, liability, claims, lawsuits, injuries, damages, taxes, interest charges, 
administrative penalties, and other costs or obligations, including reasonable attorneys' 
fees and court costs, for which Account may become liable: 

 
a. arising from any acts or omission of Wellmark which constitute a material breach 

of an obligation hereunder or which, in the aggregate, constitute a failure on the 
part of Wellmark to perform its obligations under this Agreement in accordance 
with the provisions of this Agreement; and 

 
b. arising from any allegation of a breach of confidentiality arising out of release of 

Confidential Information to Wellmark or a third party at Wellmark’s direction or 
arising out of any improper use of Confidential Information by Wellmark or such 
third party. 

 
7.6 Disclaimer of Warranties; Limitation of Liability. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET 

FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, WELLMARK DOES NOT MAKE AND HEREBY 
DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, REGARDING ANY OF THE SERVICES WELLMARK 
PROVIDES OR ARRANGES TO PROVIDE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. IN NO EVENT 
SHALL ANY PARTY BE LIABLE FOR INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, 
PUNITIVE, OR SPECIAL DAMAGES, LOSS OF DATA OR LOST PROFITS, EVEN IF 
THAT PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THE 
FOREGOING LIMITATION OF LIABILITY REPRESENTS THE ALLOCATION OF RISK 
BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS REFLECTED IN THE PRICING HEREUNDER AND IS AN 
ESSENTIAL ELEMENT OF THE BASIS OF THE BARGAIN BETWEEN THE PARTIES.  

 
THE MEDICAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES ARE EDUCATIONAL AND 
INFORMATIONAL TOOLS ONLY AND DO NOT CONSTITUTE CLINICAL SERVICES. 
HEALTH INFORMATION PROVIDED BY WELLMARK OR VENDORS OR THEIR 
AFFILIATES IS BASED ON MEDICAL LITERATURE. HOWEVER, USE OF SUCH 
INFORMATION IS NOT INTENDED TO REPLACE PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL ADVICE 
AND CARE FROM A HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONAL. THE HEALTH INFORMATION 
IS INTENDED TO HELP PEOPLE MAKE BETTER HEALTH CARE DECISIONS AND 
TAKE GREATER RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR OWN HEALTH, BUT MAY NOT 
RESULT IN ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENT OF THESE GOALS. ACCOUNT EXPRESSLY 
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT WELLMARK IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE 
RESULTS OF ITS MEMBERS' USE OF SUCH INFORMATION INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, MEMBERS CHOOSING TO SEEK OR NOT TO SEEK PROFESSIONAL 
MEDICAL CARE, OR MEMBERS CHOOSING OR NOT CHOOSING SPECIFIC 
TREATMENT. WELLMARK DOES NOT MAKE AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY 
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, REGARDING THE MEDICAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, 
THEIR ABILITY TO REDUCE COSTS, OR IMPROVE OUTCOMES. 

 
7.7 Grandfathered Health Plan Disclaimer. Account has the sole obligation to determine the 

status of its Plan as either a Grandfathered Health Plan or a Non-Grandfathered Health 
Plan and has advised that its Plan is Non-Grandfathered. 

325



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 21 Version: 10/18 

 
7.8 No Testing for Health Plans. Wellmark will not determine whether coverage is 

discriminatory or otherwise in violation of Internal Revenue Code Section 105(h). 
Wellmark also will not provide any testing for compliance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 105(h) and will not be held liable for any penalties or other losses resulting from 
Account offering coverage in violation of Section 105(h). 

 
7.9 Survival. The indemnities set forth in this Article, including any liability of either party to 

the other for indemnification, shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 8 
TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
8.1 Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and 

shall continue in force for the Rating Period (the “Term”). 
 
8.2 Renewal Terms. Upon expiration of the Term, this Agreement shall continue in force from 

year to year upon Wellmark’s receipt of written documentation of Account’s renewal in 
advance of the termination date, until replaced by a subsequently executed Agreement, 
or as amended or terminated as provided in this Agreement. Wellmark shall have the right 
to change any of the Administrative Fees or other fees for any Rating Period or any 
renewal term upon not less than thirty (30) days advance written notice. Any such changes 
shall be reflected on a revised or new Exhibit “A” issued by Wellmark, to be attached to 
this Agreement and incorporated by this reference. 

 
8.3 Termination Notice. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving 

written notice of termination delivered to the other party at least thirty (30) days in advance 
of the effective date of termination. If Wellmark has not received Account’s documented 
intent to renew at least ten (10) business days prior to the end of the Term, the Agreement 
may not be renewed. 

 
8.4 Termination for Nonpayment. Wellmark may terminate this Agreement at any time, upon 

ten (10) days written notice to Account, if Account fails to make complete payments, 
including late fees, when due in accordance with this Agreement or Wellmark determines 
that Account has inadequate funds to make payments required by this Agreement and, in 
either case, Account fails to cure such non-payments or cure the inadequacy of funds 
within the ten (10) day notice period. Account is solely responsible for notifying its Plan 
Members of the termination of this Agreement for nonpayment or for any other reason. 

 
8.5 Effects of Termination for Nonpayment. If Wellmark terminates this Agreement for 

nonpayment, Wellmark shall not pay on behalf of Account any Incurred Claims beyond 
the effective date of the termination and Wellmark reserves all rights to recoup any Paid 
Claims for which Account has not paid Wellmark, regardless of when services were 
received. 

 
8.6 Claims Administration Following Termination. If, following termination of this 

Agreement for reasons other than Account’s nonpayment, and either Claims Paid are 
adjusted to revise a payment amount, or Incurred Claims with Incurred Dates prior to the 
date of termination are submitted to Wellmark in the period specified in the Benefits 
Document for timely filing of claims, Wellmark shall pay these claims on behalf of Account 
in accordance with this Agreement and submit bills to Account for the payment of Claims 

326



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 22 Version: 10/18 

Paid for a period of twelve (12) months following termination. Any credits due to Account 
for recoveries, e.g., recoveries from third-party liability, rebates attributable to Member 
claims, or Claims Paid adjustments, shall be applied during this same twelve (12) month 
period. The bills shall include a Network Access Fee amount when Account makes 
retroactive changes to add a Plan Member to coverage during the Rating Period. Account 
shall pay all bills in accordance with the time and procedures set forth in Section 4.1 and 
in Exhibit “A”. Wellmark shall not, on behalf of Account, pay Incurred Claims with dates of 
service following the date of termination. Unless Account and Wellmark otherwise agree 
in writing, Wellmark shall not continue any other services for Account after the effective 
date of termination. 

 
8.7 Availability of Records. Upon written request by the Account, Wellmark will make 

available to any successor benefit services administrator, designated by the Account, 
standard reports and materials in its possession at the time of termination that are 
reasonably necessary to continue the administration of the Plan. Wellmark shall provide 
such materials in its standard format and Account shall pay a reasonable fee for such 
services. 

 
8.8 Survival. Any liability of either party to the other for amounts owed or owing under this 

Agreement, unless such amounts are de minimus, shall not be extinguished by the 
termination of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 9 

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD DISCLOSURES AND INTER-PLAN ARRANGEMENTS 
 
9.1 Blue Cross and Blue Shield Disclosure Statement. Account on behalf of itself and its 

Members, hereby expressly acknowledges its understanding this Agreement constitutes 
a contract solely between Account and Wellmark, which is an independent corporation 
operating under licenses from the Blue Cross Blue Shield Association, an association of 
independent Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans (the "Association"), permitting Wellmark 
to use the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Service Marks in the state of Iowa, and that 
Wellmark is not contracting as the agent of the Association. Account on behalf of itself and 
its Members, further acknowledges and agrees that it has not entered into this Agreement 
based upon representations by any person other than Wellmark and that no person, entity, 
or organization other than Wellmark shall be accountable or liable to Account for any of 
Wellmark’s obligations to Account created under this Agreement. This section shall not 
create any additional obligations whatsoever on the part of Wellmark other than those 
obligations created under other provisions of this Agreement. 

 
9.2 Account Locations or Members Outside of Iowa. Account understands and agrees that 

Wellmark defines a National Account as a company headquartered and located in Iowa 
that also has employees in other states whose claims are processed through Inter-Plan 
Arrangements. If Account is headquartered in Iowa, any employees or persons associated 
with Account are eligible for coverage under the Account’s Plan, including those employed 
or working at Account locations outside Iowa. If Account is not headquartered in Iowa, 
only those employees or individuals associated with the Iowa business locations are 
eligible for coverage under the Account’s Plan, and coverage will be void for any persons 
associated with Account locations outside of Iowa. Eligibility of persons located outside of 
Iowa, or associated with Account locations outside of Iowa, is subject to applicable law 
and Association guidelines. 

 

327



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 23 Version: 10/18 

9.3 Out-of-Area Services. Wellmark has a variety of relationships with other Blue Cross 
and/or Blue Shield Licensees referred to generally as “Inter-Plan Arrangements.” These 
Inter-Plan Arrangements operate under rules and procedures issued by the Association. 
Whenever Members access health care services outside the geographic area Wellmark 
serves, the claim for those services may be processed through one of these Inter-Plan 
Arrangements. The Inter-Plan Arrangements are described generally below. 

 
Typically, when accessing care outside the geographic area Wellmark serves, Members 
obtain care from health care providers that have a contractual agreement (“participating 
providers”) with the local Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield Licensee in that other geographic 
area (“Host Blue”). In some instances, Members may obtain care from health care 
providers in the Host Blue geographic area that do not have a contractual agreement 
(“nonparticipating providers”) with the Host Blue. Wellmark remains responsible for 
fulfilling its contractual obligations to Account and Wellmark’s payment practices in both 
instances are described below. 

 
This disclosure describes how claims are administered for Inter-Plan Arrangements and 
the fees that are charged in connection with Inter-Plan Arrangements.  

 
a. BlueCard® Program. The BlueCard® Program is an Inter-Plan Arrangement. 

Under this Arrangement, when Members access Covered Services within the 
geographic area served by a Host Blue, the Host Blue will be responsible for 
contracting and handling all interactions with its participating providers. The 
financial terms of the BlueCard® Program are described generally below. 

 
i. Member Liability Calculation Method Per Claim. Unless subject to a 

fixed dollar copayment, the calculation of the Member liability on claims for 
Covered Services processed through the BlueCard® Program will be based 
on the lower of the participating provider’s billed charges for Covered 
Services or the negotiated price made available to Wellmark by the Host 
Blue. 

 
ii. Account Liability Calculation Method Per Claim. The calculation of 

Account’s liability on claims for Covered Services processed through the 
BlueCard® Program will be based on the negotiated price made available 
to Wellmark by the Host Blue under the contract between the Host Blue 
and the provider. Sometimes, this negotiated price may be greater for a 
given service or services than the billed charge in accordance with how the 
Host Blue has negotiated with its participating provider(s) for specific health 
care services. In cases where negotiated price exceeds the billed charge, 
Account may be liable for the excess amount even when the Member’s 
deductible has not been satisfied. This excess amount reflects an amount 
that may be necessary to secure (a) the provider’s participation in the 
network and/or (b) the overall discount negotiated by the Host Blue. In such 
a case, the entire contracted price is paid to the provider, even when the 
contracted price is greater than the billed charge. 

 
iii. Claims Pricing. Host Blues determine a negotiated price, which is 

reflected in the terms of each Host Blue’s provider contracts. The 
negotiated price made available to Wellmark by the Host Blue may be 
represented by one of the following: 

328



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 24 Version: 10/18 

 
a) An actual price. An actual price is a negotiated rate of payment in 

effect at the time a claim is processed without any other increases 
or decreases; or 

 
b) An estimated price. An estimated price is a negotiated rate of 

payment in effect at the time a claim is processed, reduced or 
increased by a percentage to take into account certain payments 
negotiated with the provider and other claim- and non-claim-related 
transactions. Such transactions may include, but are not limited to, 
anti-fraud and abuse recoveries, provider refunds not applied on a 
claim-specific basis, retrospective settlements, and performance-
related bonuses or incentives; or 

 
c) An average price. An average price is a percentage of billed 

charges for Covered Services in effect at the time a claim is 
processed representing the aggregate payments negotiated by the 
Host Blue with all of its health care providers or a similar 
classification of its providers and other claim- and non-claim-related 
transactions. Such transactions may include the same ones as 
noted above for an estimated price. 

 
The Host Blue determines whether it will use an actual, estimated, or 
average price. The use of estimated or average pricing may result in a 
difference (positive or negative), between the price Account pays on a 
specific claim and the actual amount the Host Blue pays to the provider. 
However, the BlueCard® Program requires that the amount paid by the 
Member and Account is a final price; no future price adjustment will result 
in increases or decreases to the pricing of past claims.  
 
In some instances federal or state laws or regulations may impose a 
surcharge, tax or other fee. If applicable, Wellmark will disclose any such 
surcharge, tax or other fee to Account, which will be Account’s liability. 

 
Any positive or negative differences in estimated or average pricing are 
accounted for through variance accounts maintained by the Host Blue and 
incorporated into future claim prices. As a result, the amounts charged to 
Account will be adjusted in a following year, as necessary, to account for 
over- or underestimation of the past years’ prices. The Host Blue will not 
receive compensation from how the estimated price or average price 
methods, described above, are calculated. Because all amounts paid are 
final, neither positive variance account amounts (funds available to be paid 
in the following year), nor negative variance amounts (the funds needed to 
be received in the following year), are due to or from Account. If Account 
terminates, Account will not receive a refund or charge from the variance 
account.  
 
Variance account balances are small amounts relative to the overall paid 
claims amounts and will be liquidated over time. The timeframe for their 
liquidation depends on variables, including, but not limited to, overall 
volume/number of claims processed and variance account balance. 

329



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 25 Version: 10/18 

Variance account balances may earn interest. Host Blues may retain 
interest earned, if any, on funds held in variance accounts. 

 
iv. BlueCard® Program Fees and Compensation. Account understands and 

agrees to reimburse Wellmark for certain fees and compensation which 
Wellmark is obligated under the BlueCard® Program to pay to the Host 
Blues, to the Association, and/or to vendors of BlueCard® Program-related 
services. The specific BlueCard® Program fees and compensation that are 
charged to Account, if any, are set forth in Exhibit “A”. BlueCard® Program 
Fees and compensation may be revised from time to time as described in 
subsection f below. All BlueCard® Program-related fees, including any 
Access Fees paid to Host Blues, and Administrative Expense Allowance 
(“AEA”) Fees, are included in Wellmark's general Administrative Fee as set 
forth in Exhibit “A”. Wellmark has elected to not separately charge any 
Inter-Plan Arrangement-related fees to Account. 

 
b.  Special Cases: Value-Based Programs. Account’s Members may access 

Covered Services from providers that participate in a Host Blue’s Value-Based 
Program. Value-Based Programs may be delivered through the BlueCard® 
Program. These Value-Based Programs may include, but are not limited to, 
Accountable Care Organizations, Global Payment/Total Cost of Care 
arrangements, Patient Centered Medical Homes, and Shared Savings 
arrangements. 
 
i. Value-Based Programs under the BlueCard® Program; Program 

Administration. Under Value-Based Programs, a Host Blue may pay 
providers for reaching agreed-upon cost/quality goals in the following ways: 
retrospective settlements, Provider Incentives, share of target savings, 
Care Coordinator Fees and/or other allowed amounts. The Host Blue may 
pass these provider payments to Wellmark, which Wellmark will pass 
directly on to Account as an amount included in the price of the claim. 
 
When such amounts are included in the price of the claim, the claim may 
be billed using one of the following pricing methods, as determined by the 
Host Blue: 
 
a) Actual Pricing: The charge to accounts for Value-Based Programs 

incentives/Shared Savings settlements is part of the claim. These 
charges are passed to Account via an enhanced provider fee 
schedule. 
 

b) Supplemental Factor: The charge to accounts for non-attributed 
Value-Based Programs incentives/Shared Savings settlements is a 
supplemental amount that is included in the claim as an amount 
based on a specified supplemental factor (e.g., a small percentage 
increase in the claim amount). The supplemental factor may be 
adjusted from time to time. 

 
The amounts used to calculate the supplemental factors for estimated 
pricing are fixed amounts that are estimated to be necessary to finance the 
cost of a particular Value-Based Program. Because amounts are 

330



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 26 Version: 10/18 

estimates, there may be positive or negative differences based on actual 
experience and such differences will be accounted for in a variance 
account maintained by the Host Blue (in the same manner as described in 
the BlueCard® claim pricing section above) until the end of the applicable 
Value-Based Program payment and/or reconciliation measurement period. 
The amounts needed to fund a Value-Based Program may be changed 
before the end of the measurement period if it is determined that amounts 
being collected are projected to exceed the amount necessary to fund the 
programs or if they are projected to be insufficient to fund the program. 
 
At the end of the Value-Based Program payment and/or reconciliation 
measurement period for these arrangements, Host Blues will take one of 
the following actions: 
 
a) Use any surplus in funds in the variance account to fund Value-

Based Program payments or reconciliation amounts in the next 
measurement period. 
 

b) Address any deficit in funds in the variance account through the 
reconciliation billing amount for the next measurement period. 

 
The Host Blue will not receive compensation resulting from how estimated 
or average price methods, described above, are calculated. If Account 
terminates, Account will not receive a refund or charge from the variance 
account. This is because any resulting surpluses or deficits would be 
eventually exhausted through prospective adjustment to the settlement 
billings in the case of Value-Based Programs. The measurement period for 
determining these surpluses or deficits may differ from the term of this 
Agreement. 
 
Note: Members will not bear any portion of the cost of Value-Based 
Programs except when a Host Blue uses either average pricing or actual 
pricing to pay providers under Value-Based Programs. 
 

ii. Care Coordinator Fees. Host Blues may also bill Wellmark for Care 
Coordinator Fees for provider services which Wellmark will pass on to 
Account as follows: 

 
Individual claim billings through applicable care coordination codes from 
the most current edition of either Current Procedural Terminology (“CPT”) 
published by the American Medical Association (“AMA”) or Healthcare 
Common Procedure Coding System (“HCPCS”) published by the Centers 
for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”). 
 
As part of this Agreement, Wellmark and Account will not impose Member 
cost sharing for Care Coordinator Fees. 

 
c. Return of Overpayments. Recoveries of overpayments from a Host Blue or its 

participating providers can arise in several ways including, but not limited to, anti-
fraud and abuse recoveries, health care provider/hospital bill audits, credit balance 
audits, utilization review refunds, and unsolicited refunds. Recoveries will be 

331



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 27 Version: 10/18 

applied in general, on either a claim-by-claim or prospective basis. If recovery 
amounts are passed on a claim-by-claim basis from a Host Blue to Wellmark they 
will be credited to Account. In some cases, the Host Blue will engage a third party 
to assist in identification or collection of overpayments. The fees of such a third 
party may be charged to Account as a percentage of the recovery of its claims.  

 
d. Nonparticipating Providers Outside Wellmark’s Service Area.  

 
i. Member Liability Calculation. 

 
a) In General. When Covered Services are provided outside of 

Wellmark’s service area by nonparticipating providers, the 
amount(s) a Member pays for such services will be based on either 
the Host Blue’s nonparticipating provider local payment or the 
pricing arrangements required by applicable state law. In these 
situations, the Member may be responsible for the difference 
between the amount that the nonparticipating provider bills and the 
payment Wellmark will make for the Covered Services as set forth 
in this paragraph. Payments for out-of-network emergency services 
will be governed by applicable federal and state law. 

 
b) Exceptions. In some exception cases, Wellmark may pay claims 

from nonparticipating providers for Covered Services outside of 
Wellmark's service area based on the provider’s billed charge. This 
may occur in situations where a Member did not have reasonable 
access to a participating provider, as determined by Wellmark or by 
applicable law. In other exception cases, Wellmark may pay such 
claims based on the payment Wellmark would make if Wellmark 
were paying a nonparticipating provider for the same Covered 
Services inside of Wellmark’s service area. This may occur where 
the Host Blue’s corresponding payment would be more than 
Wellmark’s in-service area nonparticipating provider payment. 
Wellmark may choose to negotiate a payment with such a provider 
on an exception basis. 

 
Unless otherwise stated, in any of these exception situations, the 
Member may be responsible for the difference between the amount 
that the nonparticipating provider bills and the payment Wellmark 
will make for the Covered Services as set forth in this paragraph. 

 
ii. Fees and Compensation. Account understands and agrees to reimburse 

Wellmark for certain fees and compensation which Wellmark is obligated 
under applicable Inter-Plan Arrangement requirements to pay to the Host 
Blues, to the Association, and/or to vendors of Inter-Plan Arrangement-
related services. The specific fees charged to Account, if any, are set forth 
in Exhibit “A”. 

 
e. Blue Cross Blue Shield Global® Core.  

 
i. General Information. If Members are outside the United States, the 

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands (hereinafter: 

332



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 28 Version: 10/18 

“BlueCard® service area”), they may be able to take advantage of the Blue 
Cross Blue Shield Global® Core when accessing Covered Services. The 
Blue Cross Blue Shield Global® Core is not served by a Host Blue.  

 
Inpatient Services. In most cases, if Members contact the Blue Cross Blue 
Shield Global® Core Service Center for assistance, hospitals will not require 
Members to pay for covered inpatient services, except for their cost-share 
amounts. In such cases, the hospital will submit Member claims to the Blue 
Cross Blue Shield Global® Core Service Center to initiate claims 
processing. However, if the Member paid in full at the time of service, the 
Member must submit a claim to obtain reimbursement for Covered 
Services. Members must contact Wellmark to obtain precertification 
for non-emergency inpatient services. 

 
ii. Blue Cross Blue Shield Global® Core Related Fees. Account 

understands and agrees to reimburse Wellmark for certain fees and 
compensation which Wellmark is obligated under applicable Inter-Plan 
Arrangement requirements to pay to the Host Blues, to the Association, 
and/or to vendors of Inter-Plan Arrangement-related services. The specific 
fees charged to Account under Blue Cross Blue Shield Global® Core, if any, 
are set forth in Exhibit “A”. 

 
f. Modifications or Changes to Inter-Plan Arrangement Fees or Compensation. 

Modifications or changes to Inter-Plan Arrangement fees are generally made 
effective January 1 of the calendar year but they may occur at any time during the 
year. In the case of any such modifications or changes, Wellmark shall provide 
Account with at least thirty (30) days’ advance written notice of any modification or 
change to such Inter-Plan Arrangement fees or compensation describing the 
change and the effective date thereof and Account’s right to terminate this 
Agreement without penalty by giving written notice of termination before the 
effective date of the change. If Account fails to respond to the notice and does not 
terminate this Agreement during the notice period, Account will be deemed to have 
approved the proposed changes, and Wellmark will then allow such modifications 
to become part of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 10 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
10.1 Change of Agreement. If Account makes changes in the Plan or Benefits Document, 

Account shall give Wellmark sufficient advance notice of such changes. If Account makes 
any material changes in the Plan, or if material changes are required by law, including the 
addition or deletion of benefits, a material change in group composition or membership or 
eligibility requirements, such as a change in the number of eligible or enrolled individuals 
of ten percent (10%) or more, percentage of individuals enrolled, types of coverage 
offered, business entities covered, or offerings of other health insurers’ coverage to eligible 
individuals, Wellmark shall have the right at its option to amend this Agreement, including 
an adjustment to the financial terms shown on Exhibit “A”, or to terminate this Agreement 
in accordance with Section 8.3. 

 
10.2 Iowa Code Chapter 509A Compliance; No Actuarial Certification. Nothing contained 

in this Agreement or on Exhibit “A” shall be construed or considered to be an actuarial 

333



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 29 Version: 10/18 

opinion or certification by Wellmark in connection with Iowa Code Chapter 509A regarding 
the adequacy of reserves, rates, or financial condition of Account or the Plan. Account is 
solely responsible for compliance with all provisions of Iowa Code Chapter 509A and 
implementing regulations and, if applicable, is responsible for reporting any paid losses 
for the Account’s self-funded operation of the Plan, as required by Iowa Code Section 
513C.10, and for paying any assessment related to those paid losses. 

 
10.3 Use of Trademarks and Names. Wellmark and Account reserve the right to control the 

use of their respective corporate names and any other respective symbols, assumed 
names, trademarks, and service marks, presently existing or subsequently established. 
Wellmark and Account agree not to use the corporate name, symbol, assumed names, 
trademarks, or service marks of the other in advertising, promotional materials, or 
otherwise without the prior written consent of the other. Any previously approved usage 
shall cease immediately upon the termination of this Agreement and any materials using 
such names or marks are the property of the appropriate namesake and shall be returned 
to the appropriate property owner upon request or at the termination of this Agreement. 

 
10.4 Complete Agreement; Amendments. The parties agree that this Agreement, including, 

without limitation, all Exhibits or amendments hereto, applicable Business Associate 
Agreement, and COBRA Administrative Services Agreement or Addendum, if any, 
constitute the complete and exclusive agreement and statement of the relationship 
between the parties with regard to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes 
all related discussions, understandings, proposals, exhibits, amendments, prior and 
concurrent agreements, representations and warranties, whether oral or written, and any 
other communications between the parties in regard to the subject matter hereof. This 
Agreement, including, without limitation, any Exhibits hereto, may be amended from time 
to time by the parties. Any amendment to this Agreement, or change, modification, or 
waiver of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be effective only when 
made in writing and signed by an authorized representative of each party and delivered in 
accordance with Section 10.11. This Agreement shall take precedence over any other 
documents that may be in conflict with it. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if this Agreement supersedes a prior Agreement, health 
services with an Incurred Date prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement shall be 
processed pursuant to the terms of the applicable superseded Agreement. 

 
10.5 Force Majeure. The parties to this Agreement shall be excused from any performance 

under this Agreement, other than payment of amounts due, for any period and to the extent 
they are delayed, restricted, or prevented from performing under this Agreement as a 
result of an act of God, war, civil disturbance, legislative enactment, court order, labor 
dispute, act of terrorism, or other cause beyond their reasonable control. 

 
10.6 Limitation of Action. Notwithstanding Sections 5.6, 7.9, and 8.8, no legal or equitable 

action or claim, may be brought against Wellmark for an action or claim arising under or 
relating to this Agreement more than two (2) years after the cause of action arose. 

 
10.7 Assignment. The Agreement shall be binding on the parties and their respective 

successors and permitted assigns. Neither party may assign this Agreement to any third 
party, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other; provided, however, 
Wellmark may assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, to any entity that controls, is 
controlled by, or is under common control with Wellmark. Further, Wellmark may, in its 

334



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 30 Version: 10/18 

sole and unfettered discretion, contract with a third party to perform some Administrative 
Services or other of Wellmark’s duties under this Agreement, including, without limitation, 
the subrogation recovery services for Claims Paid. To the extent Wellmark contracts with 
a third party to perform any such services or duties, the term “Wellmark” as used in this 
Agreement shall be deemed to include the contracted third party, as the context so 
requires. 

 
10.8 Waiver. The failure of any party to enforce any terms or provisions of the Agreement shall 

not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of the enforceability of such provision. 
Similarly, the failure to enforce any remedy arising from a default under the terms of the 
Agreement shall not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of such default. Any waiver 
of any provision of this Agreement, and any consent to any departure from the terms of 
any provision of this Agreement, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the 
specific purpose for which made or given. 

 
10.9 Nature of Relationship; Authority of Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement and 

no action taken or omitted to be taken by Account or Wellmark pursuant hereto shall be 
deemed to constitute Account and Wellmark a partnership, an association, a joint venture 
or other entity whatsoever. Wellmark shall at all times be acting as an independent 
contractor under this Agreement. No party has the authority to bind the other in any respect 
whatsoever. 

 
10.10 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is for the benefit of Account and Wellmark 

and not for any other person. It shall not create any legal relationship between Wellmark 
and any employee, Member, or any other party claiming any right, whether legal or 
equitable, under the terms of this Agreement or of the Plan. 

 
10.11 Notices and Communication. The parties shall be entitled to rely upon any 

communication or notice from the other in connection with this Agreement to be genuine, 
truthful, and accurate, and to have been authorized, signed, or issued by an officer or 
agent of such entity empowered to make such representation on behalf of the entity. 

 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed given when delivered personally, placed in the U.S. mail (postage 
prepaid), delivered to a recognized courier service for delivery (delivery charges prepaid), 
or sent by electronic means and addressed to the last address furnished in writing. Until 
another address is furnished in writing, notice to Account may be addressed to the address 
shown on Exhibit "A" attached to this Agreement. 

 
Notice to Wellmark may be addressed: 

 
Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota 
Attention: Procurement and Contracts 
1331 Grand Avenue 
Des Moines, Iowa  50309-2901 

 
10.12 State of Issue; Applicable Law; Venue; and Waiver of Jury Trial. This Agreement is 

issued and delivered in the state of Iowa and is performed in Des Moines, Iowa. To the 
extent not superseded by the laws of the United States and without regard to any conflict 
of law rule, this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the 
laws of the state of Iowa. Any action in regard to this Agreement or arising out of the terms 

335



 

IA WBCBSSD LG SF 31 Version: 10/18 

of this Agreement shall be instituted and litigated in the Iowa District Court or the United 
States District Court located in Des Moines, Polk County, Iowa and no other. ACCOUNT 
AND WELLMARK WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL WITH RESPECT TO AND IN 
ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, CLAIM, COUNTERCLAIM, DEMAND OR OTHER 
MATTER WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date first 
stated above. 
 
City of Cedar Falls 
 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ 
 
Print Name:  _____________________ 
 
Title:  ___________________________ 
 

Wellmark of South Dakota, Inc., doing business as 
Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South 
Dakota 
 
By:  ______________________________ 
 
David S. Brown 
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 
and Treasurer 
 

 

336



Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota

Administrative Services Agreement

Exhibit A

Administrative Fees, Network Access Fees, Other Fees

Account Full Name and Address:

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, IA  50613-2726

Benefit Plan(s) Administered By:

Rating Period:

The Rating Period begins on 7/01/2019 and ends on 6/30/2020. 

Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota

The Plan Year begins on 07/01 and ends on 06/30. 

Plan Year:

Administrative Fee:

Health: $39.55 per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on 

last day of billing month (subject to limitations listed under Billing 

and Payment Method below).

Pharmacy Vendor Admin Fee:

per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on 

last day of billing month (subject to limitations listed under 

Billing and Payment Method below).

          $2.00     

Network Access Fee: per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on 

last day of billing month (subject to limitations listed under Billing 

and Payment Method below).

$8.01

Subject to the limitations listed under Billing and Payment Method below.

Medical Management Services:

For the period beginning on 07/01/2019 and ending on 06/30/2020.

Well-being Services

$8,298.46Annual Fee    Well-being Package

*For Medical Management Services billed as Per Participant, participant means only those individuals who

are participating in the respective Medical Management Services for the applicable month.

379Page 1 of 2
Confidential & Proprietary – Confidential Treatment Requested - Iowa Code § 22.7

337



Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota

Administrative Services Agreement

Exhibit A

Administrative Fees, Network Access Fees, Other Fees

Account Full Name and Address:

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, IA  50613-2726

External Review:

External review fees for Independent Review Organizations (IROs), if applicable, will be on a per case 

or per external review basis and all such fees attributable to Members under the Plan shall be billed to 

Account in the amount billed to Wellmark by the IRO.

Third Party Liability Vendor Fees:

The third party liability recovery vendor(s) retain a service fee calculated as a percentage of the recovered 

amount after deductions for attorneys’ fees and costs.The recovery vendor’s service fee is 19.5% of the 

recovered amount.  This fee is subject to change. The final recovered amount received from the vendor is 

credited to Account. Wellmark’s agreement with the recovery vendor may from time to time allow for the 

application of no vendor service fees to amounts recovered during that period of time.  Any recovery 

amount obtained by the vendor on behalf of the Account during such time period will be provided to 

Account without application of the vendor service fee.

BlueCard Program-related Fees: 

All BlueCard Program-related fees, including any Access Fees paid to Host Blues and Administrative 

Expense Allowance (“AEA”) Fee, are included in Wellmark’s general Administrative Fee stated above. 

Wellmark has elected to not separately charge any Inter-Plan Arrangement-related fees to Account. The 

general Administrative Fee encompasses fees Wellmark charges to Account for administering Account’s 

benefit plan.  Fees may include both local and Inter-Plan fees. Other BlueCard Program-related fees 

included in the general Administrative Fee include the Central Financial Agency Fee, ITS Transaction 

Fee, Toll-Free Number Fee, PPO Provider Directory Fee, and the Blue Cross Blue Shield Global Coverage 

Fees, if applicable.

Billing and Payment Method:

Wellmark shall notify Account weekly of the total Claims Paid amount for the week.  Account shall 

make payment to Wellmark within forty-eight hours of receipt of the notification.  Wellmark shall bill 

Account monthly for Claims Paid (if any), Administrative Fee, other fees, and reflect the 

payments/credits received.

Limitations:  Any adjustments to Administrative Fee, Network Access Fee, and other fees due to 

membership or eligibility changes shall be reflected on the billing for the month in which the 

membership or eligibility change is made and shall be limited to a period of three (3) months prior to

the date Wellmark processes the Member eligibility change.

Exhibit A Issue Date: 6/11/2019

379Page 2 of 2
Confidential & Proprietary – Confidential Treatment Requested - Iowa Code § 22.7

338



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Paul Kockler, Accountant 

 DATE: June 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: FY20 Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield Health Plan  
  Stop Loss Policy 

 

Attached for your approval is the health plan Stop Loss Policy and rate exhibit for FY20.  
If you have questions regarding the attached, please contact me at 268-5101 or 
Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108. 
 
 
Attachment 
 

339



 

 
 

Stop Loss Policy Effective Date: July 1, 2019 
Stop Loss Period: July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
 
Form Number: IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP Version: 10/18 

 
 
 
 
 

S T O P  L O S S  P O L I C Y  
 
 
 
 
 

WELLMARK, INC. 
 
 

issued to 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
 
 
 

 
 

340



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 1 Version: 10/18 
 

 
STOP LOSS POLICY 

 
 
 THIS STOP LOSS POLICY (herein “Policy”) is issued by Wellmark, Inc., doing business 
as Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Iowa, an Iowa mutual insurance company (herein 
“Wellmark”), effective as of the first day of July 2019 (“Effective Date”), to City of Cedar Falls, 
an Iowa public entity, with its principal business location in Iowa (herein “Account”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
1. Account is the plan sponsor of a self-funded group health plan (herein called “the Plan”) 

within the meaning of and in accordance with applicable federal or state law for its common 
law employees and other eligible individuals. The Plan is designed, maintained and funded 
by Account and Account is solely responsible for making Member eligibility determinations 
and for Claims. 

 
2. Account desires that Wellmark reimburse it for Claims Eligible for Reimbursement that 

satisfy the amounts and terms specified in this Policy. Account acknowledges this Policy 
provides it with reimbursement only for Claims Eligible for Reimbursement meeting the 
terms and conditions specified in this Policy and Wellmark provides no insurance 
coverage for the Plan or for any Member. Wellmark assumes no financial risk or 
obligations with respect to Claims except as expressly specified in this Policy. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1 
POLICY DEFINITIONS 

 
1.1 “Aggregate Deductible” means the percentage of expected Claims Eligible for 

Reimbursement for all Members during the Stop Loss Period that is Account’s liability 
before any reimbursement is made under the aggregate stop loss coverage of this Policy. 
The Aggregate Deductible amount is shown on Exhibit “A”, Stop Loss Premiums and 
Financial Terms, which is attached to this Policy and incorporated by this reference. 

 
1.2 “Attachment Point” means the amount of expected Claims Eligible for Reimbursement 

per Plan Member for each benefit classification. The Attachment Point is used to 
determine Account’s Aggregate Deductible and Minimum Aggregate Deductible and is 
shown on Exhibit “A”, Stop Loss Premiums and Financial Terms, which is attached to 
this Policy and incorporated by this reference. 

 
1.3 “Benefit Services Administrator” means the company or companies specified on 

Exhibit “A”, Stop Loss Premiums and Financial Terms, which provides health benefit 
plan administration services to Account pursuant to a separately executed administrative 
services agreement in effect during the Stop Loss Period. 

 
1.4 “Benefits Document” means the written document(s) Account makes available to 

Members that describe and define the terms, benefits, and limitations of the Plan and may 
be titled Benefits Certificate, Coverage Manual, or something similar. 

341



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 2 Version: 10/18 
 

 
1.5 “Claims” means the dollar amount of the Benefit Services Administrator’s payment on 

behalf of the Account for covered health care services provided to Members under the 
terms of the Plan administered by the Benefit Services Administrator. Claims do not 
include any: (a) amounts paid for health care services as a Plan exception made at the 
direction of Account; (b) amounts paid for health care services determined by the Benefits 
Services Administrator to be investigational or experimental as defined under the terms of 
the Plan; (c) amounts paid for health care services determined by the Benefits Services 
Administrator to be not medically necessary as defined under the terms of the Plan; (d) 
amounts paid for health care services for an individual not eligible for coverage under the 
terms of the Plan; or (e) amounts paid that are not for covered health care services under 
the terms of the Plan. 

 
1.6 “Claims Eligible for Reimbursement” means Claims that have both an Incurred Date 

within the Run-in Period or Stop Loss Period and a Paid Date within the Stop Loss Period 
specified on Exhibit “A”. 

 
1.7 “Incurred Date” means the date health care services are provided to Members. With 

regard to inpatient hospital or facility services, the date of the Member's admission to the 
facility is considered as the Incurred Date. 

 
1.8 “Individual Deductible” means the fixed dollar amount of Claims Eligible for 

Reimbursement per Member as specified on Exhibit “A”, which is the Account’s liability 
before any reimbursement is made under the individual stop loss coverage of this Policy. 

 
1.9 “Member” means a person, including a Plan Member’s spouse or eligible dependent 

children, who is eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits in accordance with the 
terms of the Plan, specifically including the Plan’s eligibility criteria, as determined and 
identified by Account. The Member must be eligible and enrolled in the Plan on the 
Incurred Date of the Claims. 

 
1.10 “Minimum Aggregate Deductible” means an amount that is the Account's minimum 

liability under the aggregate stop loss coverage of this Policy. The Minimum Aggregate 
Deductible is the product of the number of Plan Members in effect for each Attachment 
Point, multiplied by each Attachment Point shown on Exhibit "A", multiplied by 90%. The 
results of the calculations shall be added together each month during the Stop Loss Period 
resulting in the year-to-date (YTD) Minimum Aggregate Deductible. The Minimum 
Aggregate Deductible is calculated at the beginning of the Stop Loss Period, based on the 
enrollment under each Attachment Point and may be recalculated during the Stop Loss 
Period due to a benefit change. 

 
1.11 “Paid Date” means the date on which a Claim payment is made by the Benefit Services 

Administrator. The Benefit Services Administrator may adjust Claims for a period of up to 
eighteen (18) months after the Claim is first processed. If a Claim is subsequently 
adjusted, the date of the final adjustment is considered the Paid Date, provided, however, 
that if a Claim is adjusted in accordance with a decision of an Independent Review 
Organization (IRO) making an external review determination under applicable law, the 
date of the Benefit Services Administrator's internal adverse benefit determination is 
considered the Paid Date for purposes of this Policy. 

342



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 3 Version: 10/18 
 

 
1.12 “Plan” means the self-funded group health plan or plans established, sponsored and 

maintained by Account, the terms of which are described in the applicable Benefits 
Document. 

 
1.13 “Plan Member” means a common law employee or other individual identified by Account 

as a person eligible and enrolled to receive health benefits under the Plan subject to the 
terms, conditions, and limitations described in the Plan documents as administered by the 
Benefit Services Administrator. 

 
1.14 “Protected Health Information” or “PHI” means the same as the term “protected health 

information” in 45 CFR §160.103. 
 
1.15 “Run-In Period” means the period of time set forth on Exhibit “A” prior to beginning of the 

Stop Loss Period, during which Claims may have Incurred Dates. 
 
1.16 “Stop Loss Claims” mean dollar amounts for Claims Eligible for Reimbursement that 

exceed the applicable Individual Deductible under this Policy. 
 
1.17 “Stop Loss Period” means the period of time set forth on Exhibit “A” or the most recent 

revision to Exhibit “A” issued to Account and attached to this Policy and incorporated by 
this reference. 

 
1.18 “Stop Loss Premium” means the amount Wellmark charges Account for stop loss 

coverage. The Stop Loss Premium may include broker fees or commissions and is shown 
on Exhibit “A”. 

 
ARTICLE 2 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF ACCOUNT 
 
2.1 Payment of Stop Loss Premiums. Wellmark shall bill Account monthly and Account 

agrees to pay Wellmark the amount of the Stop Loss Premiums and any applicable taxes 
or fees billed for the preceding month. Such payment may be made by wire transfer, 
electronic (ebilling) payment, or automatic funds withdrawal. If Account elects automatic 
funds withdrawal, it shall execute the necessary authorization, including an authorization 
for automatic withdrawal of any changed amount as reflected on Account's bill. Any 
adjustments due to membership or eligibility changes shall be reflected on the billing for 
the month in which the membership or eligibility change is made. Adjustments to Stop 
Loss Premiums shall be limited to a period of three (3) months prior to the date the Benefit 
Services Administrator processes the Member eligibility change. The bill will show the 
amounts due and will also show any credits during the preceding month. Account shall 
promptly pay Wellmark at Wellmark’s office, the total amount due, no later than the due 
date on the bill. 

 
2.2 Late Payments. All payments due from Account to Wellmark must be paid on time and 

when due in accordance with Section 2.1. If the Account fails to make payments in full 
when due, Wellmark may discontinue the reimbursement of all Stop Loss Claims for the 
Account, impose interest or late fees, or may setoff or recoup late payments from other 
amounts that may be due to Account. Payments not made when due shall include an 
interest charge on the outstanding amounts from the due date until payment is made in 
full at the then current prime rate as published periodically in the Midwest edition of The 

343



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 4 Version: 10/18 
 

Wall Street Journal plus two percent (2%). Late fees are calculated on the entire amount 
due regardless of any partial payments. The acceptance by Wellmark of any late 
payments or partial payments shall not constitute a waiver of any rights under this Policy. 
If Account fails to make payments when due for two or more consecutive months, 
Wellmark may impose additional late fees of up to eighteen percent (18%) per annum. 

 
2.3 Providing Information; Account Representations. Account shall provide all information 

and representations reasonably necessary and as may be requested by Wellmark during 
the underwriting and issuance of this Policy and to establish loss for which reimbursement 
is claimed under this Policy. Account shall provide such information in a time, form, format, 
and manner required by Wellmark and is responsible for the timeliness, integrity, retention, 
and accuracy of information and records provided to Wellmark. Wellmark shall be entitled 
to rely upon such information in underwriting and issuing this Policy and in discharging its 
responsibilities under this Policy. Account’s failure to provide complete and timely 
information may cause Stop Loss Claims to be denied. 

 
2.4 Notice of Persons Eligible for Coverage. Account or its Benefit Services Administrator 

shall notify Wellmark of individuals eligible and enrolled in the Plan and of changes in 
eligibility in accordance with the manner, time, and procedures set forth in the separate 
administrative services agreement entered into between Account and the Benefit Services 
Administrator. Notwithstanding the effective date Account establishes for Member 
eligibility, no eligibility change shall be effective under this stop loss coverage more than 
three (3) months prior to the date the Benefit Services Administrator processes the 
Member eligibility change. 

 
2.5 Right of Reimbursement or Recovery. In the event Account receives or is eligible to 

receive a payment or credit from a third-party or the Benefit Services Administrator for any 
portion of Claims, including, but not limited to, pharmaceutical manufacturer rebates, and 
Wellmark has previously paid or reimbursed Account for all or any portion of such Claims 
pursuant to this or a prior Stop Loss Policy, Account shall repay Wellmark the full amount 
of the recovery received by Account up to the full extent of Wellmark’s stop loss 
payment(s), regardless of whether this Policy is in force on the date of Account’s recovery. 
Such recovery or reimbursement cannot be used to satisfy any deductible or attachment 
point under this Policy. 

 
2.6 Third Party Liability Recovery. Account acknowledges and agrees that Wellmark, as the 

stop loss carrier, has priority of any third-party liability recovery in the event Stop Loss 
Claims for a Member have been credited to Account. Account may delegate responsibility 
for subrogation and third-party liability recovery services to Benefit Services 
Administrator’s subrogation and third-party liability recovery vendor (“Subrogation 
Vendor”) on Account’s behalf, which shall pursue and prosecute any and all subrogation 
interests or other valid claims that Account may have against a third-party or any current 
or former Member who recovers or has a right of recovery from a third-party as a 
consequence of any occurrence resulting in Claims. If Account or Subrogation Vendor 
initiates any action for recovery, Account shall notify Wellmark of such action within ten 
(10) days of filing such action. Account shall cooperate with Wellmark and, upon request 
of Wellmark, Account shall execute and deliver to Wellmark an assignment and any other 
instrument that may be necessary to secure Wellmark’s right of recovery. Account shall 
not waive any rights to pursue recovery from a third-party without Wellmark's written 
consent. 

 

344



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 5 Version: 10/18 
 

In the event Account recovers all or any portion of Claims from a third-party or from a 
current or former Member, or any Claim is reversed in full or in part due to payment or 
acceptance of responsibility by a third-party, and Wellmark has previously paid or 
reimbursed Account for all or any portion of such Claims pursuant to this or a prior Stop 
Loss Policy, Account shall repay Wellmark the full amount of the recovery received or 
Claim reversed by Account up to the full extent of Wellmark’s stop loss payment(s), 
regardless of whether this Policy is in force on the date of Account’s recovery. Such 
recovery or reimbursement cannot be used to satisfy any deductible or attachment point 
under this Policy. On a case by case basis, and only if Wellmark has agreed in writing and 
in advance, Account may reduce the amount it repays to Wellmark by reasonable and 
necessary expenses incurred directly by Account in obtaining recovery from the third 
party. 

 
ARTICLE 3 

STOP LOSS COVERAGE 
 
3.1 Individual Stop Loss Coverage. Wellmark shall reimburse Account for the amount by 

which the Claims Eligible for Reimbursement for a specific Member exceed the Individual 
Deductible amount for the specific Member shown on Exhibit “A”, subject to any Policy 
limitations set forth on Exhibit “A”. Reimbursement for Stop Loss Claims is generally 
provided as a statement credit on Account's next statement from the Benefit Services 
Administrator. All Stop Loss Claims reimbursements shall be subject to audit or review as 
provided in sections 2.3 and 4.3 of this Policy that Wellmark determines in its sole 
discretion may be required to verify a Member’s eligibility and enrollment in the Plan, verify 
the proper payment of Claims, or verify Stop Loss Claims are reimbursed correctly. 

 
3.2 Aggregate Stop Loss Coverage. Wellmark shall determine the aggregate stop loss 

coverage reimbursement as described in this Section.  
 

a. For each month of the Stop Loss Period, the monthly Claims Eligible for 
Reimbursement shall be calculated by accumulating all Claims for that month, less 
any reimbursement made under the individual stop loss coverage during the same 
Stop Loss Period, less any Claims excluded from the aggregate stop loss 
coverage. The monthly Claims Eligible for Reimbursement shall be added together 
for all months during the Stop Loss Period, resulting in the year-to-date (YTD) 
Claims Eligible for Reimbursement; 

 
b. For each month of the Stop Loss Period, the number of Plan Members in effect for 

each benefit classification shall be multiplied by the Attachment Point for each 
benefit classification shown on Exhibit “A”. The results of the calculations shall then 
be added together, resulting in the monthly Aggregate Deductible. Each monthly 
Aggregate Deductible shall be added together for all months during the Stop Loss 
Period, resulting in the year-to-date (YTD) Aggregate Deductible; and 

 
c. If the YTD Claims Eligible for Reimbursement exceed the greater of the YTD 

Aggregate Deductible or the YTD Minimum Aggregate Deductible, Wellmark shall 
reimburse Account for the excess amount within sixty (60) days after the end of 
the Stop Loss Period. If the YTD Claims Eligible for Reimbursement is less than 
the greater of the YTD Aggregate Deductible or the YTD Minimum Aggregate 
Deductible, no reimbursement by Wellmark will be made. 

345



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 6 Version: 10/18 
 

 
ARTICLE 4 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; EXAMINATION OF RECORDS 
 
4.1 Protected Health Information. The rights and responsibilities of the parties and permitted 

uses and disclosures with respect to Protected Health Information shall be set forth in the 
separately executed Business Associate Agreement.  

 
4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. The rights and responsibilities of the 

parties and permitted uses and disclosures with respect to information and data collected 
or developed by Wellmark related to Claims, cost, utilization, outcomes, quality, and 
financial performance of the Plan during the term of this Policy (“Confidential 
Information”) shall be as set forth in the separately executed administrative services 
agreement between Account and the Benefit Services Administrator. 

 
4.3 Right to Examine Records; Record Retention. Wellmark or its authorized 

representative may at its own expense examine the financial, enrollment, eligibility 
standards, and Claims records of Account, its Benefit Services Administrator(s), or other 
third parties providing services to Account, reasonably related to the administration of this 
Policy, as reasonably often as Wellmark deems appropriate, to reconcile eligibility or 
enrollment information and records or to determine appropriate payment of Stop Loss 
Claims under this Policy. Such examination may be conducted either before or after 
reimbursement of Stop Loss Claims and, if at Account's location, shall be conducted 
during regular business hours, upon reasonable advance written notice. Account shall 
provide any information reasonably requested by Wellmark. Account shall ensure that all 
records relating to the matters described in this Section 4.3 will be maintained for at least 
twenty-four (24) months following the end of the Stop Loss Period. The examination period 
may cover the most recent Stop Loss Period and the preceding twenty-four (24) months 
only, if applicable, and may cover Account's prior or third-party Benefit Services 
Administrator. 

 
4.4 Survival. Any obligations of either party to the other under this Article of the Policy survive 

any termination of this Policy. 
 

ARTICLE 5 
TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
5.1 Term; Termination of Plan or Administrative Services Agreement. This Policy shall 

become effective on the Effective Date and shall continue in force for the Stop Loss Period 
as set forth on Exhibit “A”, unless earlier terminated as provided in this Policy. If the Plan 
is terminated, or if Account’s administrative services agreement with the Benefit Services 
Administrator is terminated, this Policy shall terminate as of the date the Plan is terminated 
or as of the date the administrative services agreement is terminated, whichever is 
applicable and whichever date is earlier. 

 
5.2 Renewal Terms; Notice of Non-Renewal. This Policy may be renewed for successive 

Stop Loss Periods only when a new or amended Policy with an updated Exhibit “A” 
specifying a new Stop Loss Period is issued and executed by Wellmark. Wellmark shall 
have the right to change the Stop Loss Premiums for any renewal term as reflected on an 
updated Exhibit “A”. If Wellmark decides not to renew the Policy, it shall provide Account 

346



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 7 Version: 10/18 
 

written notice of non-renewal at least forty-five (45) days prior to the end of the Stop Loss 
Period. 

 
5.3 Termination for Nonpayment. Wellmark may terminate this Policy at any time, upon ten 

(10) days written notice to Account, if Account fails to make complete payments, including 
late fees, when due in accordance with this Policy. The notice shall include the reason for 
the termination. Wellmark may recoup or setoff from any Stop Loss Claims any premiums 
or other fees or amounts owed to Wellmark or to Benefit Services Administrator by 
Account. 

 
5.4 Effects of Termination. If Wellmark terminates this Policy for nonpayment by the 

Account, Wellmark shall not reimburse Account for Claims Eligible for Reimbursement 
beyond the effective date of the termination regardless of when services were received or 
the Claims were paid. If this Policy terminates other than at the expiration of the Stop Loss 
Period, the effective date of the termination shall become the end of the Stop Loss Period. 

 
5.5 Survival. Any liability of either party to the other for amounts owed or owing under this 

Policy, unless such amounts are de minimus, shall not be extinguished by the termination 
of this Policy. 

 
ARTICLE 6 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
6.1 Complete Policy; Amendment. This Policy, including any exhibits or amendments, 

constitutes the complete and exclusive agreement and statement of relationship between 
the parties with regard to the subject matter of this Policy and supersedes all related 
discussions, proposals, prior policies, agreements, understandings, prior and concurrent 
agreements, representations and warranties, whether oral or written, and any other 
communications between the parties in regard to the subject matter of this Policy. 
Changes or amendments to this Policy shall be effective only when the written amendment 
has been signed by an authorized representative of Wellmark and delivered in accordance 
with Section 6.10. This Policy shall take precedence over any other documents that may 
be in conflict with it. 

 
6.2 Change of Policy. If Account makes changes in the Plan or Benefits Documents, Account 

shall give Wellmark sufficient advance written notice of such changes. If Account makes 
any material changes in the Plan administered by the Benefit Services Administrator, or if 
material changes are required by law, including the addition or deletion of benefits, a 
material change in group composition or membership or eligibility requirements, such as 
an increase in the ratio of family to single contracts of twenty percent (20%) or more, a 
change in the number of eligible individuals of ten percent (10%) or more, percentage of 
individuals enrolled, type of coverage offered, business entities covered, change in Benefit 
Services Administrator, or offerings of other health insurers’ coverage to eligible 
individuals, Wellmark shall have the right at its option to amend this Policy, including an 
adjustment of stop loss premiums or Individual Deductible shown on Exhibit “A”, or 
terminate this Policy. 

 
6.3 Provider Payment Arrangements; Claims Submission. The Benefit Services 

Administrator has entered into payment arrangements or contracts with health care 
providers or other service providers that affect the submission, timing, frequency, and the 
amount of payment of Claims. Not all health care providers participate in or agree to such 

347



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 8 Version: 10/18 
 

payment arrangements and the Benefit Services Administrator does not determine, direct, 
or control the timing or accuracy of any Claims submissions. Claims do not become Claims 
Eligible for Reimbursement unless both the Incurred Dates and Paid Dates are within the 
required periods set forth in this Policy and Exhibit “A”. 

 
6.4 State of Issue; Applicable Law and Venue. The Policy is issued and delivered in the 

state of Iowa and is performed at Wellmark's offices in Des Moines, Iowa. To the extent 
not superseded by the laws of the United States and without regard to any conflict of law 
rule, this Policy shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the 
state of Iowa. Any action in regard to this Policy or arising out of the terms of this Policy 
shall be instituted and litigated in the Iowa District Court or the United States District Court 
located in Des Moines, Polk County, Iowa, and no other. 

 
6.5 Force Majeure. The parties to this Policy shall be excused from performance under this 

Policy for any period and to the extent they are delayed, restricted, or prevented from 
performing under this Policy (other than payment) as a result of an act of God, war, civil 
disturbance, court order, labor dispute, acts of terrorism, or other cause beyond their 
reasonable control and such nonperformance shall not be grounds for termination or 
default. 

 
6.6 Limitation of Action. Notwithstanding Sections 4.4 and 5.5, no legal or equitable action 

or claim may be brought against Wellmark for an action or claim arising under or relating 
to this Policy more than two (2) years after the cause of action arose. 

 
6.7 Assignment. The Policy shall be binding on the parties and their respective successors 

and permitted assigns. Neither party may assign this Policy, in whole or in part, without 
the prior written consent of the other; provided, however, Wellmark may assign this Policy, 
in whole or in part, to any entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control 
with Wellmark. 

 
6.8 Waiver. The failure of any party to enforce any terms or provisions of the Policy shall not 

be deemed or construed to be a waiver of the enforceability of such provision. Similarly, 
the failure to enforce any remedy arising from a default under the terms of the Policy shall 
not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of such default. Any waiver of any provision of 
this Policy, and any consent to any departure from the terms of any provision of this Policy, 
shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which made 
or given. 

 
6.9 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Policy is for the benefit of Account and Wellmark and 

not for any other person. It shall not create any legal relationship between Wellmark and 
any employee, Member, or any other party claiming any right, whether legal or equitable, 
under the terms of this Policy or of the Plan. 

 
6.10 Notices and Communication. The parties shall be entitled to rely upon any 

communication or notice from the other in connection with this Policy to be genuine, 
truthful, and accurate, and to have been authorized, signed, or issued by an officer or 
agent of such entity empowered to make such representation on behalf of the entity. 

 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Policy shall be in writing and be 
deemed given when delivered personally, placed in the U.S. mail (postage prepaid), 
delivered to a recognized courier service for delivery (delivery charges prepaid) or sent by 

348



 

IA Wellmark, Inc. LG SLP 9 Version: 10/18 
 

electronic means and addressed to the last address furnished by the respective party. 
Until another address is furnished in writing, notice to Account may be addressed to the 
address shown on Exhibit “A” attached to this Policy. 

 
Notice to Wellmark may be addressed: 

 
Wellmark, Inc. 
Attention: Procurement and Contracts 
1331 Grand Avenue 
Des Moines, Iowa  50309-2901 

 
ARTICLE 7 

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD DISCLOSURE 
 
7.1 Blue Cross and Blue Shield Disclosure Statement. Account hereby expressly 

acknowledges its understanding this Policy constitutes a contract solely between Account 
and Wellmark, which is an independent corporation operating under licenses from the 
Blue Cross Blue Shield Association, an association of independent Blue Cross and Blue 
Shield Plans (BCBSA), permitting Wellmark to use the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Service 
Marks in the state of Iowa, and that Wellmark is not contracting as the agent of BCBSA. 
Account further acknowledges and agrees that it has not entered into this Policy based 
upon representations by any person other than Wellmark and that no person, entity, or 
organization other than Wellmark shall be accountable or liable to Account for any of 
Wellmark’s obligations to Account created under this Policy. This section shall not create 
any additional obligations whatsoever on the part of Wellmark other than those obligations 
created under other provisions of this Policy. 

 
ARTICLE 8 

EFFECTIVENESS OF POLICY AND WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL 
 

THIS POLICY shall be deemed to be effective and in full force as of the Effective Date indicated 
on the first page of the Policy and upon the affixation of Wellmark’s authorized signature below 
and the Account’s payment to Wellmark of the premium required by this Policy. ACCOUNT AND 
WELLMARK WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL WITH RESPECT TO AND IN ANY 
ACTION, PROCEEDING, CLAIM, COUNTERCLAIM, DEMAND OR OTHER MATTER 
WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OF THIS POLICY. 
 
 Wellmark, Inc. 
 
 

 
 
By:   

 

 
 David S. Brown 

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 
and Treasurer 

 
  

 

349



Stop Loss Policy  

Exhibit "A" - Stop Loss Premiums and Financial Terms

Wellmark, Inc.

Account Full Name and Address

City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, IA  50613-2726

Benefit Services Administrator(s)

Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota

Express ScriptsPharmacy Benefits Manager:

The Stop Loss Period begins on 7/01/2019 and ends on 6/30/2020. 

Stop Loss Period:

Claims Eligible for Reimbursement. Claims shall be considered for reimbursement under this 

Policy only if all of the following conditions are completely satisfied as determined by Wellmark.

Stop loss coverage is administered with a Run-in Period as a 24/12 arrangement, which means:

-  The Claims shall have Incurred Dates within the Stop Loss Period or within 12 months prior to 

the beginning of the Stop Loss Period (the Run-in Period); and

-  The Claims shall have Paid Dates within the Stop Loss Period. 

Claims with Paid Dates following the end of the Stop Loss Period are not Claims Eligible for 

Reimbursement. 

$116.82

Monthly Stop Loss Premiums-Health (subject to any policy limitations listed below):

per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on last day of billing month.

Individual Stop Loss Coverage (subject to any policy limitations  listed below):

Individual Deductible: $85,000 per Member

Covered Benefits: Health  X   PharmacyX

Aggregate Stop Loss Coverage (subject to any policy limitations  listed below):

Aggregate Deductible:  125 % of expected Paid Claims.

Covered Benefits: X Health Dental                  X    Pharmacy 
Attachment Point: per Plan Member per month based on active Plan Members on last day of 

billing month.

FamilySingle

$782.98 $1,957.45AS 500 Non-Union

$782.98 $1,957.45AS 500 Union

Policy Limitation(s):

Claims in excess of the Account's Individual Stop Loss deductible level will not be covered 

under the Aggregate Stop Loss coverage. 

Any adjustments to monthly stop loss premiums and attachment points due to membership or 

eligibility changes shall be reflected on the billing for the month in which the membership or eligibility

change is made and shall be limited to a period of three (3) months prior to the date Wellmark

processes the Member eligibility change.

379Page 1 of 2
Confidential & Proprietary – Confidential Treatment Requested - Iowa Code § 22.7

350



Stop Loss Policy  

Exhibit "A" - Stop Loss Premiums and Financial Terms

Wellmark, Inc.

Exhibit "A" Issue Date: 6/11/2019

379Page 2 of 2
Confidential & Proprietary – Confidential Treatment Requested - Iowa Code § 22.7

351



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS 

OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
 

    M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Paul Kockler, Accountant 

 DATE: June 10, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Agreement with Express Scripts, Inc. to provide pharmacy benefit 

management services & agreement to join Gallagher Pharmacy 

Alliance  

 

Attached for your approval is an agreement between the City and Express Script’s Inc. 
(“ESI”) to join the Gallagher Pharmacy Alliance effective July 1, 2019, in which ESI would 
continue to provide pharmacy benefit management services to the City, under the 
improved financial terms negotiated between the Gallagher Pharmacy Alliance and ESI. 
There are to be no changes to the services ESI will provide to the City or the current drug 
formularies covered by the City’s prescription drug plan. If you have questions regarding 
the attached, please contact me at 268-5101 or Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108. 
 
 
Attachments 

352



4085690.v13 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

FORM OF CLIENT AGREEMENT 

 

CLIENT AGREEMENT 

Client Name: City of Cedar Falls 

Client Tax ID Number:      

Gallagher Pharmacy Alliance     

Broker Name: Gallagher 

Effective Date: July 1, 2019 

End Date: June 30, 2021 

Initial Term of Client Agreement: 24 Months 

 

Contact Information: Client Information Gallagher Information Broker Information 

Contact Person: 

(Name & Title) 
Paul Kockler Laura Mendise       

Company Name: City of Cedar Falls Gallagher       

Street Address: 220 Clay Street             

City/State/Zip Code: Cedar Falls, IA 50613              

Phone Number: 319.268.5101             

Fax Number:                   

 

Management Reporting:  Party to receive Management Reports?  Gallagher    Client    Broker - Person’s 

Name:       

 

Payor: The party that will be responsible for payments to ESI under the prescription drug program will be the 

Client   

 

Medium on which Invoice is to be sent (check one or two):   Hard Copy (and)    Magnetic Tape (or)  

 Diskette 

 

Do you want Member names to appear on Billing Statement?  Yes     No 

 

ESI and Gallagher have entered into that certain prescription drug program Agreement (“PBM Agreement”), which 

sets forth certain terms and conditions associated with ESI’s, either directly or through its subsidiaries or affiliates, 

provision of pharmacy benefit management services (which, under this Client Agreement shall be exclusive for all 

of Client’s self-funded welfare benefit plans that offer a prescription benefit, including, but not limited to, pharmacy 

network contracting; pharmacy claims processing; mail and specialty drug pharmacy; cost containment, clinical, 

safety, adherence and other like programs; and formulary administration (“PBM Services”).  The PBM Agreement 

is incorporated herein for all purposes.  To the extent not defined herein, capitalized terms shall have the meaning 

ascribed to them in the PBM Agreement.   

  

  

(For Express Scripts 

Internal Use) 

 

DIV#    

BPL    

GROUP #:  

  

SALES DIRECTOR: 

  

INDUSTRY TYPE: 

  

 

353



4085690.v13 2 

1. Plan Design; Commencement of Services.  

Client agrees that the PBM Services should be 

provided in accordance with the PBM Agreement, 

this Client Agreement, and the specific benefit 

design reflected on the ESI Set-Up Forms adopted by 

Client or Gallagher on behalf of Client (if ESI assists 

Client with completion of the Set-Up Forms, it will 

send Client or Gallagher the completed Set-Up 

Forms for review and Client agrees that such 

documentation will constitute the governing Set-Up 

Forms for Client unless Client notifies ESI in writing 

within thirty days of receipt of the completed 

documentation of any discrepancies therein, in 

which case the parties shall work together in an 

expeditious manner to correct such discrepancies 

and issue a revised Set-Up Forms).  If Client already 

has on file with ESI any Set-Up Forms or similar set-

up documentation as of the date Client executes this 

Client Agreement, Client adopts and directs ESI to 

use such Set-Up Forms until ESI is otherwise 

directed in writing by Client. 

 

2. Eligibility of Members.  Client or Gallagher 

shall provide ESI with an initial Eligibility File under 

a mutually agreeable time frame prior to the effective 

date of Client’s prescription drug program, and 

updates thereto shall be provided to ESI on a 

mutually determined basis.  All Eligibility Files shall 

be submitted on-line, or on tape or disk in a format 

that is acceptable to ESI. Eligibility performed 

manually by ESI for Gallagher or Client, or material 

changes to the Eligibility File processes requested by 

Gallagher or Client during the term may be subject 

to additional charges as set forth in Exhibit B of the 

PBM Agreement.  Client will be responsible for all 

Prescription Drug Claims during the period of the 

Member’s eligibility as indicated on the Eligibility 

File including for retroactively termed Members, 

except in the event of ESI’s negligence. 

 

3. Pharmacy Network.  

(a)  Participating Pharmacies.  Members 

may obtain prescriptions for Covered Drugs through 

the Participating Pharmacy network selected by 

Client.  ESI shall direct Participating Pharmacies to 

charge and collect the applicable Copayment from 

Members for each Covered Drug dispensed; 

provided, a Member’s Copayment charged for a 

Covered Drug will be the lesser of the applicable 

Copayment, AWP discount or U&C.  ESI will 

maintain a network(s) of Participating Pharmacies as 

identified in Exhibit B, and will make available an 

updated list of Participating Pharmacies on-line. ESI 

maintains multiple networks and subnetworks, and 

periodically consolidates networks or migrates clients to 

other networks and subnetworks.  If, due to an access 

concern, Gallagher or Client requests that ESI attempt 

to add a particular retail pharmacy to the network of 

Participating Pharmacies serving Client and its 

Members hereunder, ESI will make commercially 

reasonable efforts to add any such pharmacy to the 

Participating Pharmacy network for Gallagher or Client, 

provided that such pharmacy meets ESI’s network 

participation requirements and agrees to ESI’s standard 

terms and conditions.   If any such Participating 

Pharmacy meets ESI’s network participation 

requirements and agrees to ESI’s standard terms and 

conditions except for ESI’s standard network rates (i.e., 

the particular pharmacy will only agree to higher than 

standard reimbursement rates), and Gallagher or Client 

nevertheless requests that ESI add such pharmacy, the 

rate charged to Client for Prescription Drug Claims 

processed through such pharmacy (assuming ESI agrees 

to contract with such pharmacy)  will be the net 

ingredient cost plus the dispensing fee paid by ESI to 

such Participating Pharmacy (plus applicable sales or 

excise tax or other governmental surcharge, if any).  All 

such Prescription Drug Claims will be excluded from 

the pricing guarantees set forth in Exhibit B.  

(i) ESI will require each Participating 

Pharmacy to meet ESI’s network participation 

requirements, including but not limited to licensure, 

insurance and provider agreement requirements.  

ESI also provides a standard suite of pharmacy audit 

services to determine Participating Pharmacies’ 

compliance with their provider agreement billing 

requirements.  ESI will attempt recovery of 

identified overpayments through offset, demand or 

other reasonable means; provided that ESI will not 

be required to institute litigation. Recovered 

overpayments are credited to Gallagher.  To 

compensate ESI for the cost of conducting audits 

and audit-related services, Copies of participation 

requirements and auditing processes are available 

upon request.   

(ii) ESI does not direct or exercise any 

control over the Participating Pharmacies or the 

professional judgment exercised by any pharmacist 

in dispensing prescriptions or otherwise providing 

pharmaceutical related services at a Participating 

Pharmacy.  ESI shall have no liability to Gallagher 

or Client, any Member or any other person or entity 

for any act or omission of any Participating 

Pharmacy or it agents or employees. 

(b) Mail Service Pharmacy.  Members may 

have prescriptions filled through the Mail Service 

354



4085690.v13 3 

Pharmacy.  Subject to applicable law, ESI may 

communicate with Members regarding benefit 

design, cost savings, availability and use of the Mail 

Service Pharmacy, as well as provide supporting 

services. ESI may suspend Mail Service Pharmacy 

services to a Member who is in default of any 

Copayment amount due ESI.  Client will be 

responsible for any unpaid Member Copayment 

amounts if payment has not been received from the 

Member within one hundred twenty (120) days 

following dispensing.  Client will be billed following 

the one hundred twenty (120) day collection period, 

with payment due in accordance with the payment 

terms set forth in Section 8 of this Agreement. 

 (c) Specialty Products and ASES.  

Members may have prescriptions filled through ESI 

Specialty Pharmacy.  Subject to applicable law, ESI 

and ESI Specialty Pharmacy may communicate with 

Members and physicians to advise Members filling 

Specialty Products at Participating Pharmacies of the 

availability of filling prescriptions through ESI 

Specialty Pharmacy.  Specialty Products will be 

excluded from any price guarantees set forth in the 

PBM Agreement.  In no event will the Mail Service 

Pharmacy or Participating Pharmacy pricing 

specified in the PBM Agreement apply to Specialty 

Products.   

 (i) ESI will notify Client no more 

frequently than monthly of new Specialty Products 

that are introduced to the market on or after the 

Effective Date of this Agreement with their 

applicable reimbursement rates (“Notice”).  The 

parties agree as follows: 

(A)  If Client has expressly excluded a 

specific therapy class or product on a Set-

Up Form, Specialty Products in such 

excluded classes will automatically be 

deemed excluded from coverage and will 

reject as “NDC Not Covered” through 

Participating Pharmacies, Mail Service 

Pharmacy and ESI Specialty Pharmacy; 

otherwise, subject to (B) below, all other 

Specialty Products will be implemented as 

Covered Drugs at the rate specified in the 

applicable Specialty Product list or Notice.  

If Client desires to cover otherwise 

excluded Specialty Products, Client must 

notify ESI in writing that it desires to 

cover the Specialty Product before ESI 

will adjudicate as a Covered Drug, and if 

ESI receives such confirmation of 

coverage from Client such Specialty 

Product will be loaded thereafter as a 

Covered Drug at the applicable 

reimbursement rate set forth in the Notice.   

(B)    Client must notify ESI in writing if it 

wants to exclude the Specialty Product from 

coverage.  The exclusion will be implemented 

within seven (7) business days after the date of 

ESI’s receipt of such notification.  There will 

not be any retroactive denials for Prescription 

Drug Claims processed prior to ESI’s receipt of 

the rejection notice and implementation of the 

exclusion as provided above and Client will be 

responsible for the payment of such 

Prescription Drug Claims processed prior to the 

rejection of coverage.   

(ii) For Specialty Products filled through 

ESI Specialty Pharmacy only, Members may 

receive the following services from ESI Specialty 

Pharmacy, depending on the particular therapy class 

or disease state:  ASES; patient intake services; 

pharmacy dispensing services and/or social services 

(patient advocacy, hardship reimbursement support, 

and indigent and patient assistance programs). 

(iii) Subject to Client’s prior authorization 

requirements, if applicable, at the rates set forth in 

Exhibit B, ESI will provide or coordinate ASES for 

Members through ESI Specialty Pharmacy or 

through other specialty pharmacies or other 

independent third party providers of ASES when 

ASES is required.  If ESI or ESI Specialty Pharmacy 

engages a third party provider of ASES, ESI or ESI 

Specialty Pharmacy shall contractually obligate 

such third party provider of ASES to comply with 

all applicable laws, including, without limitation, all 

applicable laws relating to professional licensure. 

ESI does not direct or exercise any control over any 

third party provider of ASES in administering 

Specialty Products or otherwise providing ASES. 

 (iv) Ancillary supplies, equipment, 

and services provided or coordinated in connection 

with the dispensing of Specialty Products at 

Participating Pharmacies (for example, limited 

distribution products not then available through ESI 

Specialty Pharmacy or overrides) will be billed to 

Client at the cost charged to ESI for such ancillary 

supplies, equipment, and services provided or 

coordinated, unless such ancillary supplies, 

equipment, and services provided or coordinated are 

included in the ingredient cost of the Specialty 

Product. 

    

  

355



4085690.v13 4 

 

4. Claims Processing.  

 (a) Claims Processing. 

A. ESI will perform claims processing 

services for Covered Drugs dispensed by 

Participating Pharmacies, Mail Service and ESI 

Specialty Pharmacy.   

B. In connection with each prescription 

submitted for processing on-line by a 

Participating Pharmacy, ESI will perform 

standard drug utilization review (“DUR”)  in 

order to assist the dispensing pharmacist and 

prescribing physician in identifying potential 

drug interactions, incorrect prescriptions or 

dosages, and certain other circumstances that 

may be indicative of inappropriate prescription 

drug usage.  ESI’s DUR processes are not 

intended to substitute for the professional 

judgment of the prescriber, the dispensing 

pharmacist or any other health care professional 

providing services to the Member. 

C. If elected by Gallagher or Client, 

ESI will process Member Submitted Claims in 

accordance with the rules in the Set-Up Forms 

and ESI’s standard procedures. 

D. If authorized by Gallagher or Client 

on the Set-Up Forms, ESI will process 

Subrogation Claims in accordance with 

applicable federal and state laws, in which case 

Client will pay such Subrogation Claims in 

accordance with Article IV of the PBM 

Agreement, Section 8 of this Client Agreement 

and Exhibit B.  If Gallagher or Client does not 

authorize ESI to process Subrogation Claims, 

ESI will reject the claim and refer claimants to 

Client regarding such claims, in accordance with 

applicable federal and state laws.  ESI is not 

legally responsible to pay Subrogation Claims to 

the extent Client is not timely paying ESI with 

respect to such Subrogation Claims. 

E. Client or its third party designee (as 

applicable) will have the final responsibility for 

all decisions with respect to coverage of a 

Prescription Drug Claim and the benefits 

allowable under the Plan, including determining 

whether any rejected or disputed claim will be 

allowed.        

 (b) Prior Authorization.  For the fees set 

forth in the Clinical Addendum described in 

Exhibit B of the PBM Agreement (if applicable), 

ESI shall provide prior authorization (“PA”) 

services as specified by Client on the Set-Up 

Form.  PA drugs must meet Client-approved 

guidelines (“Guidelines”) before they are deemed to 

be Covered Drugs.  Unless Client otherwise directs, 

Client hereby authorizes coverage for an otherwise 

excluded use in the event of co-morbidities, 

complications and other factors not otherwise 

expressly set forth in the Guidelines.  In determining 

whether to authorize coverage of such drug under 

the PA Program, ESI shall apply only the 

Guidelines and may rely entirely upon information 

about the Member and the diagnosis of the Member’ 

s condition provided to it from sources deemed 

reliable to ESI.  If prior authorization for a 

medication is not immediately available, a 72-hour 

emergency supply may be dispensed when the 

pharmacist on duty recommends it as clinically 

appropriate and when the medication is needed 

without delay. ESI shall not undertake to determine 

medical necessity, to make diagnoses or substitute 

ESI’s judgment for the professional judgment and 

responsibility of the prescriber.  

(c) Claims for Benefits.  ESI will process initial 

“claims for benefits” for Member Submitted Claims and 

PA requests consistent with the ERISA claims rules set 

forth in 29 CFR Part 2560 (or applicable state law if a 

non-ERISA plan) (“Claims Rules”).  ESI may elect to 

have ESI perform appeals services in connection with 

denied “claims for benefits” for the fees set forth in 

Exhibit B, or facilitate such services through Client or a 

third party of Client’s choice.  If Client elects to conduct 

its own appeals or facilitate through a third party of 

Client’s choice, ESI will route Member appeals to Client 

or other Client designated entity.  If Client elects to have 

ESI perform appeals services, Client agrees that ESI 

may perform such services through the UM Company.  

Through its contract with ESI, the UM Company has 

agreed to be, and will serve as, the named fiduciary for 

its performance of such appeals.  ESI also agrees to 

accept fiduciary status solely with respect to its 

performance of any appeal. 

(d) UM Company.  In the event ESI performs 

appeals services, or facilitates the performance of 

appeals services through the UM Company, ESI or 

the UM Company, as applicable, will be responsible 

for conducting the appeal on behalf of Client in 

accordance with the Claims Rules.  ESI represents 

to Client that UM Company has contractually 

agreed that: (A) UM Company will conduct appeals 

in accordance with the Claims Rules and Client’s 

plan, (B) Client is a third party beneficiary of UM 

Company’s agreement with ESI (a copy of which is 

available upon request) and the remedies set forth 

therein, and (C) UM Company will indemnify 

Client for third party claims caused by the UM 

356



4085690.v13 5 

Company’s negligence or willful misconduct in 

providing the appeal services.    

(e) External Review Services. 

(i) ESI will not conduct any external 

review services (as defined in the Patient 

Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 and 

its implementing regulations (“PPACA”)); 

provided, however, Client may elect to have UM 

Company facilitate the provision of external 

review services through UM Company 

contracted IROs (as such term is defined in 

PPACA), for the fees set forth on Exhibit B 

below (if applicable).  Client must execute a 

standard ESI “External Appeals Services” Set-

Up Form, which may be requested through ESI 

Account Management, in order to receive such 

services from UM Company. 

(ii) In the event that Client elects to 

utilize UM Company to facilitate the provision 

of external review services through UM 

Company contracted IROs, UM Company will 

be responsible for facilitating all such appeals 

(and the IROs will be responsible for providing 

all such appeals) in accordance with PPACA and 

all other applicable federal and state laws, and 

Client hereby acknowledges and agrees that: 

(iii) UM Company (with respect to 

facilitating the external reviews) and the IROs 

(with respect to performing the external 

reviews), and not ESI, will be providing external 

review services; UM Company is an 

independent contractor of ESI; the IROs are 

independent contractors of UM Company and 

not ESI; and ESI does not in any way control or 

direct either UM Company or the IROs with 

respect to facilitation or performance of external 

review services provided by each respectively. 

(ii) ESI represents to Client that UM 

Company has contractually agreed that: (A) UM 

Company will facilitate all external review 

services in accordance with PPACA and all other 

applicable federal and state laws; (B) UM 

Company will contractually require its 

contracted IROs to perform all external reviews 

in accordance with PPACA and all other 

applicable federal and state laws; (C) to the 

extent not prohibited by law, UM Company will 

indemnify, defend and hold Client harmless 

from and against any and all losses, damages, 

injuries, causes of action, claims, demands and 

expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees, 

costs and expenses), arising out of, resulting 

from, or related to any act, omission or default 

by the IROs in their performance of the external 

reviews; and (D) Client has third party beneficiary 

rights to enforce the preceding indemnification and 

hold harmless provision. 

 

5.  Formulary Adherence and Clinical Programs.  

ESI may provide clinical, safety, adherence and other 

like programs as appropriate.  The Clinical Addendum 

described in Exhibit B-2 sets forth certain available 

adherence, clinical, safety and/or trend programs that 

require additional fees hereunder.  ESI will not 

implement any program for which Gallagher or Client 

may incur an additional fee without Gallagher’s or 

Client’s prior written approval and election of such 

program.  

 

6. Medicare (QRPDP) Services.  If Client 

establishes a qualified retiree prescription drug plan 

(“QRPDP”) under Medicare for the purpose of applying 

for subsidy payments as defined under 42 CFR 

§423.886 it may request ESI to provide the supporting 

services to such QRPDP under the terms and conditions 

of such services by executing ESI’s standard subsidy 

election form and agreeing to the fees set forth in 

Exhibit B of the PBM Agreement. 

 

7. Billing and Payments.   

 (a) Client shall be responsible to ESI for 

timely payment of all Fees under one of the payment 

methods below specified.  ESI will bill Client weekly 

for all applicable claims reimbursement amounts 

(“Claims Reimbursements”) and other administrative 

fees (“Administrative Fees”)  pursuant to the terms 

specified in the PBM Agreement relating to the program 

selected by Client (as communicated to ESI by Client or 

Gallagher) (“Claims Reimbursements,” 

“Administrative Fees” and any other charge or fee that 

is the responsibility of Client as may be described 

elsewhere in the PBM Agreement or this Client 

Agreement are hereinafter referred to collectively as 

“Fees”).   

 (b) Client shall pay all Fees within the 

following time period, depending on the form of 

payment: 

□ Client wire transfer to a bank account 

designated by ESI within 7 calendar days of receipt of 

ESI’s bill (First Chicago NBD, A Bank One Company, 

One First National Plaza, Chicago, IL 60670-0196, 

Bank ABA#071000013, Account Name: Express 

Scripts, Inc., Account No. 10-16856). 

□ Client ACH transfer based on its written 

authorization, initiated by ESI within 7 calendar days of 

receipt of ESI’s bill. 

357



4085690.v13 6 

 (c) Any Fees not paid by Client on the 

due date set forth above shall bear interest at the rate 

of 1.5% per month or, if lower, the highest interest 

rate permitted by law, and the Client shall be liable 

for payment of the interest to ESI.  The Client shall 

promptly reimburse ESI for all collection costs and 

expenses incurred by ESI, including but not limited 

to attorneys’ fees, in connection with attempting to 

recover overdue Fee payments.   

 (d) In the event Client is delinquent in 

payment of Fees for two consecutive billing cycles, 

or ESI has reasonable grounds (as determined in 

good faith) for insecurity as to the ability of Client, 

to meet its financial commitments hereunder, ESI 

shall have the option to require that Client provide 

ESI with a deposit in an amount equal to the average 

monthly invoice amount for the previous three (3) 

months, or if there is less than three (3) months 

billing history, then such deposit shall be based on 

the average monthly invoice of the actual billing 

history.  ESI shall retain the deposit until the earlier 

of: (i) termination of the Client Agreement 

(following any run-off period), or (ii) six consecutive 

months of timely payments of all Fees following 

submission of the deposit, and may apply the deposit 

to unpaid balances of Fees until return of the deposit.  

Upon 48 hours written notice to Client and 

Gallagher, ESI (and its wholly owned subsidiaries) 

shall be entitled to immediately suspend 

performance under this Client Agreement if Client 

fails to pay ESI in accordance with the terms of this 

Client Agreement or fails to promptly provide a 

deposit required by this Section (or such deposit 

becomes insufficient to cover delinquent Fees and 

the responsible party does not promptly replenish 

such deposit upon notice). 

 (e) Client shall be responsible for and 

shall pay ESI in accordance with this Agreement for 

all claims for Covered Drugs dispensed and services 

provided to Clients and Members on or before the 

effective date of termination (“Termination Date”).  

Claims submitted by Participating Pharmacies or 

Member Submitted Claims filed with ESI after the 

Termination Date shall be processed and adjudicated 

in accordance with a mutually determined run-off 

plan.  Upon termination of this Agreement, ESI 

agrees to remit to Gallagher (or Client, if applicable) 

after the Termination Date all outstanding Rebate 

amounts earned and collected as a result of 

prescriptions utilized by Members on or before the 

Termination Date.  Rebates will be paid to the 

Gallagher (or Client, if applicable) under the 

regularly established payment process outlined in 

Exhibit B of the PBM Agreement.  Notwithstanding the 

preceding, ESI may (i) delay payment of any final 

Rebates or other amounts due Gallagher (or Client, if 

applicable), if any, to allow for final reconciliation of 

any outstanding amounts owed by Gallagher or Client 

to ESI, or (ii) request that Client pay a reasonable 

deposit in the event ESI is requested to process after the 

Termination Date claims incurred on or prior to such 

date.  Upon request of Client, ESI shall provide at no 

cost open refill files and standard claims data for 

transition to the successor pharmacy vendor in 

accordance with current industry protocol.  

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the 

contrary, ESI shall not be obligated to provide post-

transition services following the transition to the 

successor pharmacy benefit manager and conclusion of 

the run-off period, including, but not limited to, the 

provision of continued data reporting, reporting, 

consultation, or analysis. 

  

 

8. Use of Records; HIPAA and Business 

Associate Agreement Terms.  Subject to applicable law, 

ESI may communicate with Members regarding benefit 

design cost savings, availability, use of the Mail Service 

and ESI Specialty Pharmacies, and related items as 

necessary to conduct applicable clinical and/or trend 

programs.  ESI or its affiliates may use and disclose both 

during and after the term of this Agreement the 

anonymized claims data (de-identified in accordance 

with HIPAA) including drug and related medical data 

collected by ESI or provided to ESI by Client or 

Gallagher for research; provider profiling; 

benchmarking, drug trend, and cost and other internal 

analyses and comparisons; clinical, safety and/or trend 

programs; ASES; or other business purposes of ESI or 

its affiliates, in all cases subject to applicable law.  ESI 

agrees to comply with the business associate provisions 

of HIPAA, and the Business Associate Agreement 

posted at www.express-scripts.com, the terms and 

conditions of which are incorporated herein by 

reference.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties 

acknowledge that in providing services to Members, 

ESI Specialty Pharmacy and the Mail Service Pharmacy 

are acting as separate health care provider covered 

entities under HIPAA and not as business associates to 

the Plan covered by the Business Associate Agreement.  

In providing services, ESI Specialty Pharmacy and the 

Mail Services Pharmacy shall abide by all HIPAA 

requirements applicable to covered entities and shall 

safeguard, use and disclose Member PHI accordingly. 

 

358



4085690.v13 7 

9. Client Audits.  Provided that this Client 

Agreement has been duly executed by Client and 

Client is current in the payment of invoices under 

this Client Agreement, Client may, upon no less than 

thirty (30) days prior written request, audit ESI’s 

provision of services hereunder, the scope of which 

shall be to verify regulatory compliance and/or 

compliance with the financial terms of this Client 

Agreement, on an annual basis consistent with the 

Audit Protocol set forth in Exhibit C of the PBM 

Agreement.  Client may use an independent third 

party auditor (“Auditor”), so long as such Auditor is 

not engaged in providing services for Client or 

otherwise that conflict with the scope or independent 

nature of the audit (as determined by ESI acting 

reasonably and in good faith), and provided that 

Client’s Auditor executes a mutually acceptable 

confidentiality agreement.  Client may also not use 

an Auditor that has a conflict of interest with 

Gallagher.  Any request by Client to permit an 

Auditor to perform an audit will constitute Client’s 

direction and authorization to ESI to disclose PHI to 

the Auditor.   If Gallagher has audited the 

prescription drug program on behalf of its clients, 

Client may not audit ESI for the same time frame or 

claims. 

 

10. Compliance with Law; Change in Law.   

(a) Each party shall be responsible for 

ensuring its compliance with any laws and 

regulations applicable to its business, including 

maintaining any necessary licenses and permits.  

Client shall be responsible for any governmental or 

regulatory charges and taxes  imposed upon or 

related to  the services provided under the PBM 

Agreement or this Client Agreement  .  If there is a 

new or change in federal, state or local law, court 

decisions, or regulations or the interpretation thereof, 

or any government, judicial or legal action that, 

among other things, materially burdens ESI, requires 

ESI to increase payments or shorten payment times 

for Covered Drugs to Participating Pharmacies, or 

materially changes the scope of services hereunder 

(a “Change in Law”), then there shall be an 

appropriate modification of the services, 

reimbursement rates, Administrative Fees and/or 

Rebates hereunder.    If the parties cannot agree on 

an adjusted fee, then either party may terminate this 

Client Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior written 

notice to the non-terminating party. 

  

(b) Client shall be responsible for 

disclosing, or shall direct Gallagher to disclose, to 

Members any and all information relating to the 

prescription drug program to the extent required by law.  

It shall be Client’s obligation to communicate the terms 

of the prescription drug program to Members and to 

provide Members with any documents required under 

ERISA (e.g., SPD) or other applicable law.  Client 

agrees that, except for the limited purpose set forth 

in Section 4,  ESI is not a fiduciary and Client will 

not name ESI or any of ESI’s wholly-owned 

subsidiaries or affiliates as a fiduciary (as defined 

under ERISA or state law) of its plan.  Client agrees 

that neither ESI nor any of ESI’s wholly-owned 

subsidiaries or affiliates have any power to make any 

decisions as to plan policy, interpretations, practices 

or procedures, but rather provides administrative 

services within a framework of policies, guidelines, 

rules, practices and procedures chosen by Client or 

Gallagher.  Neither ESI nor any of ESI’s wholly-

owned subsidiaries or affiliates have discretionary 

authority or control respecting management of 

Client’s plan except as set forth in Section 4 and do 

not exercise any authority or control respecting the 

management or disposition of the assets of Client’s 

plan, if any exist. 
 

 

11. COMMISSIONS.  AS AUTHORIZED BY 

CLIENT FOR SERVICES RENDERED TO CLIENT 

BY Gallagher, ESI WILL FACILITATE THE 

PAYMENT TO Gallagher COMMISSIONS IN THE 

AMOUNT OF: 

 

Gallagher Participating 

Pharmacies 

Mail Service 

Pharmacy 

Non-Specialty 

□ per Rx 1-83 

Days’ Supply 

□ per Rx 84-90 

Days’ Supply 

 

 

$2.50 

 

$7.00 

 

 

$7.00 

 

$7.00 

 

 Participating 

Pharmacies 

ESI Specialty 

Pharmacy 

Specialty 

□ per Rx 

 

$2.50 

 

$7.00 

 

Commissions may vary based on plan design, PBM 

pricing, the number of lives serviced by the Gallagher 

or other factors, and Client, on behalf of itself and its 

applicable health plan(s), acknowledges and expressly 

consents to same.  Client further represents that the 

commissions represent fair and reasonable 

compensation for actual services rendered or to be 

rendered to Client.  Commissions shall be paid from 

359



4085690.v13 8 

ESI’s general assets and client agrees that 

commissions do not constitute “plan assets” of the 

Client.  If the commission amount changes following 

an amendment of Exhibit B of the PBM Agreement, 

Gallagher and Client agree that Gallagher shall 

notify Client of such change in writing without the 

need to amend this Client agreement, and that unless 

client objects to the change, ESI may rely on 

Gallagher’s confirmation of notice as Client 

approval.  Commissions for any QR-PDP (Part D 

subsidy) Prescription Drug Claims shall be a PMPM 

amount.  To the extent additional commission 

information necessary for Client to satisfy its duties 

under ERISA or other applicable law cannot be 

obtained by client from Gallagher, ESI will provide 

such information to Client upon written request.   

 

ESI will provide up to $10.00 per Member 

implemented as of the Effective Date, to reimburse 

the actual, fair market value of: (i) expense items and 

services related to transitioning, administering, and 

implementing the pharmacy benefit initially and 

throughout the term, such as, custom ID Cards, IT 

programming, custom formulary letters, member 

communications, and benefit set-up quality 

assurance; and/or (ii) mutually agreed upon expense 

items and services related to implementation of 

additional clinical or other similar programs 

provided by ESI throughout the Term; in either case 

subject to submission of adequate documentation to 

support reimbursement within 180 days of incurring 

the applicable expense.  Both Client and ESI (upon 

agreement from Client) may use the PMF to cover 

the fair market value of expenses for projects 

requiring joint resources.  All reimbursement under 

the PMF is subject to ESI’s standard PMF business 

practices for all clients.  

(i) Client represents and warrants that: 

(i) it will only request reimbursement under 

the PMF for its actual expenses incurred in 

transitioning, administering, and 

implementing the pharmacy benefit 

managed by ESI hereunder, and/or the 

additional clinical or other similar program 

provided by ESI throughout the Term; (ii) 

that the applicable service, item or program 

was actually performed or provided; (iii) the 

amount of the reimbursement is equal to or 

less than the reasonable fair market value of 

the actual expenses incurred by Client; (iv) 

it will notify and disclose the amount and the 

terms of any PMF reimbursements to 

Members and other third parties to the extent 

required by applicable laws and regulations. In 

addition, if the Client and the Plan are subject to 

ERISA, Client represents and warrants that it 

will only request reimbursement under the PMF 

for items or services for which Client, in the 

absence of the PMF, would be allowed 

reimbursement from the Plan (i.e., not “settlor 

functions”). 

 

(ii) Client shall comply with all applicable 

federal and state requirements, including, but 

not limited to, all applicable federal and state 

reporting requirements with respect to any 

expense, item or service reimbursed under this 

Section 12.  ESI reserves the right to 

periodically audit the books and records of 

Client on-site, during normal business hours 

and after giving reasonable advance notice, for 

the purposes of verifying Client’s compliance 

with the PMF requirements set forth in this 

Client Agreement.   

 

(iii) ESI intends to amortize the PMF over 

the Initial Term of the Client Agreement on a 

straight-line basis.  In the event of a termination 

of this Client Agreement for any reason other 

than ESI’s uncured material breach prior to the 

expiration of the Initial Term, Client will 

reimburse ESI an amount equal to any paid but 

unamortized portion of the PMF.  

Reimbursement to ESI by Client pursuant to 

this Section will not be in lieu of any other 

rights or remedies ESI may have in connection 

with the termination of this Client Agreement, 

including monetary or other damages.  PMF 

reimbursements shall not be paid prior to the 

Effective Date of this Client Agreement and are 

not payable until this Client Agreement is 

executed.  Client will have no right to interest 

on, or the time value of, any PMF, and unused 

funds shall be retained by ESI. 

 

Commissions, PMF and Rebates are not payable 

until this Client Agreement is executed. 

 

12. Disclosure of Certain Financial Matters. In 

addition to the Administrative Fees paid to ESI by 

Client,  ESI and ESI’s wholly-owned subsidiaries or 

affiliates derive revenue  in one or more of the ways 

described in the ESI Financial Disclosure to PBM 

Clients set forth in Attachment 1 hereto (“Financial 

Disclosure”), as updated by ESI from time to time. 

Unlike the Administrative Fees, the revenues described 

360



4085690.v13 9 

in the Financial Disclosure are not direct or indirect 

compensation to ESI from Client for services 

rendered to Client or the Plan under this Client 

Agreement. In negotiating any of the fees and 

revenues described in the Financial Disclosure or in 

this Agreement, ESI and ESI’s wholly-owned 

subsidiaries and affiliates act on their own behalf, 

and not for the benefit of or as agents for Gallagher, 

Client, Members or the Plan.  ESI and ESI’s wholly-

owned subsidiaries and affiliates retain all 

proprietary rights and beneficial interest in such fees 

and revenues described in the Financial Disclosure 

and, accordingly, Client acknowledges that neither 

it, nor the Gallagher, nor any Member, nor the Plan, 

has a right to receive, or possesses any beneficial 

interest in, any such fees or revenues.  

 

13. Term; Termination.  The initial term of this 

Client Agreement shall commence on the Effective 

Date and shall continue for the duration of the initial 

term as specified on the first page of this Client 

Agreement (the “Initial Term”).  Thereafter, this 

Client Agreement shall automatically renew for 

successive 12 month renewal terms unless either ESI 

or Client gives notice to the other of its intention not 

to renew this Client Agreement at least thirty (30) 

days prior to the end of the then current term of this 

Client Agreement, with such termination of this 

Client Agreement upon notice effective the last day 

of such then current term.  Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, a party hereto may terminate this Client 

Agreement at any time in the event the other party 

materially breaches this Client Agreement and the 

breaching party does not reasonably cure such 

breach within thirty days following receipt of written 

notice from the non-breaching party sufficiently 

describing and evidencing the actual breach and the 

non-breaching party’s intention to terminate as a 

result thereof.  A party’s right to terminate this Client 

Agreement shall not be exclusive of any other 

remedy available to the terminating party under this 

Client Agreement or otherwise.  ESI shall have the 

right to immediately terminate PBM Services to 

Client (or, if applicable, Members) located in a state 

requiring a pharmacy benefit manager to be a 

fiduciary to Gallagher,  Client, a Member or other 

third party relating to this Agreement. Following the 

initial twelve (12) months of this Agreement (but not 

before), either party may terminate this Agreement 

for any reason or for no reason upon ninety (90) days 

prior written notice of such termination to the other 

party. 

 

14. Force Majeure.  Neither party shall lose any 

rights under this Agreement or be liable in any manner 

for any delay to perform its obligations under this Client 

Agreement that are beyond a party’s reasonable control, 

including, without limitation, any delay or failure due to 

labor disputes, riots, earthquakes, storms, floods or other 

extreme weather conditions, fires, explosions, acts of 

terrorism, epidemics, embargoes, war or other outbreak 

of hostilities, government acts or regulations, the failure 

or inability of carriers, suppliers, delivery services, or 

telecommunications providers to provide services 

necessary to enable a party to perform its obligations 

hereunder, or any other reason where failure to perform 

is beyond the party's reasonable control, and is not 

caused by the negligence, intentional conduct or 

misconduct of the defaulting party; provided, however, 

that this clause may not be invoked to excuse a party's 

payment obligations hereunder. 

 

15. Notice.  Any notice or document required or 

permitted to be delivered pursuant to this Client 

Agreement must be in writing and shall be deemed to be 

effective upon mailing and must be either (a) deposited 

in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, certified or 

registered mail, return receipt requested, or (b) sent by 

recognized overnight delivery service with tracing 

capability, in either case properly addressed to the other 

party at the address set forth below, or at such other 

address as such party shall specify from time to time by 

written notice delivered in accordance herewith: 

 

Express Scripts, Inc.  Client 

Attn:  President  Attn: President 

One Express Way  Address on Client 

Agreement 

St. Louis, MO 63121 

With copy to Legal Department 

Fax No. (800) 417-8163 

  

16. Assignment and Subcontracting.  Client may 

assign this Agreement upon first obtaining ESI’s written 

consent, which consent will not be unreasonably 

withheld following a standard credit review of the 

proposed assignee.  Client acknowledges and agrees that 

ESI may perform certain services hereunder (e.g., mail 

service pharmacy and specialty pharmacy services) 

through one or more ESI subsidiaries, affiliates or 

designees.  ESI is responsible and liable for the 

performance of its subsidiaries and affiliates in the 

course of their performance of any such service.  To the 

extent that ESI subcontracts any PBM Service under this 

Agreement to a third party, ESI is responsible and liable 

for the performance of any such third party. In addition, 

361



4085690.v13 10 

ESI may contract with third party vendors to provide 

information technology support services and other 

ancillary services, which services are not PBM 

Services hereunder, but rather are services that 

support ESI’s conduct of its business operations.  

This Agreement will be binding upon, and inure to 

the benefit of and be enforceable by, the respective 

successors and permitted assigns of the parties 

hereto. 

 

17. Proprietary Information.  Information of the 

other party, including, but not limited to, the 

following, shall constitute confidential and 

proprietary information (“Proprietary Information”) 

unless otherwise public: (a) with respect to ESI: 

ESI’s reporting and other web-based applications, 

eligibility and adjudication systems, system formats 

and databanks (collectively, “ESI’s Systems”), 

clinical or formulary management operations or 

programs, fraud, waste and abuse tools and 

programs, anonymized claims data (de-identified in 

accordance with HIPAA): ESI Specialty Pharmacy  

and Mail Service Pharmacy data; information 

concerning Rebates, prescription drug evaluation 

criteria, drug pricing information, and Participating 

Pharmacy agreements; and (b) with respect to Client: 

Participating Pharmacy Client and Member 

identifiable health information and data, Eligibility 

Files, Set-Up Form information, business operations 

and strategies, are confidential and proprietary.  

Neither party shall use a party’s Proprietary 

Information, or disclose it or this Client Agreement  

to any third party, at any time during or after 

termination of this Client Agreement, except as 

specifically contemplated by this Client Agreement, 

upon prior written consent or as otherwise required 

by law.  Upon termination of this Client Agreement, 

each party shall cease using the other’s Proprietary 

Information, and all such information shall be 

returned or destroyed at the owner’s direction.   

 

18. Indemnification.  Each party agrees to 

indemnify and hold the other party, and its officers, 

directors, and employees, harmless from and against 

any and all third party claims, actions, demands, 

liabilities, losses, damages, judgments, costs or 

expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) 

incurred by the indemnified party and arising from 

any negligent act, negligent omission, or breach of 

this Agreement by the indemnifying party.  

Indemnification is conditioned upon the indemnified 

party notifying the indemnifying party in writing 

promptly upon learning of any claim for which 

indemnification may be sought hereunder, and 

tendering of the defense of such claim to the 

indemnifying party.  Neither party will be obligated to 

indemnify the other party with respect to any claim 

settled without the mutual written consent of both 

parties hereto, which consent will not be unreasonably 

withheld. 

 

19. Independent Parties. No provision of this Client 

Agreement is intended to create or shall be construed to 

create any relationship between ESI and Client other 

than that of independent entities contracting with each 

other solely for the purpose of effecting the provisions 

of this Client Agreement. Neither party, nor any of their 

respective representatives, shall be construed to be the 

partner, agent, fiduciary, employee, or representative of 

the other and neither party shall have the right to make 

any representations concerning the duties, obligations or 

services of the other except as consistent with the 

express terms of this Client Agreement or as otherwise 

authorized in writing by the party about which such 

representation is asserted. 

 

20. Taxes and Assessments.  Any applicable sales, 

use, excise, or other similarly assessed and administered 

tax, surcharge, or fee imposed on items dispensed, or 

services provided hereunder, or the fees or revenues 

generated by the items dispensed or services provided 

hereunder, or any other amounts ESI or one or more of 

its subsidiaries or affiliates may incur or be required to 

pay arising from or relating to ESI’s or its subsidiaries’ 

or affiliates’ performance of services as a pharmacy 

benefit manager, third-party administrator, or otherwise 

in any jurisdiction, will be the sole responsibility of 

Client or the Member.  If ESI is legally obligated to 

collect and remit, or to incur or pay, any such sales, use, 

excise, or other similarly assessed and administered tax, 

surcharge, or fee in a particular jurisdiction, such 

amount will be reflected on the applicable invoice or 

subsequently invoiced at such time as ESI becomes 

aware of such obligation or as such obligation becomes 

due.  ESI reserves the right to charge a reasonable 

administrative fee for collection and remittance services 

provided on behalf of Client. 

 

21. Miscellaneous.  ESI may amend the Terms and 

Conditions (the “T&C”) of this Client Agreement at any 

time upon written notice to Client (the “Notice”).  If, 

however, Client objects to such amendment, Client shall 

have the right to object to such amendment by 

submitting a written objection within thirty (30) days of 

Client’s receipt of ESI’s Notice.  In such event, the 

parties agree to negotiate in good faith a mutually 

362



4085690.v13 11 

acceptable amendment to the T&C and, if the parties 

cannot agree on such an amendment, then either 

party may terminate this Client Agreement upon 

sixty (60) days prior written notice to the other party.  

This Client Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the internal laws of the 

State of Missouri.  This Client Agreement supersedes 

any agreements between the parties hereto.  Sections 2, 

6 (last sentence), 7, 8, 10, 14, 16, 15, 17, 18, 19 and 21 

of this Client Agreement shall survive termination 

for any reason.   

 

THE UNDERSIGNED AGREE THAT THIS CLIENT AGREEMENT ACCURATELY DESCRIBES THE 

PRESCRIPTION DRUG PROGRAM TO BE PROVIDED TO CLIENT.  CLIENT FURTHER EXPRESSLY 

AGREES TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN THIS CLIENT AGREEMENT AND THE 

PBM AGREEMENT.  CLIENT SHALL RECEIVE A COPY OF THE PBM AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

Gallagher AND ESI UPON REQUEST. 
 

NAME OF CLIENT (PRINT):City of Cedar Falls                 Date:                                                           

 

By:       Name                                               Title:                                         

     SIGNATURE               (PRINT NAME) 

  

EXPRESS SCRIPTS, INC.  

 

By:                                                                   Name:                                              Title:    

     SIGNATURE                                                       (PRINTED NAME) 

 

 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PRESCRIPTION DRUG PROGRAM DETAILED HEREIN 

INCLUDING PAYMENT OF REBATES AND/OR COMMISSIONS, IF ANY, SHALL NOT BE 

INITIATED UNTIL THIS CLIENT AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED BY CLIENT AND ESI. 

363



 

12 
4085690.v13 

 

364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Kate Kelly, Payroll/HR Technician 

 DATE: June 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: FY20 Fee Schedule 

 

 

Attached is a copy of the proposed FY20 Fee Schedule.  The Fee Schedule establishes 
fees for all City operations except Enterprise Fund fees, which are established by 
ordinance (refuse, sanitary sewer collection and parking meter fees). 
 
It is recommended that the attached FY20 Fee Schedule be adopted as proposed.  
Following adoption, staff will schedule the fees for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2019.  If you have any questions regarding proposed fees, please contact the 
department director responsible for the fee in question.   
 

 

380



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATE

Civil Service Test No charge

Civil Service Promotional Test No charge

Video Duplication $15.00 Each DVD

COPY RECORDS / DIGITAL DATA

Police Reports $15.00 Each report

Applicant Fingerprinting $10.00 1-3 cards

  Additional cards $2.00 Per card

Video Duplication $15.00 Each DVD

Photo Reprints (4x6 in-house) $1.00 Each

Photo Reprints (larger/out-source) At Cost

Junk Vehicle Certificate $10.00

Fire Incident Reports $10.00 Each report

Fire Investigative Reports (Non-Criminal) $10.00 Each report

  Copying of records – major project

Applicable fee 

above + staff 

time

Applicable fee above + staff time over 

30 minutes

House/Garage Moving Permit $40.00/hr. 1/2 hr. min.

Funeral Escort $25.00

1 Hr. of Squad Car Usage $16.50

Sale of City Code of Ordinances $200.00 Hard Cover
Includes cost of new book and mailing subsequent code 

supplements

Sale of City Zoning Ordinance $50.00 Paper Cover
Includes cost of new book and mailing subsequent code 

supplements

Sale of National/Uniform Code Books adopted by 

reference, i.e. Building, Electrical, Plumbing, 

Mechanical, Fire, Life Safety, Housing, etc.
Sold at cost

Sale of Official Financial Publications Sold at cost

Copying of City Records No Charge Five pages or less

$0.10 Each, six or more pages
Black & White Copy, $.10 each, six 

or more pages
Color Copy, $.20 each, six or more

 pages

  Copying of City Records - major projects $0.10 Each, six or more pages + staff time 
Black & White Copy, $.10 each, six 

or more pages + staff time over 30 

minutes
Color Copy, $.20 each , six or more pages  

+ staff time over 30 minutes

Inspection and Design
Negotiated charges approved by 

City Council in Contract form

Copying of maps, drawings, etc. No Charge Five standard pages or less 

$0.10 Each, six or more pages

Copying of oversized maps, drawings, etc. $5.00 Each

Copy of Aerial Map per development $85.00

Copy of Aerial Map entire City $425.00

Sanitary Sewer Permit $100.00

City Banners - For "For Profit" Groups, 

Installation and removal $10.00 Each Banner

Electrical Panels For Special Events $50.00 Per Panel

$250.00 Deposit Fee

Delivery of Picnic Tables for Special Events $10.00 Per Table

Salt/Sand Mix $20.00 Each Ton

For equipment rates utilize current Iowa DOT Schedule of 

Equipment Rates unless otherwise noted in this document.  

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_r

ates_16.pdf

Aerial Lift Truck $125.00 Per hour

Traffic Control Devices Placement & Removal $100.00 Per placement

All equipment listed above:

1 Hour Minimum

Personnel:

1 Hour Minimum

Employee’s 

Effective Rate
Plus 20% Administrative Fee

SEC. 3-1

LICENSE TO DISTRIBUTE/POST ADVERTISING 

MATERIALS

$20.00

$200.00

Daily or

Annually

SEC. 3-43

SIGN PERMITS $25.00 Minimum all signs and

$1.00 Each additional sq. ft. of sign area > 

100 sq. ft.  $200.00 max.

Painter’s License $15.00 One year

Erector’s License $150.00 First year and

$35.00 For renewal

Dog or Cat Altered $6.00 Each year

Dog or Cat Not Altered $12.00 Each year

Late Licensing Doubles After March 31

SEC. 6-46

DOG AND CAT LICENSE

SEC. 3-46

SIGN PAINTER'S OR ERECTOR'S LICENSE

ADOPTED RATE

SEC. 2-311

CIVIL SERVICE EXAMINATIONS

SEC. 2-511

CABLE TELEVSION DIVISION

SEC. 2-572

PUBLIC RECORDS DIVISION

SEC. 2-809

MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS

SEC. 2-712

ENGINEERING SERVICES

PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

POLICE SERVICES

Page 1

381



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Duplicate License & Tag $1.00

Tag & License Mailing Fee $1.00 Each Tag/License

SEC. 6-99

LICENSE FOR RIDING SCHOOLS OR STABLES $30.00 One year

BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS

International Building Code Plan Review.  (Base 

project value of $1,000 or more)
65% of Building Permit Fee

SEC. 7-19

BUILDING PERMITS

Valuation

$1.00 TO $500.00 $24.75

$500.01 TO $600.00 $27.75

$600.01 TO $700.00 $31.00

$700.01 TO $800.00 $34.00

$800.01 TO $900.00 $37.00

$900.01 TO $1,000.00 $40.25

$1,001.01 TO $1,100.00 $43.25

$1,100.01 TO $1,200.00 $46.25

$1,200.01 TO $1,300.00 $49.50

$1,300.01 TO $1,400.00 $52.50

$1,400.01 TO $1,500.00 $55.50

$1,500.01 TO $1,600.00 $58.75

$1,600.01 TO $1,700.00 $61.75

$1,700.01 TO $1,800.00 $65.00

$1,800.01 TO $1,900.00 $68.00

$1,900.01 TO $2,000.00 $71.00

$2,000.01 TO $3,000.00 $85.50

$3,000.01 TO $4,000.00 $100.00

$4,000.01 TO $5,000.00 $114.25

$5,000.01 TO $6,000.00 $128.75

$6,000.01 TO $7,000.00 $143.25

$7,000.01 TO $8,000.00 $157.50

$8,000.01 TO $9,000.00 $172.00

$9,000.01 TO $10,0000 $186.50

$10,000.01 TO $11,000.00 $200.75

$11,000.01 TO $12,000.00 $215.25

$12,000.01 TO $13,000.00 $229.75

$13,000.01 TO $14,000.00 $244.00

$14,000.01 TO $15,000.00 $258.50

$15,000.01 TO $16,000.00 $273.00

$16,000.01 TO $17,000.00 $287.25

$17,000.01 TO $18,000.00 $301.75

$18,000.01 TO $19,000.00 $316.25

$19,000.01 TO $20,000.00 $330.75

$20,000.01 TO $21,000.00 $345.00

$21,000.01 TO $22,000.00 $359.50

$22,000.01 TO $23,000.00 $374.00

$23,000.01 TO $24,000.00 $388.25

$24,000.01 TO $25,000.00 $402.75

$25,000.01 TO $26,000.00 $413.00

$26,000.01 TO $27,000.00 $423.25

Page 2

382



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

$27,000.01 TO $28,000.00 $433.75

$28,000.01 TO $29,000.00 $444.00

$29,000.01 TO $30,000.00 $454.25

$30,000.01 TO $31,000.00 $464.50

$31,000.01 TO $32,000.00 $474.75

$32,000.01 TO $33,000.00 $485.25

$33,000.01 TO $34,000.00 $495.50

$34,000.01 TO $35,000.00 $505.75

$35,000.01 TO $36,000.00 $516.00

$36,000.01 TO $37,000.00 $526.25

$37,000.01 TO $38,000.00 $536.75

$38,000.01 TO $39,000.00 $547.00

$39,000.01 TO $40,000.00 $557.25

$40,000.01 TO $41,000.00 $567.50

$41,000.01 TO $42,000.00 $577.75

$42,000.01 TO $43,000.00 $588.25

$43,000.01 TO $44,000.00 $598.50

$44,000.01 TO $45,000.00 $608.75

$45,000.01 TO $46,000.00 $619.00

$46,000.01 TO $47,000.00 $629.25

$47,000.01 TO $48,000.00 $639.75

$48,000.01 TO $49,000.00 $650.00

$49,000.01 TO $50,000.00 $660.25

$50,000.01 TO $51,000.00 $667.50

$51,000.01 TO $52,000.00 $674.75

$52,000.01 TO $53,000.00 $681.75

$53,000.01 TO $54,000.00 $689.00

$54,000.01 TO $55,000.00 $696.25

$55,000.01 TO $56,000.00 $703.50

$56,000.01 TO $57,000.00 $710.75

$57,000.01 TO $58,000.00 $718.00

$58,000.01 TO $59,000.00 $725.00

$59,000.01 TO $60,000.00 $732.25

$60,000.01 TO$ 61,000.00 $739.50

$61,000.01 TO $62,000.00 $746.75

$62,000.01 TO $63,000.00 $754.00

$63,000.01 TO $64,000.00 $761.25

$64,000.01 TO $65,000.00 $768.50

$65,000.01 TO $66,000.00 $775.50

$66,000.01 TO $67,000.00 $782.75

$67,000.01 TO $68,000.00 $790.00

$68,000.01 TO $69,000.00 $797.25

$69,000.01 TO $70,000.00 $804.50

$70,000.01 TO $71,000.00 $811.75

$71,000.01 TO $72,000.00 $818.75

$72,000.01 TO $73,000.00 $826.00

Page 3

383



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

$73,000.01 TO $74,000.00 $833.25

$74,000.01 TO $75,000.00 $840.50

$75,000.01 TO $76,000.00 $847.75

$76,000.01 TO $77,000.00 $855.00

$77,000.01 TO $78,000.00 $862.00

$78,000.01 TO $79,000.00 $869.25

$79,000.01 TO $80,000.00 $876.50

$80,000.01 TO $81,000.00 $883.75

$81,000.01 TO $82,000.00 $891.00

$82,000.01 TO $83,000.00 $898.25

$83,000.01 TO $84,000.00 $905.25

$84,000.01 TO $85,000.00 $912.50

$85,000.01 TO $86,000.00 $919.75

$86,000.01 TO $87,000.00 $927.00

$87,000.01 TO $88,000.00 $934.25

$88,000.01 TO $89,000.00 $941.50

$89,000.01 TO $90,000.00 $948.75

$90,000.01 TO $91,000.00 $955.75

$91,000.01 TO $92,000.00 $963.00

$92,000.01 TO $93,000.00 $970.25

$93,000.01 TO $94,000.00 $977.50

$94,000.01 TO $95,000.00 $984.75

$95,000.01 TO $96,000.00 $992.00

$96,000.01 TO $97,000.00 $999.00

$97,000.01 TO $98,000.00 $1,006.25

$98,000.01 TO $99,000.00 $1,013.50

$99,000.01 TO $100,000.00 $1,020.75

$100,000.01 TO $500,000.00

$1,020.75 + $6.20 

for each 

additional 

$1,000.00 Any fraction of $1,000.00 shall be 

counted as an additional $1,000.00

$500,000.01 TO $1,000,000.00

$3,492.75 + $5.15 

for each 

additional 

$1,000.00
Any fraction of $1,000.00 shall be 

counted as an additional $1,000.00

$1,000,000.01 AND UP

$6,067.75 + $4.15 

for each 

additional 

$1,000.00 Any fraction of $1,000.00 shall be 

counted as an additional $1,000.00

SEC. 7-50

ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION $150.00 One year

SEC. 7-50

SPECIAL ELECTRICIAN REGISTRATION $150.00 One year

   Electrical Contractors
$100,000/

$300,000

 Special Electricians
$100,000/

$300,000

Base Rate $30.00

New House $150.00

Rough Wiring-Openings $10.00 1 to 14, inclusive

$7.00 15 to 30, inclusive, additional

$0.20 Over 30, Per additional opening

Lighting Fixtures:

Incandescent/Fluorescent/Porcelain Bases $10.00 1 to 14, inclusive

$7.00 15 to 30, inclusive, additional

Electrical Services:

Temporary/Permanent $15.00 Temporary Service

$20.00 To 225-ampere capacity

$30.00 Over 225-ampere capacity

$10.00 Additional replacement services

$7.00 Subpanels

SEC. 7-20

RESIDENTIAL ELECTRICAL INSPECTION PERMIT FEES

SEC. 7-20

CONDITIONS OF CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE

Page 4

384



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Motors, Per Unit $8.00 0 to 10 HP

$10.00 Over 10 HP

Dishwasher, Disposal, Electric Dryer, Sump 

Pump, Door Opener, Water Heater, Cooking 

Equipment, Bath Fan, Etc. $5.00 Each unit

Central Heating & Cooling Unit $8.00 Each unit

 Supplemental Heating/Cooling $5.00 Each unit

Generators, Transfer Switch, Car Charging 

Station, Hot Tub, Feeder Panel, Etc. $10.00 Each Unit

Reinspection of Unapproved Work $75.00

Reinspection Fee Due To Wrong Address, No 

Address Posted, Incomplete Work, Insufficient 

Information, Unable to Enter, or for Uncorrected 

Violations. $10.00 Each Trip

Certificate of Insurance
$100,000/

$300,000

Base Rate $30.00

Rough Wiring-Openings $30.00 1 to 14, inclusive

$15.00 15 to 30, inclusive, additional

$0.30 Over 30, Per additional opening

Lighting Fixtures: $30.00 1 to 14, inclusive

$15.00 15 to 30, inclusive, additional

$0.30 Over 30, per additional opening

Electrical Services:

Temporary/Permanent $20.00 Temporary Service

$40.00
Permanent Service up to 400 

ampere

$60.00
Permanent Service 401-800 

ampere

$80.00
Permanent Service over 800 

ampere

$10.00 Additional replacement services

Motors, Per Unit $10.00 0 to 10 HP

$15.00 Over 10 HP

Transformers, Per Unit $20.00 0 to 75 KVA

$30.00 Over 75 KVA

Feeder Panels $15.00 Up to 225 A

$20.00 Above 225 A

Dishwasher, Disposal, Electric Dryer, Sump 

Pump, Door Opener, Water Heater, Cooking 

Equipment, Exhaust Fans $5.00 Each unit

Central Heating & Cooling Unit $8.00 Each unit

Supplemental Heating/Cooling $5.00 Each unit

Illuminated Signs and Outline Lighting $10.00 Each sign

Neon and All Signs Using Secondary Voltage of 

600 Volts or More $10.00 Each transformer

Special Equipment such as Generators, X-ray 

Equipment, Converters, Welders Etc. $15.00 Each Unit

Reinspection Fee Due To Wrong Address, No 

Address Posted, Incomplete Work, Insufficient 

Information, Unable to Enter, or for Uncorrected 

Violations $75.00 Each Trip

In-Ground Swimming Pool/Hot Tub Bonding 

Inspection $30.00

Specialized Systems such as Solar PV Systems, 

Wind Generated Systems, Etc. $30.00

Certificate of Insurance
$100,000/

$300,000

SEC. 7-170

ANNUAL PERMIT FOR PLUMBING WORK $100.00 One year

Base Rate $30.00

Water closet, urinals, bidets, tubs, showers, 

lavatories, sinks, hand sinks, floor sinks, grease 

trap, disposal, dishwasher, drinking fountain, 

laundry drain, laundry sink, sump, floor drains, 

roof drains, backwater valve, sewage eject, 

vacuum breakers, mop sinks. $8.50

Water softener, Water heater $15.00

Sewer Connections To/Or Continuation from 

Main $30.00

Multiple Sewer Stubs $15.00 Each

Additional Fixture, Trap or Trap Opening (To 

Apply Towards Minimum Fee) $8.50

Reinspection of Unapproved work $75.00

Water Treatment or Storage Units $20.00

Backflow Protective Devices-Water $8.50

Reconstruction or Alteration of Drains, Stacks or 

Vents $20.00

One bathroom house $135.00

Two bathroom house $161.00

Three bathroom house $208.00

Working w/o permit $100.00
SEC. 7-232

LICENSE FEE, MOVING A BUILDING $30.00 One Week

$60.00 One Month

$100.00 Six Months

$200.00 One Year

SEC. 7-20

COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL ELECTRICAL INSPECTION PERMIT FEES

SEC. 7-170

PLUMBING FEES

SEC. 7-247

MOVING PERMIT FEE ACCORDING TO STRUCTURE

Page 5

385



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Structure Less than 200 sq. ft. $10.00

Structure More than 200 sq. ft. and Less than 500 

sq. ft. $50.00

Structure More than 500 sq. ft. $100.00

Base Rate $30.00

New House $150.00

Apartments $70.00 Per Unit

AC 0 to 3 Ton $20.00

AC 3.5 Ton – 5 Ton $40.00

AC 5.5 Ton – 30 Ton $50.00

AC 30.5 – 50 Ton $60.00

AC over 50 Ton $3.00 Per Ton

AH 0 to 10,000 CFM $20.00

AH over 10,000 CFM $30.00

Air-to-Air Heat Exchanger $15.00

Bath Exhaust $5.00

Boiler – 0 to 100,000 $20.00

Boiler – 100,001 to 500,000 $30.00

Boiler – 500,001 to 1,000,000 $45.00

Boiler 1,000,000 to 1,750,000 $60.00

Boiler over 1,750,000 $100.00

Duct Alterations $20.00

Fireplace $15.00

Furnace – Electric $25.00

Furnace – Gas $25.00

Furnace Vents $15.00

HPP 1-4 Outlets $0.00 No charge

HPP 5+ Outlets $2.00 Per Outlet

In-floor Heat $20.00

VAV Boxes $10.00

Ventilation – Multiple $10.00

Ventilation – OH $10.00

Ventilation – Type 1 Hood $50.00

Ventilation – Type 2 Hood $25.00

Working w/o Permit $100.00

Incinerator – Comm/Ind $70.00

Incinerator – Residential $16.25

Miscellaneous $20.00

NPP 1-4 Outlets $2.00

NPP 5+ per Outlet $0.50

Other per Hr $40.00 Per Hour

Outside Hr Change $40.00 Per Hour

Plan Review $30.00 Per Hour

Reinspection Fee $75.00

Base Rate $20.00

1/6 hp – 1/3 hp $15.00

1/3 hp – 1 hp $20.00

1 hp or greater $30.00

Cooling Towers $20.00

Walk-in Coolers/Freezers $20.00

Unit Coolers $20.00

Industrial Refrigeration $8.00 Per hp

Condominium Conversion $400.00 Per Unit

Initial Inspection See Attached

First Re-inspection $100.00

Second Re-inspection $150.00

Third and Each Subsequent Re-inspection $200.00

Owner does not show $50.00
With verbal acknowledgement of 

appointment by owner/occupant

Inspection after normal business hours $50.00

Day Care Inspections $50.00

Temporary Structure Inspection $50.00 Initial structure

$25.00 each additional temp structure

FALSE ALARMS

1st  occurrence of year $0.00

2nd occurrence of year $0.00

3rd occurrence of year $200.00

4th occurrence of year $200.00

5th-9th occurrence of year $275.00 Each

10th and above occurrence of year $425.00 Each

Evidence of Repair in Lieu of Fee Fire Chief discretion

Alarm activation without notification $200.00 Each occurrence

   One & Two Single Family Home $100.00

0-4,999 square foot $80.00 Per Floor

5,000-7,499 square foot $160.00 Per Floor

7,500+ square foot $240.00 Per Floor

System Hydro Test (additional) $80.00

Re-inspections due to test failure $40.00 Per hour

Stand Pipe (additional) $150.00

REFRIGERATION FEES

SEC. 7-444

CONDOMINIUM CONVERSION

   Condensing Units:

SEC. 7-414

MECHANICAL FEES

SEC. 9-25

COMMERCIAL FIRE INSPECTION

RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM

FIRE ALARM/SPRINKLER SYSTEM INSPECTIONS

   Fire Sprinkler System Construction Permits

Page 6

386



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Fire Pump (additional) $150.00

Kitchen Hood Permits $40.00

System installed without permit $160.00 Per system

System installed/operating w/o testing $320.00 Per system

0-4,999 square foot $80.00 Per Floor

5,000-7,499 square foot $160.00 Per Floor

7,500+ square foot $240.00 Per Floor

Acceptance testing of Newly installed and/or 

modified alarm systems $40.00 Per Hour, Per Inspector

Re-inspections due to test failure $40.00 Per hour

System installed without permit $160.00 Per system

System installed/operating w/o test $320.00 Per system

0-4,999 square foot $80.00

5,000-7,499 square foot $160.00

7,500+ square foot $240.00

Initial permits $100.00

Plan review and inspection $80.00

Re-inspection due to test failure $40.00

Inspection after normal hours $40.00

Passenger vehicle fire (<10,000 lbs) $150.00

Comm. vehicle fire (>10,000 lbs) $200.00

Extrication of victim from vehicle $250.00

Personnel without equipment $30.00 Per Hour, Per Person

Heavy Apparatus - up to 4 personnel $250.00

Light Apparatus - up to 2 personnel $200.00

Extrication of victim from vehicle $250.00

Heavy Apparatus - up to 4 personnel $250.00 Per Hour-1 hr. min.

Light Apparatus - up to 2 personnel $200.00 Per Hour-1 hr. min.

Additional response personnel $20.00 Each- Per hour

Expended Materials Replacement cost

Equipment Repair/Cleaning Cost (parts,labor,s/h)

Damaged Equipment/Property Cost to replace/repair

Other (incl. Contracted svcs/equip) Cost

Heavy Apparatus - up to 4 personnel $250.00 Per Hour-1 hr. min.

Light Apparatus - up to 2 personnel $200.00 Per Hour-1 hr. min.

Specialized Technical Rescue Equip $400.00 Per incident

Expended Materials Replacement cost

Equipment Repair/Cleaning Cost (parts,labor,s/h)

Damaged Equipment/Property Cost to replace/repair

Other (incl. Contracted svcs/equip) Cost

New Location $150.00 Each Event

Repeat Location - Display Cost $1-$1,000 $50.00

Repeat Location – Display Cost $1,001 or greater $75.00

Permanent & Temporary Structure Inspection $100.00
Per inspection, per location, if not 

reimbursed by the state

Installation of new above or below ground tank
$200.00 Per Tank

Removal of above or below ground tanks $150.00 Per Tank

Modification of tanks, piping, valves and 

dispensing equipment to include reconstruction, 

tapping, tank cutting, vent pipe relocations, 

dispenser piping, repiping and tank repair of 

repiping. $75.00

Permanent LP Tank Installation $80.00 Per tank

Temporary LP Tank Installation $40.00 Per tank

32 Gallon Garbage Cart $9.00 Per month

     32 Gallon Replacement Cart $38.70 $35.00 

68 Gallon Garbage Cart $17.00 Per month

     68 Gallon Replacement Cart $45.55 $41.50 

95 Gallon Garbage Cart $26.50 Per month

     95 Gallon Replacement Cart $53.60 $48.00 

95 Gallon Yard Waste Cart $10.00 Per dump

     April, October, November $5.00 Per dump

     Replacement Yard Waste Cart $63.58 $58.00

     Additional Yard Waste Cart $50.00 (no more than 2)

Christmas Tree Tags $1.25 Each

Appliances $7.50 Each

Computers/Televisions $5.00 Each

Bicycle Tire $1.00 Each

Motorcycle Tire $2.00 Each

Automobile Tire $2.50 Each

     With Rim $5.00 Each

Truck/Tractor Tire $6.50 Each

     With Rim $9.00 Each

Sand Bags $0.50 Each

Extra Refuse Bag Tag $1.25 Each

Demolition Waste $59.15 Per ton

Solid Waste $57.50 Per ton

Yard Waste $29.50 Per ton

TECHNICAL RESCUE

FIREWORKS PERMIT

FLAMMABLE/COMBUSTIBLE LIQUID TANK PERMIT

   Fire Alarm Systems Construction Permits

   Clean Agent Fire Suppression System Construction Permits

VEHICLE FIRES & EXTRICATIONS

SPECIAL EVENT STANDBY

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL RESPONSE

   Solar Panel Fire Permit

SEC. 10-5

GARBAGE AND REFUSE

Page 7

387



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Scale Charge $3.00

Leaf Vacuum Service $50.00 Per visit

Asphalt Shingles- free of contaminants $30.00 Per ton

Asphalt Shingles- with contaminants
$59.15 

Per ton + $10.00/ton service 

charge

For information only. Fees set by Code of 

Ordinances

Permit $300.00 Per Receptacle, Per Year

Initial Inspection $50.00 Each building and

$20.00 Each additional unit

First Re-inspection

*If violations are corrected at the time of first re-

inspection; fee will be waived.

Second Re-inspection $80.00 Each unit re-inspected

Third Re-inspection $160.00 Each unit re-inspected

Fourth Re-inspection $320.00 Each unit re-inspected

Inaccessible Unit $25.00 Each unit

Tri-Annual Registration Fee $75.00 Each building

Replacement of Occupancy Permit $5.00 Each unit

Permit Unavailable During Any Inspection $25.00 Each unit

Re-scheduling fee-

*If owner/agent canceled within 48 hrs of 

inspection or does not show for inspection $50.00* Each Unit

Requested inspection outside normal cycle $50.00 *if violations exist

0-25 Students $40.00

25-50 Students $80.00

More than 50 Students $120.00

Fire Extinguisher recharge $25.00 Per extinguisher

SEC. 13-35

MOBILE MERCHANT $50.00 Per month

$500.00 Each year

SEC. 13-63

PAWNBROKER LICENSE $65.00 Each year

If a Resident Merchant

A.  The stock of goods on hand is valued at five 

thousand dollars or less. $35.00

B.  The stock of goods on hand is valued in excess 

of five thousand dollars, but not more than fifteen 

thousand dollars. $65.00

C.  The stock of goods on hand is valued in excess 

of fifteen thousand dollars. $110.00

If a Transient Merchant

A.  The stock of goods on hand is valued at five 

thousand dollars or less. $165.00

B.  The stock of goods on hand is valued in excess 

of five thousand dollars, but not in excess of 

fifteen thousand dollars. $330.00

C.  The stock of goods is valued in excess of fifteen 

thousand dollars. $550.00

SEC. 13-137

FALSE ALARM CALLS
$65.00

Per call after the 5th False Alarm 

per calendar year

$100.00
Per call after the 10th False Alarm 

per calendar year

Alarm Business Permit $0.00

Alarm Agent Permit $0.00

Alarm System Permit $0.00

SEC. 14-32

MOBILE HOME PARK PRELIMINARY PLAN FEE $150.00 And

$1.00 Each lot or space

Preliminary Plan Fee $150.00 And

$1.00 Each lot or space

Final Plan or Detailed Site Plan Fee $150.00 And

$1.00 Each lot or space

SEC. 15-5

ABATEMENT OF NUISANCES BY CITY AFTER 

NOTICE

1-Hour Minimum
Employee's 

Effective Rate

These costs shall be assessed 

against the property for collection 

in the same manner as a property 

tax.  Together with an 

administrative expense of $5.                          

I.C.A. § 364.12(3)(a), (h)                                                                            

For equipment rates utilize current Iowa DOT Schedule of 

Equipment Rates unless otherwise noted in this document.  

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_r

ates_16.pdf

For Hire Contractor Labor & Equipment

Amount 

Invoiced by 

Contractor

SEC. 15-41

JUNK VEHICLES (IMPOUNDMENT FEE)

As per Police Division Wrecker and 

Storage Contract

ADULT PROGRAMS

Basketball Leagues $370.00 Each Team 10 games

FIRE EXTINGUISHER TRAINING

SEC. 13-107

CLOSING - OUT SALE LICENSE

SEC. 10-13

TRASH DUMPSTERS OR RECEPTACLES IN CITY PARKING LOTS

RECREATION DIVISION PROGRAM FEES

SEC. 13-138

ALARM BUSINESS PERMITS OR ALARM AGENT PERMITS

CHAPTER 17, CEDAR FALLS PARKS AND RECREATION

SEC. 14-75

MOBILE HOME SUBDIVISIONS

$40.00* Each Unit

SEC. 11-84

MINIMUM RENTAL HOUSING INSPECTION

Page 8

388



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Couples Volleyball Class $29.00 Per person 8 weeks

Volleyball League $115.00 Each team 14 games

Mini Volleyball $70.00 Each team 6 games

Softball Leagues – 14 games

Registration $355.00 Each team

Player Fees $70.00 Each team

Mixed League Softball Plus $25.00

Ball Field Rental (field as is) $8.00 Per hour

Youth Games Ball Field Rental - Non-profit

   501C3 Field Rental

      Week Day Evening $16.00

      Multiple Rentals (Max. 75 per season) $500 Max

Fall Softball League – 10 games

Registration $255.00 Each team

Player Fees $60.00 Each team

Softball Field Rental

  One Field - One Day $50.00

Complex (weekend 1 & 2 day) $110.00
Plus any additional staff cost over 

the initial field preparation

Pfeiffer (weekend 1 & 2 day) $130.00
Plus any additional staff cost over 

the initial field preparation

Pfeiffer (field/night, league) $60.00

Kickball League $75.00

Flag Football League – 4 on 4 $100.00 Each team

Player Fee $15.00 Each player

Dodgeball $70.00

Golf Lessons – 4 lessons N/A

Tennis Lessons – 8 lessons N/A

Tournaments Cost Plus $20.00

Open Gym Schools, residents $3.00 Or RC punch card/membership

Open Gym Schools, non-residents $6.00

Beach House (all day)

Weekend (Friday-Sunday, Holidays)

     West $100.00

     East $200.00

     Full Facility $275.00

Weekday (Monday-Thursday)

     West $62.50

     East $125.00

     Full Facility $175.00

Shelter Rental - All Day $22.00

Up to 6 hours N/A

Over 6 hours N/A

Gateway Shelter (10am-10:30pm)

Monday - Thursday $70.00

Friday-Sunday & Holidays $110.00

Racquetball League – 11 games

     Singles $35.00

Racquetball Lessons – 6 lessons $33.00

Table Tennis League $16.00

EXERCISE CLASSES

Specialty Classes
Instructor + 

$10.00

Exercise Tryouts N/A

Fitness Pass w/o Rec Membership

4 months unlimited N/A

1 month unlimited N/A

Fitness Pass w/ Rec Membership

4 months unlimited N/A

1 month unlimited N/A

Circuit Weight Training

w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

2 x Per Week - Per Month $28.00

Circuit Weight Training

w/ Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

2 x Per Week - Per Month $14.00

Cardio Cycling - Per Month

w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week - Per Month $42.00

Cardio Cycling - Per Month

w/ Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week - Per Month $21.00

Rock On - Monthly

w/Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week $26.00

Rock On - Monthly

w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week $52.00

Knock Out (with FP or RCM)

2 x Per Week Per Month
$26.00

Knock Out (no FP or RCM)

2 x Per Week Per Month
$52.00

Teen Weight Lifting Training

(2) 2-hour classes $28.00
*RCM - Rec Center Membership

*FP - Fitness Pass

YOUTH PROGRAMS

Boys Baseball T-ball

Registration $35.00

Page 9

389



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Sponsor $250.00

Boys Baseball 1

Registration $38.00

Sponsor $250.00

Boys Baseball 2-3

Registration $45.00

Sponsor $500.00

Boys Baseball 4-5

Registration $48.00

Sponsor $600.00

Girls Softball T-ball

Registration $35.00

Sponsor $250.00

Girls Softball 1

Registration $38.00

Sponsor $250.00

Girls Softball 2-3

Registration $45.00

Sponsor $500.00

Girls Softball 4-6

Registration $48.00

Sponsor $500.00

Kindergarten Basketball

Registration $30.00

Sponsor $200.00

Boys Basketball 5-6

Registration $40.00

Sponsor $500.00

Boys Basketball 3-4

Registration $35.00

Sponsor $300.00

Boys Basketball 1-2

Registration $30.00

Sponsor $300.00

Girls Basketball 5-6 (format change)

Registration $35.00

Sponsor $250.00

Girls Basketball 3-4

Registration $35.00

Sponsor $300.00

Girls Basketball 1-2

Registration $30.00

Sponsor $300.00

Summer Track

Registration $45.00

Sponsor $300.00

Volleyball 3-6 (8 weeks)

Registration $39.00

Sponsor $400.00

Flag Football K-2 (8 weeks)

Registration $43.00

Sponsor $200.00

Flag Football 3-4

Registration $43.00

Sponsor $300.00

Flag Football 5-6

Registration $43.00

Sponsor $500.00

Baseball Club $45.00

Softball Club $45.00

Soccer K, 1 & 2

Registration $29.00

Sponsor $350.00

Golf Lessons N/A

Tennis Lessons $45.00

Tot Lot 

One Week $32.00

Six Weeks $150.00

Open Gym in schools No Charge

Special Events Cost Plus $5.00

Tournaments Cost Plus 0-10%

Indoor Park, 1-5 years $28.00

Full Session (18- 22 times) $40.00

Mini Session $18.00

Daily $3.00

Chew & View – 2 hours $6.00

Parents Night Out – 2 hours $8.00

Birthday Party $115.00

Birthday Party - Theme Package $150.00

   Add Pizza $30.00

3 on 3 Basketball Tourney $30.00 Per Team

Soccer Tournament $20.00

Hot Shot Basketball $5.00

Free Throw Contest $5.00

Karate $30.00

New Sports & Active Programs Charge Comparable

Sack Lunch Days $28.00

Tumbling - 5 sessions $30.00

Hockey – Inline

Registration N/A

Sponsor N/A

Camp Cedar Falls

Page 10

390



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

One Week $110.00

Full Summer (1 week free) $770.00

Pre and Post Care

Daily $5.00

Weekly $20.00

Note: Sponsorship determined by cost of t-shirts 

adjusted up to the nearest $50.00 increment.

SWIM POOL FEES

Daily Admission – Indoor

Infant (under 2) $3.00

Youth (3-17) $5.00

Adult (18 & Up) $5.00

Daily Admission – Outdoor

Infant (under 2) $3.00

Youth (3-17) $7.00

Adult (18 & Up) $7.00

Summer

Memorial Day-1st Day of School

Family Season Pass

Resident** $195.00

Non-Resident** $245.00

*1 adult & 4 or less children or 2 adults and 3 

or less children. Ea. Additional child in the 

family will be $10.00

Child Care Provider Pool Pass - Mon-Fri $60.00

Adult Season Pass

Resident $115.00

Non-Resident $145.00

Youth & Sr. (65 & Up) Season Pass 

Resident $110.00

Non-Resident $140.00

Lap Swim – Indoor

Resident $75.00

Non-Resident $85.00

**Purchase your summer swim pass prior to 

May 15 & receive a $10 discount for a family & 

$5 for an individual pass.

Winter

1st Day of School-Memorial Day

Family Season Pass (w/ Rec Membership)

Resident $50.00

Non-Resident $55.00

Family Season Pass (w/o Rec Membership)

Resident $130.00

Non-Resident $140.00

Adult Season Pass (w/ Rec Membership)

Resident $25.00

Non-Resident $30.00

Adult Season Pass (w/o Rec Membership)

Resident $95.00

Non-Resident $100.00

Youth Season Pass - 17 & Under

(w/ Rec Membership)

Resident $25.00

Non-Resident $30.00

Youth Season Pass - 17 & Under

(w/o Rec Membership)

Resident $75.00

Non-Resident $80.00

*RCM - Rec Center Membership

Swim Lesson – Youth $32.00

Swim Lesson – Adult $35.00

WSI $70.00

Aqua Trim $32.00

Deep Water Aqua Trim $32.00

Aqua Trim Tryout $5.00

Stretching Aqua Trim $32.00

Lap Swim – Daily $4.00 Or Pass

Life Guarding $125.00

Lifeguard Recertification $86.00

Scuba Diving Cost Plus $10.00

Pool Rental ID, 1-75 people $65/hr.

Pool Rental ID, 76 or more people $80/hr.

Pool Rental OD

Zero Depth – 2 hours $200.00

Zero Depth / Lazy River /

2 Waterslides -- 2 hours
$425.00

Lap Pool / Lazy River /

2 Waterslides – 2 hours
$525.00

Lap Pool – 2 hours $325.00

Entire Facility – 2 hours

No Concessions $625.00

Concessions Sold - Resident $35.00/hr.

Cost - Programs that are listed, as cost will be 

charged on the basis of direct program costs 

excluding administration and office costs.

New programs will be charged a comparable 

fee to other similar activities

Page 11

391



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Sponsor fee may change in some cases 

depending on the registration, program 

changes or sponsor charge.

** Summer Family Swim Pass - Resident & Non-

Resident - Will be the fee listed for 1 adult or 4 

or less children or 2 adults and 3 or less 

children.  

Each additional child in the family will be 

$10.00.  Implemented Spring 2012.

RECREATION CENTER

Admission

Daily Resident

12 Grade & Under $6.00

Adult $9.00

Senior Citizen $6.00

Holiday Special Event Admission $3.00 Per person – Any age

Daily Non-Resident

12 Grade & Under $6.00

Adult $9.00

Senior Citizen $6.00

Resident Yearly Memberships

Individual

12 Grade & Under $115.00

Adult $175.00

Senior Citizen $155.00

Family $260.00

Non-Resident Yearly Memberships

Individual

12 Grade & Under $210.00

Adult $355.00

Senior Citizen $290.00

Family $465.00

4-Month (May-August only)

Resident

12 Grade & Under $57.50

Adult $85.00

Senior Citizen $77.50

Family $130.00

Non-Resident

12 Grade & Under $105.00

Adult $177.50

Senior Citizen $145.00

Family $232.50

20-Punch Card – Residents

12 Grade & Under $58.00

Adult $85.00

Senior Citizen $78.00

20-Punch Card – Non-Resident

12 Grade & Under $140.00

Adult $140.00

Senior Citizen $120.00

Replace I.D. Card $9.00

Corporate Rate

Individual $235.00

Family $310.00

Racquetball

Drop-in, per hour $0.00 Each

Reservation, per hour $2.00 Each

10 Punch Card $17.00 to $20.00 Value

Child Care

2-hour stay $2.50

20-Punch Card $40.00

Rentals

Resident Non-profit Organizations

Entire facility w/ adequate approved adult 

supervision 1:20 ratio

Per Hour $100.00

Each additional hour N/A

Maximum cost (12 hr. max.) N/A

Meeting Room $10.00 Per hour

Full Room $25.00 Per hour

Gym Rental

Fit Gym $35.00 Per hour + staff cost 

½ of Old Gym $35.00 Per hour + staff cost 

All of Old Gym $70.00 Per hour + staff cost 

Activity Room $25.00 Per hour + staff cost 

*s.c. - Staff Cost (if needed) $25.00

CITY EMPLOYEE WELLNESS RATES

Recreation Center Membership

Individual 30.00                                                                    

Family 40.00                                                                    

Summer Swim Pass, purchased after May 1

Individual 75.00                                                                    

Family 115.00                                                                 

*1 adult & 4 or less children or 2 adults and 

3 or less children. Ea. Additional child in the 

family will be $10.00

Indoor Lap Swim Pass 45.00  - EE, Reserves, Retiree only

Winter Swim Pass, purchased after August 15

Individual w/RCM 12.50                                                                    

Family w/RCM 25.00                                                                    

Individual w/o RCM 47.50                                                                    

Page 12

392



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

Family w/o RCM 65.00                                                                    

A full list of drop in fitness classes now 

included under the membership can be found 

the web at www.cedarfalls.com/fitness

   COMMUNITY CENTER RENTAL

      Regular Hours:

        Monday-Friday 8am - 4pm

 Seniors citizens (over 65) Events: 

   Monday-Friday Non-Holidays 8am - 4pm

      Non-Organized Clubs No Charge

      Organized Clubs $8.00 Per hour

   Outside Regular Community Center

      Hours
$10.00 Per hour

All Other Non-Profit Events:

Non-Holiday weekdays 8am-4pm 

 Area of facility (Includes Staff Cost):

 Minimum 1 1/2 hour Rental

    Main Hall $50.00 Per hour

    Dance Floor $25.00 Per hour

    Main Hall and Dance Floor $60.00 Per hour

Weekends, Holidays & Outside of Regular 

Hours - 

Minimum 1 1/2 hour Rental

 Area of facility (Includes Staff Cost):

    Main Hall $60.00 Per hour

    Dance Floor $30.00 Per hour

    Main Hall and Dance Floor $75.00 Per hour

Security Deposits for Weekends, Holidays & 

Outside of Regular Hours:

   Non-Beer and/or Wine Events $250.00

   Events with Beer and/or Wine $500.00

HEARST CENTER FOR THE ARTS:

Regular Business Hours:

Tuesday & Thursday  10am - 9pm

Wednesday & Friday  10am - 5pm

    Saturday & Sunday 1pm - 4pm

Members of Friends of the Hearst receive 10% 

off space rental

Qualifying nonprofit or educational groups 

receive 50% off space rental

Equipment and staffing fees are the same for 

everyone

Mae Latta Hall $30.00 Per hour 45.00                                                                    

Hearst Reading Room $15.00 Per hour 20.00                                                                    

Nancy Price Meeting Room $15.00 Per hour 15.00                                                                    

Rownd I & Rownd II Classrooms $25.00 Per hour for one room 35.00                                                                    

$40.00 Per hour for both rooms 50.00                                                                    

McElroy Classroom $25.00 Per hour 35.00                                                                    

Corning Patio $35.00 Per hour 40.00                                                                    

$15.00
Per hour if rented in addition to 

classroom 20.00                                                                    

Sculpture Garden $300.00 up to four hours 350.00                                                                 

$50.00 each additional hour 50.00                                                                    

Equipment Use and Service:

Piano $30.00 45.00                                                                    

Coffee (30 cup pot only-coffee not provided) $8.00 Remove

Coffee (60 cup pot only-coffee not provided) $12.00 Remove

Room Set-Up $10.00 for events fewer than 25 30.00                                                                    

$25.00 for groups 26-100 45.00                                                                    

Additional Fees:

Staff member if event takes place outside 

center hours
$30.00 Per hour

An additional fee will be deducted from the 

security deposit if the space requires cleaning.

A nonrefundable deposit of 50% of the rental 

fee is due at the time the reservation is made

A security deposit may be required depending 

on the nature of the event Remove

All events during which food or beverages will 

be served or that take place outside center 

hours will require a security deposit of 

$250.00

All events during which food or 

beverages will be served require a 

security deposit of $250.00

Alcoholic beverages (beer & wine) may be 

served only in compliance with the Hearst 

Center's alcoholic beverage policy.  There will 

be a $500.00 security deposit, and an off-duty 

police officer must be present during the 

entire event.

Beer and wine may be served only 

in compliance with the Hearst Center's 

alcoholic beverage policy and will require 

a $500 security deposit. Hard liquor is 

not allowed

VISITOR CENTER RENTAL

During Regular Business Hours:

     Monday-Friday 8am - 5pm
30 people maximum & use of 

conference room and patio only

         Half Day (4 hours) $100.00 Flat Fee 150.00                                                                 

         Full Day (8 hours) $200.00 Flat Fee 300.00                                                                 

Page 13

393



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

   Saturday 9am - 4pm & Sunday Noon-4pm $50.00
Per hour, Use of conference room 

and patio only

 75.00, during open hours, 30 people 

maximum & use of conference room 

and patio only 

  Outside Regular Visitor Center Hours $75.00 Per hour  100.00, 30 people maximum & use of 

conference room and patio only 

Usage Fees

Annual

First Dog $15.00

Each Additional Dog $15.00

Daily $2.00 Per dog

Memorial Brick $75.00

Services

Adult Spaces, Flush Marker Section $675.00

Adult Spaces, Monument Section $800.00

Infant Spaces 2’ X 5’ $250.00

Infant Spaces 2.5’ X 5’ $260.00

Adult Open and Close – Weekday $750.00

Adult Open and Close – Saturday  a.m. $900.00

Adult Open and Close – Saturday p.m. $950.00

Adult Open and Close – Less than 8-hour 

Notice
$925.00

Infant Open and Close – Weekday

Without Tent $335.00

With Tent $385.00

Infant Open and Close – Saturday

Without Tent $425.00

With Tent $500.00

PM - Add $50.00

Cremains – Weekday

Without Tent $350.00

With Tent $400.00

Cremains – Saturday

Without Tent $425.00

With Tent $500.00

PM - Add $60.00

Winter Cremains – Weekday with Tent $625.00

Winter Cremains – Saturday a.m. with Tent $725.00

Winter Cremains – Saturday p.m. with Tent $775.00

Services before 9:00 a.m. $175.00 Additional

$200.00 Additional and

$50.00 Each hr after 4:00 p.m.

Disinterment – Adult $1,250.00

Disinterment – Infant/Cremains $550.00

Foundation and Marker Permit (Charged to 

Monument Company)
$65.00

Cemetery Lot Ownership and Deed Changes $60.00

NOTE: No Tent Service Available for Interments 

which Require a Vault

SEC. 16-99

HAZARDOUS WASTE SPILLS $50.00 Min. per Incident

SEC. 17-232

TREE TRIMMER’S LICENSE $55.00 Each year 

  Bond or Evidence of Insurance $5,000.00

  Certificate of Liability Insurance
$100,000/

$300,000

SEC. 17-247

FAILURE TO DESTROY NOXIOUS WEEDS & OTHER 

VEGETATION

1-Hour Minimum
Employee's 

Effective Rate

These costs shall be assessed 

against the property for collection 

in the same manner as a property 

tax.                          

I.C.A.§364.12(3)(g), (h)                                                                            

For equipment rates utilize current Iowa DOT Schedule of 

Equipment Rates unless otherwise noted in this document.  

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_r

ates_16.pdf

For Hire Contractor Labor & Equipment

Amount 

Invoiced by 

Contractor

SEC. 19-176

SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION OR REMOVAL PERMIT
$30.00

SEC. 19-183

REPAIR OF DEFECTIVE SIDEWALKS

For Hire Contractor Amount 

Invoiced by 

Contractor

These costs shall be assessed 

against the abutting property for 

collection in the same manner as a 

property tax.                          

I.C.A.§364.12(2)(b), (e)                                                                            

SEC. 19-185

REMOVAL OF SNOW & ICE FROM SIDEWALKS

1-Hour Minimum
Employee's 

Effective Rate

These costs shall be assessed 

against the property for collection 

in the same manner as a property 

tax.                          

I.C.A.§364.12(3)(g), (h)                                                                            

For equipment rates utilize current Iowa DOT Schedule of 

Equipment Rates unless otherwise noted in this document.  

http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/equipment_r

ates_16.pdf

CEMETERY FEES

Services entering Cemetery after 3:00 p.m.

VETERANS PARK

PAW PARK

Page 14

394



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

For Hire Contractor Labor & Equipment

Amount 

Invoiced by 

Contractor

SEC. 19-214

DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE PERMIT
$30.00

SEC. 19-217

DRIVEWAY CONTRACTOR'S BOND
$5,000.00 Renewable annually

SEC. 19-2  

STREET MEETINGS
Use of barricades for block parties or street 

closures
$25.00 Block - up to Maximum of $100.00

SEC. 19-74(d)

TABLES, CHAIRS AND/OR BENCHES PERMIT
$25.00 Annually

SEC. 19-74(e)

TEMPORARY SIGNS PERMIT FOR DOWNTOWN 

SIDEWALK $25.00 Annually

SEC. 19-96

SIDEWALK CAFÉ PERMIT

$50.00

$250.00

Annually

Cash deposit

SEC. 19-100

PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT
$1.00

Per square foot of public sidewalk 

within sidewalk café area

SEC. 19-134

EXCAVATION PERMIT
$30.00

SEC. 20-34

APPROVAL OF MINOR PLAT
$150.00

SEC. 20-59

APPROVAL OF PRELIMINARY PLAT
$300.00 Plus $5.00 per acre

SEC. 20-104

APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT
$300.00

SEC. 20-144

PROCESSING FEES FOR DEDICATION, VACATION 

OF CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY

$200.00

UTILITY EASEMENT VACATION $200.00

PARKING METER Fees Covered By Ordinance

SEC. 23-359

IMMOBILIZATION OF VEHICLES
$50.00

SEC. 23-413

PARKING PERMITS
$20.00 per month

$35.00 per month

SEC. 23-413

PAID PARKING RATES
$.10-$.25 per hour/per day

$.50/$3.00 per hour/per day until 5 pm

$3.00 after 5 pm

SEC. 23-654

ISSUANCE OF BICYCLE REGISTRATION TAG
$2.00

Septic Tank Discharge Fee $13.00
per 1,000 gallons of tank truck 

capacity

Hydro-Cleaner $150.00 Per Hour

Sludge Truck $150.00 Per Hour

Sewer Televising  Apparatus $150.00 Per Hour

Utility Truck $75.00 Per Hour

Pump $50.00 Per Hour

All equipment listed above:

   1-Hour Minimum

Personnel:

   1-Hour Minimum

Employee's 

Effective Rate
Plus 20% administrative fee

Subdivision plat or initial land development $50.00 Per acre exposed

Subsequent development of lot or parcel of 

original tract of land
$100.00 Single family unit

$50.00
Per residential unit for multiple 

unit complex

$10.00
Per 1,000 sq. ft. of impervious 

surface

  SEC. 25-30 License Fee $110.00 Each year before March 31

$165.00 after March 31

$30.00 Each vehicle before March 31

$45.00 after March 31

Vehicle replacement/substitution $10.00
Each vehicle/

Each occurrence

SEC. 25-35

APPLICATION FOR DRIVER LICENSE $12.00 Each

SEC. 25-41 

Renewal of License $6.00 Each renewal before March 31

$12.00 Each renewal after March 31

Rezoning Request $500.00

Board of Adjustment – Variances $350.00

Board of Adjustment – Special Exceptions $350.00

Land Use Permits $25.00

Site Plan Review
  - Façade Review for commercial & minor 

residential improvements
$50.00

SEC. 26-4

ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT (TEXT OR MAP)

SEC. 25

VEHICLES FOR HIRE

SEC. 24-304

STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN APPLICATION 

CHAPER 24 UTILITIES

SEWERS AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL

CHAPTER 23

TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Page 15

395



City of Cedar Falls  ITEM-Attachment-001-ca1ac42dc7ef402e89638541634da87f.xlsx

SCHEDULE OF FEES ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROPOSED RATEADOPTED RATE

  - Residential Review, Single Family & Two-Family 

Residential
$100.00

  - Commercial Review including multi-family 

residential facilities
$300.00

SEC. 26-134    

Communication Towers $200.00

Small Wireless Facility 

Initial Application Fee
$500.00

5 or more, $500/first + $100/each 

additional

Annual Usage Fee $270.00 per year, per facility
SEC. 26-138

Wind Energy Facilities $200.00

The inspections, thus the fee schedule shall be based on occupancy, or individual business. Therefore, if there are more than one occupancy or businesses in a single 

building, each business, and the business owner/occupant thereof, will be responsible for the inspection and the fee. The actual payment of the fee between the 

occupant and the landlord is between those parties and the lease agreement; the City will not be involved in such agreements. If there is a common area, the inspection 

and fee for this common area will be the responsibility of the building/property owner. 

The fire chief has the authority to waive or negotiate a more appropriate service fee based on hardship, established self-insurance plans and larger deductibles.

FIRE RESPONSE INSURANCE RECOVERY FEE:  

Whereas a property owner’s insurance policy provides for a fire department response fee, a fee of $500 shall apply to the owner of a residential property and a fee of 

$1000 shall apply to the owner of a commercial property in which the fire department responds to suppress a building fire. 

Any building that is fully sprinkled will receive a credit of 50%, of the square footage relative hazard class fee. (This is to show the importance of sprinklers relative to 

life safety and the type of building construction.) 

REINSPECTION FEES DO NOT APPLY IF VIOLATIONS ARE CORRECTED PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED REINSPECTION DATE. IF DURING A REINSPECTION VIOLATIONS 

ARE STILL PRESENT, A REINSPECTION FEE WILL APPLY AS PER THIS FEE SCHEDULE.  (First - $100, Second - $150, Third - $200, Each after Third - $200)

REINSPECTION FEES: 

At the time of the initial inspection, the occupant and/or owner will receive a copy of the life safety inspection indicating which violations need to be corrected. Along 

with this will be a standard letter listing the date of reinspection as well as the schedule of fees, as listed in the fee schedule. Fees will be assessed if they do not comply 

at the time of the first, second, or third reinspection date. If the Fire Department is notified in writing, (by mail or hand delivered) in a timely manner, and repairs are 

scheduled, a reinspection date may be rescheduled to allow more time to complete repairs. Non-profit entities or governmental agencies are not exempt from the 

reinspection fees as listed in the fee schedule. 

ANNUAL LIFE SAFETY PERMITS, LICENSES, AND CERTIFICATIONS FEES 

The following fees shall be established for the permits, licenses, certificate's, approvals, life safety inspections and other functions performed under this Code and shall 

be payable by the Non-residential businesses to the City of Cedar Falls. Such fees shall accompany each application for such permit, approval, certificate, or other fee-

related Code provisions. 

(1) Non-residential businesses annual fee schedule for life safety inspection. 

New Construction applications for permit shall comply with the adopted Codes of the City of Cedar Falls. 

The purpose of this ordinance is to provide minimum standards to safeguard life, health, property and public welfare by regulating and controlling the design, 

construction, quality of materials, use and occupancy, location and maintenance of all nonresidential businesses, buildings and structures within this jurisdiction and 

certain equipment specifically regulated by the adopted Fire Code of the City of Cedar Falls. 

COMMERCIAL FIRE INSPECTION FEE SCHEDULE

SQUARE FOOT                     
                     Fee                       
     
            1 -  2,000    $40          
    2,001 -  10,000    $70          
   10,001 - 20,000  $100          
   20,001 - 50,000   $195        
   50,001 - 100,000       $225        
   over  100,000  $300        

Page 16

396



TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS DIVISION 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-268-4266 
FAX 319-277-9707 

MEMORANDUM 

Mayor James P. Brown . 
Kim Manning, Manager, Visitors & Tourism/Cultural Divisioo-h0 
June 12, 2019 iflll._ 
Memorandum of Agreement to Produce Waterloo/Cedar Falls Visitor Guide 

We have collaborated with the Waterloo Convention and Visitors Bureau, now known as 
Experience Waterloo, for the last 20+ years to produce a visitor guide, which is our primary 
promotional publication. Its purpose is to inspire people to visit our community. 40,000 copies of 
the guide are printed in January and distributed throughout the year. We also make a digital 
version of the publication available. 

In recent years we have partnered with Courier Communications, whose role was to sell 
advertisements to support the publication. They also provided design work and managed the 
printing. In our original arrangement the Courier kept all advertisement revenue and in 
exchange, we received the printed publication at no cost. In the last couple of years if ad sales 
were successful, the Courier has shared $2,500 of ad sales with each bureau. 

For the 2020 publication, we wish to bring the management of this project in-house. This 
change will allow us greater latitude in the design and content of the guide. It will also make 
more of the advertisement revenue available to us to use for promotional purposes. We will 
continue to work together to develop the content. All income and expenses will be handled by 
Experience Waterloo. A designated member of the Experience Waterloo staff will sell the 
advertisements. We will share equally in any potential revenue. Based on advertisements in the 
last several years of the publication, the cost to hire a designer and pay for printing and delivery, 
we anticipate a potential gross profit of $30,000. 

A Memorandum of Agreement has been drafted by City Attorney Kevin Rogers. It outlines our 
plan. We respectfully request that you sign this agreement so we may begin. As always, please 
feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns. Thank you. 

Cc: Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
Jennifer Rodenbeck, Finance and Business 
Operations Director 
Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community 
Development Director 

Mark Ripplinger, Municipal Operations & 
Programs Director 
Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

397



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS AND EXPERIENCE WATERLOO 

(VISITOR GUIDE) 

This Memorandum of Agreement is made this __ day of , 2019, by and 
between the City of Cedar Falls Tourism and Visitor's Bureau on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, a municipality (hereinafter referred to as "Cedar Falls"), and Waterloo Convention & 
Visitors Bureau, Inc., an Iowa non-profit company (hereinafter referred to as "Experience 
Waterloo"). 

WHEREAS, the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Visitor Guide (hereinafter referred to as the "Visitor 
Guide") is the official promotional publication of Experience Waterloo and Cedar Falls and is 
intended to inspire people to visit the community; and 

WHEREAS, Experience Waterloo and Cedar Falls desire to collaborate to offer a high 
quality Visitor Guide to promote the community to visitors; and 

WHEREAS, Experience Waterloo and Cedar Falls desire to manage the production of the 
Visitor Guide in-house rather than engaging outside contractors to do so; and 

WHEREAS, Experience Waterloo and Cedar Falls desire to support the production of the 
Visitor Guide through the sale of advertisements; and 

WHEREAS, Experience Waterloo will manage the solicitation, design, placement and sale 
of such advertisements in collaboration with and supported by Cedar Falls; and 

WHEREAS, Experience Waterloo and Cedar Falls have reached agreement on this matter 
and wish to reduce their agreement to writing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Term. The anticipated printing date of the 2020 Visitor Guide is January 1, 2020. The 
term of this Agreement is either for one year or until the Visitor Guide is published, all 
advertising revenues are received, and all expenses are paid, whichever occurs first. 

2. Printing. There shall be 40,000 copies of the 2020 Visitor Guide printed, with each party 
receiving a roughly equal number of copies. 

3. Advertising. The amounts to be charged for advertising in the Visitor Guide shall be as 
set forth in Exhibit "A" attached which is incorporated herein by this reference. The content of 
advertising is subject to the approval of both Experience Waterloo and Cedar Falls. Both 
Experience Waterloo and Cedar Falls shall assist with leads generation for advertising. 
Revenue from advertising sales shall be received and maintained by Experience Waterloo in a 
segregated account from which expenses are to be paid as incurred. An accounting of revenue 
and expenses shall be provided to Cedar Falls on a regular basis and upon request by Cedar 
Falls. 

1 

Scanned by CamScanner 

398



4. Profit. Experience Waterloo and Cedar Falls shall share net profits, if any, on an equal 
basis. Net profits are defined as the total of add revenues, less the cost of design, less the cost 
of printing, and less the cost of delivery from the printer to an agreed upon location. In addition, 
one-half of labor cost as described in Paragraph 5 below shall be paid from Cedar Falls' share 
of net profits. 

5. Management. Experience Waterloo shall assign an employee to manage development 
and production of the Visitor Guide, who shall devote her/his best efforts to such development 
and production. Management duties shall include but not be limited to design of the Visitor 
Guide with input from Cedar Falls, advertising sales and coordination of printing and delivery. 

a. Designated Experience Waterloo staff shall keep a record of the time devoted to the 
Visitor Guide, which shall be charged at $20.00 per hour. She/he shall enter her/his 
hours on Google Docs within a reasonable time so that Cedar Falls may keep apprised 
of labor cost incurred. 

b. It is anticipated that the designated Experience Waterloo staff shall devote 
approximately 125 hours to the Event Guide, totaling $2500.00 in total labor cost. 
Cedar Falls shall reimburse Experience Waterloo for one-half of the cost of labor, to be 
paid from Cedar Falls' share of net profits after deducting from advertising sales 
revenue the cost of design, the cost of printing and the cost of delivery from the printer. 
If revenue is insufficient to cover the expenses or the cost of labor, Cedar Falls shall 
remain responsible for reimbursing Experience Waterloo for one-half of the cost of 
labor incurred by the designated Experience Waterloo staff. Such reimbursement for 
labor cost is due from Cedar Falls after all advertising revenues have been received 
and all other expenses have been paid. 

c. Experience Waterloo shall be solely responsible for the designated Experience 
Waterloo staff pay and benefits. It is the intention of the parties that Cedar Falls' 
contribution to labor cost is a reimbursement to Experience Waterloo and not payment 
of wages, salary or other compensation to the designated Experience Waterloo staff. 
Nothing contained herein shall be construed to create an employer-employee or 
contractual relationship between Cedar Falls andthe designated Experience Waterloo 
staff. 

d. The designated Experience Waterloo staff shall receive a 10% commission on 
advertising sales equal to or in excess of $42,500.00. It is Experience Waterloo's sole 
discretion how such commission is to be accounted for in the designated Experience 
Waterloo staff pay. Cedar Falls shall reimburse Experience Waterloo for such 
commission on the same basis as above, namely, from the net profits of advertising 
revenue after deduction of expenses. Reimbursement for any commission shall be 
due after all advertising revenues have been received and all other expenses have 
been paid. 

6. Expenses. Experience Waterloo shall engage the services of a designer and a printer. 
Based upon preliminary estimates the costs for such expenses are as follows: 

a. Design: Trademark Brand Design Studio & Letterpress Co.ffRDMRK Co.- 
$9,000.00. This estimate is based on $87.50 per page. 

2 

Scanned by CamScanner 

399



b. Printing: Royle Printing--$31,000.00. 

c. Delivery. In addition to design and printing costs, Experience Waterloo shall arrange 
for delivery of printed Event Guides to a location mutually agreed to by the parties, 
which may be the public works facility in Cedar Falls. 

Experience Waterloo shall pay expenses as incurred from advertising revenues. Cedar Falls 
shall be consulted if expenses are anticipated to substantially exceed the above amounts. 
Expenses are to be shared equally between the parties. If revenue is insufficient to cover 
expenses then Cedar Falls shall reimburse Experience Waterloo for one-half of any expenses 
not covered by revenue on terms mutually agreed upon. 

7. Distribution. Once printed copies are drop shipped to the mutually agreeable location, 
each party shall be responsible for further delivery and distribution to recipients of their 
choosing, at their own separate cost. 

8. Content. Experience Waterloo and Cedar Falls each shall be responsible for 
developing content for the Visitor Guide. It is anticipated that content shall be roughly equal 
between the parties. 

6. Approval. This Memorandum of Agreement is subject to the approval of the City 
Council of the City of Cedar Falls. 

7. Entire Agreement. This Memorandum of Agreement and Exhibit constitute the entire 
understanding between the parties regarding the subject matter herein. There are no promises 
or understandings, oral or written, except as set forth herein. This Memorandum of Agreement 
may be modified only in writing and signed by authorized representatives of both parties and 
approved by the City Council of the City Cedar Falls. 

Waterloo Convention & Visitor's Bureau, 
Inc. 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

By:----------- 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

3 

Scanned by CamScanner 

400



SPACE AND MATERIALS DEADLINE: 
Friday, September 27, 2019 

ART SUBMISSION DEADLINE: 
Friday, October 25, 2019 

AD PROOF FINALIZED BY: 
Friday, November 1, 2019 

PAYMENT DEADLINE: 
November 30, 2019 

DISTRIBUTION BEGINS: 
January 2020 

Full Page 

1/2 Page (H) 

1/2 
Page 
(V) 

Full Page (7.5 x 1oi 

Half Page (7.5 x 4.875 Horizontal or 3.75 x 10 Vertical) 

Quarter Page (3.625 x 4.875J 

Eighth Page (3.625 x 2.375 Horizontal) 

INVESTMENT OPTIONS 

2020 2019 
Pricing Pricing 

$2,250* $2,555 

$1,500* $1,645 

$1,000* $1,105 

$750* $845 

Creative 
Services 

$425 

$225 

$125 

$100 

*Guaranteed Position: Preferred positions will be accepted as space is available. Add 15% to price. 
** Includes two edits. Does not apply to camera ready artwork. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
BILLING INFORMATION 
Invoices will be emailed from Experience Waterloo. 

Date _ 

Company Name _ 

Address City State Zip _ 

Phone{ __ }, Cell{ __ } _ 

Contact _ 

Email address _ 

Authorized Signature _ 

For more information contact Annette Freeseman at 319-233-8350 or annette@experiencewaterloo.com 
401



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Technician II 
 
 DATE: June 12, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction 
  Project Number RC-293-3172 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct a portion of Ridgeway Avenue 
Chancellor Drive to Hwy 58. The project will require the acquisition of right of way and 
temporary easements along the corridor. Plans for the project shows the need for 
acquisitions from approximately four (4) properties. 
 
We recommend that the Council execute documents and record at the Black Hawk 
County Courthouse. Parcel 1 Quit Claim Deed.  
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 

402



403



404



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: June 12, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Snyder & Associates, Inc.   
   2019 Engineering Services 
   Supplemental Agreement No. 8 
   Greenhill Road Extension Lighting 
   City Project No. SL-154-3203 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 8 to the Professional Services Agreement between 
the City of Cedar Falls and Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 2019 Engineering Services. This supplemental 
agreement will provide design for the roundabout lighting design on Greenhill Road. The agreement will 
provide a conceptual design and final plans of a lighting placement to be constructed by Cedar Falls 
Utilities using standard equipment. 
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. 
for the 2019 Engineering Services on December 3, 2018.  Funding for the Supplemental Agreement #8 
will be provided by the general obligations fund in the amount of $7,000.00. This project is included in the 
City of Cedar Falls’ Capital Improvements Program. 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval of this 
Supplemental Agreement No. 8 with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the Greenhill Road Extension Lighting 
Project.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz,  Director of Community Development 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 

 
 

405



406



407



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner II 

 DATE: June 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Update to the Historic Preservation Commission Bylaws  

 
The Historic Preservation Commission wishes to update Article IV, Item B in their 
Bylaws. The proposed change updates the Commission’s meeting time. The 
Commission unanimously voted on the change in their June 11th meeting.  
 
The Bylaws originally read: “The Commission shall meet monthly on the second 
Wednesday at 4:00 p.m. at Cedar Falls City Hall, unless the Commission determines 
otherwise.”  The proposed change: “The Commission shall meet monthly on the second 
Tuesday at 5:30 p.m. at Cedar Falls City Hall, unless the Commission determines 
otherwise.”  
 
If you have any questions please don’t hesitate to contact me at this office.  
 
 
Attachments:   Signed Bylaw Amendment 
 

408



409



410



411



412



413



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner II 

 DATE: June 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program: 1600 W 3rd 
Street 

 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015. The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single family owner occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties 
converting to owner occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program was developed initially through the City established Rental 
Task Force. 
 
Ron McCartan and Mason McCartan purchased 1600 W 3rd Street in July 2019. The new 
owners have submitted an application, attached, to be considered for the Rental to Single 
Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. This single family home meets the 
requirements of the program: has been utilized as a rental since 2007, falls within the 
program’s geographical boundaries, is Zoned R-2, and is located in a block with less than 
75% rentals. 
 
Ron McCartan and Mason McCartan are proposing to use funds from the program to 
install new siding and replace all windows on the house. Based on the submitted bid by 
Black Hawk Roof Company, the actual cost of the improvement listed is $13,311.00.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving 
this property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000.00 with the placement of a lien on the 
property for which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if 
sold prior to the end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council 
approval with the balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the 
City of the improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. This 
approval is subject to the property passing a major system evaluation (city inspection). 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director; Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

414



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Iris Lehmann, Community Development Department, 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 

 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

 
Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $ 10,000.00 

 
Date:    

 
RE: Property located at: 1600 W 3rd Street 

and legally described as O E MULLARKYS ADDITION E 1/2 LOT 1 BLK 20 ALL  

VACATED ALLEY LYING S OF E 1/2 LOT 1 & W 1/2 GENEVIEVE ST ADJ SAID E 1/2 LOT 1 &  

VAC ALLEY 

 
 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners: Ron McCartan and Mason McCartan (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a 
Rental to Owner Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed 
upon the above-described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
 

415



E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 
60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   

   
Ron McCartan   Mason McCartan 

OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2019, by Ron 
McCartan and Mason McCartan. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

416



417



418



419



420



 

 
 

421



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner II 

 DATE: June 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program: 620 
Tremont Street 

 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015. The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single family owner occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties 
converting to owner occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program was developed initially through the City established Rental 
Task Force. 
 
James Risius and Sloan Alberhasky purchased 620 Tremont Street in November 2018. 
The new owners have submitted an application, attached, to be considered for the Rental 
to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. This single family home meets the 
requirements of the program: has been utilized as a rental since 2014, falls within the 
program’s geographical boundaries, is Zoned R-2, and is located in a block with less than 
75% rentals. 
 
James Risius and Sloan Alberhasky are proposing to use funds from the program to 
replace all windows on the house. Based on the submitted bid by Zen Promise, the actual 
cost of the improvement listed is $16,220.00.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving 
this property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000.00 with the placement of a lien on the 
property for which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if 
sold prior to the end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council 
approval with the balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the 
City of the improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. This 
approval is subject to the property passing a major system evaluation (city inspection). 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director; Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

422



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Iris Lehmann, Community Development Department, 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 

 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

 
Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $ 10,000.00 

 
Date:    

 
RE: Property located at: 620 Tremont Street 

and legally described as OVERMAN AND WRIGHTS ADDITION W 1/2 LOT 5 BLK 4 
 

 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners: James Risius and Sloan Alberhasky (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a 
Rental to Owner Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed 
upon the above-described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
 

423



E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 
60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   

   
James Risius   Sloan Alberhasky 

OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2019, by Sloan 
Alberhasky. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

424



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
RENTAL TO OWNER CONVERSION INCENTIVE PROGRAM APPLICATION

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Property's Address:

Property Zoning (circle one): RI , R2 , Other

Name of Applicant: k'

Applicant's Email: ( @ 

Current Deed Holder or Contract Buyer:

• Com Daytime Phone #: (015)

Mailing Address of Owner (if different than above):

Owner's Email: )@ CCF' Daytime Phone #:
67 < -a >32.-/

Nature of improvements (specify):

Estimated or Actual Cost of Improvements:

09Proposed Start Date: Estimated or Actual Date of Completion:

Lender: Daytime Phone #:

Lender Address:

Applicants Signature:

Name (Printed):

FOR CITY USE ONLY

0<73 /// q

Application Approved / Disapproved

CITY COUNCIL

ASSESSOR

Reason (if disapproved):

Date: Resolution No.

Attested b the Cit Clerk

Present Assessed Value of Structure

Assessed Value with Improvements

Eligible or Non-eligible for Tax Abatement

Assessor Date

City of Cedar Falls (319) 273-8600: email: planning@cedarfalls.com
425



1903-1915-4514
2019-03-25

Zen Windows Des Moines
699 Walnut St. Ste 400
Des Moines Iowa 50309
alix@zenwindows.com
515-207-8789

James Risius
620 Tremont Street

Cedar Falls Iowa 50613
risiusj@gmail.com

(515) 520-0234

620 Tremont Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 50613

Double Hung Windows
Description Unit Price Quantity Total

Nirvana Double Pane Double Hung Window 00100
Nirvana Double Hung Window

Color:

White Exterior & Interior

Glass Specs:

2 Panes of Double Strength Glass, Low E Plus, 1
Chamber Of Argon Gas

Frame Specs:

100% Virgin Vinyl, Fusion Welded Corners, Foam Filled
Frame & Sashes, Metal Reinforced Sashes, Vent
Latches (When Engaged, Limits The Amount The
Windows Can Open)

Screens:

Half Screens: Extruded Screens For Strength

$525.00 24.00 $12,600.00

Colonial Grids (00100 Window)
Contoured Colonial Grids Between The Glass

Top Sash Only

$35.00 24.00 $840.00

Woodgrain Interior Color
Options:
Light Oak, Medium Oak, Brazilian Cherry, Or Cherry

Color Swatches Will Be Sent Out With A Physical
Copy Of The Quote

Upstairs Bathroom Window To Be White Interior

$75.00 23.00 $1,725.00

Safety Glazing (Tempering)
Required Safety Glazing (Tempering)

For Windows In A Bathroom (Specifically Within 60" Of
A Water Line)
Within 24" Of A Door

$130.00 2.00 $260.00

Zen Promise

1 of 3

426



In A Stairwell Landing/Stairway (Or Within 24" Of A
Stairwell/Landing)
Within 18" Of The Floor When Glass Space On An
Individual Sash Is 9 Square Feet Or More.

Obscured Glass 00100
Obscured Glass At Lower Sashes Of Window In Bathroom
For Privacy.

$45.00 2.00 $90.00

$15,515.00

Picture Windows
Description Unit Price Quantity Total

Nirvana Double Pane Picture Window 0060
Nirvana Picture Window

Color:

White Exterior & Interior

Glass:

2 Panes of Double Strength Glass, Warm Edge Spacer,
Low E Plus, 1 Chamber of Argon Gas

Frame:

100% Virgin Vinyl, Fusion Welded Corners, Foam Filled
Frame

$495.00 1.00 $495.00

Craftsman Grids (00100 Window)
Contoured Craftsman Grids Between The Glass

$135.00 1.00 $135.00

Woodgrain Interior Color
Options:
Light Oak, Medium Oak, Brazilian Cherry, Or Cherry

Color Swatches Will Be Sent Out With A Physical
Copy Of The Quote

$75.00 1.00 $75.00

$705.00

Notes
Description

Notes
1. Replacement Of Any Rotted Wood In The Window Openings.
2. Fill Weight Pockets With Insulation.
3. Leave Existing Interior Window Trim (Extension Jambs & Casings) As Is.
4. Capping Around Exterior Window Frame With Trim Coil In White To Match The Exterior Window Color.
5. Insulate & Caulk Around Newly Installed Windows.
6. Clean Up Job Site & Dispose Of Any Job Related Debris.
7. Financing Available For This Project. If You Are Interested In Financing, Simply Let Us Know And We Will Get

You An Online Link For The Application.
8. By Accepting This Quote, You Also Acknowledge Receipt Of The "Renovate Right Pamphlet" For Homes Built

Prior To 1978. The Pamphlet Is Attached To This Quote.
9. Comprehensive Lifetime + Transferable Window, Glass, & Labor Warranty.

2 of 3

427



Subtotal $16,220.00
Tax $0.00

Total $16,220.00

WHAT'S INCLUDED:

Price includes all tax, labor, materials and picking up and hauling away all job related debris.
Price includes replacement of any rotted wood in the window openings.
Rotted wood that extends beyond the window openings (wall sheathing, studs, siding, drywall, etc) will be on
an additional labor and material basis unless otherwise noted.

WARRANTY:

All windows to carry a TRANSFERABLE LIFETIME WARRANTY on labor, materials, and glass.

The product we install must meet all of these requirements:

All windows to be custom made.
All Windows to be Energy Star Rated.
All windows to be insulated and sealed as necessary.
All windows to be capped, cut back or wrapped (as necessary) and caulked.

PAYMENT:

No deposit/payment required to place order. Payment is due in full upon completion of installation. Financing
Programs Available, please ask for more details.

EPA DISCLOSURE: For all homes built prior to 1978, EPA installation will be performed as required. All windows
and doors are custom made for each opening in your home. Once ordered, depending on the type and color of
windows or doors you are replacing, your new windows will take between 4 - 8 weeks to arrive at our facilities. At
that time we will call to set a date for our expert installers to replace your windows.

Thank you for the opportunity to present this quote to you. I look forward to hearing from you soon.

Alix & Matt Wenninger

Signature Date March 25, 2019

Signature Date

3 of 3

428



429



430



431



432



433



 

434



 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: June 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Greenhill Road and Coneflower Parkway Intersection Improvements 
  Escrow Agreement  
 
On April 2, 2018, the City entered into a developmental agreement with Greenhill Estates, the 
developer, for intersection improvements at Greenhill Road and Coneflower Parkway. The 
developer signed the attached project escrow agreement to establish an escrow account in 
the amount of $101,833.09 to ensure the completion of the project. This dollar amount was 
determined by the City Engineer. 
 
The developer has agreed to pay for the improvements on Greenhill Road at the intersection 
of Coneflower Parkway. These intersection improvements include the following: 

 
1. Install an additional right turn lane for the eastbound traffic on Greenhill Road. 
2. Install striping to create a new left turn lane on Greenhill Road for both the westbound 

and eastbound directional traffic and any associated striping necessary to safely 
create this improvement on Greenhill Road. This striping shall merge into the existing 
turn lane striping at the Greenhill Road and Main Street intersection. 

3. The existing recreational trail along the south side of Greenhill Road will be relocated 
south of the new right turn lane.  

 
In order to coordinate our efforts and avoid throw away costs, the Greenhill/Coneflower 
intersection will be designed and constructed in conjunction with the intersection 
improvements at Greenhill Road and Main Street in FY20-21. The “Project Escrow 
Agreement” is based on the standard forms developed by our City Attorney. The developer 
provided a check in the amount of $101,833.09 that will be deposited in the city’s project 
escrow account. We recommend approval of the “Project Escrow Agreement” for the 
completion of the Greenhill Road and Coneflower intersection improvements. 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Karen Howard, Planning and Community Engineer 
 

435



436



437



438



439



440



441



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Technician II 
 
 DATE: June 12, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Cyber Lane, 2018 Street Construction Project 
  Project Number RC-000-3141 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to construct Cyber lane from Technology Parkway 
south approximately 400’. The project will require the acquisition of a temporary 
construction easement from one property for this project. 
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right of way.  The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the easements will be purchased, 
to comment on the project. 
 
We recommend that the Council schedule a Public Hearing for July 1, 2019, to be held 
at the regularly scheduled City Council meeting. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 

442



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSAL TO UNDERTAKE A PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FOR THE CYBER LANE, 2018 STREET CONSTRUCTION 
PROJECT AND TO AUTHORIZE ACQUISITION OF PRIVATE PROPERTY FOR SAID 

PROJECT 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on the 1st day of July, 2019, at 7:00 o’clock p.m. in the Council 
Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, a 
Public Hearing will be held by the City Council of said City on the proposal to undertake a public 
improvement project for the Cyber Lane, 2018 Street Construction Project and to authorize 
acquisition of private property for the project. 
 
Written objections to the proposal may be filed with City Clerk on or before the date of hearing, 
and all objections will be heard at the time of said hearing. 
 
This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on the 17th   
day of June, 2019. 
 
 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

443



444



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: June 13, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: South Main Street Parking Lot Project 
   Project No. PL-159-3202 
   Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the South Main Street Parking Lot Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, July 1, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project and Tuesday, July 9, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to Bidders be published by 
June 21, 2019. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution to contractors on June 
21, 2019 allowing more than two (2) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the construction of a small parking lot to provide public access to the 
Cedar Prairie Trail on South Main Street, just west of Oregon Road. There will be 8 standard 
and 1 handicap accessible parking stalls. This project also includes the construction of 
approximately 500 feet of PCC shoulder along South Main Street from Oregon Road north to 
the Highway 58 Bridge. This work includes removal of existing granular shoulder, construction 
of PCC shoulder, construction of a PCC parking lot, and construction of a drainage swale. Work 
will include parking lot construction, drainage channel grading, temporary HMA shoulders, PCC 
shoulders, and a driveway replacement. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $104,937.00. The project will be 
funded with the general obligations fund.  
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your review at 
the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Community Development Department. 
 
att 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 

445



ITEM UNIT TOTAL

NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST

1 TOPSOIL, ONSITE CY 25.00$        191.0 4,775.00$             

2 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE CY 12.00$        645.0 7,740.00$             

3 SUBGRADE PREPERATION SY 6.00$          1177.0 7,062.00$             

4 SUBGRADE, MODIFIED SY 7.00$          1177.0 8,239.00$             

5 GRANULAR SHOULDER STA 100.00$      8.8 880.00$                

6 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MINOR EA 1,000.00$   1.0 1,000.00$             

7 PAVEMENT, PCC, 6" SY 55.00$        378.6 20,823.00$           

8 PCC PAVEMENT WIDENING, 6" SY 55.00$        505.5 27,802.50$           

9 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT, HMA, 6" SY 45.00$        145.9 6,565.50$             

10 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY SY 10.00$        90.0 900.00$                

11 DRIVEWAY, PAVED, PCC, 7" SY 55.00$        59.0 3,245.00$             

12 SIGNAGE LS 1,500.00$   1.0 1,500.00$             

13 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA 50.00$        41.7 2,085.00$             

14 WET, RETROREFLECTIVE REMOVABLE TAPE MARKINGS STA 50.00$        41.7 2,085.00$             

15 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LENGENDS EA 100.00$      1.0 100.00$                

16 PAVEMENT MARKINGS REMOVED STA 50.00$        39.6 1,980.00$             

17 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 3,500.00$   1.0 3,500.00$             

18 HYDRAULIC SEEDING, SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING AC 7,500.00$   0.2 1,125.00$             

19 RIP RAP, CLASS E TON 50.00$        10.8 540.00$                

20 SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK LF 7.00$          35.0 245.00$                

21 SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK, REMOVAL DEVICE LF 7.00$          35.0 245.00$                

22 MOBILIZATION LS 2,500.00$   1.0 2,500.00$             

$104,937.00

SOUTH MAIN STREET PARKING LOT 
CITY PROJECT NO. PL - 159 - 3202

FINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS

AND QUANTITIES

June 12, 2018

TOTAL:

446



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: June 13, 2019 

SUBJECT:      Sale of Parcel A of Replat of Lot 16 and Tract B, West Viking Road 
Industrial Park Phase IV, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa 
(Contains 2.7 acres more or less). 

    
The Community Development Department would like to request that a public hearing be 
scheduled for July 1, 2019 to address the proposed transfer of the above referenced 
City owned real estate to Tjaden Properties, L.L.C. The proposed project would consist 
of a new 19,050 sf. manufacturing/shop facility to be constructed along the south side of 
Technology Parkway, west of Production Drive in the West Viking Road Industrial Park. 
Additional information pertaining to the land transaction and the Agreement for Private 
Development will be provided to City Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
         
        
 
 
 

447



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING (1) TO CONSIDER 

ENTERING INTO A PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND TJADEN PROPERTIES, 

L.L.C.; AND (2) TO CONSIDER CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED 

REAL ESTATE TO TJADEN PROPERTIES, L.L.C., PURSUANT TO SAID 

PROPOSED AGREEMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received a proposal from Tjaden 

Properties, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company (the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed 

Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 

Tjaden Properties, L.L.C. on terms which include: 

 

(1) Conveyance of certain city-owned real estate legally described as consisting of all that 

certain parcel or parcels of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of 

Black Hawk, State of Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Parcel “A” of “Replat of Lot 16 and Tract “B”, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase 

IV” in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. (Contains 2.70 acres more or 

less). 

 

and  

 

(2) Entering into a Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the minimum actual taxable 

value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the Development Property 

would be established at an amount not less than $1,477,000.00 for a period through 

December 31, 2031; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, to consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development and conveyance 

of the Development Property to the Developer pursuant to the terms of said Agreement.  

 

448



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 1
st
  day of July, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the Council 

Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, to 

consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, and Tjaden Properties, L.L.C., and to consider conveyance of the Development Property to the 

Developer on certain terms as set forth in the proposed agreement.  A copy of the proposed agreement is 

on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish said 

notice of said public hearing. 

 

ADOPTED this 17
th

 day of June, 2019. 

 

   

  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

  

449



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the 17
th

 day of June, 2019. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

  

 

 

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

450



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING (1) TO CONSIDER ENTERING INTO A 

PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND TJADEN PROPERTIES, L.L.C., AND (2) TO 

CONSIDER CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED REAL ESTATE TO 

TJADEN PROPERTIES, L.L.C., PURSUANT TO SAID PROPOSED AGREEMENT 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

Notice is hereby given that on the 1st day of July, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City 

Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Public Hearing will be held by the City Council of said City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, on a proposal from Tjaden Properties, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company (the 

“Developer”), to enter into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and Tjaden Properties, L.L.C., on terms which include: 

 

(1) Conveyance of certain city-owned real estate legally described as consisting of all that 

certain parcel or parcels of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of 

Black Hawk, State of Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Parcel “A” of “Replat of Lot 16 and Tract “B”, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase 

IV” in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. (Contains 2.70 acres more or 

less). 

 

and 

 

(2) Entering into a Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the minimum actual taxable 

value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the Development Property would 

be established at an amount not less than $1,477,000.00 for a period through December 31, 

2031; and 

 

A copy of the proposed agreement is on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk. Any interested 

party may appear at the time and place of hearing and be heard, or may file written objections with the City 

Clerk on or before the date and time of said hearing. 

 

This notice is given pursuant to Resolution No. ________________ by the City Council of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa on the 17th day of June, 2019. 

 

 

   

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

451



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: June 13, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Proposed Annexation of Territory to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

In January 2019, City Council approved the purchase of 200 acres of farm ground 
located just outside of the city limits of Cedar Falls, for the purpose of expanding the 
Cedar Falls Industrial Park. That property is located just west of the current industrial 
park, south of Viking Road, and east of S. Union Road. The City would like to begin 
voluntary annexation proceedings in order to bring this property into the City of Cedar 
Falls. The City of Cedar Falls owns a total of seven (7) parcels of land that will be part of 
the voluntary annexation. Six of those parcels are the farm ground parcels that the City 
recently acquired to expand the industrial park, and one parcel is the Cedar Falls 
Utilities’ substation (which is owned by the City of Cedar Falls). Also to be included in 
the voluntary annexation are seven (7) residential properties located along the south 
side of Viking Road. These properties will be included in the annexation to create a 
more uniform city limit boundary. In addition to creating a more uniform boundary, the 
private property owners would like to be included in the annexation territory in order to 
receive city amenities such as police and fire protection, garbage collection services, 
utilities such as gas, water and sanitary sewer, and an urbanized street including curb 
and gutter. None of the aforementioned amenities are available to those properties 
currently.  
 

Accompanying this memo you will find eight (8) voluntary annexation applications for 
the following properties: 
 

1. Property owned by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
2. Property owned by M. Lathon and Linda Jernigan 
3. Property owned by Marvin and Jean Mc Elvain 
4. Property owned by Jacob and Jessica Nauholz 
5. Property owned by Bruce and Marilyn Baridon 
6. Property owned by Rebecca Dickinson 
7. Property owned by Scott and Debra Knudtson 
8. Property owned by Dennis and Linda Nebbe 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

452



Iowa law provides for certain procedures relating to proposed annexation of territory to a 
city. The proposed resolution which accompanies this letter accomplishes these state 
law requirements, as follows: 
 

a. Setting a time and place of consultation on the proposed annexation of territory 
between representatives of the City of Cedar Falls, the Black Hawk County 
Board of Supervisors and the Cedar Falls Township Trustees, since the territory 
proposed to be annexed lies within Cedar Falls Township and Black Hawk 
County. 

b. Setting a date of public hearing on the annexation applications. 
c. Directing mailing of the notice of the consultation, and both the publication of the 

notice and mailing of the notice of hearing on the voluntary applications for 
annexation, to certain interested parties. 

 
These requirements of state law require certain timelines which necessitate scheduling 
the public hearing on the proposed annexation for August 19, 2019. 
 
Assuming that the Cedar Falls City Council approves the annexation applications, the 
applications must then be submitted to the City Development Board of the State of 
Iowa, for review and approval by that board, before the annexations would become 
final. 
 
The Community Development Department recommends that the City Council adopt and 
approve the following: 
 
 1. Resolution setting time and place of consultation, directing mailing of 

notice of consultation, setting date of public hearing, directing publication 
of notice, and directing the mailing of notice of hearing, for application for 
voluntary annexation of real estate to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

453



1 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.___________ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING TIME AND PLACE OF CONSULTATION, 

DIRECTING MAILING OF NOTICE OF CONSULTATION, 

SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING, DIRECTING 

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE, DIRECTING THE MAILING OF 

NOTICE OF HEARING, AND APPROVING PRE-ANNEXATION 

AGREEMENTS FOR APPLICATION FOR VOLUNTARY 

ANNEXATION OF REAL ESTATE TO THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received eight (8) 

applications for the voluntary annexation and pre-annexation agreements requesting annexation to 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, of certain contiguous parcels of real estate consisting of 

approximately 244 acres of land situated west of current Cedar Falls city limits, collectively 

comprising territory adjoining the City described as follows: 

 

Northwest Corner and North one-half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 34, 

Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, except 

the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except Parcel ‘A’ of 

Plat of Survey Doc. # 2017-02916 

and 

North 550 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the Northeast Corner Quarter of Section 

34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the real estate that is proposed to be annexed is within two (2) miles of the 

corporate boundaries of the City of Hudson, Iowa; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has received Pre-Annexation Agreements in accordance with Iowa 

Code section 368.7(1)(e) from Jacob & Jessica Nauholz, M. Lathon & Linda Jernigan, Bruce & 

Marilyn Baridon, Marvin & Jean Mc Elvain, Rebecca Dickinson, and Debra & Scott Knudtson, 

all of which are attached hereto as Attachment B; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the real estate proposed to be annexed includes a portion of the south one 

half (1/2) of the Viking Road right-of-way and a portion of the east one-half (1/2) of the S. Union 

Road right-of-way, both of which are owned by, or subject to an easement in favor of, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa; and 

 

WHEREAS, a time for a consultation on the proposed annexation between the annexing 

city and the county and the township that contains the territory to be annexed shall be set, with 

said consultation to be held at least fourteen (14) business days before notice of the annexation 

applications is mailed to certain parties, and notice of said consultation must be sent to the board 

of supervisors of said county and to the township trustees of said township in accordance with 

Iowa Code Chapter 368; and 

 

454



2 

 

WHEREAS, before the proposal for annexation may be acted upon, a public hearing is to 

be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa in accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 

368; and 

 

WHEREAS, notice of said hearing must be published in an official county newspaper in 

the county in which the property to be annexed is contained, at least ten (10) business days prior 

to the public hearing; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls is required to provide written notice of the filing of 

the applications and of the time and place of the public hearing on said applications to certain 

interested parties, at least fourteen (14) business days prior to the public hearing, by certified  mail, 

which interested parties include the City Council of Hudson, Iowa; the Chairperson of the Black 

Hawk County Board of Supervisors; Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments, which is 

the regional planning authority of the property proposed to be annexed; the Black Hawk County 

Attorney; the owners of property adjoining the territory to be annexed which is not located in the 

annexing city, and all public utilities that serve the property proposed to be annexed; and 

 

WHEREAS, the published and mailed notices are to include the time and place of the 

consultation and the time and place of the public hearing, and the legal description of the properties 

proposed to be annexed, which legal description is set forth in Attachment A, attached hereto and 

by this reference incorporated herein; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the  City  Council  deems  it appropriate  to  set  the  time  and  place for  a 

consultation between the appointed representative on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, the Black 

Hawk County Board of Supervisors, and the Trustees of Cedar Falls Township, and to direct the 

mailing of notice of the time and place of the consultation, including a copy of the applications, 

and a map of the territory showing its location in relationship to the City of Cedar Falls; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate to set the time and place of public 

hearing thereon, to direct the publication of notice and the mailing of notice of the application by 

certified mail, both to include the time and place of hearing on and the legal description of the 

property proposed to be annexed, in accordance with law; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems the pre-annexation agreements included with the 

applications for annexation to be in good form and in the best interests of the City. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That a consultation shall be held on the 2nd day of July, 2019, at 4:00 o'clock p.m., 

in the Duke Young Conference Room of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 50613, with representatives of the City 

of Cedar Falls,  the  Black  Hawk  County  Board  of  Supervisors,  and  the  Cedar  

Falls Township Trustees. 

 

455



3 

 

2. That  the City Clerk or her designee is directed to mail by certified mail, return 

receipt requested, a written notice of the time and place of the consultation, together 

with a copy of the annexation applications, a legal description of the territory 

proposed to be annexed, and a map of the territory showing its location in 

relationship  to  the  City of  Cedar  Falls, to  the  Black  Hawk  County  Board of 

Supervisors and to the Cedar Falls Township Trustees, no later than the 18th day 

of June, 2019. 

 

3. That a public hearing shall be held on the 19th day of August, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in 

the Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay 

Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, to consider the applications and proposal for the voluntary 

annexation of the property legally described as set forth on Attachment A, attached 

hereto, to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

4. That the City Clerk or her designee is directed to publish notice of the application 

and of the time and place of the public hearing and the legal description of the real 

estate proposed to be annexed to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, in the Waterloo-

Cedar Falls Courier, an official county newspaper in Black Hawk County, which is 

the only county in which the territory proposed to be annexed is located, not less 

than ten (10) business days prior to the date fixed as the date for a public hearing 

on the proposal for annexation, August 19, 2019. 

 

5. That, pursuant to Iowa Code section 368.7(3), the City Clerk or her designee is 

directed to mail by certified mail, return receipt requested, a written notice of the 

time and place of the public hearing and a legal description of the real estate 

proposed to be annexed, together with a copy of the written applications for 

voluntary annexation, at least fourteen (14) business days prior to August 19, 2019, 

but no earlier than fourteen (14) days after the date set for the consultation meeting, 

to the following: 

 

a. The Chairperson of the Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors;  

b. Black Hawk County Attorney; 

c. The City Council of the City of Hudson, Iowa;  

d.  The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments, the regional 

planning authority with respect to the property proposed to be 

annexed;  

e. The owners of property adjoining the territory to be annexed which 

is not located in the annexing city; and  

f. Each public utility which serves the property proposed to be 

annexed. 

 

6. That any interested party may appear at the time and place of hearing and be heard, 

or may file written objections to the proposed annexation with the City Clerk on or 

before the date and time of said hearing. 

 

456



4 

 

7. That the form and content of the Pre-Annexation Agreements from Jacob & Jessica 

Nauholz, M. Lathon & Linda Jernigan, Bruce & Marilyn Baridon, Marvin & Jean 

Mc Elvain, Rebecca Dickinson, and Debra & Scott Knudtson, attached hereto as 

Attachment B, and the provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be 

and the same hereby are in all respects authorized, approved, and confirmed, and 

the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they hereby are authorized, empowered, and 

directed to execute, attest, seal, and deliver the Pre-Annexation Agreements for and 

on behalf of the City in substantially the form and content now before this meeting, 

and that from and after the execution and delivery of the Pre-Annexation 

Agreements, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered, and 

directed to record the documents so executed and do all such acts and things and to 

execute all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the 

provisions of the Pre-Annexation Agreements as executed. 

 

ADOPTED this ____ day of _____________, 20__. 

 

 

              

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

457



5 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

Legal Descriptions  

 

 

(City of Cedar Falls Property) 

 

Northwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, except the North 1,200 feet of the West 800 feet thereof; 

 

AND 

 

North one-half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further 

except Parcel ‘A’ of Plat of Survey Doc. # 2017-02916. 

 

 (Dennis & Linda Nebbe) 

 

West 800 feet of the North 1,200 feet of the Northwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

 (Jacob & Jessica Nauholz) 

 

West 240 feet of the North 550 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 

14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

 (M. Lathon & Linda Jernigan) 

 

East 240 feet of the West 480 feet of the North 550 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, 

Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

 (Bruce & Marilyn Baridon) 

 

East 283 feet of the West 763 feet of the North 260.77 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 

34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

 

 (Marvin & Jean Mc Elvain) 

 

East 280 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the North 253 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, 

Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

 (Rebecca Dickinson) 

 

East 603 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the South 150 feet of the North 403 feet except the East 

283 feet of the West 763 feet of the North 7.77 feet of the South 150 feet of the North 403 feet and 

458



6 

 

the East 40 feet of the West 803 feet of the North 253 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, 

Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

 (Debra Dreyer (Knudtson) & Scott Knudtson) 

 

East 603 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the South 147 feet of the North 550 feet of the Northeast 

Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

 

 

  

459



7 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

 

Pre-Annexation Agreements 

 

  

460



8 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk  of the  City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that 

the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution Number _______ 

duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the ___ day of June, 2019. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ______ day of __________________, 2019. 

 

 

 

              

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
01590749-1\10283-165 

461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



485



486



487



488



489



490



491



492



493



494



495



496



497



498



499



500



501



502



503



504



505



506



507



508



509



510



511



512



513



514



515



516



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: June 13, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution Appointing Susan deBuhr as Representative for 
Annexation Consultation 

 
 

 
In January 2019, City Council approved the purchase of 200 acres of farm ground 
located just outside of the city limits of Cedar Falls, for the purpose of expanding the 
Cedar Falls Industrial Park. That property is located just west of the current industrial 
park, south of Viking Road, and east of S. Union Road. The City would like to begin 
voluntary annexation proceedings in order to bring this property into the City of Cedar 
Falls. The City of Cedar Falls owns a total of seven (7) parcels of land that will be part of 
the voluntary annexation. Six of those parcels are the farm ground parcels that the City 
recently acquired to expand the industrial park, and one parcel is the Cedar Falls 
Utilities’ substation (which is owned by the City of Cedar Falls). Also to be included in 
the voluntary annexation are seven (7) residential properties located along the south 
side of Viking Road. These properties will be included in the annexation to create a 
more uniform city limit boundary. In addition to creating a more uniform boundary, the 
private property owners would like to be included in the annexation territory in order to 
receive city amenities such as police and fire protection, garbage collection services, 
utilities such as gas, water and sanitary sewer, and an urbanized street including curb 
and gutter. None of the aforementioned amenities are available to those properties 
currently.  
 
One of the first steps in the annexation process is to hold a consultation meeting on the 
proposed annexation between the annexing city and the county and township that 
contains the territory to be annexed. The proposed area to be annexed is located within 
Black Hawk County, and within Cedar Falls Township, so the consultation meeting will 
be held with representatives from the Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors and the 
Cedar Falls Township Trustees. Also, an appointed representative of the Cedar Falls 
City Council may also participate in the consultation meeting on behalf of the City.  
 
Attached please find a proposed City Council Resolution approving the Mayor’s 
appointment of City Council member Susan deBuhr as the Cedar Falls representative 
for the consultation with representatives of the Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors 
and Cedar Falls Township Trustees. 
 
 
 

517



The Community Development Department recommends that the City Council adopt and 
approve the following: 
 
 1. Resolution appointing representative of the City of Cedar Falls for 

consultation meeting for Voluntary Annexation of Real Estate to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

518



 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.___________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING REPRESENTATIVE OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS FOR CONSULTATION MEETING FOR 

VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION OF REAL ESTATE TO THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received applications 

for the voluntary annexation to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, of certain real estate within the 

urbanized territory of another city; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 368, a consultation on the proposed 

annexation is to be held between the annexing city and the county and the township that contains 

the territory to be annexed; and 

 

WHEREAS, an appointed representative of the Cedar Falls City Council may participate 

in the consultation with representatives of the Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors and the 

Trustees of Cedar Falls Township on behalf of the city council; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mayor James P. Brown has appointed Cedar Falls City Council member 

Susan deBuhr as a representative of the City of Cedar Falls to participate in said consultation, 

and the City Council deems it to be in the best interests of the City of Cedar Falls to approve said 

appointment. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that the Mayor's appointment of Cedar Falls City Council member 

Susan deBuhr as a representative of the City of Cedar Falls to participate in the consultation with 

representatives of the Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors and the Cedar Falls Township 

Trustees, be and the same is hereby approved. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this ____ day of _____________, 20__. 

 

_________________________________________ 

     James P. Brown, Mayor 

(SEAL) 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 
01590766-1\10283-165 

519



 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

  

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: June 12, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Panther Lane Parking Restriction 
 
Staff presented a parking restriction on Panther Lane at the May 6th Council Committee of the 
Whole. This was in response to a survey that staff sent to every property owner along 
Panther Lane from the pedestrian bridge to its southern terminus. The response of the survey 
indicated that the majority does not want a parking restriction placed on Panther Lane. 
However, at the north end of the street, there is an existing parking restriction on the east 
side from University Avenue to Starview Drive and the adjacent property owners requested to 
extend a parking restriction on the east side from Starview Drive to Springbrook Drive. 
 
When an on-street parking restriction request is reviewed, there are several factors to 
consider that include width of the roadway, sight visibility, level of neighborhood support, 
traffic volumes, speed and crash history. The Department of Community Development 
reviewed the existing conditions on this section of Panther Lane and offers the following 
observations. 
 

 The roadway is a standard 31 foot pavement that is wide enough for parking on both 
sides of the street that will accommodate a through movement of vehicles in both 
directions. 

 Reviewing the crash data, there have been minor property damage reports over the 
past 10 years in the neighborhood, but no accidents on Panther Lane. 

 The north end of Panther Lane terminates at the pedestrian bridge. There are no 
sidewalks in this area and pedestrians use the street to access the bridge and cross 
Dry Run Creek. 

 There is support to extend the parking restriction on the east side of Panther Lane to 
Springbrook Drive. 

 

Based on the motion from the City Council Committee of the Whole meeting on May 6th, the 
attached ordinance signifies a parking restriction on the east side of Panther Lane. The 
Department of Community Development recommends adding a parking restriction for no 
parking on the east side of Panther Lane from Starview Drive to Springbrook Drive.  
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Planning and Community Services office. 

520



Prepared By: David Sturch, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 23-376, PARKING PROHIBITED ON 

SPECIFIC STREETS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, STOPPING, 

STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY 

AMENDING A PROVISION PROHIBITING PARKING ON PORTIONS OF PANTHER 

LANE, CONTAINED IN SECTION 23-376, PARKING PROHIBITED ON SPECIFIC 

STREETS. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

 The subsection prohibiting parking on portions of Panther Lane contained in Section 23-376, of 

Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor 

Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a 

new subsection prohibiting parking on portions of Panther Lane contained in Section 23-376, Parking 

prohibited on specific streets, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 

Street Portion Where Parking Prohibited 

 

Panther Lane On the east side from University Avenue to Springbrook 

Drive. 

 

On the west side from the south curb line of University 

Avenue to the north curb line of the south leg of 

Starbeck Circle. 

 

On the west side from the south curb line of Starview 

Drive south a distance of 40 feet. 

 

INTRODUCED:           

 

PASSED 1
st
 CONSIDERATION:         

 

PASSED 2
nd

 CONSIDERATION:         

 

PASSED 3
rd

 CONSIDERATION:         

 

ADOPTED:            

 

 

_____________________________ 

                                                                             James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

521


	Top
	1. Regular Meeting of June 3, 2019
	190603MINUTES.docx

	2. PH-Rezoning of 2600 Grove Street
	1.Memo-PH Rezoning-2600 Grove 6-12-19.docx
	2.Ord-Rezoning 2600 Grove.docx

	3. Ordinance-Rezoning of 2600 Grove Street
	4. Ord. 2944-DT Parking-Terminology
	2944-DT Parking-terminology.docx

	5. Ord. 2945-DT Parking Regulations
	2945-DT Parking Regulations.docx

	6. Ord. 2946-DT Parking-Conformance to parking regulations
	Ord. 2946-Parking-23-41, 23-83.docx

	7. Appts 6/17/19
	1-Appointments Council Memo.docx
	2-HPC - Hayes 4-2-19.pdf
	3-HPC - Mahncke 4-2-19.pdf
	4-Utilities - Iehl 3-5-19.pdf

	8. Committee of the Whole minutes
	Comm of the Whole 06 03 19.docx

	9. Equipment Mechanic Civil Service certified list
	Equip Mechanic-CertList6-2019.pdf

	10. W. 1st Street Acquisitions
	1.council memo on w 1st street.docx
	2.Parcel 6 Condemnation.pdf
	3.Parcel 76 Condemnation.pdf

	11. Street closures - Sturgis Falls Half Marathon and 5K Run - 6/30/19
	Sturgis Falls Half Marathon.pdf

	12. Tobacco Permits 6/17/19
	06172019 Tobacco Applications.pdf

	13. Liquor Licenses 6/17/19
	Liquor Beer 6-13-19.docx

	14. Fy2020 Appropriations Resolution
	06042019093158.pdf

	15. Audit Engagement-Eide Bailly, LLP
	1-ENG LETTER COUNCIL.MEM.docx
	2-cover letter.pdf
	3-engagement agreement.pdf

	16. Depository Resolution
	Depository Resolution memo June19.docx
	Depository Resolution 061719.docx

	17. Textile Services Contract (Linen Services)
	Textile Services Contract FY20-21.pdf

	18. FY20 Wellmark Administrative Services Agreement
	1. Administrative Services Agreement-2019CouncilMemo (1).docx
	2. City of Cedar Falls SF BCBS WSD 070119.pdf

	19. FY20 Wellmark Stop Loss Policy
	1. Stop Loss Policy 2019CouncilMemo.docx
	2. City of Cedar Falls SLP 070119.pdf

	20. Client Agreement-Express Scripts-pharmacy benefit management services & agreement to join Gallagher Pharmacy Alliance
	1. PBM services agreement with Express Scripts to Join Gallagher Pharmacy Alliance Council Memo 6-17-19.docx
	2. Agreement with ESI for PBM services &amp; joing GPA.pdf

	21. Client Authorization-Gallagher
	FY20 Public Entity Ins Rnwl - CC pkg.pdf

	22. FY20 Fee Schedule
	1 FY20FeeSchedCouncilMemo.docx
	2 FY20 Fee Schedule Draft.xlsx

	23. Memorandum of Agreement relative to the preparation of a Visitor Guide
	2019-06-13 Request to sign MOA 2020 Visitor Guide.pdf

	24. Ridgeway Avenue Acquisition
	1. Memo-Council.docx
	2.0173_001.pdf

	25. Supplemental Agreement (No. 8) - Greenhill Road Extension Lighting
	1. SA8 Engineering Services.docx
	2. Greenhill Road Extension Lighting.pdf

	26. Historic Preservation Commission - Bylaws amendment
	1. memo - HPC Bylaw amendment.docx
	2. signed Bylaws.pdf

	27. Rental to SF-1600 W 3rd Street
	1. Memo to Council - 1600 W 3rd Street.docx
	2. Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note.docx
	3. McCartan 1600 W. 3rd St. Rental Incentive App..pdf
	4. Warranty Deed.pdf
	5. images from applicant.pdf

	28. Rental to SF-620 Tremont Street
	1. Memo to Council - 620 Tremont Street.docx
	2. Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note (1).docx
	3. Risius 620 Tremont-Rental to Owner Conversion.pdf
	4. James Risius - 620 Tremont St Estimate.pdf
	5. images from applicant.docx

	29. Escrow Agreement-Greenhill Estates
	1-CC memo on project escrow agreement 5-30-19.docx
	2-Signed escrow agreement by Oster.pdf

	30. Set Public Hearing - Cyber Lane-2018 Street Construction Projec
	1. Memo-Council Pubic Hearing.docx
	2. PH.docx
	3.0064_001.pdf

	31. Set PH - South Main Street Parking Lot Project - PS & E
	1. South Main Street Parking Lot West of Oregon Road PSE Memo.docx
	2. South Main St Parking Lot - Estimate.pdf

	32. Set PH-DA & conveyance-Tjaden Properties, LLC
	1_Memo to Council Setting Date of Public Hearing 06-17-19.docx
	Res-Set PH-DA-Tjaden.docx
	PH Ntc-DA-Tjaden.docx

	33. Set PH-Consultation-Annexation
	1_Memo to Council for 06-17-19.docx
	2_Resolution Setting Consultation (01601597x7F7E1).pdf
	3_Combined Signed Applications.pdf

	34. Resolution Appointing City Council Representative for Annexation Consultation Meeting
	1_Memo to Council for 06-17-19.docx
	2_Resolution Appointing Representative of City for Consultation (01590766x7F7E1).docx

	35. Ord-Panther Lane Parking Restriction
	City Council Panther Lane no parking memo 6-11-19.docx
	Panther Lane No Parking Ordinance.docx

	36. Allow Bills and Payroll of June 17, 2019
	Bottom

